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Mr. Epyonpson. I would like also to have supplied for the record,
if you reached a point of determination with regard to some States
whose laws obviously are not the basis for an agreement, the identi-
fication of those States.

Mr. Bripwernn, Mr. Edmondson, may I ask the committee’s indul-
gence in the latter category, to put it on the basis that our preliminary
ovaluation of a State’s statute is that it is in conflict with the Federal
law? And I ask that indulgence because, as I say, at this point in
time we have not taken the position that any State law is in conflict
and that we therefore cannot even attempt to negotiate an agreement.

Mr. Eparonpsox. Mr. Chairman, would that be satisfactory, to have
it submitted on that basis, that there has been a preliminary finding
by the Department that the law is not in compliance?

Mr. Kruczyxskr. Without objection, it will be made a part of the
record.

(Information follows:)

As of May 30, 1968, 33 States have enacted some form of legislation for
the control of outdoor advertising. Of this number, the following listed 19
States have enacted legislation to carry out all of the provisions of Title I
of the Highway Beautification Act of 1965 and, in the opinion of the Secretary,
appear to provide the designated State agency adequate authority as a basis
upon which the States could enter into agreements.

Alagka New York (not yet signed by Gover-
Arkansas nor)

California North Carolina

Connecticut ' Rhode Island

Hawaii Utah

Idaho Vermont

Kentucky Virginia

Louisiana West Virginia

Maryland Distriet of Columbia

New Mexico Puerto Rico

Texas, Colorado and New Hampshire have passed laws which are temporary
in nature; the Texas legislature passed a resolution which authorizes negotia-
tion relative to outdoor advertising controls under the Federal Act, while in
Colorado and New Hampshire moratorium statutes restrict the erection of
new signs for a designated period of time. :

North Dakota enacted a unique law which sets up a highway Corridor Board
to regulate outdoor advertising in addition to other duties. This law appears
to be reasonably susceptible to several alternate methods of implementation.
Therefore, the adequacy of this law to fully comply with the Highway Beau-
tification Act of 1965 will be contingent upon the State’s interpretation and
implementation of its provisions.

Specific standards and provisions are written into the laws of the remaining
10 States listed below :

Georgia Missouri
Indiana Montana
Kansas Oklahoma
Michigan South Dakota
Mississippi ‘Wyoming

Based upon a preliminary review of these laws, certain features contained
therein raise serious questions as to the State’s authority to fully. comply
with the Highway Beautification Act. Final determination as to whether these
jaws are in need of amendment or further legislative action will rest upon
State interpretation of the various statutory provisions and the authority of
the designated State agencies to negotiate satisfactory agreements with the
Secretary to comply with the Federal Act.

Mr. Kuuczynssr Any further questions?
Mr. Eparoxpson. I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Cramer. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Kvoozynsgl, Mr. Cramer. o

Mr. Cranmer. Are you interested on States enacting State legislation
calling for the removal of billboards that are not in conformity to
the Federal law ? Removal now or in the near future?

Mr. Browern. We have not, Mr. Cramer, developed any model
legislation in the sense that we suggest to the States or demand of the
States what kind of legislation they should enact. There have been
a few instances in which a State authority sponsoring legislation
before a legislature has asked for our comments upon draft legisla-
tion, which has been provided.

Other than those kinds of conditions, we have not tried to suggest
or require, or any other kind of action, what the legislation should
contain before a State legislature other than providing each of the
States the Federal statute plus the clarifying policy statements that
have been made by the Secretary, either before the committee or in
exchange of correspondence with the committee.

Mr. CramEr. Well, you had some standards and we had some dis-
cussions about them and disagreements and so forth.

Mr. BriowerLr. That is correct.

Mr. Cramer. As I understand it, there have been no additional
standards developed or promulgated or issued, as a guidance to the
States, relating to their carrying out in particular title I.

Mr. BripweLL. I think the committee made it very clear that it was
somewhat less than enthused with our draft standards.

Mr. Craner. You have not tried to redraft them ?

Mr. Briowerr. So that you are quite correct, we have not attempted
to redraft the standards for a very good reason, that the standards—
if you may call them standards—apply individually in each State in
accordance with the agreement reached with the State. So there are
no such things as national uniform standards, but the standards result
rather from the negotiated agreement with each of the States.

Mr. Cranmer. The thing that bothers me basically is that if you are
encouraging States—and I am sure you would not discourage them—
to pass legislation to take down billboards, there is no money to do it.
The State is going to have to pick up the cost, right ?

Mr. BrioweLr. The State would have to pick up the cost or some
other kind of action would have to take place ;. yes, sir.

Mr. Craner. How many of the 17 agreements are with States whose
le%islatures have not yet acted ?

fr. Briowerr. I will have .to supply that for the record, Mr.
Cramer.
(The information follows:) -

OUTDOOR ADVERTISING AGREEMENTS WITH STATES WHOSE LEGISLATURES HAVE
Not YET ACTED

During the hearing on May 23, 1968, Mr. Cramer inquired as to how many
of the agreements are with States whose Legislatures have not yet acted.

These are : Minnesota, Maine, Iowa, Pennsylvania, and Delaware.

The original agreement with New York was signed prior to the time that the
Legislature had taken action. On May 25, 1968, the New York Legislature enacted
an outdoor advertising control bill, which is presently awaiting the Governor’s
signature. This bill ratified and approved a revised agreement with New York,
signed May 13, 1968.
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The original agreement with Maryland was signed prior to the enactment
of State legislation. The Maryland Legislature later enacted a law containing
substantially the same terms as the agreement. Certain minor changes were
made by the Legislature in the standards; these are considered acceptable
and a revised agreement will be executed in the near future.

The agreement with Alaska was signed prior to enactment of State legislation.
Subsequently, the State Legislature enacted a law ratifying the agreement.

Mr. Cramer. Some of them are ?

Mr. BripwerL. Yes, the one that I am particularly familiar with
right at the moment, because the legislature is in the process now of
enacting legislation to carry out the agreement, is the State of New
York, so that is one instance.

Mr. Cramer. Well, I think maybe the only way we will get to the
bottom of what is being done, what judgments are being exercised,
what importuning is taking place relating to the State, legislatively
or otherwise, would be, Mr. Chairman, to suggest that they submit a
State-by-State analysis of what has occurred and what the present
status is.

Mr. Bripwerr. We will be glad to supply such an analysis, Mr.
Cramer. We, I believe, routinely have supplied to the committee copies
of each of the agreements signed.

Mr. CraMer. We have that, I think.

Mr. BripwrLL. So that there has been a very positive attitude on our
part that the committee should be fully informed of the progress of
(éur program of attempting to reach agreements with each of the

tates.

Mr. Kruczynski. Mr: Bridwell, will you supply the committee with
that information ? o B

Mr. BripwrrL. Yes, we will be glad to, Mr. Chairman.

(The information follows:) :

OUTDOOR ADVERTISING CONTROL—STATUS OF NEGOTIATIONS

During the hearing on May 23, 1968, Mr. Cramer requested that the Depart-
ment submit for the record a State-by-State analysis of what has occurred dur-
ing the negotiations on outdoor advertising control, and the present status of
said negotiations. )

Following the hearings before the Subcommittee on Roads in April and May of
1967, Secretary Boyd wrote to Chairman Kluczynski on May 24, 1967, outlining
four points of policy which would be followed in administering Title I of the
Act. Chairman Kluezynski released the text of this letter in a press release on
June 2, 1967, and on June 8, 1967, the Secretary acknowledged the press release
of June 2 and advised that he had on that date directed the Federal Highway
Administrator to proceed as expeditiously as possiblé to work out, within the
framework of the May 24 letter, agreements with the States for implementation
of the Act. These three documents were transmitted to the States by Federal
Highway Adminisration Notice of June 26, 1967, together with Mr. Bridwell’s
statement of May 2, 1967, before the Subcommittee.

The pattern of negotiations has been virtually the -same with respect to all
States. During the initial meeting or correspondence with the State, the State
has been requested to work out proposed standards and criteria which, in the
State’s opinion, would be reasonable and effective in the light of conditions with-
in the State. State officials have been informed of the status of negotiations in
other States, and copies of agreements executed have been transmitted to all
States shortly following signature. In this manner, the initiative in developing
the standards has come from the State, and all States have been kept fully
aware of the status of negotiations and agreements with their fellow States.
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ALABAMA

On August 7, 1967, Administrator Bridwell wrote to Alabama Highway Di-
rector Nelson asking that the State develop proposed standards for outdoor ad-
vertising control for study and mutual discussion. Mr. Nelson replied by letter
of August 17, 1967, that the State Legislature then had before it bills providing
for highway beautification, including outdoor advertising control and the State
did not consider it wise to attempt to enter into an agreement with the Federal
Government while the Legislature was considering those bills. Several attempts
were made in subsequent months to arrange for further negotiations; no affirma-
tive reaction was received from the State until recently. A meeting is now
scheduled for June 19 between State officials and Administration representa-
tives in Montgomery.

ALASRKA

On August 7, 1967, the Administrator wrote to Commissioner Gonnason of
the Alaska Department of Highways, asking the State to develop proposed
standards for outdoor advertising control in Alaska which could be used for
study and mutual discussion. On March 4, 1968, a draft of a proposed agree-
ment prepared by the State was received! This was determined to be satisfae-
tory and the State was so advised. The agreement was executed by the State
and signed by the Administrator on March 29, 1968.

ARIZONA

On August 7, 1967, Mr. Bridwell wrote to State Highway Engineer Price of
the Arizona Highway Department asking the State to develop proposed stand-
ards for study and mutual discussion. Mr. Price replied on August 17, 1967, in-
dicating that the Governor’s Commission on Arizona Beauty was planning to set
up a Citizens’ Committee, to be appointed by the Governor, for the purpose of
drafting billboard and junkyard legislation for presentation to the 1968 Legisla-
ture. Mr. Price continued that the assistance of a Federal representative would
be requested at the appropriate time. )

On October 23, 1967, a Federal Highway Administration representative met
with the Citizens’ Committee in Phoenix, at the Committee’s request. The Fed-
eral representative explained the requirements of the Federal Act of the Com-
mittee, which represented a number of different interests, including the outdoor
advertising industry. A second meeting at the request of the Committee was
held on November 20, 1967, and there were a number of subsequent telephone
conversations between State and Administration representatives concerning the
provisions of the proposed outdoor advertising and junkyard control bills. Dur-
ing these discussions, mutually satisfactory control provisions were worked out.
On February 22, 1968, two representatives of the Administration appeared be-
fore a joint committee of the Arizona Legislature and explained the Federal
Highway Beautification Act and its requirements. The Arizona Legislature ad-
journed its 1968 session, however, without acting on the proposed legislation.

ARKANSAS

Negotiations were commenced on June 5, 1967, when a Federal Highway Ad-
ministration representative conferred with State officials in Little Rock. Mr.
Bridwell thereafter wrote to Director of Highways Goodman on August 7, 1967,
and requested the State to develop proposed standards for further study and
mutual discussion. At the request of the State, an Administration representative
attended a conference in Little Rock on October 26, 1967, to discuss proposed
standards which had been developed. On March 27, 1968, the Arkansas Highway
Commission authorized Director Goodman to hold a public hearing on the pro-
posed standards and thereafter execute an‘agreement with the Federal Highway
Administration. This hearing was held in Little Rock on May 15, 1968. The
State is now considering the information presented at the hearing.

CALIFORNIA

Negotiations with California were commenced on July 24, and 25, 1567, when
representatives of the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials,
including members of the Legislature, in Sacramento. Details of size, lighting,
and spacing standards were worked out and were included in a bill passed into
law by the California Legislature. Subsequent meetings were held in Sacra-

)
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mento on September 5, 1967, and January 10, 1968. These, together with a num-
ber of telephone conversations between the State and Administration repre-
sentatives, concerned the definition of an unzoned commercial or industrial
area and the wording of the agreement. The agreement was executed on Feb-

ruary 15, 1968.
COLORADO

Negotiations were commenced on June 7, 1967. At that time a representative
of the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials in Denver.
These negotiations were continued in Denver on July 5, 1967, and on August 7,
1967, Mr. Bridwell wrote to Chief Engineer Shumate asking the State to develop
proposed standards for outdoor advertising control for further study and mutual
discussion. In reply, Mr. Shumate wrote on August 11, 1967, that it would be
their intention to work closely with the Administration during the winter of
1967-68 in attempting to develop satisfactory legislation which could be recom-
mended to the Legislature. : ‘

On January 20, 1968, representatives of the Administration met with Senators
Allott and Dominick, other members of the Colorado Congressional Delegation
and Colorado State Legislators in the U.S, Capitol at Senator Allott’s request.
At that time the provisions of the Highway Beautification Act were explained
and questions of the State Legislators were answered. On Jauunary 25, 1968, a
representative of the Administration again met with Colorado State Highway
Department officials in Denver, at which time they reviewed proposed legisla-
tion to be considered by the 1968 session of the Colorado Legislature. However,
the Colorado Legislature did not enact the proposed legislation, but instead
extended the previously enacted moratorium legislation.

CONNECTICUT

Negotiations were begun on May 25, 1967, when a Federal Highway Adminis-
tration representative met with State officials in Hartford. Additional meetings
were held in Hartford on June 20, 22, and 26, 1967, and on several occasions
subsequent to June 26, State officials were telephonically in contact with Admin-
istration representatives. The agreement with Connecticut was signed on Sep-

tember 11, 1967.
DELAWARE

On August 7, 1967, Mr, Bridwell wrote to Director Davidson of the Delaware
State Highway Department asking that the State develop proposed standards
for study and mutual discussion. On August 18, 1967, representatives of the
Tederal Highway Administration met in Dover with Mr. Davidson and other
State officials. On January 4, 1968, the State forwarded a draft of a proposed
agreement. Generally, the draft was entirely satisfactory and the State was so
advised. On April 11, 1968, a second draft of a proposed agreement was received.
Several changes were suggested to the State for consideration prior to the
preparation of the final agreement. The agreement with Delaware was executed

on May 1, 1968.
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

On June 1, 1967, an initial meeting was held between officials of the District
of Columbia Department of Highways and Traffic and representatives of the
Federal Highway Administration. Provisions of an agreement were worked
out during this meeting, and were finalized in telephone conversations and an
additional meeting between Department of Highways and traffic officials and
Administration representatives. The agreement was signed on September 7, 1967.

' FLORIDA

Negotiations were begun on April 14, 1967, when a Federal Highway Adminis-
tration representative met with Chairman Jay W. Brown of the State Road
Board and other State officials at Tallahassee. On August 7, 1967, Mr. Bridwell
wrote to Mr. Brown asking that the State develop proposed standards for study
and mutual discussion. In reply, Chairman Brown wrote on September 5, 1967,
that their attorney was of the opinion that no agreement could be signed until
the Legislature had given them legal authority to do so. Chairman Brown did
request an additional meeting to discuss future implementation of the Act. This
meeting was held on November 28, 1967, in Tallahassee, attended by two Admin-
istration representatives, and on November 30, 1967, Mr. Brown wrote of their
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desire to cooperate in every manner possible in implementing the Act as soon
as the Florida Legislature authorizes them to do so and Congress appropriates
sufficient funds to proceed.

GEORGIA

Negotiations with Georgia were begun on November 29, 1967. On that date
representatives of the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials
in Atlanta. At the meeting the Georgia officials were advised that the existing
Georgia law contained features which would be regarded as objectionable inso-
far as forming the basis for an agreement. Subsequently by letter dated Decem-
ber 28, 1967, the State submitted a proposed agreement, based on the existing
Georgia law, for consideration. By letter dated January 29, 1968, Mr. Bridwell
pointed out that certain features of the agreement would not be considered
acceptable to the Secretary, and, in addition; certain provisions would conflict
with the language and intent of the Federal Act. Mr, Bridwell offered to discuss
the matter further or to negotiate an interim agreement pending further State
legislative action. By letter dated April 24, 1968, the State accepted the offer
to meet and negotiate, and a conference has been scheduled for June 18, 1968,
in Atlanta.

HAWAII

Chief Highway Engineer Albert C. Zane advised in March, 1967, that the
State highway department was agreeable to entering into an agreement pro-
viding for outdoor advertising control in Hawaii. Hawaii wished to consider
two different agreements, one incorporating the standards contained in the
January 10, 1967, report to the Congress and the other to contain the more
restrictive requirements of State law. In response to the State’s request two
sample agreements were prepared in the Washington office and transmitted for
the State’s consideration. The State elected to sign an agreement incorporating
the more restrictive provisions of State law. This agreement was executed on
July 13, 1967.

IDAHO

Negotiations were commenced on July 31, 1967, in Boise. On that date a
Federal Highway Administration representative met with State officials. Negoti-
ations were continued in Boise on August 22, 1967, and in compliance with their
law the State held public hearings in late August 1967 in Boise and five other
locations in Idaho concerning their proposed regulations. By letter dated Decem-
ber 1. 1967, the State submitted a draft of a proposed agreement; on December
15, 1967, three signed copies of a proposed: agreement were submitted by the
State. On January 18, 1968, the agreement was discussed telephonically with
State Highway Engineer Mathes and on January 26, 1968, Mr. Mathes wrote
that the proposed changes suggested would be placed on the agenda of the Idaho
Highway Board at its next meeting. On February 23, 1968, Mr. Mathes sub-
mitted a revised agreement, which was under consideration when the State
advised by telegram that they had been enjoined in State court from enforcing
any provisions of their State outdoor advertising law and executing an agree-
ment with the Secretary. The State’s telegram revoked the offer to agree and
the signed agreement forwarded by letter dated February 23, pending disposition
of the suit.

ILLINOIS

Negotiations with Illinois were commenced on May 5, 1967, when a repre-
sentative of the Federal Higaway Administration met with State officials in
Springfield. Discussed at that time was an outdoor advertising control bill which
had been drawn up by the Illinois Division of Highways for submission to the
Legislature. On May 9, 1967, an Administration representative testified before
a hearing of a committee of the Illinois Senate and stated that the Illinois
Division of Highways bill would form a satisfactory basis for an agreement with
the Secretary. A more liberal bill was reported out favorably by the Senate
Committee and telephonic negotiations were commenced by Administration
representatives and State officials as to points of acceptability in the bill under
consideration. These continued until June 1967 when the bill was defeated in
the Illinois House. Since that time the State has declined to continue further
negotiations.
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INDIANA

Negotiations with Indiana will commence on June 6, 1968. On that date repre-
sentatives of the Federal Highway Administration will confer with State officials
in Indianapolis.

IOWA

Negotiations were begun in Ames, Iowa, on August 10, 1967. On that date,
representatives of the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials.
These negotiations were continued in Ames on September 28, 1968. At that time,
a draft agreement was discussed. A draft agreement was submitted by the State
by letter dated October 9, 1967, and was found generally acceptable; comments
for clarification purposes were transmitted to the State. A second draft was sub-
mitted by the State on December 6, 1967, and on December 18, 1967, a representa-
tive of the Administration met with members of the Iowa Highway Commission
in Ames. On December 20 the State submitted a signed agreement; by letter
dated January 24, 1968, the Administrator advised the State that he found
the terms of the agreement satisfactory with several exceptions, and suggested
several changes., On February 16, 1968, the State forwarded a proposed amend-
ment to its outdoor advertising control agreement. On April 12, 1968, Mr. Brid-
well sent to the State an agreement which combined the amendment with the
original agreement and clarified certain language contained therein. On May 20,
1968, the State submitted a revised draft, and by telegram of May 27, 1968, the
State was advised that the draft was entirely satisfactory. The agreement was
signed June 12, 1968.

KANSAS

Negotiations were commenced on August 7, 1967, when Administrator Bridwell
wrote to Director Montgomery of the Kansas State Highway Commission asking
that the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual discussion. On
September 6, 1967, a representative of the Administration met with State officials
in Topeka.

KENTUCKY

Negotiations were begun on August 10, 1967, in Frankfort; on that date a rep-
resentative of the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials. In
November 1967 the State submitted a draft of a proposed agreement. Certain
changes were suggested in telephonic conversations with State officials and in a
meeting in Washington on November 29, 1967. On December 5, 1967, the State
submitted a signed agreement, which was executed by the Administrator on
December 11, 1967.

LOUISIANA

Negotiations were commenced on October 31, 1967. On that date representatives
of the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials in Baton Rouge.
These negotiations were continued on December 12, 1967, and on December 28,
1967, the State submitted an agreement for consideration. By letter dated Jan-
uary 24, 1968, the Administrator advised the State of his reluctance to accept
one provision of the agreement. This provision was further discussed in the
State’s letters of February 5 and April 1, 1968, and the Administrator’s letter of
March 4, 1968. The State’s proposal is presently under consideration in the
Administration at the present time.

MAINE

On August 7, 1967, the Administrator wrote to Chairman Stevens asking that
the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual discussions, On
November 21, 1967, a Federal Highway Administration representative met wtih
State officials in Augusta and on December 28, 1967, an attorney for the Maine
State Highway Commission brought to Washington a proposed agreement. Cer-
tain changes were made in the agreement which was executed on that date by
the Administrator. The changes made were later approved by the Maine State
Highway Commission.

MARYLAND

Administrator Bridwell wrote to Chairman-Director Wolfe on August 7 , 1967,
asking the State to develop proposed standards for study and mutual discussion.
On October 5, 1967, State officials met with Administration representatives in
Washington. On January 15, 1968, the State held a public hearing on their
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proposed standards and on January 30, 1968, an attorney of the Maryland State
Roads Commission visited the Washington offices to discuss the proposed agree-
ment. Several minor language changes were suggested. The agreement was

executed on February 15, 1968.
AMASSACHUSETTS

Negotiations were commenced on July 26, 1967, when an Administration repre-
sentative met with State officials in Boston. At that time, the State indicated that
a legislative study committee had been assigned the responsibility of drawing up
proposed regulations and legislation. Although the Administration has offered
to continue these negotiations on several occasions, no affirmative response has
been received from the State. On April 8, 1968, Deputy Administrator Jamieson
wrote to Commissioner Ribbs assuring Mr Ribbs that the Administration was
ready to resume the negotiations begun on July 26, 1967.

MICHIGAN

Negotiations were commenced on December 5, 1967, when Administration
representatives met with State officials in Lansing. The State, by letter dated
February 16, 1968, submitted a proposed agreement which was based on the
provisions of the existing Michigan outdoor advertising control law. By letter
dated March 8, 1968, Highway Beautification Coordinator Fred S. Farr advised
the State that he was of the opinion that certain provisions in the proposed
agreement would not be acceptable as a basis for agreement with the Secretary,
and in addition certain of the provisions appeared to conflict with the language
and intent of the Federal Act itself. Mr. Farr’s letter stated that the Adminisra-
tion would be happy to discuss the matter further with the State at their
convenience. At the State's request, representatives of the Administration ap-
peared before a joint committee of the Michigan Legislature in Lansing on
April 23, 1968. The Administration’s objections to the existing Michigan law
were explained and the Administration again offered to meet with officials of
the State to work out mutually agreeable terms which could be included in a
proposed amendment to the existing law. The joint legislative committee asked
that Federal and State officials meet with representatives of the outdoor ad-
vertising industry in attempting to resolve the differences. The Administration
representatives readily agreed to do so, provided State officials were also
willing. ;
MINNESOTA

On August 9, 1967, representatives of the Administration met with officials
of the State in St. Paul. These negotiations were continued on November 20,
1967, when Administration representatives again met with State officials in
St. Paul and discussed the provisions of a draft agreement. The agreement was
prepared in final form by the State and submitted on December 4, 1967, and
was executed by the Administrator on December 11, 1967.

MISSISSIPPI

Federal Highway Administration representatives met with State officials
on November 1, 1967, in Jackson. Objectionsito certain provisions of the exist-
ing Mississippi outdoor advertising control law were pointed out to State officials.
By letter dated December 1, 1967, Chief Engineer Johnson submitted a pro-
posed amendment and on December 13, 1967, Administration representatives
met with Mr. Johnson and other State officials to discuss the provisions of the
proposed amendment. Minor changes in the language of the draft were sug-
gested. By letter dated December 20, 1967, Director Robbins submitted the
revised draft for review; by letter dated January 22, 1968, the Administrator
advised Mr. Robbins that the standards and criteria contained therein were
felt to embody the minimum requirements under which an agreement could be
entered into. At the request of the State, an Administration representative met
with officials of the Mississippi Highway Department and representatives of
the outdoor advertising industry on April 4, 1968, in Jackson. Final details of a
proposed amendment to the existing Mississippi law were worked out. the
outdoor advertising industry indicating that it would support such an amendment.
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MISSOURI

The State highway department, by letters of September 20, 1967, and Octo-
ber 24, 1967, requested that their existing law be reviewed for compliance with
the Highway Beautification Act of 1965. By memorandum of December 15,
1967, the Administration’s Chief Counsel’s office pointed out the objectionable
features of the existing Missouri law, insofar as an outdoor advertising control
agreement was concerned.

MONTANA

On April 9, 1968, a representative of the Federal Highway Administration
met with officials of the State Highway Commission in Helena. At that time
the Administration representative pointed out that the present Montana law
raises serious questions as to the State’s authority to fully comply with the
Highway Beautification Act. On April 22, 1968, Administrator Bridwell wrote
to Chairman Blewett detailing certain provisions of the Montana law which
possibly would prevent agreement. Mr. Bridwell offered to have his represen-
tatives continue to meet with State officials in further negotiations which
could lead to a mutually acceptable agreement, to be contingent upon ratification
by the State Legislature. Chairman Blewett, by letter dated April 30, 1968,
indicated that the matter would be considered at the next highway commis-
sion meeting.

NEBRASKA

On August 7, 1967, Mr. Bridwell wrote to State Engineer Hossack asking that
the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual discussion. On Sep-
tember 7, 1967, a representative of the Administration met with Mr. Hossack and
other officials of the State in Lincoln. On January 19, 1968, Mr. Hossack dis-
cussed a draft of a proposed agreement with representatives of the Federal High-
way Administration while in Washington in connection with other matters:

NEVADA

On August 7, 1967, Administrator Bridwell wrote to State Highway Engineer
Bawden asking that the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual
discussion. Again on January 25, 1968, Mr. Bridwell wrote to Mr. Bawden, offer-
ing to commence active negotiations. Mr. Bawden replied on February 9, 1965,
stating that the State was at that time drawing up proposed standards which
would be forwarded for the Administrator’s review.

NEW HAMPSHIRE

Negotiatiens were commenced with New Hampshire on November 22, 1967,
when a representative of the Federal Highway Administration met with State
officials in Concord. By letter dated March 28, 1968, Commissioner Morton ad-
vised that their attorney felt that it would be unwise to enter into an agreement
at that time. Commissioner Morton pointed out that the moratorium legislation
enacted in 1967 had stipulated that an agreement could not be signed until the
State stood to lose Federal funds. In reply of April 29, 1968, Mr. Bridwell pointed
out that the moratorium legislation could endanger the State’s bonus eligibility,
since it might allow signs in areas restricted under the bonus agreement. Mr.
Bridwell’s letter offered to have representatives meet with the State to further
discuss the matter. Mr. Morton by letter dated May 1, 1968, stated that the New
Hampshire Legislature had been reluctant to pass more complete legislation dur-
ing its 1967 session because of the lack of specific standards. In reply, Mr.
Bridwell wrote that an interim agreement could be valuable to the Legislature
during its 1969 session, since it could be regarded as a recommendation to the
Legislature as to what the specific standards should be in the light of conditions
within the State Mr. Bridwell further pointed out that the terms of an interim
agreement are not binding on the State or the Legislature and are only binding
on the Federal Government, .

NEW JERSEY

Negotiations were commenced on August 2, 1967, when a representative of the
Federal Highway Administration met with State officials in Trenton. Oq August
14, 1967, Administrator Bridwell wrote to Commissioner Goldberg asking that
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the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual discussion. On March
29, 1968, Mr. Bridwell again wrote to Commissioner Goldberg offering to resume
the negotiations begun earlier. On May 17, 1968, Mr. Goldberg submitted a pro-
posed agreement. By letter dated May 29, 1968, the State was advised that the
agreement was entirely satisfactory.

NEW MEXICO

Negotiations were commenced on June 8, 1967, and continued on July 6, 1967.
On these two dates representatives of the Federal Highway Administration met
with State officials in Santa Fe. By letter dated September 5, 1967, the State
forwarded a proposed agreement which was found to be entirely satisfactory and
the State was so advised.

At the request of the State, an Administration representative met with State
officials on October 25, 1967, and at that time the proposed agreement was re-
written to eliminate certain provisions objected to by the outdoor advertising
industry. On October 26, 1967, the Administration representative spoke before the
Highway Commission, explaining the requirements of the Federal Act. At that
meeting, the Commission directed that the proposed agreement be given additional
study by the highway department, the outdoor advertising industry, and the
Federal Government. On December 21, 1967, the Chairman of the New Mexico
State Highway Commission signed an agreement which was forwarded to the
Federal Highway Administration on January 4, 1968: By letter dated January 24,
1968, the agreement was returned by the Administrator since the unzoned com-
mercial or irdustrial area definition failed to require the existence of any com-
mercial or industrial activity. Mr. Bridwell’s letter pointed out to Chairman
Trotter that this was contrary to the Secretary’s policy as expressed in his letter
of May 24, 1967, to Chairman Kluczynski. On February 23, 1968, negotiations
were continued in a meeting between State officials and a Federal Highway
Administration representative in Santa Fe.

NEW YORK

Negotiations were commenced on May 24, 1967, when a representative of the
Federal Highway Administration met with State officials in Albany. These nego-
tiations were continued on July 27, 1967, and by letter dated August 25, 1967, the
State submitted for review a draft of an agreement. By letter dated September
1, 1967, the State was advised that the agreement was entirely satisfactory. The
agreement, which required legislative ratification, executed on November 7, 1967.

By letter dated April 4, 1968, the State submitted a revised agreement, the
details of which had been worked out in conferences with the outdoor advertis-
ing industry and representatives of the State Legislature. By letter of April 23,
1968, Highway Beautification Coordinator Fred S. Farr pointed out to the State
those provisions of the proposed revised agreement which he felt would be un-
acceptable to the Secretary. On April 30, 1968, representatives of the Federal
Highway Administration participated in a conference in Albany with officials of
the State Department of Transportation, the State Legislature, and the Outdoor
Advertising Industry. Most of the provisions which were in controversy were
worked out during the conference and the remaining controversial points re-
solved during a series of telephone conversations between Washington office
representatives and State officials. By letter dated May 13. 1968, the State sub-
mitted a revised agreement, which was executed by the Administrator on May
29, 1968. On May 27, 1968, the State advised telephonically that the New York
Legislature, during the prior weekend, had enacted a bill containing the provi-
sions of the agreement and that the bill was then awaiting signature of the

Governor.
NORTH CAROLINA

On August 7, 1967, Administrator Bridwell wrote to State Highway Admin-
istrator Babcock asking the State to develop standards for study and mutual
discussion. On August 23, 1967, Mr. Babcock advised that the North Carolina
Highway Commission had instructed him to take no action towards an agree-
ment until Congress voted an appropriation for highway beautification. By letter
dated November 16, 1967, the State submitted a proposed agreement, which was
discussed at a meeting in Raleigh on December 18, 1967. On April 9, 1968,
negotiations with North Carolina were continued during a meeting in Raleigh.
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NORTH DAKOTA

By letter dated December 7, 1967, the State forwarded a proposed agreement.
Administrator Bridwell in his reply of December 15, 1967, pointed out that the
unzoned commercial or industrial area definition would not require the existence
of any commercial or industrial activity and for that reason would not be
acceptable to the Secretary under the policy stated in the Secretary’s letter of
May 24, 1967, to Chairman Kluczynski. On January 11, 1967, representatives of
the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials in Bismarck to
further discuss a possible agreement.

0HIO

By letter dated August 7, 1967, Administrator Bridwell wrote to Director
Masheter asking the State to develop proposed standards for study and mutual
discussion. By letter of January 9, 1968, the State submitted a proposed agree-
ment, which was discussed at a meeting in Columbus on January 16, 1968. By
letter dated January 17, 1968, the State submitted two signed copies of an agree-
ment. Administrator Bridwell, in a letter dated January 30, 1968, pointed out to
Director Masheter that the agreement was entirely satisfactory, except that
certain areas within commercial and industrial zones were excluded from any
size, lighting, and spacing controls. Mr. Bridwell noted that he felt that the
Administration was without legal authority to agree to such an exclusion. By
letter dated March 29, 1968, the State submitted a revised agreement. The State’s
letter advised that the revision had corrected the exclusion noted in the Admin-
istrator’s January 30 letter. Certain additional changes had been made as a
result of consultations with interested parties both within and outside of Govern-
mental circles. In reply dated May 6, 1968, the Administrator pointed out his
objections to several of the new provisions and forwarded to Mr. Masheter an
agreement which would encompass most of the provisions of the agreement pro-
posed by the State and at the same time correct those features of the Ohio
proposal which had been found objectionable,

OKLAHOMA

On August 7, 1967, Mr. Bridwell wrote to Director Dane asking that the State
develop standards which could be used for study and mutual discussion. On
August 10, 1967, Secretary Boyd, Assistant Secretary Sweeney, and other Depart-
ment representatives met with Congressman Edmondson and officials of the
. Oklahoma State Legislature and the State highway department in Secretary

Boyd’s office in Washington. Administration representatives explained certain
features of the Federal Act and outlined the procedures under which negotia-
tions were being conducted. On November 27, 1967, representatives of the Admin-
istration again met with State officials, including those of the Legislature, in
Oklahoma City. At this meeting a proposed bill providing for control of outdoor
advertising in Oklahoma was discussed in detail and the Administration’s
objections to certain of its features were explained.

OREGON

On August 10, 1967, Mr. Bridwell wrote to State Highway Engineer Cooper
asking the State to develop proposed standards for outdoor advertising control
for study and mutual discussion. On April 2, 1968, an Administration representa-
tive met with State officials in Salem during which time the preparation of a
draft agreement was discussed.

PENNSYLVANIA

On August 9, 1967, the Administrator wrote to Secretary of Highways Bartlett
asking that the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual discus-
sion. On September 18, 1967, a representative of the Administration met with
State officials in Harrisburg. Negotiations were continued on November 8, 1967,
and standards developed by the State were discussed. On February 20, 1968, an
additional meeting was held in Harrisburg between State officials and Adminis-
tration representatives and the proposed agreement was reviewed. The agree-
ment with Pennsylvania was executed on April 19, 1968.
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PUERTO RICO

Negotiations were begun on June 25, 1967, when an Administration representa-
tive conferred with Commonwealth officials in San Juan. It was determined at
that time that the agreement would incorporate by reference the more restrictive
provisions of existing Puerto Rico law and regulation. The agreement was signed
on January 23, 1968.

RHODE ISLAND

Negotiations began on May 26, 1967, between State officials and an Administra-
tion representative during a meeting in Providence. The State subsequently
developed a proposed agreement, which was discussed at a second meeting on
June 21, 1967. The agreement was signed on June 28, 1967.

SOUTH CAROLINA

On August 7, 1967, Administrator Bridwell wrote to Commissioner Pearman
asking that the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual discus-
sion. By letter dated December 12, 1967, the State submitted a draft of a pro-
posed agreement, which was discussed in detail on January 17, 1968, at a meet-
ing in Columbia attended by State officials and a representative of the Federal
Highway Administration. By letter dated March 8, 1968, Highway Beautification
Coordinator Fred S. Farr offered comments on proposed legislation which was
being prepared by the State.

SOUTH DAKOTA

On September 27, 1967, the State submitted to the Secretary a copy of its law
controlling outdoor advertising and requested a determination as to whether an
agreement could be negotiated under the terms of the State law. By letter dated
January 9, 1968, the State was advised that the existing law did not provide for
the necessary control as contemplated under the Highway Beautification Act of
1965. Under date of January 16, 1968, the State submitted a proposed agreement
based on the existing law and by letter dated March 7, 1968, Administrator Brid-
well advised Director Olson that the agreement was unacceptable. Mr. Bridwell
offered to have Administration representatives meet with State officials to dis-
cuss this matter in further detail.

TENNESSEE

On August 7, 1967, Mr. Bridwell wrote to Commissioner Speight asking the
State to develop proposed standards for study and mutual discussion. On Sep-
tember 11, 1967, Administration representatives met with State officials in Nash-
ville and explained the provisions of the Federal Act and the procedures which
were being used in negotiations. On December 8, 1967, negotiations were con-
tinued ; however, Commissioner Speight indicated that a committee of the Ten-
nessee Legislature was presently studying the problem and had not at that. time
requested assistance from the Tennessee Department of Highways. Mr. Speight
continued that under the circumstances he felt it unwise to enter an interim
agreement.

On January 26, 1968, Administration representatives attended the Southern
Regional Conference meeting of the Council of State Governments in Knoxville,
Tennessee. The meeting was sponsored in part by the Tennessee Legislature and
a number of Tennessee Legislators were present. An Administration spokesman
explained the Department’s policy in negotiations, stating that the Department
desired the initiative to come from the States, but that the Department also felt
strongly that it should be consulted in the development of the standards and
criteria to be included in any agreement.

TEXAS

On August 17, 1967, Administrator Bridwell wrote to State Highway Engineer
Greer asking that the State develop proposed standards for study and mutual
discussion. On September 12, 1967, Administration representatives met with Mr.
Greer and other State officials in Austin. In January 1968 the State was con-
tacted to determine whether further negotiations were desired. By letter dated
January 22, 1968, State Highway Engineer Dingwall pointed out that there were
no Federal appropriations for highway beautification at that time, there were
still indications that Congress might possible either change the legislation or the
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administration of such legislation, and there was at that time a cutback in Tred-
eral highway funds. These and other factors, according to Mr. Dingwall created
an atmosphere of uncertainty relative to State legislation with respect to out-
door advertising control.

UTAH

On August 9, 1967, Governor Rampton submitted a proposed agreement to the
Secretary. By letter dated September 29, 1967, Administrator Bridwell offered
to have representatives go to Salt Lake City to discuss the agreement with the
Governor or his representatives. Several meetings were held between State offi-
cials, including Governor Rampton, and Administration representatives, includ-
ing Mr. Bridwell, during the meetings of the American Association of State High-
way Officials in Salt Lake City in October 1967. Governor Rampton submitted a
revised agreement on November 10, 1967, and further negotiations were carried
on telephonically with State officials in December 1967. The agreement was signed
on January 18, 1968.

VERMONT

Negotiations were begun on June 16, 1967, in Montpelier. On that date repre-
sentatives of the Federal Highway Administration met with State officials. A
proposed agreement was prepared, based primarily on the provisions of the then
existing Vermont law. The agreement was signed on June 28, 1967.

VIRGINIA

Negotiations were commenced on May 19, 1967. On that date an Administra-
tion representative met with State officials in Richmond. These negotiations were
continued on June 15, 1967, and the agreement with Virginia was signed on
July 13, 1967. .
WASHINGTON

Administrator Bridwell wrote to Director Prahl of the Washington Depart-
ment of Highways on August 9, 1967, asking the State to develop standards for
study and mutual discussion. On August 21, 1967, representatives of the Admin-
istration met with State officials in Olympia. Subsequent to that time the State
has been involved in a suit testing the constitutionality of their existing law con-
trolling outdoor advertising and has been reluctant to conduct further negotia-
tions or enter an agreement pending settlement of the suit.

WEST VIRGINIA

Negotiations were begun on June 13, 1967, in a meeting in Charleston attended
by State officials and a representative of the Administration. A second meeting
was held on August 3, 1967, in Charleston and on August 25, 1967, State repre-
sentatives traveled to Washington to discuss a draft agreement. Certain objec-
tions to the State’s proposal were explained to the State representatives at that
time. By letter dated December 6, 1967, Commissioner Sawyers submitted a
signed agreement, which was discussed in detail at a meeting in Washington on
February 7, 1968, attended by Mr. Sawyers and other State officials representing
the State and Administration representatives. Again, Administration objections
to the prepared agreement were explained. On May 2, 1968, the negotiations
were continued between State officials and Administration representatives at a
meeting in Washington.

WISCONSIN

Negotiations were begun on July 13, 1967, in Madison. On that date Adminis-
tration representatives met with State officials at the State’s request. On Septem-
ber 8, 1967, Secretary of Transportation Bakke advised that they had prepared
a draft of an agreement which they intended to discuss with legislative leaders
prior to submission. On May 17, 1968, Administration representatives again met
with State officials in Madison and a draft of a proposed agreement was reviewed.

WYOMING

On January 24, 1968, a representative of the Federal Highway administra-
tion met with State officials in Cheyenne at which time the representative pointed
out those features of existing Wyoming law which could prevent agreement on
outdoor advertising control. On February 16, 1968, Administrator Bridwell wrote
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to Governor Hathaway and urged that the State and Federal Governments work
together in developing mutually satisfactory control provisions, which could be
recommended to the Legislature at its next session. Governor Hathaway
responded by letter dated February 23, 1968, welcoming the cooperation of the
Administration. '

Mr. Cranzr. Could I ask a question, how many States are being in-
formed, as is Arizona, that you either enact legislation, you have had
the opé);)rtunity to do so, or January 1, 1969, we will cut your 10 per-
cent off ¢

Secretary Boyp. That was in response to a letter from the State of
Arizona. We are trying to respond to any request we get for informa-
tion and opinion.

Mr. Cranmzr. That is all, Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

Mr. Kruczynskr. Before recognizing the next gentleman who has
some questions, Mr. Cleveland, the Chair wants to state that we are
planning to go over until about 2:30. We will recess untill 2:30.

Are there any members who cannot be present this afternoon who
would like to ask some questions now ? I want to recognize the gentle-
man from New Hampshire first, because I promised that. Will you
gentleman be here later on ?

Mr. Crausen. Will the Secretary be back this afternoon ?

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir.

Mr. Kruczynskr. Yes, sir. We tried to complete it this morning. It
was impossible to complete this morning.

The gentleman from New Hampshire.

Mr. CLeveLanND. Mr. Secretary, in reply to the questions from Mr.
Edmondson, who asked you about what would be ideal for safety ex-
penditure, I believe you said it was only 33 percent of the ideal at the
present time. Were you referring to authorization or appropriation ?

Secretary Boyp. I was referring to authorizations. But I did not
mean 33 percent of ideal. What I meant to say, Mr. Cleveland, was
33 percent more.

Mr. CLEVELAND. 33 percent authorization ?

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir.

Mr. CLeveLaxp. So this would be a tremendous amount more that
should be appropriated ?

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir. ,

Mr. Creveranp. There is a great deal of misunderstanding in the
public mind, I am sure you realize, in the difference between authori-
zations and appropriations. We authorize plenty of money for safety.
If this is announced, there is a great program, a lot of publicity, then
when the crunch comes, the administration only recommends spending
a mere pittance compared to what has been authorized, after the bill
has been signed and the pictures have been taken. There is an area
where there is a good deal of misunderstanding and that is why I
wanted to nail that point down.

Mr. BripwerL. Mr. Cleveland, if T may respond for a moment, the
administration has taken the position that the contract authority as
originally written into the legislation by this committee and enacted
by Congress, should prevail. In other words, the full authorization
would be available for obligation.

Mr. Creveraxp. The fact remains appropriations have been sub-
stantially under authorization ?
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Mzr. BriowerL. That is right.

Mr. Creveranp. I do not care what you call it, you cannot change
that particular thing.

Mr. Bripwerr. That is correct.

Secretary Boyp. That is correct.

Mr. CLeveranp. That is the point I am trying to make.

Mr. Briowerr. But it was not upon the recommendation of the ad-
ministration, Mr. Cleveland.

Secretary Boyp. That is the point we are trying to make.

Mr. CreveLanop. Now, another question. I understood you to say, Mr.
Bridwell, that you have not yet said that any State was in noncom-
pliance, vis-a-vis this billboard and beautification situation. Did I un-
derstand you correctly ?

Secretary Boyp. That is correct, sir.

Mzr. Creveranp. Then I understood you further to say—I think Mr.
Bridwell said this—that some of these States have simply passed laws,
which zoned everything on the interstate commercial ; thereby, people
could put up signs anywhere on the Interstate in those particular
States. I think you said, Mr. Bridwell, that you considered that a clear
violation of the law or intent of this committee.

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir. He did.

Mr. Creverano. Well, then, if that is the case, those States on the
record we have here would be in violation of the beautification law ?

Secretary Boyp. Well, what Mr. Bridwell indicated, and I support,
is that we have not yet reached the stage on contract negotiations
where the elements of a particular State law have intruded to the ex-
ent that we cannot reach agreement.

Mr. BriopwerL. I think I can clarify it in this way, if T may. In
those instances, such as the one particular one I cited that we do not
believe is in conformance with the Federal law and the intent of this
committee as clarified, as I mentioned before, we are attempting to
negotiate an agreement with the appropriate State authority with a
clause contained therein that it is subject to implementation by the
State legislature; thereby giving the State authority—in this in-
stance, the highway department—the opportunity to go back to the
legislature and say, “Under your first enactment, we simply cannot
arrive at an agreement. We have, however, arrived at an agreement
which we think is fair and appropriate. We are now recommending
new legislation to implement the agreement.”

This, to me, is a far preferable way to operate than to simply tell a
State, “Your State law does not meet Federal standards, therefore
you are out.” '

Mr. Crevenanp. I understand that. I also want to make the point,
some of us predicted at the time the beautification bill was being de-
bated here in this committee and on the floor of the House that there
was this loophole in the law, and I think that those States that do pass
laws that zone all the lands along the interstate right-of-way have
found the loophole and are acting perfectly properly and acting
perfectly legally.

You may find they have violated your intent and perhaps the intent
of some people, but the loophole was there: it was predicted when we
debated this legislation.
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Mr. Cranter. Will the gentleman yield ? The other loophole—T just
traveled on some interstate roads a few days ago—appears to be they
are just building bigger signs beyond the 660-foot limitation.

Mr. BripwELL. You may want to extend that limitation.

Mr. Craner. The farther you get off the highway, the bigger the
signs are going to be. It really does not

Mr. CrLeveraxp. The richer you have to be to build one of those
bigger signs.

Mr. Craxter. The little guy cannot compete. That is what it amounts
to. So all of these national chains, hotels and such, quality courts
and national chain restaurants, they are in pretty good shape; the
can afford those $600 a month gigantic signs on the hillside. But the
little fellow is out of business.

Mr. Briowerr. Mr. Cramer, as you recall, the 660-foot limitation
was, in effect, a compromise figure. There was no particular magic
about 660 feet. Speaking only for myself, I would be glad to include
an amendment which made it an effective distance.

Mr. Craxer. Like what ?

Mr. Brmowern. Whatever you believe to be adequate.

Mr. Cramer. I mean the farther you go, the bigger the signs get.

Mr. BrioweLn. Well, that obviously has limitations, too. Once they
get over the hill, there is not much use in making a big sign.

Mzr. Craner. You suggest 1,000 feet ? '

Mzr. BripwELL. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cramer. That just means they will put a bigger sign 1,000 feet
away than one 660 feet. :

Mr. Briowern. “Within sight” is a pretty good definition.
[Laughter.]

Mr. CLeEvELAND. I do not have the time to make this in the form of
a query, but, Mr. Secretary, I will tell you that, under a recent order
of the Department of Transportation, Bureau of Roads, they are
going to take down a lot of trees along the highway because they are
fixed, immovable objects that cause a safety hazard. There has been
brought to my desk, and I am sure other congressional desks, a great
deal of mail and I will be in correspondence with you about this, and
I want to warn you the queries are coming and these people are
asking me questions: Why do we plant trees under the beautification
program, when under the safety program, we are going to cut them
down ? That is one of the questions.

Secretary Bovp. I can answer that.

Mr. CreveLanp. Excuse me. Why are you taking down the trees
but not taking out the rock outcroppings, such as in Vermont, where
they are closer to the Interstate Highway? .

Mr. Secretary, this morning you read one statement and submitted
another, and T would like to inquire if that statement, which was
submitted but not read, is for the record ?

Secretary Boxp. Yes, sir. The statement I read was a summary of
the much longer statement, which is the total of my testimony.

Mr. CLevELaxD. So, Mr. Chairman, I would move that that be made
a part of the record. .

Mr. Kruuczy~ssr. Without objection, the statement will be made
a part of the record, in its entirety.

(Statement follows:)
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STATEMENT BY ALAN S. BoyD, SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTATION

I am pleased to appear before your Committee this morning to testify on the
Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1968, I have with me Mr. Lowell K. Bridwell, IFed-
eral Highway Administrator, Mr. Francis C. Turner, Director of the Bureau of
Public Roads, Dr. William Haddon, Jr., Director of the National Highway Safety
Bureau, and Dr. Haddon’s Deputy, Dr. Robert Brenner.’

Since we last testified before you on authorization legislation two years and
one month ago, dramatic changes have taken place in the field of transportation.
The Department of Transportation has been created, and in operation for 13
months. This department includes among its modal agencies the Federal High-
way Administration, which encompasses the Bureau of Public Roads and the new
National Highway Safety Bureau established by the Congress to bring about in-
creased safety on the nation’s highways. The Federal Highway Administration
and these two of its Bureaus now have the major responsibility within the De-
partment for supervising the development of the finest, most efficient, and safest
transportation network attainable, as a basic component of our national trans-
portation system.

DIFFERENCES FROM PAST

Let me emphasize that the bill this year is significantly different from tradi-
tional highway legislation in several important respects. Overall, it comprises
the first comprehensive program for the solution of urban highway problems that
has yet been written. It attempts to deal with the vast problems of urban con-
gestion and highway safety now facing our cities and their restless populations.
The extent to which the Department of Transportation is involved in these
problems is indicated by the transfer to it of the urban mass transit authority of
the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The biggest part of the authorizations requested in the bill" will be used for
completion of the Interstate System. But what is of even more significance is the
way in which we intend to spend the rest of it, as an outgrowth of the closer look
that we are taking at the building of highways in cities in view of the millions of
people who have to live with those highways. So what we are proposing are new
programs—programs to improve the trafiic capacity of existing roadways as an
alternative to new construction, to provide Iederal funds for fringe parking
spaces, to permit States to buy land for highways as long as seven years in ad-
vance of need, and to expand the new highway safety programs and supportive
research. Not in the bill, but basic to it, is consideration of a new compensation
formula for homes and businesses purchased for highway use.

PROGRESS OF PROGRAM

Before discussing the details of the legislation before you, I should like to
report briefly on the progress of the Federal-aid highway program. The shape of
future highway programs is now under active discussion, so it is important
that we recognize what already has been accomplished.

At present, work is underway or.has been completed on some 40,064 miles of
the 41,000-mile Interstate and Defense Highway System, which is about 98 per-
cent of the total. Almost 25,900 miles are now open to traffic, and construction
is underway on another 5,678 miles. This means that about 64 percent of the
system is now open to traffic, while only two percent has not been advanced
beyond the preliminary status.

Of the 25,892 miles of the Interstate system now in use by motorists, 20,325
miles comply with prevailing standards of adequacy for future traffic; 3,262 miles
are fully capable of handling current traffic, but will require additional improve-
ment to meet projected needs. Toll roads, bridges, and tunnels incorporated in
the system total 2,305 miles. In addition to sections open to traffic, 5,678 miles
were under construction as of March 31, and engineering or right-of-way acquisi-
tion was being performed on another 8494 miles.

Some $32.6 billion has been put to work on the program since 1956. Work com-
pleted since July 1, 1956, has cost $22.93 billion of which $18.71 billion was for
construction and $4.22 billion for engineering and right-of-way acquisition.

PENDING BILLS

Turning now to the pending legislation, may I note there are two bills before
the Subcommittee. H.R. 17134, introduced by request, comprises the Administra-
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tion program. (Parenthetically, there are two minor errors in Sections 5 and
11 of the printed bill with which you already are familiar.) H.R. 16994, intro-
duced by you, Mr. Chairman, and the Chairman of the full Committee, embodies
portions of the Administration program but omits several sections. My testimony
will relate to each section of the Administration bill, H.R. 17134, thereby also
covering the provisions of H.R. 16994 as well, though under different section
numbers. I will parenthetically identfy corresponding sections of H.R. 16994,
where they differ with H.R. 17134, as I proceed.

Section 1 of H.R. 17134 provides that the Act shall be cited as the “Federal-
Aid Highway Act of 1968.”

INTERSTATE AUTHORIZATIONS

Section 2 would revise the schedule of authorization of appropriations for the
Interstate System by increasing the amounts provided therein for 1970, 1971,
and 1972, and by adding authorizations for fiscal years 1973 and 1974. This is
necessary in order to provide additional authorizations totaling $8.340 billion
to cover the increased costs of completing the Interstate System as reflected in
the 1968 Cost Estimate for the Interstate System (House Doc. 199, 90th Con-
gress, 2d Session).

Funds authorized by the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1986 for 1969 and prior
fiscal years have been apportioned to the States in the amounts authorized. The
Interstate authorization for fiseal year 1969 was $3.8 billion, and the apportion-
ment to the States was made on August 29, 1967.

Interstate authorizations of $4.0 billion annually are proposed for the fiscal
vears 1970 through 1973, with a balancing authorization of $2.225 for the fiscal
year 1974. These authorizations totaling $18.225 billion for the fiscal years 1970-
1974, together with the apportionments totaling $32.415 already made for prior
vears, would provide the total $50.640 billion needed for completion of the Inter-
state System according to the 1968 cost estimate.

APPORTIONMENT OF FUNDS

Section 3 would authorize the use of the 1968 cost estimate for the purpose of
making apportionments of Interstate funds for the fiscal years 1970 and 1971
on the basis of apportionment factors shown in table 5 of that document.

We propose to furnish a revised set of apportionment factors, to replace the
factors listed in table 5 of the 1968 cost estimate, in order to take into account
the effect of the Howard Amendment (P.L. 90-238) in California and the cost
to West Virginia of acquiring the West Virginia Turnpike. The 1968 estimate
of the cost of completing the Interstate System was submitted to the Congress
on January 12. Table 5 in the estimate report included no cost adjustments
attributable to the Howard Amendment, nor costs relating to the West Virginia
Turnpike which at that time were coded in a Toll Road category.

The major adjustment in Interstate System cost, and in apportionment factor
computation, will result in West Virginia as a followup to the Comptroller
General’s decision on the West Virginia Turnpike and the action by the House
and Senate Public Works Committees in this regard. The estimated total cost
to complete the West Virginia Turnpike to four-lane Interstate standards, based
on the State’s 1968 Estimate Report. is $96.1 million, and the estimated total cost
of acquiring the West Virginia Turnpike is $90.0 million, for a total of $186.1
million.

We will be submitting a revised table of Interstate apportionment factors to
reflect the inclusion of additional costs for these items.

EXTENSION OF TIME

Section 4 would extend the period of Interstate authorizations through the
fiscal year 1974, and would change the date for the submission of a final cost
estimate from within 10 days subsequent to January 2, 1969, to within }0 days
subsequent to January 2, 1970. This final cost estimate would be for use in mak-
ing apportionments for fiscal years 1972, 1973, and 1974.

AUTHORIZATIONS

Section 5(1) would authorize the appropriation from the .Highway Trust
Fund of funds for the Federal-aid primary and secondary highway systems
and extensions thereof within urban areas (the so-called ABC program) for
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the fiscal years 1970 and 1971. Annual authorizations for the ABC highways
were increased considerably under the expanded highway program inaugurated
in 1956, and reached a $1 billion level beginning with the fiscal year 1966. This
authorization level was continued for the fiscal years 1967 through 1969, and
is further proposed for the fiscal years 1970 and 1971, when the major effort
under the Federal-aid highway program will still be directed toward com-
pletion of the Interstate System. The sums authorized would continue to be
available on the basis of 45 percent for projects on the Federal-aid primary
system, 30 percent for projects on the Federal-aid secondary system, and 25
percent for projects on the Federal-aid primary and secondary systems in urban
areas. Apportionment factors for the ABC funds continue to be based on area,
population, and post road mileage, in accord with present law.

Section 5(2) would authorize the appropriation of funds from the Highway
Trust Fund for traffic operation improvement projects in urban areas (the so-
called TOPICS program), in the amount of $250 million for each of the five
fiscal years 1970 through 1974. Our comments concerning this item will be
offered later under the discussion of Section 12 of the bill.

Sections 5(3) and (4) would authorize the appropriation for the fiscal years
1970 and 1971 of funds for forest highways and public lands highways in the
annual amounts of $33 million and $16 million, respectively, as was authorized
for prior fiscal years. It is proposed to transfer the financing of the forest and
public lands highway programs from the general fund to the Highway Trust
Fund, since the highways are similar in character and use to Federal-aid high-
ways and logically should be financed in the same manner as the regular Federal-
aid program.

About 88 percent of the Forest Highway System mileage is located on Federal-
aid systems, and the remainder may be placed on the Federal-aid systems as
desired. The Public Lands Highway projects also are located on the Federal-
aid systems or on routes that could be added to the Federal-aid systems,

A separate bill, “The Highway User Act of 1968” has been submitted to the
Congress which would provide additional revenues to the Highway Trust Fund
and extend the duration of that fund by 28 months to January 31, 1975, Esti-
mated revenues aceruing to the Highway Trust Fund from existing sources
over the extended period of time, together with the additional revenues from
the so-called “equalization” taxes proposed in the bill, will be adequate to
support the Interstate authorization schedule proposed in Section 2, the ABC
authorizations proposed in Section 5(1), the TOPICS authorizations proposed
in Section 5(2) and the forest highways and public lands highways authoriza-
tions proposed in Sections 5(3) and (4).

Sections 5 (5) through (9) would authorize appropriations of funds from the
general fund of the Treasury for certain other highways in Federal domain
areas. These programs are administered by other Federal agencies.

STATE AND COMMUNITY HIGHWAY SAFETY PROGRAMS

The Highway Safety Act of 1966 (Section 402) authorized to be appropriated
for Federal aid to State and community highway safety programs the sum of
$67 million for fiscal year 1967, and $100 million for each of the fiscal years 1968
and 1969. Section 6 of the bill would continue the programs under Section 402
by authorizing the appropriation of $50 million for fiscal year 1970 and $75 million
for fiscal year 1971. A cost estimate for the highway safety program has been
developed in cooperation with the States and will be submitted shortly,

Mr. Chairman, this is a new activity and there has been some misunderstanding
as to its operation. May I therefore provide the Committee with some of the
essential background. This is the activity under which, as directed by statute, we
have established standards covering driver education, vehicle inspection, alcohol,
highway design, and other areas in which States and communities are being
assisted in creating or expanding their highway safety programs. Under Section
402, each State is required to be implementing an approved highway safety pro-
gram under the standards by December 31, 1968. The authorization requests in
Section 6, which provides Federal assistance for the State and local programs,
should not be viewed as representing a reduction in such assistance. As I said,
Congress has already authorized, in the Act itself, a total of $267 million for
fiscal years 1967, 1968, and 1969. These funds are available for one year in
advance of, and two years following, the year for which they are authorized—
so that we now have authorization under the Act to obligate these funds through
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the end of fiscal year 1971. By June 30, we will have obligated only $27 million,
largely because of a limitation of $25 million placed by the last session of the
Congress on that authority for this fiscal year. Therefore, $240 million is still
available for obligation at the beginning of fiscal year 1969. Of this amount, we
plan to obligate $140 million during fiscal year 1969, leaving a balance of $100
million available for use in fiscal year 1970.

The $100 million carryover, together with the request to the Congress to add
$50 million in fiscal year 1970 and another $75 million in fiscal year 1971, or a
total of $225 million, will be available for obligation in fiscal year 1970. Added to
the carryover of existing authorizations, therefore, we expect to have the author-
ity to obligate a total of $225 million in fiscal year 1970.

In all parts of the country, State and local highway safety programs now being
planned, developed, or expanded under the Highway Safety Act will lead to
greatly accelerated requests for Federal-aid funds. With the resources available
up to this point, States and communities, as well as the National Highway Safety
Bureau, have only been able to get started in the direction of developing required
programs. We received 87 project applications in the first quarter of fiscal year
1968, 94 in the second quarter, and 165 in the third. This acceleration continues:
by April 30, we had received some 474 applications. As of the same date, grant
applications had been approved with total costs of $77.2 million, of which $13.3
million is from Federal funds.

Our current projections indicate that applications in fiscal year 1968 will
request $32 million, and that we therefore will completely obligate the $25 million
available in the year. The acceleration of applications, as well as their increase
in scope, indicates that the planned application level of $140 million for fiscal year
1969 is very realistic and, in fact, conservative.

Under the $25 million available in fiscal year 1968, the allocation to each State
was too small to cover more important, and often more expensive, projects. These
projects—such as driver education, police services, and traffic records improve-
ment—have for the most part been delayed by States and communities until fiscal
vear 1966 in anticipation that sufficient funds will then be available.

We anticipate recommending an apportionment formula to you before January
1, 1969, as required in Section 402. This formula is now in the process of
preparation.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

An authorization was also included in the Highway Safety Act of 1946 for
the highway safety research and development programs provided in Section
307 (a) and Section 403 of Title 23. The Act authorized appropriations of $10
million for fiscal year 1967, $20 million for fiscal year 1968, and $25 million for
fiscal year 1969. Section 7 of the bill would authorize appropriations for 307(a)
and Section 403 of $30 million for fiscal year 1970 and $40 million for fiscal
year 1971.

In order to increase the effectiveness of our and highway safety programs, we
must continue to invest in research. This R&D program has three major objec-
tives—

An improved understanding of how and why highway crashes occur, and
how and why people are killed and injured in them ;

The development of effective measures to avert crashes and minimize
deaths and injuries;

Improvement of State and community safety programs on the basis of
these results.

The authorized funds for fiscal years 1967, 1968, and 1969 are being used in
contracts with universities, foundations, private industry groups, and other
governmental agencies, for work in four key areas: accident and injury analysis;
research, development, and testing; demonstration projects; and manpower de-
velopment. This program must be accelerated, as provided in the bill, in order
to support effective highway safety programs at national, State, and local levels,
and to provide the far more specific scientific information we all need to reduce
our present highway casualities of 10,000 injured each day in the nation.

HIGHWAY BEATTIFICATION

Section 8 of FL.R. 17134 (omitted from H.R. 16994) would authorize appro-
priations from the general fund of the Treasury for the highway beautification
program for fiscal years 1969, 1970, and 1971, thus putting these authorizations
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on the same fiscal year basis as the biennial ABC highway program authoriza-
tions. The contract authority provisions of the Federal-aid highway legislation
would apply to the highway beautification program, as provided by the Federal-
Aid Highway Act of 1966 (79 Stat. 1030, 1032).

Authorization is included for a deduction not to exceed 5 percent for admin-
istration. A flat percentage for administrative expenses would provide for the
handling of administrative expenses under the Highway Beautification Act of
1965 in the same manner as for the regular Federal-aid highway programs and
the State and community highway safety programs.

Section 8(a) would authorize the sum of $5 million to carry out the priwvisions
of Section 181(m) of Title 23, United States Code, during the fiscal year ending
June 30, 1869, and like amounts for fiscal years 1970 and 1971.

This section of the code provides for outdoor advertising control along Inter-
state and Federal-aid primary highways, under Title I of the Highway Beauti-
fication Act of 1965. Last year your Committee held very comprehensive hear-
ings concerning the Highway Beautification Act, with particular emphasis on
outdoor advertising control. These hearings served a special purpose in clarify-
ing the issues and removing the uncertainties which had inhibited the imple-
mentation of the program up to that time. Since then we have been making
steady progress.

About a year ago, I directed the Federal Highway Administrator to proceed
as expeditiously as possible to work out agreements with the States for imple-
mentation of the Act. Since then, 17 outdoor advertising control agreements have
been signed, and we are close to agreement with a number of other States. Thirty-
one State Legislatures have enacted laws providing for control of outdoor ad-
vertising under Title I of the Highway Beautification Act, and the Legislatures
of other States are presently considering such legislation or will do so during
their next regular session—many in early 1969.

This progress has not been brought about, I am pleased to say, by the penalty
provision in Section 131(b) of the Act. On June 27, 1967, I stated that we had
no expectation of imposing any penalties during the year 1968 or, for that matter,
in early 1969 if a State Legislature would not have an opportunity to act during
1968. Almost all of our agreements were negotiated and executed after my state-
ment. Participating States are, like us, interested in progress, not penalties.

The Committee will recognize that the amounts of money being requested are
considerably less than the total needed to completely implement the outdoor ad-
vertising control title of the Highway Beautification Act. In the light of the
grave responsibilities facing the nation in other areas, this is at it should be.

The passage of control laws by the various States, and the execution of con-
trol agreements, has already begun to stem the tide of billboard blight by pro-
hibiting new signs in areas affected by the Aect. Most States, moreover, have
elected to carry out the control operations envisioned in the Act through the
granting of a permit at a nominal fee. This one feature alone will work to re-
move many of the obsolete or uncared for signs which heretofore have been
allowed to rot and decay in full view of the passing motorist.

The initial outdoor advertising control legislation enacted in 1958 (§ 131 Title
23 U.8.C.) provided for payment of a bonus of 14 of one percent of the construe-
tion costs for eligible segments of the Interstate System from a continuing
authorization and special appropriation for this specific purpose. Pursuant to
that legislation, 25 States entered into bonus agreements with the Secretary.
The Highway Beautification Act of 1965 amended the earlier authorization to
require payment of eligible bonus claims out of funds specifically authorized to
carry out the provisions of the 1965 Act.

The Federal Government is obligated to provide adequate funding to continue
payment of bonus claims submitted by the States in accordance with their bonus
agreements. We now have on hand for processing approximately $280,000 in
pending claims, and are continuing to receive additional claims. As of May 13,
1968, we had available only $60,000 to pay bonus claims. Future bonus payments,
after expenditure of the available $60,000, are required to be made from funds
authorized to be appropriate under this section.

Section 8(b) would authorize the sum of $10 million to carry out the provisions
of Section 136(m) of Title 23, U.8.C., during each of the fiscal years 1969, 1970,
and 1971,

Section 136 (m) provides for the control of junkyards in accordance with Title
II of the Highway Beautification Act of 1965. There has been ready acceptance
by the States of this program, as evidenced by the fact that 40 States have thus
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far enacted legislation to conform with its requirements, Although the Federal
legislation applies only to junkyards adjacent to the Interstate and Federal-aid
primary system, 16 States have extended these provisions to apply to additional
roads within their borders. Other States have imposed stricter limitations upon
themselves than required by the Act.

The junkyard control law reguires the removal or relocation of affected junk-
vards which cannot be readily and economically screened. Such removal or re-
location need not be undertaken, however, until after June 30, 1970. Although
only approximately $10 million in Federal funds has thus far been made available,
the States have screened or removed approximately 1,500 junkyards, contributing
25 percent of the cost. As it was necessary for the States to organize for this
endeavor, deferral of funds would cause a loss of impetus and interest.

One of the greatest benefits attained under the Title is the fact that all 40
States have strong control of the location of new junkyards. Most now require
licensing, renewable annually, to assure compliance and control; others control
the sites on a renewable permit basis. In other words, since existing junkyards
are properly screened from view—or removed—State legislation will continue
the program without cost to the State or Federal Government.

It should be further noted that the program has the support of the auto
wreckers association, scrap metal producers and the general public. Many rep-
resentatives of these directly interested parties appeared at the Congressional
hearings to support the legislation. It is interesting to note that of the 50 States,
only Delaware, Florida, and Louisiana did not take advantage of the Federal
funds available to them for this part of the program.

Section 8(c¢) would authorize the sum of $70 million for each of the fiscal
yvears 1969, 1970, and 1971 to carry out the provisions of Section 319(b) of Title
23, U.S.C., relating to landscaping and scenic enhancement of Federal-aid
highways. .

Section 319(a) of Title 23, United States Code, provides Federal funds for
landscaping, roadside development, and acquisition and development of publicly
owned and controlled rest and recreation areas and sanitary facilities neces-
sary to accommodate the traveling public, all within the highway right-of-way.
Federal reimbursement is available to the States for such work at the pro-rata
share of the cost, depending upon the Federal-aid system to which it has been
applied. These costs are payable from the Trust Fund.

Section 319(¢b) provides 100 percent compensation to the States for the above
types of work and permits such expenditure within or adjacent to the Federal-
aid highway right-of-way. In addition, costs may be incurred for the acquisition
of interests in and improvement of strips of land necessary for the restoration,
preservation, and enhancement of scenic beauty adjacent to the highway. The
319(b) funds are appropriated from the general fund.

Of the three titles in the Highway Beautification Act, the landscaping and
scenic enhancement provision has had the most immediate and favorable impact
upon the public. All States are participating in the program, and obligations to
date total 8120 million in Federal funds, as follows: $31 million for landscap-
ing; $29 million for 5,400 scenic easements ; and $60 million for 510 roadside rest
areas. The rest areas are especially popular with the public as they provide a
safe, comfortable stopping place. They are usually placed at locations where
scenic and picnic opportunities are present, and they may also be used as visitor
information centers where such tourist services as food, lodging, fuel direc-
tories, and seenic route and map information may be made available.

True beauty is a quiet thing—it is the raw and ugly which shouts. The acquisi-
tion of scenic easements and landscaping within the highway right-of-way lines
serve to make the highway complete, and removal of outdoor advertising and
sereening of junkyards are an important part of the beautification effort. But it
is obvious that more can be done. Scenic vistas must be controlled to prevent non-
conforming trespass; roadsides must be planted and naturalized to fit into the
landscape; rest areas must be developed to make the traveler feel welcome and
sheltered during his stay.

Deferral of this program would result in its greater cost at a later date, as
land values for rest area sites and scenic easement are constantly appreciating,
and materials and construction cost indices for plant material and road and
puilding costs are steadily rising. Added urgency for these activities stems from
their promotion of more relaxed driving, and thus of greater safety. :
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ADVANCE ACQUISITION

Section 9 of H.R. 17134 (Section 8 of H.R. 16994) would authorize the acquisi-
tion of rights-of-way on the Federal-aid highway systems in anticipation of con-
struction, and would establish a fund to be used for payments to the States for
such advance acquisitions. This implements the objectives of the “Study of Ad-
vance Acquisition of Highway Rights-of-Way,” sent by us to Congress on June
30, 1967. The study concluded that an advance acquisition program would facili-
tate the orderly and beneficial relocation of persons, businesses, farms, and other
users of property acquired for highway development, while at the same time en-
abling more foresighted planning and minimizing rights-of-way costs.

Advances of funds for this purpose would be made pursuant to agreements
between the State highway departments and the Secretary, to provide for the
actual construction of a highway within 7 years following the fiscal year in
which a request by a State for such funds is made or by the terminal date of
the Highway Trust Fund, whichever occurs first.

The advance acquisition proposal would make available an amount equal to
2 percent of a State’s apportionment for advance acquisition of rights-of-way.
The State must satisfy the Secretary within 6 months of the date of allocation
that it will properly obligate such amount for advance acquisition of rights-of-
way. Where a State fails so to demonstrate, the availability of such funds will
revert to the Secretary, who may in his discretion make them available to the
other States at their request and on the basis of need.

To implement this program, there would be authorized to be appropriated
from the Highway Trust Fund an amount not to exceed $100,000,000 for the
establishment of an advance acquisition fund and for its replenishment on an
annual basis. Pending such appropriation, the Secretary would be authorized
to advance, from any cash heretofore or hereafter appropriated from the High-
way Trust Fund, such sums as are necessary for payments to the States for
rights-of-way acquired in advance of construction.

Provisions of the Highway Revenue Act of 1936 relating to additional ap-
propriations to and expenditures from the Highway Trust Fund and to adjust-
ments of appropriations would be applicable to the advance acquisition of rights-
of-way program.

Appropriate regulations will be promulgated to insure that, in the adminis-
tration of the program, no advance right-of-way shall be acquired for a project
in an urban area unless the project is deemed to be consistent with the compre-
hensive transportation plan developed for the metropolitan area as a whole under
the provisions of Section 1384 of Title 23, and Section 204 of the Demonstration
Cities Act (42 U.S.C. 3334).

FOREST ROADS AND TRAILS

Section 10 of H.R. 17184 (Section 9 of H.R. 16994) amends the definition of
“forest road or trail” and “forest development roads and trails” in Section 101(a)
of Title 23, United States Code, to include areas other than national forest areas
under Forest Service administration. This amendment is made at the recom-
mendation of the Department of Agriculture and is a part of their proposed
legislative program. The present definition of “forest road or trail” and “forest
development roads and trails” associates these two terms with the national
forests only, not with the National Grass Lands and other areas administered
by the Forest Service. However, 23 U.S.C. 205(a) authorizes use of funds avail-
able for forest development roads and trails to pay for construction and main-
tenance of roads and trails on experimental and other areas under Forest Service
administration. This proposed amendment to 23 U.S.C. 101 (a) makes the defi-
nition of the two terms consistent with 23 U.8.C. 205(a) and will avoid possible
misinterpretation of the intent of both sections.

The Department of Agriculture also recommends amendment of Section 205 (c)
of Title 23, United States Code, first to clarify the threshold of the limitation
on force aeccount construction and, second, to provide an opportunity for more
efficient handling of small construction projects. At present, Section 205(c) re-
quires the construction of forest development roads and trails costing $10,000
or more per mile to be advertised and let to contract.

Section 11 of HLR. 17134 (Section of H.R. 16994) amends Section 205 (e) to
increase this cost limitation from $10,000 to $15,000 per mile and to require ad-
vertisement for bids and letting of contracts where construction is estimated to
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cost $15,000 or more per project for projects with a length of less than one mile.
Section 11 provides that if the estimated cost is less than $15,000 per mile or
$15,000 per project for projects with a length of less than one mile, the work
may be done by the Secretary of Agriculture on his own account.

Considerable uncertainty exists as to whether the present requirement that
construction costing $10,000 or more per mile be advertised and let to contract
applies to projects of less than one mile in length but with a “per mile” estimated
cost of $10,000 or more. For example, an access road of only .1 mile in length
estimated to cost $1,000 could on a per mile basis cost $10,000 per mile. Under
strict interpretation of 28 U.S.C. 205(c) such a road construction project would
have to be advertised and let to contract. As a result, the theoretical advantages
of advertising and confracting those small projects over force account construc-
tion are offset by the procedures, time, and detailed plans and materials required
for advertising and contracting any such project. The size of such projects often
results in no bids or bids that are necessarily inflated to cover the costs of bid-
ding, moving in and out, and meeting insurance, bond, and other costs to the
contractor associated with such projects. On larger projects these costs can be
so spread out as to make up a much smaller percentage of the total or per mile
cost.

Past experience in construction of forest roads and trails has shown that
$15,000 is approximately the point at which acceptable bids can be expected to
be received in practically every case. Establishing $15,000 as the minimum esti-
mated construction cost at which advertising and contracting is required will
reduce the higher costs and administrative problems resulting from efforts to
contract small projects that are generally unattractive to most prospective con-
tractors and which in most cases ean be more efficientfly and economically con-
structed by force account. . :
TOPICS

Sections 5(2), 12, and 13 of H.R. 17134 (Sections 11-13 of H.R. 16994) would
provide specific authorization for TOPICS, the program to improve traffic opera-
tions on the major streets of our urban areas, which I mentioned briefly earlier.

There has been a steady increase over the years in the attention and effort
the States and Public Roads have directed toward improving transportation in
urban areas. But the problem is still far from adequately met. The number of
people living in our urban areas continues to grow at a high rate. Personal
income—already at the highest level in our history—is also rising rapidly, in-
fluencing living patterns in a way that generates a growing amount of travel on
the part of the average family unit. Similarly, the trend toward dispersal in the
pattern of land use development in urban areas generates additional travel as
a way of urban life. The cumulative eifect of these trends is that the increase in
vehicle miles of travel in many urban areas is increasing at more than double
the rate of population growth. :

The reconstruction of principal roadways and the betterment of existing
streets through application of traffic engineering principles to improve traffic
flow and increase safety are objectives of any urban street and highway pro-
gram, Federal-aid for urban highways has previously emphasized the improve-
ment of principal urban arterials through construction or reconstruction.

To develop a balanced urban street and highway system, attention must also
be directed to other than the principal streets and highways in urban areas—to
those that carry a heavy burden of local traffic and also control the efficiency
of trip movements between main highways and ultimate trip destinations.

It was against this background in February 1967 the Bureau of Public Roads
initiated, on a pilot basis, a new program designed to raise the efficiency of
existing street and highway systems in urban areas. It was termed the Traffic
Operations Program to Increase Capacity and Safety (from which was derived
the acronym “TOPICS”). A copy of guidelines issued at that time is inciuded for
the record.

The projects generally are limited to traffic engineering and operational types
of improvements on a network of existing streets which are selected as a part
of the transportation planning process. o

The types of improvements, most of which may be accomplished with existing
right-of-way, which are eligible for Federal-aid participation, include the
following :

1. Channelization of intersections. .
2. Providing additional traffic lanes on approaches to signalized inter-

sections.
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3. Construction of pedestrian grade separations or highway grade sep-
arations at complex intersections or railway-highway grade crossings, where
such an improvement is essential to relieve a crucial bottleneck along streets
of otherwise adequate width.

4. Installation of control systems to make traffic signal operation re-
sponsive to traffic conditions for diverting traffic from congested areas, for
establishing part-time one-way operation, for reversing direction of traffic
on selected traffic lanes, or for separate bus lane controls.

5. Addition and upgrading of highway lighting, traffic control signs, pave-
ment markings and signals or other devices required to facilitate traffic
movement and increase the safety of vehicular and pedestrian traffic,

6. Development of separate traffic lanes for loading, unloading or trans-
ferring passengers at surface transit terminals and intermediate transit
stops, including platforms and shelters within the street right-of-way.

7. Development of truck loading and unloading facilities where necessary
to facilitate traffic movement. )

8. Establishment of traffic surveillance systems, including traffic-operation
data collection and analysis centers, where traffic low measurements and
accident data are continuously evaluated to identify locations where cor-
rective action is needed.

Streets on which traffic engineering improvements may be made under this
new concept include—

1. Arterial highways and major streets (radial, crosstown, and circum-
ferential) not already on either the Federal-aid primary or secondary
systems.

2. Most or all of the street grid in the downtown area.

3. A limited street grid in other areas having particularly high concen-
trations of traffic.

Of course, no additional Federal funds were available for this undertaking.
The only Federal funds were those apportioned annually to the State highway
departments. Even so, this program concept has evoked widespread interest
and we are satisfied with the soundness of this as one of the proper approaches
to the urban traffic congestion program.

The officials of the cities, State highway departments, and our own Public
Roads are actively engaged in TOPICS programs in some 24 cities located in
19 States. No actual street improvements have yet been undertaken but prelim-
inary activities are underway and soon will be completed in a few of the cities.

Some of these preliminary activities are far enough along to permit the
estimating of benefits which can be expected from these kind of street and
highway improvements. They indicate that 20 to 25 percent increases in the
traffic carrying capability can be expected with comparable improvement in
the accident experience.

As I said, we are satisfied as to the soundness of this approach and Section 12
of H.R. 17134 would add a new Section 135 to Title 28, United States Code, to
specifically authorize a programn of this nature. The program would be imple-
mented by the authorization of $250 million from the Highway Trust Fund
for each of the fiscal years 1970 through 1974.

The estimated cost of correcting the deficiencies of our major streets to ac-
commodate 1975 traflic is $2.5 billion. An authorization of $250 million per year
for five years as provided in Section 5(2), matched equally by the States, will
meet the need for that total amount. A continued program beyond that time
would be necessary to stay abreast of the problem.

The program will be administered in much the same manner as the regular
Federal-aid ABC programs, following generally the guidelines previously issued
by the Bureau of Public Roads. The program will be administered on a 50-50
matching basis, in much the same manner as the regular Federal-aid ABC pro-
grams, following generally the guidelines previously issued by the Bureau of
Public Roads, but also taking into account new approaches to traffic engineering
as they evolve from research and experience.

FRINGE PARKING

These TOPICS proposals make possible significant gains in the level of traffic
service provided by existing street systems, More emphasis must also be placed
on getting more service out of the vehicles, both public and private, that travel
these systems, in order to meet growing traffic demands. To help accomplish this
objective, Sections 14 and 15 propose to amend Chapter 1 of Title 23, United

96-030—68 15
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States Code, to provide Federal assistance for fringe parking in large urban
areas. (Omitted from H.R, 16994.)

A truly comprehensive urban transportation system must maintain a balance
not only between automobiles and transit, but also between the volumes of traflic
that seek to enter a city and the city’s capacity to absorb such volumes. This
balance cannot be attained until terminal facilities are accepted along with
streets and highway as an integral part of the transportation system.

The primary basis for using highway funds for fringe parking is to improve
service by reducing the number of vehicles using overloaded highways to the
downtown area by emcouraging the use of mass transit facilities. This could in
turn reduce the needs for extensive improvements on these facilities. As cities
grow larger, increasing numbers of people find it desirable to drive part way to
work or shop, park on the street or in other'available space, and continue their
trip by bus, train, or carpool. Provision of fringe parking spaces in suitable loca-
tions will make such a choice even more desirable with a resultant increase in
vehicle occupancy on arterials and a decrease in the number of vehicles on the
road. Parked vehicles will also be removed from the streets in outlying areas with
a consequent further improvement in street capacity.

Traffic congestion in the central business districts of our major cities is also a
pressing problem which can be relieved by the proper application of the fringe
parking principle. Since fringe parking is most applicable to the work trip, re-
moval of this long duration parking allows the more efficient use of present down-
town parking facilities by persons making short duration business, shopping, and
recreation trips. These trips represent the prime economic base of the downtown
area.

A significant portion of total downtown parking demand can also be satisfied
by fringe facilities. A primary conclusion of most parking studies conducted as
a part of the urban transportation planning ‘process is that downtown parking
demands have not been met, particularly in the core areas of our major cities.
A similar conclusion can be reached by noting the “Sorry—Full” signs at parking
facilities in the heart of the citiy during periods of peak parking demand. By
removing some portion of downtown demand, fringe parking will also provide
for the more effective use of existing downtown space.

Fringe parking will encourage people to use public transportation. Parking
associated with transit stops and terminals will provide important incentives
to improve local and express transit service. Some such incentive will frequently
be required to reverse the decline of such services. New facilities provided under
this legislation will be operated at no cost, or at most with a minimal fee to
cover the cost of maintenance and operation. Improvement of public transporta-
tion in this manner will serve to improve the mobility of those people most
dependent on transit and least able to afford high transportation costs.

The availability of funds for fringe parking will give added meaning to exist-
ing programs to encourage multi-purpose uses of space over or under freeways.
Parking is a logical and pecessary adjunct to highway jmprovements in urban
areas, and a desirable inclusion in proposals for joint development.

The success of expenditure of funds for fringe parking will be dependent upon
its acceptance by individual States and cities in the development of their own
parking programs.

Program needs are based on fringe parking demand derived from {wo sources;
work trips downtown, and change of mode trips in large metropolitan areas.
Available studies indicate that about 10 percent of total downtown work trip
demand may be transferred to fringe parking in cities between 500,000 and
1,000,000 population. Further information shows that 114 fringe spaces will be
required to remove the demand for one parking space downtown.

Additional need for fringe parking is evident from the number of change of
mode trips now taking place in cities. Twenty percent of such trips could be
accommodated by fringe parking in cities from 100,000 to 1,000,000 population
and 10 percent in cities over 1,000,000 population. The 40,000 existing fringe
parking spaces were subtracted from this total to determine the need for new
facilities.

There is need for 867,000 fringe spaces by 1975 at a cost of $387 million, Simi-
larly, needs till 1985 are for 466,000 fringe spaces at a cost of $483 million.

Availability of funds for fringe parking will provide the opportunity to search
out locations for fringe parking and to provide it where desirable. Fringe park-
ing will not be provided by others as it cannot be considered economical except
as an integral part of the transportation system. Federal assistance provides a
basis for the evaluation of fringe parking as a part of an improved urban trans-
portation system,
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RELOCATION ASSISTANCE

Though not a part of this bill, the problem of relocation assistance is vitally
important in the Federal-aid highway program. There must be adequate funds
provided to relocate large numbers of people, businesses, farms, and organiza-
tions dislocated by highway construction.

Mr, Chairman, this completes my discussion of the provisions of the Federal
Aid Highway Act of 1968. The shape of the future highway program will depend
in large degree on the decisions of the Congress on this legislation. May I
respectfully urge this Committee to make these decision in accord with the pro-
visions of H.R. 17134.

Thank you for permitting me to appear before you. Now my colleagues and I
are ready for questions.

Mr. Kruczynski. Any other questions?

Mr. CLEveLanD. Yes, sir.

Getting back to Mr. Cramer’s line of inquiry about the advance
acquisition of rights-of-way, I am pleased that you have incorporated
this into your legislation.

There are some members of the minority that have been on this sub-
ject for a good number of years, and I would like to ask you if you
are familiar with the legislation that the minority has introduced—
this is HLR. 16622, and this has been called to the attention of your
staff in a meeting which I had with members of your staff, and I would
like to know if you do not feel that this would be a better legislative
solution to the problem at hand ¢

I might add that our advance taking of right-of-way legislation,
H.R. 16622 includes relocation expenses, which is something that you
feel is important but you have not given us anything solid on.

Secretary Boyp. I advised Mr. Cramer earlier this morning that I
was not familiar with that legislation, but that I would review it.

Mr. CrLeveLanp, My point is I am surprised, because last week I
asked to speak to members of your department, to you, in fact, and
your representative came over to my office. They went over the bill with
me and they told me you would be prepared to give me a statement at
this time. Mr. Burke came over and I spent a couple of hours with him.

Secretary Boyp. Well, I do not want to bore you with my personal
itinerary, but I have been out of town from last Wednesday until
Saturday night. I have been engaged in testfying every day this week,
and I have also been required to fulfill speaking engagements out of
town during this week, and I am afraid my staff has not been able
to catch a hold of me to tell me what it is all about.

Mr. Creveranp. Do you think there is someone in the room who
could tell you now? This is important to us. We have been working
on this problem. for the past 6 years.

Secretary Boyp. I am sure Mr. Bridwell can discuss this. Mr. Brid-
well has my full authority to speak for the Department of Trans-
portation.

Mr. Browers. Mr. Cleveland, I responded earlier to Mr. Cramer
on this and said that we would immediately undertake a comparative
review of the legislation that we have proposed and the legislation as
introduced that you are referring to, and straighten out any technical
differences between the two bills. Because with the exception of that
one item of relocation assistance, I think that the concept between
the two bills is identical.

Mr. Crrveranp. I would think you could almost do that by 2:30 this
afternoon, because members of your staff did come over last weel, sat
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i? my office and went over H.R. 16622 and took away a copy of it with
them.

Secretary Boyp. We will do the best we can, Mr. Cleveland, and if
we can respond about 2:30 this afternoon, we will do so. If we cannot,
we will tell you when we can.

My, Creveranp. All right. And I guess my question is already an-
swered about another legislative item I submitted, which is H.R. 10276,
and I asked the same people that came from your staff whether or not
they felt that the purposes of this legislation, H.R. 10276, were com-
mendable and whether it would have your approval to be incorporated
in this legislation as an amendment, and I can only assume that that
message did not reach you either.

Secretary Boyn. H.R. 10276 ¢

Mzr. Creveranp. Yes, sir. This is a very interesting piece of legisla-
tion. I will not bore you with the details now. I have no further
guestions.

Mr. Kroezyyski. Mr. Cleveland, the Secretary, Mr. Bridwell, and
Mr, Turner will be here again at the end of the hearing.

The gentleman from New York, Mr. McEwen.

Mr. McEwzex, Mr. Chairman, I would like to inquire into one mat-
ter now and defer other matters until this afternoon.

I believe it was you, 3r. Bridwell, who referred to this matter of
States implementing legislation on the beautification. You referred to
New York, as an illustration, legislation I take it that has to implement
the existing agreement. Is that correct ?

Mr. BriowerL. That is correct, yes, sir.

Mr. McEwex. In other words, in the case of New York State, you
do have an approved agreement ?

Mr. BriowELL. We have an agreement, Mr. McEwen, which was
signed between the Federal Government and the State government,
which establishes the conditions under which the highway beautifica-
tion program, specifically the outdoor advertising control, will be con-
ducted in the State of New York. That agreement contained the clause
which said, in effect, that its implementation was subject to authori-
zation by the State legislature.

The State legislature is now in the process-—and I cannot give you
the status as of today—is in the process of enacting implementing
legislation. So far as I know, there is no particular reason to believe
that the implementing legiclation will not be enacted. T am told that
there is agreement within the State of interested parties on what the
legislation should contain. That is informal and secondhand infor-
mation to me. :

Mr. McEwex. This would be legislation that will enable the State to
meet the requirements of the agreement ?

Mr. BripweLL. Yes, sir.

Mr. McEwex, The gentleman from Florida brought up this Arizona
sitnation. Has there been a similar letter addressed to New York?

Mr. Broowerr. Not to my knowledge, Mr. McEwen.

Mr. McEwex. Mr, Secretary, do you know?

Secretary Boyp. Not to my knowledge. I have no recollection of the
letters that have been involved in this.: But I reiterate, we have not
written letters except in response to requests, and I have no knowledge
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cf any request for information or opinion from the State of New York.

Mr. McEwex. Well, let me, if I may, make it a little more broad
question: Has there been any communication to the State of New
York, written or oral, indicating that if they do not enact the imple-
menting legislation, they will be subject to a 10-percent penalty as of
the first of the year, 1969? i

Mr. Browerr. I will respond to that, Mr. McEwen. The answer is
absolutely and flatly no, to the absolute best of my knowledge.

What has occurred is a number of meetings between members of my
staff and the responsible people in the Department of Transportation
and the State of New York on the terms and conditions of the agree-
ment. In addition to that, on two or three unresolved points, they
were personally brought to my attention and were worked out by tele-
phone conversation with the general counsel of the Department of
Transportation of the State of New York, and it is upon that tele-
phone conversation that I was informed that this constituted substan-
tial agreement of all parties within the State of New York and that
there was no reason why the legislation should not progress.

So in the sense of has there been some kind of a warning or threat,
or any other kind of language used concerning 10-percent penalty, the
occaslon literally has not arisen as it relates to the State of New York.

Secretary Boyp. I think, Mr. McEwen, if you have information to
the effect that there have been threats or intimidations in this area, it
would be very helpful if you would advise us who was supposed to
have made those.

Mr. McEwex. I did not want to imply that, Mr. Secretary. That is
not the purpose of my question, why there had been. But I was just
concerned, in view of what the gentleman from Florida brought out—
the letter that went to the Governor I believe of Arizona—if this had
been a practice followed in other States; if there had been a similar
indication that they were in serious jeopardy of 10-percent penalty
being imposed in a matter of a few months.

Mr. Brmowzrr. I think the significance of what I said, Mr. McEwen,
is that the State of New York and several other States are perfectly
pleased to negotiate such agreements. They are in favor of outdoor
advertising control programs. This is not a case in which someone is
hammering them over the head. They respond positively. Yes, they
want agreement.

Now, there is no question but what the title III portion, which
relates to landscaping, scenic enhancements, the construction of road-
side rest areas, scenic overlooks, that kind of thing, there is no question
but that that is the most popular, and I think that is freely conceded
by everyone. By the same token, I do not think there is any doubt in
anyone’s mind that the most difficult part of the highway beautifi-
cation program is and always has been the control of outdoor
advertising. v

We believe that we have demonstrated by the agreements that we
have signed that we will work with the States on a fully cooperative
50-50 basis, in which they are absolutely equal partners in a negotia-
tion, and that they can propose anything they want to propose and
will bargain it out.

So I frankly—I am not suggesting that you have implied any-
thing, but the constant implication that comes to me, that somehow
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we are threatening and cajoling and intimidating, is just absolutely
false.

Mr. McEwex. Well, Mr. Bridwell, the law itself holds the threat
over their heads, does it not, with the 10-percent penalty ?

Secretary Boyp. We have made no effort to prevent anybody from
reading the law.

Mr. McEwex~. Thank you.

Mr. BriowerL. I think everyone should be completely clear in terms
of what the Secretary has stated, in writing, and verbally before both
committees, on what his policy would be, and I would suggest that
it is a very liberal policy.

Mr. Craver. Will the gentleman yield?

Mr. McEwen. I yield fo the gentleman from Florida.

Mr. CraMzr. I can read plainly what was said to Arizona—whether
that was the intent of the interpretation or not, it clearly says penalty
January 1, 1969, if the legislature does not act, if the legislature has
had an opportunity to do so.

With regard to these agreements being entered into, is it not true
that these agreements deal prospectively with the future erection of
signs, control relating to areas to be zoned concerning future sign
erection ?

Secretary Boyp. As Mr. Bridwell indicated, we have sent copies of
every agreement to the committee.

Mr. Cramer. That is a correct analysis, is it not, that they deal
prospectively with future signs?

Mr. Briowern. I am not sure that I understand exactly what you
are saying, Mr. Cramer. Yes, they deal prospectively with future
signs, but not to the exclusion of everything else.

Mr. Craner. Well, are you requiring Federal signs to come down
now without compensation?

Mr. Briowerr. No, because no sign is required to come down until
1970.

Mr. CraMer. You are requiring that they do come down in 1970,
starting then?

Mr. BrioweLL. We are requiring what the law states; namely, they
start to come down in 1970.

And obviously that assumes that the Federal Government will
meet its obligations.

Mr. Cramer. I understand that 5 States have signed agreements
that have not been authorized by the State legislature: Delaware,
Maine, Minnesota, New York, and Pennsylvania. And you have
negotiated these agreements. Is that correct?

Mr. Browern., Well, that is what I will have to supply for the
record, Mr. Cramer. I have no reason to believe that you do not have
accurate information. I have already referred to the one that is current
in my knowledge of the process of implementing legislation, in the
New York State Legislature at this time. There are a number of
States about which there is no question in our mind that implementing
legislation, adequately implementing legislation, has already been
passed and in which we are negotiating agreements.

Mr. Cradrer. Maybe the gentleman from New York knows.

Is the legislature still in session in New York?

Mr. McEwex. Still in session.
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Mr. Cramzr. Let’s assume they do not act this year. What are you
going to do?

Mr. Briowerr. Mr. Cramer, in response to your question, I do not
know that particular answer, because I do not believe that I can ac-
cept your assumption, based on the information before me; namely,
that those responsible for the legislation seem to believe that they will
have no great difficulty in obtaining its passage. This is based upon
what they believe to be a reasonable agreement and which is supported
by many interested parties. I do not know whether all interested par-
ties, but many interested parties.

Mr. Cramer. You said I think the Bureau sent out a letter related
to the District of Columbia, after our hearing, suggesting the reloca-
tion program for the District.

Now, is it your suggestion the general bill, considered in the other
body, take the place of that proposal? It differs in numerous respects.

Mr. Briowerr. Mr. Cramer, I do not believe the Department of
Transportation

Mr. Cramer. Came up from the District of Columbia Government ?

Mr. BripwerLL. Yes, I am quite sure the Department of Transporta-
tion did not submit any relocation program as it relates to the District
of Columbia. As the Secretary has already stated, we fully support the
testimony and presentation of position as expressed by Mr. Hughes
before the Senate Government Operations Subcommittee.

Mr. CramEr. In preference to the action of the City Council in the
District, submission they made to the committee?

Mr. BripwerL. We are aware of it, yes, sir.

Mr. CramEr. Just one other question. I understand that the $68.6
billion estimate of available revenues upon which was based these
authorization figures for the Interstate and contemplating continua-
tion of primary and so forth, that that figure includes the suggested
tax increases of about $1.2 billion over that period ?

Secretary Boyp. That is correct.

Mr. CraMER. So, in effect, if those increased taxes are not approved,
we will still have a stretch out beyond—what is it—1975% 1974 % The
date provided in this legislation ?

Secretary Boyp. We would have a short fall to that extent unless
other taxes were enacted.

Mr. CraMER. So, in effect, we would be $1.2 billion short ?

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir.

Mr. McEwex. May I just came back, Mr. Chairman, to this New
York situation.

Do I understand Mr. Bridwell’s answer before, if the New York
Legislature does not pass this implementing legislation you cannot
answer at this time—or you, Mr. Secretary—what might happen on
January 1,19692

Secretary Boyp. I will tell you what is going to happen, Mr.
McEwen. At the end of this year, Mr. Bridwell, the highway admin-
istrator, is going to prepare for me a list of the status of the States
relative to the program. He is going to make recommendations to me.
Thesge will come to my staff. They will review them. Mr. Bridwell and
T will then sit down and decide what we are going to do to carry out
our requirements under the law.
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There will be no commitment on my part to do or not to do anything
before that time.

Mr. McEwex. In other words, Mr. Secretary, the threat of a 10-
percent cut in the highway funds, whether this Congress appropriates
the Federal money or not, still exists; is that correct?

Secretary Boyp. It is very subjective.

Mr. McEwex. Is that correct?

Secretary Boyp. The law is on the books and whether or not

Mr. McEwex~. Is my question clear, Mr. Secretary?

Secretary Boyp. Yes. The threat of 10 percent loss exists whether
or not the Congress appropriates. That law is on the books. Whether
or not it is a threat, I say, is a very subjective proposition.

Mr. McEwex. Let me amend and take the word “threat” out.

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir.

Mr. McEwex. The possibility exists that the State of New York
will Jose 10 percent of its Federal highway money unless it enacts this
legislation ?

Secretary Boyp. Absolutely. ,

Mr. McEwex. Thank you very much

Mr. Kvoezyxskr. The hearing will recess until 2:30.

(Whereupon, at 12:32 p.m., the hearing recessed, to reconvene at
2:30 p.m., the same day.)

AFTERNOON SESSION

Mr. Kruczynsg1. The hearings will come to order.

When we recessed this afternoon, we had on the witness stand the
Secretary of Transportation. We also had Lowell Bridwell and Frank
Turner. They have had a previous engagement, they are sitting in
the anteroom now and may be there for 15 or 20 minutes.

I thought, to save time, we would call on our good friend Mr. Nelson,
Deputy Chief of the Forest Service.

Mr. Nelson, please proceed.

STATEMENT OF M. M. NELSON, DEFUTY CHIEF, FOREST SERVICE,
LEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; ACCOMPANIED BY RICHARD T.
DROEGE, ASSOCIATE DEPUTY CHIET, FOREST SERVICE

Mr. Nrrsox. Thank you very much. T have with me Mr. Richard
Droege, who is associate Deputy Chief of the Forest Service and has
responsibility for protection and development of the National Forest
system including our engineering work.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I appreciate the
opportunity to represent the Department of Agriculture in support of
the Federal-aid Highway Act of 1968. H.R. 16994 and H.R. 17134
would authorize appropriations for the fiscal years 1970 and 1971 for
the construction of certain highways in accordance with title 23 of the
United States Code.

First, we in the Department of Agriculture want to express our
thanks for your keen interest in the transportation needs of the rural
areas of our Nation. Particularly do we appreciate your consideration
and response in past Federal-aid highways acts to the road and trail
needs of our national forests and national grasslands. There is a vast
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area of 187 million acres located in 41 States and the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico which are available to meet the recreational and eco-
nomic needs of the Nation. Full use and enjoyment of this important
public property is entirely dependent on an adequate transportation
system of roads and trails.

All Federal-aid highways serve the national forest system either
directly or indirectly. The entire system serves as the vital connection
between our forest and grassland resources and the people and indus-
tries of the Nation. We have a very special interest in forest develop-
ment roads and trails for which H.R. 16994 and H.R. 17134 would
authorize appropriations. Section 5(5) of these bills would authorize
the appropriation of 125 million for each of fiscal year 1970 and for
fiscal year 1971 for forest development roads and trails. Funds under
this authorization are appropriated directly to the Forest Service.

We have the responsibility for maintenance of over 160,000 miles of
existing forest development roads, and over 101,000 miles of existing
trials and for construction of new roads and trails needed in the na-
tional forest system. Many more miles of roads are needed for full
development of the resources.

In 1961, President Kennedy sent to the Congress “A Development
Program for the National Forests.” That program set forth the re-
source management and development work needed in the national
forests during the 10-year period 1963 to 1972. The estimated cost of
road and trail construction in that program was approximately $1.7
billion, of which $1.2 billion was to come from appropriated funds.
We are currently far behind in this program. We are behind planned
needs while at the same time we are finding that the 10-year program
was based on conservative estimates of excepted use of the national
forest system.

The nationwide importance of the national forest system continues
to grow. For instance, recreation use has grown to almost 150 mil-
lion visitor-days in fiscal year 1968. A “visitor-day” is the new term
which has been adopted by the Bureau of Outdoor Recreation for use
by all Federal agencies to measure recreation use. Based on this meas-
urement the Forest Service provides more recreation use than any
other Federal agency. In the commodity field this year the national
forests will produced 33 percent of all of the veneer and sawlog vol-
umes used by the entire important timber industry in the United
States. This is a dramatic increase over the 17 percent produced on the
national forests in 1955—only 12 years ago. It is approximately dou-
ble. These increased contributions of the national forest system re-
sources to the health, wealth, and economy of our Nation can only be
sustained by the betterment and extension of the forest development
road and trail transportation system.

I believe I would be derelict in my duties as Deputy Chief of the
Forest Service if I didn’t point out to you that we are In some pretty
challenging times in managing our transportation system. Your sup-
port of this bill is needed if we are to continue to make progress. The
problems are many and complex. They include building access roads to
keep the dependent mills supplied with logs and thus have them add
to our economy. They include replacing stock driveways with roads on
which stock can be trucked to and from the national forest ranges to
protect critical watersheds in such areas as the Boise National Forest
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in Idaho. They include constructing roads to provide access to new
recreation areas on reservoir projects constructed by the Corps of
Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation, private and public power develop-
ments, State water agencies, and others. I know you are familiar with
the existing roads to some of our existing recreation areas. Many of
these roads have outlived their design life and need to be rebuilt to an
adequate standard to accommodate the ever-increasing number of
visitors that use the national forest system.

I want also to point out that new acccess roads continue to be needed
to provide ground support for fighting forest and range fires. We do
not believe that new technology will eliminate the need for adequate
road access to fight fires. I want to emphasize that putting out fires
requires on-the-ground work by men and machines. We need roads to
get these forces to the fires fast.

In fiscal vears 1968 and 1968 under the Federal-Aid Highway Act of
1966, we expect to construct 12,382 miles of forest development roads.
Of this amount, we expect to build 2.414 miles out of appropriated
funds. The remaining 9,968 miles will be built by timber sale pur-
chasers. Government funds will be used for the required surveys, the
plans and construction supervision of these operator-built roads.

Although these roads may be constructed by timber operators as a
part of the sale contract, they are in effect an investment of Federal
funds. We have to insure that these roads will be designed and con-
structed insofar as possible in a manner that will best meet the present
and future public needs.

We also expect to construct 726 miles of trails. We now have 101,500
miles of trails in the national forest system. This is 78 percent of all
the forest and recreation trails in the Nation. Yet the demand and the
need of trails continues to grow. The system must be improved, ex-
panded, and reconstructed. Consideration must be given to geograph-
ical uses. Most of our trails originally served simply as a way through
the country. Many now need to be relocated to take advantage of scenic
vistas, to provide access to special points of interest, to follow more
attractive routes, and to provide better distribution of hunters and
people seeking this type of recreation experience. I am sure you know
that even the national wilderness system would have little use without
a trail system. ,

The Department of Agriculture also supports the forest highway
system and the public lands highway programs which are adminis-
tered by the Department of Transportation through the Bureau of
Public Roads. Because of its relationship to the national forests, the
forest highway system represents the main traffic arteries through or
adjacent to the forests. Forest highways provide primary access to,
and outlet from, our forest development road and trail system. Sec-
tion 5(3) of these bills would authorize appropriation of $33 million
for forest highways in each of fiscal years 1970 and 1971.

Rural life continues to be one of the major concerns of our Depart-
ment. We must intensify our efforts to assure rural families their
rightful share in the increased economic and cultural opportunities of
our Nation. Their pattern of living must be comparable to that of the
rest of our citizens. The forest development road and trail program
together with the program for forest highways are vital to the eco-
nomic stability of many small rural communities near and adjacent
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to national forest lands. The timber, recreation, wildlife, and scenic
resources of the national forest areas provide an important resource
base upon which the associated community economies are developed.

I would like to comment on two proposed language changes. First
is in defining “Forest Road or Trail” and “Forest Development Roads
and Trails.” This proposed change will tie the definitions to the title
23 authorization language. This will avoid any possible misunder-
standing of what constitutes forest development roads and trails. It is
important that all the roads for which the Forest Service has a re-
sponsibiliy be included under the definition. The authorization lan-
guage was included in the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1964, and
there is no authorization change needed.

The second, a change from $10,000 per mile limitation to $15,000
per mile or $15,000 per project for projects less than 1 mile in length,
will permit us to efliciently construct some real small projects. Many
of these small projects can be constructed at a cost less than the cost
of preparing bids and advertising the project in accordance with for-
mal contracting procedures. Our experience on such small projects
has been that the small projects often result in no bids, or inflated
prices, which are necessary for the contractors to recover the costs of
bidding, moving in and moving out, and meeting insurance, bond, and
other contractor costs associated with such road construction projects.
On the small projects, these costs make up a very high percentage of
the project cost and the contractors have no opportunity to spread out
these fixed costs as they do have on larger projects. Often some of
these small projects can be scheduled along with our regular road
maintenance activities and therefore utilize equipment and personnel
already in the area.

I would like to end my statement by saying that we have been and
are continuing to do all we can to provide the best balanced forest
development road and trail program possible with the limited funds
currently available to us. We are restricting most of our recreation
road construction to roads inside of camp and picnic areas. We are
postponing action on most of the many opportunities we have to pro-
vide high quality roads for outdoor recreation travel. We have made
program shifts when necessary to require more and more timber pur-
chaser construction. We are continuing to stretch the available funds
as far as we can through cooperation with local, state and private
organizations on roads which also serve other purposes than national
forest use and development.

‘We now have many fine examples of joint road system development
with timber landowners resulting in an efficient road system serving
all owners at least cost to all participants. We now have 823 of these
“share cost agreements” with timber landowners. These cover 3,544
miles of road with an estimated total value of $51,596,000. In enter-
ing into these agreements the required road system needed to remove
the timber of all ownerships in the “share cost” area is carefully
planned and the costs are shared by the participating owners in pro-
portion to their planned use of the roads.

We are trying to stretch the road dollars that Congress makes avail-
able to us over just as many miles of road as we can. We will continue
to look for new ways to improve our performance.
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We agree with either one of the two bills and support the two bills
insofar as they affect us that I have testified for.

Mr. Kruczynskr. Mr. Nelson, that is an excellent statement. We are
always very happy to have you before this committee. But you are
not going to ask at this time to take these funds from the trust fund,
ire you? I know 2 years ago you said you didn’t care where it came

rom.

Mr. Nersox. Nojthe portion of the road authorization that goes into
the forest development roads and trails is not proposed to be taken out
of the trust fund, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kruczynsgr. Well, Mr. Nelson, speaking for myself, I favor
an authorization level in keeping with the 10-year program we are
discussing in the 1966 act. I hope we can accomplish that.

The Chair at this time recognizes the gentleman from California,
Mr. Clausen.

Mr. Crausen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

At this time I want to express my appreciation for your very fine
testimony, and also to the chairman. Coming from an urban area like
Mr. Kluczynski does, I do want to say'this gentleman has evidenced
more specific interest in the development of forest roads than anyone
else I can name on this committee.

I think it is appropriate to thank the chairman for his interest in
the so-called road problems.

Mr. Nelson, first of all let me ask you this: Reference has been
made to maintaining this 10-year level of authorization that was pre-
scribed, I believe, by the Kennedy administration. Now, how close are
we to maintaining that level of authorization ?

Mr. Nersox. Mr. Clausen, as I recall the figures right now, we are
about $270 million below where we should be if we were to finish that
10-year program by the end of the 10-year period.

Mr. CrauseN. Wasn’t that 10-year program initially established
about 1963 ?

Mr. Nensox. The program that President Kennedy sent to Congress
in 1961 and it went from—yes, from 1963 to 1972 is what we con-
sidered the 10-year program.

Mr. CLAUSEN. So we are now in about the fifth year?

Mr. Nersox. Yes. The figure of $270 million I gave you does not
take into account increased costs and is based on 1961 dollar value. As
you know, the index of cost has gone up regularly, too. I think it would
be nearer $330 million of 1968 dollars when we take into account the
new increase in costs or the change in the index of costs that have
occurred.

Mr. CrLauseN. As you know, our greatest problem is one of money
and the necessary control that must be established by the Congress. I
am sure you are aware of the severe fiscal problem we face. Part of
this problem is associated with the necessary expenditures of Govern-
ment.

I would like to develop a hypothetical case. If the Vietnam conflict
were to be brought to a reasonable settlement, how large a program and
what amount of money could you realistically handle?

Mr. Nersox. Congressman Clausen, that may be a difficult question.
On the other hand, we are ahead with our plans. We have road design
plans on the shelf. We think it is a very desirable public development
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to be placing public money into a road system. In 1962 under the
accelerated public works program, when it was found necessary to
have some public works programs we were able to step in and do some
excellent work with APW money. Much of it was badly needed road
and trail construction.

I think we would have no trouble at all in handling at least 50
percent more authorization than we are using in the present program.
This would put us in the neighborhood of $160 million to $170 million.

Mr. Crausen. Well, I for one would certainly like to see you as an
agency and hopefully our own committee give very serious considera-
tion to establishing the necessary legislative or administrative frame-
worlk for the program so that if and when there is an opportunity to
ease these current fiscal problems or ease the current fiscal crisis
that we have, that we would be geared up ready to move on this kind
of a program,

Here again, your comments relating to the problems in rural Amer-
ica, I sincerely believe that a lot of the problems that are affecting
urban America could somehow be resolved if we could reverse this
population trend toward the urban areas. And one of the ways in which
we can do this is through a formula we develop for road construction,
as I am sure you are well informed on.

Would you agree with this?

Mr. NeLsoN. We certainly agree with that. And I know that is the
part of the program that the Department of Agriculture, to reverse
this business of the rural people going into the cities causing more
problems there. And surely a proper transportation system in rural
America would be very helpful on that.

Also, Congressman Clausen, we look at it the same way you do.
And, even though we took a substantial reduction in appropriations
this year, in our road business, we have not reduced our surveying and
engineering crews, because we feel it is very desirable to have the
project properly surveyed, the plans made, and on the shelf, in case
the financial situation changes and the budgetary situation makes it
possible to move forward with this most desirable type of a program of
expenditure of Federal funds for a capital investment.

Mr. Crausen. Well, what part of the authorizations under the
Federal-aid highway program were actually apportioned to you by
the Bureau of the Budget ?

Mr. NeLson. Well, as you know, for this fiscal year 1968 and 1969,
this committee had an authorization of $170 million. In 1968, our cur-
rent fiscal year, we were allowed to go before the Appropriations
Committee for funds to carry out a program at the level of $120
million. And then later on there was the rescissionary action by the
Congress, which required some cutbacks in programs, and we lost
$15 million at that time. This means that the current fiscal year we
are at $105 million. We will use $105 million of the $170 million
authorization.

In fiscal year 1969 we had to take an additional cutback and our
present use of the authorization as before the Appropriations Com-
mittee—and it was passed by the House the other day—would be at a
level of $93 million.

Mr. Cravsen. Well, in those communities that are dependent upon
a continuing yield of the timber for their survival, particularly some
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of the smaller lumber organizations, I guess they are mostly in the
West. As you know, they have a very difficult time in guaranteeing the
flow of natural resources to keep themselves going.

As I understand, it has contributed substantially to a number of
organizations going bankrupt over the last few years and I think this
current trend has contributed partially to this, because these people
must have the timber.

I am wondering if you can comment on this. If we were able to
have the necessary road program so that the land management pro-
gram that you have, not only underway but contemplated, could be
brought up to the maximum benefits—I am talking in terms of all of
the multiple uses that are under your very fine program——

Mr. Nerson. Yes.

Mr. Crausex (continuing). Do you not think this would reverse
some of these bankrupt tendencies that have occurred ?

Mr. Newsox. I do not know if I can comment specifically on any
specific bankruptcy, but certainly an adequate road system is neces-
sary and desirable, It is particularly necessary to some of the smaller
operators who do not have the capital or cannot get the capital to
build the roads themselves, so it has a definite bearing on this.

1t also, as you know, Congressman Clausen, from your experience
in the woods, means the Federal Government pays for those roads
anyway. We get less money from the timber than we would otherwise.

i testified before the Appropriations Committee on the level that
we are talking about this year. I told them that in this fiscal year it
would not make any difference in the amount of money that we receive
from timber sales because this year they will be operating on roads
that have already been constructed. But we are getting mighty close
to the level where we are going to have to cut back on timber sale
programs. And it will not only affect some of the small operators in
certain areas, it will affect the income to the Treasury of the United
States from timber receipts.

In some areas, it is more pronounced than others, because it is on a
more critical line as to whether or not the operators can afford to oper-
ate in an area if they have to build the roads.

In other areas, we almost have to build the roads or we would not
be able to make the sales even though they are desirable from a stand-
point of the economy of a local community and most desirable, of
course, from the standpoint of managing a forest property.

Mr. Crausex. Well, T believe that this committee, frankly, led
by our champion chairman, has more realistically recognized not
only the benefits that come as a result of your being able to properly
manage your forest for the timber yield that is available—

Mr. NeLso~. Yes. :

Mr. CrauseN (continuing). But I do want to bring to the atten-
tion of the committee members here that we are considering, as you
know novw, the establishment of a Redwood National Park and there
are many people in the Nation that are making the comment to the
effect that we should have a larger and larger park in order to ac-
commodate this vast population from the urban area that wants to
come in for recreational purposes.

Well, I would submit to you, each and every one of you on this
committee, that this is one of the kinds of programs that will yield,
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in my judgment, the most benefits to the most people. If we will
provide access to these vast recreational areas that could be put to
the benefit of the people of the country through a proper and up-
dated forest development roads and trails program, we will really
be developing some benefits.

And I can tell you that in our own area, for instance, we have some
5.6 million acres of Forest Service lands, and all we need is to have
the opportunity for a road to be developed to give access to people.
And you can minimize the number of dollars that are going to be
required for creation of a very large national park.

I just had to take advantage of this opportunity to bring this to
the attention of our committee members.

Mr. Neuson. If I may, I would like to say we have 20 million acres
in the East. I do not want the members on this committee who are
in the East to thing our road problems and road needs are all in
the West. The same type of thing that you just spoke of for recreation
development is very important in the eastern national forests also.

Mr. Crausen. Now on page 14 of the draft of the bill that is before
us, line 4, you have “for the use and development of the resources
upon which communities within or adjacent to the national forest
and other areas administered by the Forest Service are dependent.”

Now, that includes parts of a sentence. But could you tell me what is
fully intended by that recommendation ?

Mr. Nurson. That deals only with the definitions. As you know,
the Federal Highway Act has a section on definitions; it also has a
section on the authorizations. And the intent of these recommenda-
tions for a change here was to make the definitions the same as the
authorizations that were authorized 4 years ago.

Mr. CrAUsEN. I see. Recognizing this is dependent on the success of
your program.

Mr. Nerson. Yes, sir.

Mr. CrauseN. And you are making this recommendation legisla-
tively to accomplish this?

Mr. Neusown. That is right.

Mr. Kruczy~skr. Any further questions?

The gentleman from Texas. Mr. Roberts.

Mr. Roeerts. Mr. Nelson, what is the total for forest products in
the United States? I am talking about from national parks. What is
your total ?

- Mr. NeLsow. This past fiscal year it was $182,600,000.

That includes our total receipts and most of that is from timber.
About 95 percent of it is from timber.

Mr. Roeerrs. We are spending more than that for the roads. When
you count what you work out with the saw people, timber people, and
what we put in, we are spending more money on roads than we are
taking in on the whole product, by far.

Mr. Newsox. Our appropriated funds for roads and trails in the
budget for fiscal year 1969 will be about $91 million and in addition to
that we have the 10-percent fund, which will add about $18 million.

The roads that will be built by the timber operators under the timber
sales contract will be about $87 million. So you are correct that it will
be more than the $180 million of direct receipts to the Treasury.
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Mr. RoserTs. $170 million we are spending for roads and our whole
total forest products total $180 million. That does not make very good
busineszs. We would be better off just to leave the trees alone, would
we not ¢

Mr. NeLsox. The roads are an investment in the land that will have
other needs and will be used for not only additional forest management
and the removal of forest products, but by recreationists as well as for
the protection of the lands and resources.

There are some areas we think it would be desirable to put in roads
and would save us in the overall cost of firefighting, for example.

So a system of roads—actually if I recall right, if we looked at our
receipts, counting the money that timber operators spend in the capital
investment of roads as a receipt and subtract our costs of operation in
the national forest, but looking at our capital investments the way a
business does, and as a depreciation, we' are operating the entire na-
tional forest system at about the cost that we are putting into it.

In fact, last year—I do not have my papers here, but last year there
was about a $2 million profit when you look at the outgo like a business
does, of taking capital investments and considering that on a deprecia-
tion basis.

Mr. RoBerTs. You do not consider your administrative costs ?

Mr. Nerson. That would have administrative costs in it.

Mr. Crausen. Would the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Roeerts. Let me finish up this line, then I will be glad to yield.

How are you tied into the wilderness program? I get a conflict here,
because I agree with you, we want to build roads; but to go out into
the wilderness, they are not only building roads but they are plowing
up existing airports they could use for greﬁghting, and the Govern-
ment pays for it.

Mr. Nrrsox. The first wilderness setup in the United States was set
up by the Forest Service in 1924, the Gila Wilderness in New Mexico.
We have some 15 million acres of national forest land at the present
time either in the national wilderness system or in primitive areas that
the Wilderness Act requires be studied to be put into the wilderness
system, so we are deeply involved in the wilderness program and the
whole wilderness system and Wilderness Act here.

There are a number of propositions before the Congress at the
present time that are a result of the study of some of these primitive
areas that would propose putting them into the national wilderness

stem.
syEven in the wilderness system, as I indicated, it requires some au-
- thorizations such as in this bill, because the wilderness system is not
very usable without a trail system. And all of the people who use the
wilderness use trails. So it does take some funds, as authorized by this
bill, for the trail system within the wilderness system.

Mr. Roeerts. But you have a ruling that you cannot take a chainsaw
or motorized equipment into the wilderness area, even if you have
a heavy blowdown. Is this your ruling or your superiors’ ruling? Even
if somebody wants to go out and help, he ¢annot do it unless he wants
to do it with a handsaw.

Mr. NEeLsox. I guess we would have to take part of the responsibility
for that, but part of it I think would lay at the feet of Congress
because the Wilderness Act does not allow the use of motorized equip-
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ment within the wilderness system. It does leave us the leeway of using
motorized equipment for administrative purposes.

If we had a blowdown of that type, there is no question but what our
people would use chainsaws as the most efficient way of getting the
trails opened.

We have not allowed others, such as—oh, guides, to use chainsaws
and motorized equipment because the Wilderness Act does not allow
that. And we realize that there may be some situations where it would
be easier for them to help us actually open up some of the trails.

Mr. Roeerts. One other short question; then I will yield to the
gentleman from California.

On your grasslands area, I have two lakes.

Mr. NELson. Yes.

Mr. Roserts. Lake Davy Crockett and Lake Fannin, both very
substantial, very good lakes, but there is no road between them, no
usable road.

Now if we appropriate the money for this—I was not aware of it—
why are we trying to get EDA to build a road between those two
lakes that belong to you? Why are you not building them ?

Mr. Nerson. As indicated here, we have not received the appropri-
aﬁiorﬁ; iclhat would let us do all we would even be authorized to do under
this bill.

‘We have many, many places where we could and would spend Forest
Road and Trail Development funds. I am not acquainted with these
particular lakes, Congressman, but we have many areas of that type
where it could be and might be desirable to spend those funds, but we
do not have them at this time and consequently we are using every
process we can to extend our dollars as far as we can. And if they are
able to handle the road some other way, we cooperate to get it built.

Mr. Roserrs. Thank you very much.

T yield to the gentleman from California.

Mr. Crausen. My comment will be very brief.

The gentleman from Texas, I believe, was relating the amount of
the authorization to the total amount of timber receipts, and the
amount of income.

Mr. Roserrs. All forest products.

Mr. Crausen. For the forest, yes.

I think the one thing that we should probably mention in the proper
perspective is as they have increased the authorization and the ap-
propriation level, the yield from the timber sale receipts has not only
imncreased, but frankly you will see an overall increase to the Treasury,
because the organizations that are in need of roads also are paying
increased taxes and that sort of thing.

So I believe in order to maximize the use of these lands and timber
that comes from it, it is going to be necessary to have the best possible
road system, rather than just blocking the areas unnecessarily.

Mr. Roserts. Thank you.

Mr. Kruczynski. Thank you, Mr. Nelson. You are a splendid wit-
ness. We are very much impressed. You have all the answers, all the
figures. And you have a good gentleman to work with you.

The gentleman who represents the Northwest section of this great
country, Mr. Clausen, as I happen to know, is an expert on forest

96-030—68——16
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roads and trails. It is a pleasure to be out in that great part of the
country. ;

Mr. Newson. Thank you. It is always a pleasure to appear before
the committee.

(The following was received for the record :)

AppITIONAL COoMMENTS BY M. M. NELsON, DEpuTY CHIEF, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
AGRICULTURE, FOREST ‘SERVICE, AS REQUESTED BY THE CHAIRMAN, SUBCOMMITTEE
ON Roaps, COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC YWORKS

ROAD IN RELATION TO COMPETITION FOR NATIONAL FOREST TIMBER

The Forest Service is just completing a comprehensive study of timber sales
in the Pacific Northwest to determine the facts of why we get increased bidding,
and thus higher returns to the government, on some sales and not on others. The
study concludes that a key factor to increase the competitive position of our
timber sales would be to increase the level of road construction by appropri-
ated funds. Studies made earlier by others also indicated this need of roads to
engender full competition for timber.

ADEQUACY OF HIGHWAY ENGINEERING ON NATIONAL FOREST SYSTEM ROADS

One industry witness expressed alarm concerning uniform grade, alignment,
balanced cuts and fills and excessively detailed surveys. We are very much con-
cerned with the most efficient use of available road dollars. We are also concerned
with the road system providing functional, safe service at the lowest cost. These
objectives must be met in keeping with the conservation and the enhancement of
the Forest environment. In order to require that roads be built to meet these cri-
teria, the roads must be adequately defined in plans and specifications. Specified
roads (roads which are to become permanent Forest Development Roads) needed
in the timber sale must be built to the required standards. We believe we must
precisely prescribe the required construction or we are unfair to the timber pur-
chaser who has to know what he has obligated himself to perform when he bids.
We know of no way to accomplish this objective without definitive plans and
specifications. ‘“Flexible” requirements can only create uncertainty on the part
of both parties to the timber sale contract.

RELATIONSHIP OF ROAD CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES ON PRIVATE LAND U.S. ROADS
CONSTRUCTION BY TIMBER PURCHASERS ON GOVERNMENT LAND

We do not believe that the practices followed by private timber land owners in
logging private lands for maximum profit are acceptable guides for management
of the National Forests.

A prudent manager of public lands must have different standards than would
a prudent manager of private lands. We cannot, by our timber management prac-
tices, “lock out” other legitimate users of the National Forests, nor can we un-
necessarily detract from or fail to protect resource values such as aesthetics,
soil and water.

We do not know, nor have we been able to determine, how the actual cost of
building private roads on private lands compares with the cost of National Forest
roads. Our cost records are available for public scrutiny. We are proud of the
many economies we have been able to incorporate into design and construction
techniques, Private road costs on the other hand are generally unavailable. Some-
times tax benefits make it more “profitable” to have costs appear as operating or
maintenance expenses instead of amortization of construction cost. Also, we never
know what elements are included as costs for the private land road, and whether
or not they are the same elements that appear in National Forest timber sale
appraisal data. For example, does the private land cost figure include identifiable
allowances for executive overhead, equipment depreciation or right-of-way clear-
ing? If we had access to accounts of such costs and could verify them, we would
be glad to use them in timber sale appraisals for estimating costs when similar
roads are appropriate on sale areas. For these reasons the comparability of “in-
vestments” made in the public roads and private roads as well as a comparability
of the ‘“prudency” of these investments is difficult and usually impractical to
make. We have been the target of many such comparisons in the past, and we
do not consider them to be fair.
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“STAGE CONSTRUCTION" OF A ROAD IS NOT AN ECONOMIC ADVANTAGE

Our records show that we have built, and unfortunately are continuing to build,
too many miles of road which are not suitable for full multiple use management
of Forest resources. At the present time the cost of bringing existing roads up to
desirable standards would exceed $4,000,000,000. This situation exists at the same
time we are faced with the necessity of opening up vast new areas to get presently
unproductive timber stands under management, Quite contrary to some industry
comments our primary roads deficiency has been our inability to build roads to
handle even the present traffic volumes in the most economic manner. We do not
consider stage construction as a desirable approach to developing an effective
economic transportation system.

RELATIONSHIP OF “PRUDENT OPERATOR” ROADS TO “MAXIMUM ECONOMY” ROADS

The House Committee Report #1920 on S. 1147 Sept. 30, 1964 “Under its
existing statutory authority to sell timber, the Forest Service may not require a
purchaser of Federal timber as an incident of his timber purchase contract to
build a road to a standard higher than necessary for harvesting the timber in-
volved in the particular sale. Nor may the excess cost of such higher standard
road be charged against the timber sold, even if the purchaser agreed to build it.
Roads which a prudent operator would deem necessary to harvest timber in a
particular sale are called “prudent operator” roads.

The prudent operator concept cannot be equated with practices by private
timber land owners or purchasers of private timber on private lands.

Certain practices such as improper clearing, inadequate drainage, impingement
upon live streams and unstable cut and fill areas are incompatible with the man-
agement of National Forest lands. Road construction by any Forest permittee,
licensee, or purchaser of government timber must comply with minimum “pru-
dent” management concepts on National Forest lands. These land husbandry
requirements must be basic for any permanent facility constructed as part of a
government timber sale.

‘We must recognize, however, that we are developing and managing public lands
and roads to be retained on the permanent road system which are used (or will
be used) for more than one particular sale. Such roads must be planned, designed,
and constructed to meet all of the needs (including future timber sales), and also
to protect all the resources of the lands. ‘Where the cost of such a “maximum
economy”’ road is greater than that of a prudent operator road, we use the method
of supplementing the construction with appropriated funds to develop a road
system which will make its full contribution to the resources and users of the
National Forests.

RECONSTRUCTION OF EXISTING ROADS AS A REQUIREMENT OF A TIMBER SALE
CONTRACT

Some timber industry spokesmen have taken the position that a road
which has been constructed as a condition of a timber sale could never in the
future be upgraded as a requirement of a future timber sale.

Tollowing are some examples of such situations: Following the first timber
sale, which built the road and prior to additional sales Forest users such as
hunters, fishermen and other recreationists start using the road and use it to
nearly its full design capacity. When the next sale is proposed in the area there
is a requirement that the purchaser of the government timber rebuild the exist-
ing road to increase the capacity necessary for that sale prior to hauling
timber over the road. This condition may also occur when there is a larger sale
or the haul distance is greater. This can occur where there is little or no “other”
traffic but there is a change in the economics of the haul, ie., new types of haul-
ing equipment, a higher rate of log removal is anticipated or a longer hauling
season.

We know that the best cure for this problem is to build the “maximum
economy” road in the first place. If we had the necessary financing this would
be the usual procedure. Another alternative in some instances is to close the
road to all public traffic other than timber hauling. The third alternative would
be not to make sales where the existing road is inadequate. The prudent operator
concept should not prevent such a road from being rebuilt to a standard de-
sirable to remove the timber from the current sale under existing conditions

as a requirement of the timber sale contract.
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We try to do everything possible to mesh all forest uses together so there
will be a minimum of closing roads and restricting other traffic. We wholeheart-
edly believe in obtaining an adequate road system in the most economic manner
possible while continuing to manage the National Forests for all uses.

Mr. Kruczynsgr. Off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

Now we will have the Secretary and Mr. Bridwell and Mr. Turner
again.

gFor the benefit of the committee, I will ask a question.

Mr. Secretary, there are some specific problem areas bothering a
great many of the States. The specific problem for the most part turns
on a general question of what the appropriate role of the Department
at the Secretarial level, at the Federal Highway Administration, the
Bureau of Public Roads—and the State—should be.

Specifically, there is a great deal of concern about the extent to
which section 4(f) of the Transportation Act should be decisive in
determining highway location and design.

There is also a great deal of concern about the very complicated re-
quirements for public hearings.

Mr. Secretary, we would appreciate your commenting in detail on
these two areas.

STATEMENT OF HON. ALAN S. BOYD, SECRETARY OF TRANSPORTA-
TION; ACCOMPANIED BY HON. LOWELL K. BRIDWELL, FEDERAL

HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATOR, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTA-
TION; FRANCIS C. TURNER, DIRECTOR CF BUREAU OF PUBLIC

ROADS; DR. WILLIAM HADDON, JR., DIRECTOR, NATIONAL HIGH-
WAY SAFETY BUREAU; AND DR. ROBERT BRENNER, DEPUTY
DIRECTOR, NATIONAL HIGEWAY SAFETY BUREAU—Resumed

Secretary Boyp. Well, first and foremost, I would like to say that I
think the relationship between the various officials, State and Federal,
is an evolving one and will continue to be an evolving one depending
upon the circumstances of the highway design and construction in
the United States.

Insofar as the determination of projects based on section 4(f), we
are in the process of issuing a regulation on the procedures to be used
in considering the 4(f) question. That regulation will be within the
framework of the law and will be an attempt to follow the law estab-
lished by the Congress. _

As to the complications of hearing procedures, one of the major
complaints which I and many others have received about highway pro-
jects is that the hearing procedure has been used purely and simply as
a memorial for the record to approve a route alinement which has
already been decided upon, and that the interested public have in
effect had no opportunity to have any voice in influencing the location,
the site, or the design of the project.

‘We are working on a two-hearing procedure. We have sent our
drafts, I believe, to the various States and requested their comments
in connection with this two-hearing procedure which would permit
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the public to participate in location development and express their
views on the location development of proposed projects.

This is a complicating factor. There is absolutely no question about
it. A two-hearing procedure is going to be more complicated than a
single-hearing procedure. And I do not know what to say other than
we think this is a very worthwhile thing from the standpoint of the
general public and the general public is pretty much today the same
as the automobile owning and operating population of this country.

My own personal view is that there are many compliants, objections
to highways, which could be mollified, explained, and understood if
there were a better hearing procedure. And I am concerned to see
that in the Department we undertake the development of those policies
which will help make it possible to continue to build and improve the
highway system in this country. And we cannot do that if we run
into revolt.

Mr. Kruczynski. Thank you, Mr. Secretary.

The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Maryland, Mr. Fallon.

Mr. Farron. Mr. Secretary, I have one question.

I understand that you have been quoted as saying that if the $6
billion cut in expenditures on the Federal budget is coupled with the
10 percent surtax, if that is adopted and becomes law, it will be neces-
sary to make further drastic cuts in highway spending. Is that true?

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir.

Mr. Farron. Well, Mr. Secretary, will you tell me what effect that
has in the deficit spending of our budget ? :

Secretary Boyp. Well, let me respond this way, Mr. Chairman.
As T understand, the proposals which have tied together the tax bill
and the expenditure cuts of $6 billion, the trust funds are not exempted.

Mr. Farron. Well, do you mean to say that the way that this will
be drafted

Secretary Boyp. Sir?

Mr. Farron. If the legislation that is necessary to make these cuts
as drafted will specifically state in there that there will be no exemp-
tion on trust funds?

Secretary Boyp. There are exemptions, I believe, for social security.
And of course we have interest on the national debt and we have
veterans payments. I think whether or not they are exempted—and I
do not recall—as a practical matter, they are not going to be invaded.

Mr. Farrox. What effect will this have on the budget and the
deficit spending ? What effect will it have if we have stopped spending
money out of the trust fund that cannot be used for any other purpose?

Secretary Bovp. I can only answer that in the sense that I did
before, that highway trust funds are not exempted from the $6 billion
which the Congress—which has been expressed as the desire of
Congress to have cut.

Mr. Farron. It still does not affect the deficit spending of the
budget; isthat true?

Secretary Boyp. Well, sure it does, because the revenues in the trust
fund appear in the administrative budget, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Fauron. But has no effect on the tax rate as such?




Secretary Boyp. On what?

Mr. Farrox. Onthetaxrate. .

Secretary Boyp. Well, the $6 billion is tied to the tax increase in
the legislation.

Mr. Farrow. T still cannot see where money out of a trust fund
will have any effect on a tax rate of the general fund. )

The taxes are going to continue to be collected under the 1956 High-
way Act. It will be put into a trust fund, and eannot be used for any
other purpose other than for borrowing purposes, and we will have
to pay the going rate of interest.

gecretary Boxp. That is correct, sir.

Mr. Farrox. If you borrow money from the outside source, you

would have to pay the same amount of interest. So I do not see where
you are saving any money.
Secretary Boyp. Well, all T can tell you is that I have been advised
by the Bureau of the Budget, if the $6 billion expenditure cut is
imposed under the bill as it is presently proposed, there will have to
be substantial savings coming from the Highway Trust Fund.

Mr. Farrox. They say that but they ‘do not say that it will have
any effect on the general tax rate?

Secretary Boyp. No, sir; they have not discussed the philosophy
with me; they just told me the conclusion.

Mr. Farron. Chinese philosophy. Thank you, Mr. Secretary.

Mr. Kruczy~Nsgi. Mr. Cramer.

Mr. Cramer. On that same subject, what is this money that is not
going to be spent? What is it going to be used for? Do you know?

Secretary Boyp. I have no idea. The money which is generated by
the taxes is a trust fund and there are statutory provisions on how
it is dealt with. And whatever those statutory provisions are I am
sure the Treasury will comply with.

Mr. Craxer. They plan on borrowing: from it like they have done
before, short-term borrowing. It has been done with the cutback before,
hasitnot?

. Secretary Boyp. I would have to submit that for the record. I do not
now.

Mr. Briowerr. Mr. Cramer, I can respond to that. The answer is
that the surplus; that is, the balance in the trust fund, is regularly
invested by the Treasury and it is invested in Treasury notes which
are required by the statute to bear the same rate of interest as though
the Treasury went to an outside money source for borrowings.

Now, what the Treasury uses that for when it borrows from the
balance in the trust fund would be the same purposes that it uses
money for when it borrows from outside sources. And I am assuming,
without specifically knowing, that it would be a multitude of uses.

Mr. Cramer. I understand. The point I was making is that any
surplus created by— as I contemplated or understood it when that
provision was put in, that surplus that would be created is expected
to be funds that would be coming in that would not be expected to be
spent in a reasonable period of time or excess funds coming in
from revenues not expected to be spent.

Mr. BripweLL. I think thatisa fairstatement.
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Mr. Cramzr. If it was not expected, then by the Presidential order
it would result in additional cuts, borrowing.

Mr. Browerr. Mr. Cramer, I think the key to this is what the
Secretary has already said, and that is the language which ties to-
gether the expenditure reduction, proposed expenditure reduction of
$6 billion.

I am informed—I do not know of my own personal knowledge but
I am informed—that there was a specific discussion on whether trust
funds should or should not be exempt.

Tt is my understanding that the only trust fund exempted from the
language which would statutorily require a $6 billion expenditure—
the only trust fund exempted was the social security trust fund.

Secretary Boyp. And I also believe the statute requires that surplus
fundsin the highway trust fund account be invested.

Mzr. Browerr. It does.

Mr. Cramer. Thatisright.

Then you get the definition of what is meant by surplus. Surplus in
my opinion, when this bill was drafted in 1956, did not contemplate
a surplus artificially created by a cutback presidentially ordered.

There is a difference of opinion. Of course, I understand the
Attorney General has given opinions, legal and so on. But having
helped draft that legislation, my understanding was that surplus in-
tended was that created by funds being available not needed for
expenditure under the authorizations and appropriations made or
substantially increased funds coming in as a result of larger revenue
receipts than anticipated or authorized and appropriated for, and not
artificially created surpluses by presidential order.

The language specifically is that—

It shall be the duty of the Secretary of the Treasury to invest such portion of
the trust fund as it not in his judgment required to meet current withdrawals.
Such investments may be made only at interest-bearing obligation.

But as you suggested, the key words are “required to meet current
withdrawals.” And Congress is supposed to determine what the cur-
rent withdrawal level is in my opinion.

Secretary Boyp. Mr. Cramer, I see the Secretary of Treasury
occasionally and I would be glad to transmit your opinion of the law
to him.

Mr. Cramer. There is a bill pending, H.R. 14641, and others, which
will have the effect of removing executive power unquestionably for
the creation of artificial surpluses in the trust fund. Would you care
to comment on the reaction to that proposal ?

Secretary Boyp. I do not believe we are supporting that at the
moment.

Mr. Cranmer. I will not hold my breath until you do. [Laughter.]

Of course, that would be one way maybe of getting at the problem.

Mr. Crausen. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. CramEr. Just a second.

The cutback proposal, as T understand, of $6 billion and then some
obligation authority reduction, and so forth, $6 billion spending
reduction, is a figure within which the President shall decide exactly
where the cut shall be. So he does not have to select the trust fund. If
it is selected, he selects it ; not the Congress.
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I would hope with all the cutbacks that we have had in the trust
fund, $600 million now outstanding, that we would look elsewhere for
some of these funds for programs that are not suffering as badly as
this one at the present time.

Of course, that is not your decision, I understand. But it is dis-
cretionary with the President as to in what area the $6 billion shall
come from. That is my understanding.

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir; and I think the President has made it
clear in his judgment a cutback of $6 billion in expenditures will be
catastrophic.

It seems to me that if we are going to start laying the blame
around here, there should have been some consideration given to the
President’s views on how much of an expenditure cut the budget could
bear without crippling any number of programs. That is a decision
the Congress is apparently in the process of making.

Mr. CramEr. Well, Congress, in attempting to manage the fiscal
problems of the country, it appearing some management is needed, I
might add—that is my opinion—it has got to set some kind of guide-
lines. And of course that is what is being discussed at this time. How-
ever, discretion as to where the cuts will come will rest with the
executive branch.

I would hope that in looking for cut areas, he might delve into
some of the new programs that are not well underway and not as
productive as this one, and some that have not been cut as deeply as
this one in the past by the President.

But I understand the statement has been made that $80 million is
likely to come out of the highway trust fund in the $6 billion cut.

Secretary Boyp. I do not know anything about that statement of
any precise figure. I do think it is a fair statement, Mr. Cramer, that
the executive branch of the Government is going to be just as willing
to take the blame for these cuts asthe Congress is.

Mr. Craner. It is interesting to me, when money is needed, they
always look to the trust fund, which is supposed to be a trust, and
set up in the interest of the highway users, with their tax money
going into it for a tax base to build the highway, and that is the first
fund they dip into.

Secretary Boyp. Itis a reliable source.

Mr. CradEer. It has money in it, that is for sure. It also has head-
ache expenditures.

I will yield. , ,

Mr. Crausex. I would appreciate it if the gentleman would yield.
I have to go over to the floor. I did want to ask the Secretary and Mr.
Bridwell this question, because in Caiifornia there is the Century
Freeway that you are working on and one of their major concerns is
the apportionment factors used for the Interstate Freeway System in
draft legislation, compared with the Department of Transportation
for the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1958, does not include the cost
of the Century Freeway, which has been added to the Interstate
System.

yNow, was this an oversight, or would you comment on that?

Mr. Browerr. If I may, Mr. Clausen, I would like to comment on

that.
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The Century Freeway had not been added to the Interstate System
at the time the cost estimate was made and at the time the table was
developed of the apportionment factors that you are referring to.
So that it is a relatively simple job to recalculate the apportionment
factors with the cost of the Century Freeway added in for California’s
total.

Mzr. Crausen. So I can tell them then—or will you state this, what
can I tell them as far as their expressing concern ?

Mr. Briowerr. You can tell them we are very pleased to supply to
the committee the estimated costs of the Century Freeway:

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION,
BUREAU oF PugnrIic Roaps,
Washington, D.C., May 28, 1968.
Mr. RICHARD J. SULLIVAN,
Chief Counsel, House Public Works Committee, Washington, D.C.

DEeArR MRr. SurrLivan: Mr. Bridwell requested that I prepare a revised table
of apportionment factors to substitute for Table 5 in House Document 199, 90th
Congress, 2d Session—The 1968 Interstate System Cost Estimate.

The enclosed Table 5A has been prepared as a revision of Table 5 to show
apportionment factors resulting if the Federal share of the cost of constructing
the Century Freeway in Los Angeles, California, (Total Cost $276.9 million—
Federal Share $253.2 million) and the cost of acquiring and completing con-
struction of the West Virginia Turnpike to Interstate standards (Total Cost
$186.1 million—Federal Share $167.5 million), were included in the apportion-
ment factor calculations.

Sincerely yours,
F. C. TURNER, Director of Public Roads.

[Enclosure]

[From the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Bureau
of Public Roads]

U.S. GOVERNMENT MEMORANDUM

To: Mr. Lowell K. Bridwell, Federal Highway Administrator.
Date: May 28, 1968.

From: E. H. Swick, for F. C., Turner, Director of Public Roads.
Subject: 1968 Cost Estimate, Adjusted Apportionment Factors.

In response to your memorandum of May 15, we have prepared the attached
Table 5A as a revision of Table 5 in House Document 199, 90th Congress, 2d
Session, to show the apportionment factor which would result if the Federal
share of the cost of constructing the Century Freeway and the Federal share
of acquiring and completing construction of the West Virginia Turnpike to
Interstate standards, were included in the calculations of apportionment factors.
While your memorandum did not specifically request that the West Virginia
Turnpike be included in these calculations, we consider this to be a necessary con-
sideration in view of recent action by both the Senate and House Public Works
Committees in this regard.

Youw will recall that on February 7 I sent to you a table showing a similar
“Table 5A” which provided for the California Century Freeway at a cost of
$261.8 million. The attached table includes the Century Freeway at a cost of
$276.9 million which is the estimate for this segment on the basis of its approved
length providing connection to Sepulveda Boulevard.

You suggested that I make arrangements with the House Public Works Com-
mittee to substitute the attached table for the Table 5 submitted in the Report
to Congress in January. Accordingly, I am sending the attached table to Mr.
Sullivan, Chief Counsel for the Subcommittee on Roads of the Committee on
Public Works, House of Representatives.
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TABLE 5A.—ESTIMATED FEDERAL-AID AND STATE MATCHING FUNDS TO COMPLETE THE SYSTEM, AND
APPORTIONMENT FACTORS FOR DISTRIBUTION OF 1970 FISCAL YEAR AUTHORIZATION

Estimated Estimated
Federal-aid Federal
: and State share of
State H matching funds re-  Apportionment
funds re- quired to factors
quired to complete (percent)
complete system
system (thousands)
(thousands)
Alabama. - eeeeas $366, 163 $329, 547 1.902
AIaSKA . e e e mmmm—mmm—— oo
Arizona. ... oo 277,587 262,014 1.512
............ 119, 091 107,182 .619
.......... 1,709, 817 1, 563, 628 9.026
.......... 264, 804 241,872 1.396
.............. 347,110 312,399 1.803
.................. 47,074 42,367 . 245
.............. 330, 034 297,031 1.715
Georgia. ... 381, 382 343,244 1.981
Hawaii___ . .. 253, 421 228,079 1.317
134,938 124,602 .719
1,060, 745 954, 671 5.511
374,719 337,247 1.947
196, 416 176,774 1.020
156,715 141,044 .814
328,120 295, 308 1.705
465, 049 418,544 2.416
131,078 117,970 . 681
386, 360 347,724 2.007
484,574 436,117 2.517
788, 828 709, 945 4,098
423,189 380, 870 2.199
199, 481 179, 533 1.036
372,840 335, 556 1.937
.......... 360, 1C0 328,447 1.896
............ 80, 367 72,330 . 418
........ 112,542 107,295 .619
107,639 96, 875 . 559
540, 145 486, 131 2.80g
New Mexico__ 194, 347 179,790 1.038
New York_ . ... 923,130 830, 817 4.796
North Carolina__..__._______ 250,707 225,636 1.303
North Dakota____.__________ 115,593 104,034 . 601
L 824,105 741, 695 4,281
Oklahoma. _.cocoooaaoooo 145,375 130,838 .755
Oregon_______.___._ i 403,217 372,008 2.147
Pennsylvania___________ 973,682 876,314 5.058
Rhode Island____. 99,794 89, 815 .518
South Carolina - 208, 564 187,708 1.084
South Dakota. , 430 .580
421,691 2.434
851, 837 4,917
246,321 1.422
121, 4 .701
409,215 2.362
500, 950 2.892
587,660 3.392
151,393 .874
101,950 .589
317,860 1.835
17,323,797 100. 000

Note: Table 5A is’a revision of Table 5 in H. Dac. 199, 90th Cong., 2d sess. The 1968 Interstate System cost estimate,
to show apportionment factors resulting if the Federal share of the cost of constructing the Century Freeway in Los
Angeles, Calif., (total cost $276.9 million, Federal share $253.2 million) and the cost of acquiring and completing construc-
gior‘n oJf t)hfe West V_irgjnig Turnpike to interstate standards (total cost $186.1 million, Federal share $167.5 million), were

in the

Mr. Crausex. And this would be inclﬁded in the report?

Mr. BrioweLs (continuing). To be included in the cost estimate
to be recalculated in apportionment factors if the committee so desires.

Mr. Crauvsen. Thank you.

Mr. Crayzr. I just have one matter I would like to get as a matter
of record, Mr. Chairman, then I will yield to the other members.
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I directed a letter to the Comptroller General, and he replied May
22, 1968, and I believe you have a copy.

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir.

Mr. Cramzer. That deals with the question of the Executive order
relating to compliance with the equal employment opportunity condi-
tions, and in my letter I raised some questions concerning it. Basically
the reply, the most significant paragraph begins on the bottom of
page 4 and on the bottom of page 5, the conclusions. I am sure you are
familiar with the problems created by the negotiation after the bid
opening process relating to these matters. And the effect that might
have on the bid-letting process and fixed-prices costs and so forth,
and numerous objections raised.

In effect, they say:

In view thereof, there would appear to be a technical defect in an invitation’s
requirement for submission of a program subject to government approval prior
to contract award which does not include or incorporate definite standards on
which approval or disapproval will be based. We believe that the basic principles
of competitive bidding require that bidders be assured that award will be made
only on the basis of the low responsive bid submitted by a bidder meeting estab-
lished criteria of responsibility, including any additional specific and definite re-
quirements set forth in the invitation, and that award will not thereafter be de-
pendent upon the low bidder’s ability to successfully negotiate matters mentioned
only vaguely before the bidding. We are therefore advising the Secretary of Labor
that if the proposed order is adopted, it should be appropriately implemented,
before becoming effective, by regulations, which should include a statement of
definite minimum requirements to be met by the bidder’s program, and any other
standards or criteria by which the acceptability of such program will be judged.

And the last paragraph says:

In any event, we cannot conclude at this time that the proposed requirement
for submission of acceptable affirmative action programs prior to awarding
Federally assisted construction contracts, is a matter of law clearly compatible
with competitive bidding requirements * * *, and therefore illegal, provided

the proviso is the key—

provided the implementing regulations discussed above are issued before the
proposed order establishing such requirement becomes effective.

Now, I would trust and hope that you will give this matter your
consideration as a result of the General Accounting Office determina-
tion, and as I understand it has been directed to you through proper
channels, as well as to the Department of Labor and others involved.

Also I ' would hope that your Department would so advise the States
of this proposal by GAO. Do you see any problems relating to it or
have any reservations about it?

Secrefary Boyp. No, I do not. I am very much in favor of this. T
think the bidders ought to know what the requirements are.

The Department of Labor, as you know, is the lead agency.

Mr. Cramer. Yes. I understand.

Secretary Boyp. And we would certainly be in contact with them
about this. I presume the Department of Labor will get a copy of this.

Mr. Cramer. Yes, they got it today.

Now, what will be the attitude of your Department relating to the
presently existing requirement until this matter is resolved by Labor,
in view of this letter?

Secretary Boyp. Well, I certainly expect an early resolution by the
Department of Labor. And without checking with the various States,
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I would not know how many proposals are involved in the existin
situation; but if it appears that there is going to be only a short perio
of time involved, I would not recommend any changes in the existing
procedures.

I do not see any point in trying to make two shifts in procedures.

Mr. Cramer. It is my understanding, is it not, as contained in the
presently existing order, that they have a pilot project in three areas—
St. Louis, San Francisco, and Cleveland—that are presently in exist-
ence now ; is that correct ?

Secretary Boyp. Not to my knowledge. The ones I know about are
Cleveland and Philadelphia. Now, there may be others.

Mr. Craxier. Philadelphia may be a more recent one, but I under-
stood that: ‘

Secretary Boyp. Mr. Bridwell is current on this subject.

Mr. Cramer. Mr. Bridwell? i

Mr. Briowerr. I think the three areas that you have mentioned,
that that is accurate, that there are pilot projects there. There is a
fourth one which the Secretary has mentioned, Philadelphia.

The problem that you were referring to as it relates to the highway
program has been of significance only as it relates to the Philadelphia
and Cleveland areas.

Mr. Cramer. I understand in the Philadelphia area that at the
preaward conference prescribed by OFCC, Peter Kiewitt’s repre-
sentative refused to submit a manning table, which OFCC requires as
part of the active program, and he stated the reason for refusal was
he had no way of knowing whether the local union would supply him
with the number of members required, and because of the refusing
to submit the manning table, OFCC did not approve the award.

Secretary Boyp. I am not sure about the reason of this state of
refusal. The fact is the gentleman did refuse and the State highway
director indicated his support of the representatives of Peter Kiewitt.
The Federal Government followed the position of the OFCC and the
Governor of Pennsylvania, within a very short period thereafter, ex-
pressed his support of the preaward requirement.

Mr. Cradyer. Well, your agency, because of the nonconformity to
OFCC requirements, would not concur in the award ?

Secretary Boyp. That is correct. That is correct.

Mr. CradEr. A similar situation developed with regard to the
Cleveland Carl AL Gueppel Construction Co.

Secretary Boyp. Yes, I think that is Gueppel. I am not sure that has
been resolved yet.

Mr. Bridwell. It has not.

Secretary Boxp. No, I think there is negotiation underway on the
Gueppel contract. I do not believe that there has been a parting of the
ways there.

Mr. Craxer. Well, the reason I cite it is to indicate under the present;
procedures there have been at least to our knowledge one contract
turned down, low bidder.

Secretary Boyp. Yes, sir.

Mr. CrayMer. Resulting from nonconformance.

Possibly this approach, suggested by the General Accounting Office,
will help resolve some of these problems.
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Secretary Boyp. We are all in favor of it. I think people ought to
know what they are bidding on.

Mr. Cramer. Mr. Chairman, could I ask following the Secretary’s
testimony that this letter by the Comptroller General of the United
States to myself be made a part of the record ?

Mr. Kuuczynsgr. Without objection, so ordered.

(Letter follows:)

COMPTROLLER GENERAL OF THE UNITED STATES,
Washington, D.C., May 22, 1968.
Hon. Wirrram C. CRAMER,
House of Representatives,

Dear M. CraMer: Further reference is made to your letter of April 8, 1968,
with enclosure, concerning requirements for acceptable “affirmative action pro-
grams” for compliance with the equal employment opportunity eonditions of
Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965. You enclose a copy of a draft
memorandum of a proposed order which was submitted for comment to the heads
of all agencies by the Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance (OFCC),
Department of Labor.

We understand your request for our opinion is confined to the propriety of the
proposed requirements, particularly with reference to the Federal-aid highway
program, in view of the specific provision of 23 U.S.C. 112 that such highway
projects shall be performed by contracts awarded by competitive bidding, and
that you do not question generally the legality of the requirement for the in-
clusion of nondiscrimination eclauses, which was first imposed as to Government
contracts by Executive Order No. 8802, June 25, 1941, and extended to construc-
tion contracts under federally aided or financed programs by Executive Order
No. 1114, June 22, 1963.

You state that the procedures proposed by the Department of Labor contem-
plate that the low bidder and its subcontractors, on contracts covered by the
order, will be required to submit before award acceptable affirmative action
programs to assure equal employment opportunities, but that the invitation for
bids apparently would not include a statement outlining the details of an accept-
able program. Further, that when an unacceptable program is submitted award
will not be made until agreement is reached on an acceptable program. You say
that since bidders will not know what will constitute an acceptable program
they will not be able to make a reasonable estimate of the probable cost of the
program, and thus must run the risk of added costs, including possible addi-
tional subcontracting costs, when the proposed subcontractors do not submit
acceptable action programs. You also point out that a low bidder has the op-
portunity to avoid entering into a contract by failing or refusing to submit an
acceptable action program. Finally, you state that you believe imposition of the
proposed procedures will cause added delay and cost to the Federal-aid highway
program.

The purpose and background for the proposed order is stated therein as follows :

“1. Purpose

«Phis Order is to insure that before contracts are awarded, Federally involved
construction contractors provide affirmative action programs which comply with
the requirements of Executive Order 11246 and with Rules and Regulations
issued pursuant to it.

“2. Background

“For over one and a half years, acceptable affirmative action programs have
been required before contract award-.by a number of Federal contracting and
administering agencies. Detailed pre-award programs are now required by this
Office in three specific geographical areas (St. Louis, San Francisco Bay, and
Cleveland) for all Federal contracting and administering agencies. HExperience
has shown that such procedures are considerally more effective in implementing
the Executive Order than exclusively post-award approaches. The pre-award
requirement for nonconstruction contracts has been in effect since May 3, 1966.”

The following pertinent provisions of the proposed order are set forth under
paragraph 3b:
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“On all projects for Federal or Federally-assisted construction, in which the
total construction cost may be one million dollars or more :

“(1) Each agency shall include, or require the applicant to include, in the
specifications for each formally-advertised construction contract, a notice (the
form of which is approved by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance) to all
prospective bidders stating that, if its bid is one million dollars or more, the
low bidder must submit, in writing, (an) acceptable affirmative action pro-
gram(s) which will have the result of assuring equal employment opportunity
in all trades and particularly the better-paid trades (such as electricians, plum-
bers, pipefitters, sheet metal workers, ironworkers and Operating Engineers)
to be used on the job and in all phases of the work, whether or not the work is
to be subcontracted. i

“(2) Before each contract is awarded, the contracting or administering agency
shall make an evaluation of the proposed affirmative action programs submitted
with the bid. The evaluation shall be conducted by qualified specialists regularly
involved in equal employment opportunity programs, in cooperation with the
OFCC Area Coordinator if one serves the area where the contract will be
performed.”

Under paragraph 3¢ each Federal contracting and administering agency is
required to submit to the OFCC its program to implement the order.

Existing regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to the au-
thority of the Executive Order, which appear in Title 41, Chapter 60, of the
Code of Federal Regulations, require that federally assisted construction con-
tracts shall include a clause under which the contractor and subcontractors
agree to take various aflirmative actions to ensure that applicants are employed,
and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their
race, creed, color, or national origin. 41 CFR 60-1.3(b). A proposed revision
of 41 CFR Ch. 60 issued by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance pursuant
to Executive Order No. 11248, was published in the Federal Register, Vol. 33,
No. 32, on February 13, 1968. Requirements for a similar clause in federally
assisted construction contracts and subcontracts are stated under Section 60—
1.4(b) of the proposed revision, and general requirements of satisfactory af-
firmative action programs are set forth in Subpart C thereof. Other than the
submission of an affirmative action program prior to award, and the Tequire-
ment for approval thereof by OFCC prior to award, we do not find a substan-
tial basis on which to conclude that the proposed order contemplates that the
affirmative actions required of contractors and subcontractors under federally
assisted construction contracts will be materially different from those which have
been required of such parties after award for:several years.

A review of the records of this Office does not show receipt of any cases in-
volving undue restrictions on competition resulting from the requirement for
affirmative actions by contractors to ensure compliance with the Equal Em-
ployment Opportunity Program in federally assisted construction contracts, or
involving contractors having encountered substantially higher costs in satis-
factorily complying with equal opportunity requirements than were anticipated
in the preparation of their bids. It is further noted that, in the background in-
formation quoted above, it is stated that preaward acceptable affirmative action
programs have been required by a number of Federal procurement agencies for
over two years, and our records fail to show any cases presented to this Office
wherein award was not made to the low bidder because of his failure or refusal
to submit an acceptable affirmative action program, or involving elaims for un-
anticipated costs resulting from such a program.’

While, as noted above, problems in the existing preaward acceptable affirma-
tive action program have not been reflected in our contract work. statements
contained in records of your office which you have made available for examina-
tion by representatives of this Office reflect that road contractors may be en-
countering serious problems in connection with the preaward program as it is
being administered in the geographical areas mentioned in the proposed order.
Such statements indicate that the preaward procedures have in some instances
resulted in extended periods of delay in the awarding of contracts: that bidders
are furnished inadequate guidelines for the development of an acceptable af-
firmative action program, and the low responsive (and otherwise responsible)
bidder may therefore be required to enter into negotiation precedures on an
acceptable program in order to obtain the award: that a program which is
acceptable on one contract may not be acceptable on another; that a program
which is acceptable at the time the contract is awarded may be unacceptable
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when the project is half completed; and that a bidder operating under nego-
tiated labor agreements would in some cases be required to violate those agree-
ments in order to comply with the proposed order.

Statutory provisions, such as that contained in 23 U.8.C. 112, for competitive
bidding in the award of contracts have been interpreted to require award after
advertising to the lowest responsible bidder whose bid is responsive to the terms
of the invitation, and it is elementary that bidders must be adequately advised
beforehand of all material requirements which will affect their costs or ability
to perform. Invitation for bids were designed to secure a firm commitment
upon which award could be made for securing the Government’s requirements
described therein, and not as a first step for subsequent negotiation procedures.
In view thereof, there would appear to be a technical defect in an invitation’s
requirement for submission of a program subject to Government approval prior
to contract award which does not include or incorporate definite standards on
which approval or disapproval will be based. We believe that the basic principles
of competitive bidding require that bidders be assured that award will be made
only on the basis of the low responsive bid submitted by a bidder meeting es-
tablished criteria of responsibility, including any additional specific and definite
requirements set forth in the invitation, and that cward will not thereafter be
dependent upon the low bidder's ability to successfully negotiate matters men-
tioned only vaguely before the bidding. We are therefore advising the Secretary
of Labor that if the proposed order is adopted it should be appropriately imple-
mented, before becoming effective, by regulations which should include @ state-
ment of definite minimum requirements to be met by the bidder's program, and
any other standards or criteria by which the acceptability of such program will
be judged.

As to any added delay or cost to the Federal-aid highway program which might
be occasioned by the requirement for acceptable affirmative action programs by
contractors and subcontractors, such factors would not negate the apparent
legality of the requirement. As indicated above, one of the basic requisites in
awarding contracts pursuant to competitive bidding is that award be made to
a responsible bidder, and added delay and cost in determining the responsibility
or acceptability of the low responsive bidder are matters commonly associated
with the awarding of such contradts.

Although, as you state, imposition of the procedures proposed by the Office
of Federal Contract Compliance will no doubt create other legal and practical
problems, we believe that many areas of such contemplated problems may be
subject to resolution or disposition by regulations promulgated by the Office
of Federal Contract Compliance or by implementing regulations of the agencies
as provided for in the proposed order. In any event, we cannot conclude at this
time that the proposed requirement for submission of acceptadble affirmative ac-
tion programs prior to ewarding federally assisted comstruction coniracts is
as @ matter of law clearly incompatidble with competitive bidding requirements
of 23 U.8.C. 112, and therefore illegal, provided the implementing regulations dis-
cussed above are issued before the proposed order establishing such requirement
becomes cffective.

We trust this serves the purpose of your letter of April 8. Please let us know
if wecan be of any further assistance in this matter.

Sincerely yours,
Frank H. WEITZEL,
Assistant Comptroller General of the United States.

Mr. Cramer. Thank you.

Mr. Kruczy~skI. Arethere any questions on my right?

Mr. Cramer. May I also ask, the other letter that was read earlier,
submission of Mr. Hughes on relocation

Secretary Boyp. We have not, we do not have that letter, Mr.
Cramer.

Mr. Kuuozynskl. The gentleman from Texas, Mr. Roberts.

Mr. Roserrs. Mr. Secretary, we have a problem on right-of-way
acquisitions. I am not sure the problem is not statutory and I seek your
advice.

Under our State highway procedures, an appraisal is made by an
employee of the highway department. After this appraisal has been
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made, a highway department land acquisition man contacts the owner
and says in effect; “We are going to take this piece of property for
highway purposes and we arve prepared to make you an offer in line
with our appraisal.” In a specific case, the appraisal was $87,000.

Regardless of the appraisal, the owner usually says that’s not
enough. Eventually, the land acquisition man secures a counter offer.
Again, in this specific case the counter offer was $100,000 against an
original offer of 857,000.

Then the acquisition people say that they have no authority to exceed
the appraisal. So the owner filed a suit and received an out of court
settlement, not the $100,000 which the owner was willing to take, but
for $250,000. This has happened many, many times.

Now, Mr. Secretary, is it the fault of the statute or the fault of the
procedure that there can be no adjustment after the original appraisal ?

In almost every case we have taken a tremendous shellacking once
an owner goes to court.

If we authorize a 10 percent adjustment or some other flexible
figure over the original appraisal which would be less than the court
costs involved, we could save a substantial amount of money. I can
give you four or five specific cases where the award was more than
double the amount for which the landowner was willing to settie. I
hope some flexibility can be granted.

Secretary Boyp. That may raise some question about the quality of
the appraisers that are used, Mr. Roberts. But the answer—do you want
to know specifically whether State law prohibits going above the
appraisal or whether Federal law prohibits going above?

Mr. RoperTs. Yes, whether our basic law Is at fault.

Secretary Boyp. 1 think we will have to submit this for the record.

Mr. Roeerts. I will withdraw it and take it up with Frank later.
Mr. Secretary.

Secretary Boyp. All right. ‘

Mr. Krvezyxssr Any questions on my left?

Mr. CLeEvELAND. Yes.

Mr. Krvoezy~ser. The gentleman from New Hampshire.

Mr. Creveraxy. Iyield tothe gentleman from Iowa.

Mr. Kvvozyxsgr. Mr. Schwengel.

Mr. ScaweneEL. Mr. Secretary, it is good to see you here with the
committee,

Secretary Boxp. Thank you.

Mr. Scawexeer. I had the pleasure of working with you on the
tremendous problem of building roads.

I listened with increasing interest to your testimony and compliment
you on your presentation.

But I have some questions. Some of the questions have been asked
and have been clarified, but on the testimony relating to safety and
research on safety, it quickened my interest because of some experience
we had had in Towa. A year ago you had some rules and regulations
where Federal money was involved and those regulations had not been
relaxed, changed. You put about seven small counties who have Tespon-
sibility for building roads in the country out of business, and it
occurred to me that, frankly, you relax and change your position, but
not without stirring up agony—and there is still apprehension about
what you may do.
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I am very much in favor of research on safety, but I just want to
make the suggestion and ask whether or not a better approach could
not be taken tothe resolution of the problem on safety ?

I suggest to the committee that you set up a system whereby you
involve counties and cities and States who have experience here. Let
them share in the experience. We then would find some better answers
and avoid some of the very obvious mistakes that you have made.

Secretary Boyp. Mr. Turner is familiar with this situation, Mr.
Schwengel, and I would like toask him torespond to you.

Mr. ScawenceL. All right.

Mr. Turner. The situation is just about as you have described it,
Mr. Schwengel. But since that time, we have had considerable discus-
sion with the counties that you have referred to, with the State
highway department, with representatives of the National Association
of Counties. And I believe we have developed & satisfactory relation-
ship very similar to the kind that you have suggested.

1 hope that similar situations in the future will not produce the
amount of noise and storm that that one did in Towa.

Mr. Scuwenesn. Now, do you involve these people with your
research or do they have a voice, an opportunity to make testimony,
and opportunity to make suggestions on what should be researched on
safety and an opportunity to present their experience and so-on?

I am basing my question specifically on the county road system.

Mr. TurnER. No, the situation that you described was a study that
was made by a special committee of the American Association of State
Highway Officials. It did not include any representatives of the county
groups at that time.

The booklet report that was prepared as a result of the study was
passed on by the American Association of State Highway Official as
a guide with respect generally to roadsides, the obstructions and the
shape of the cross-section, and things of that nature that might have
an influence on safety. And it is because AASHO had approved the
results of the study and the Bureau of Public Roads, we also adopted
it and made it applicable to the extent possible on all projects sub-
mitted after the date of the adoption of the study report, and this
was made applicable to secondary projects as well as to the Federal-
aid, primary and urban projects.

Now, I believe that while the county officials did not, either per-
sonally or through their representatives, participate in that original
study, we do have at the present time a working relationship with
them, which is an outgrowth of that experience, and I do not believe
that 1n future we will have a repetition of that same kind of situation.

Mr. ScawenceL. You had a working arrangement. I appreciate that
much. But would it not be better to get the actual representation, let
them have a voice in the research and the explorations, and continuing
interest in it? It seems to me now that they are heard, but they still
have no voice in it. Is that not right ?

Mr. Turner. Well, they do not have a voice in the sense of having
a vote with respect to whether or not you approve an individual pro-
ject to be researched. In that sense they do not have a part in it. But
they do have an input into the discussions on programs, items that
they consider to be a high priority with respect to research on any
subject, safety or anything else.

96-030—68—-17
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We have, as you know, a board of advisers from the county engineer
group, and they meet regularly with us as our employees. They are
consultants to us in the Bureau of Public Roads. And we meet with
them about twice or three times a year to exchange views with them
and get their recommendations to us as representatives of the county
group on county problems. And we use that in connection with our
administrative selection of research projects, design standards, and the
general control of the Federal-aid secondary program.

I believe that is a good working arrangement and a better relation-
ship possibly than trying to get some sort of an ad hoc input to it
from a committee on the outside representing the county people.

Mr. Briowerr. I would like to supplement that, if I may, Mr.
Chairman,

I think it is appropriate to the comment that Congressman Schen-
gel has made, or the question that he has raised, and it also goes to
questions raised by the chairman. .

For over a year, we have attempted for the first time to send out for
comment and suggestion to the State highway departments, council of
State governments, and in some instances county officials and mayors,
proposed regulations or proposed policies, proposed procedures, for
their comments, so that they could have an input into the actual policy
and procedures of the views in carrying out the highway program. So
that, as a matter of fact, is why you received the comments you did
from the States regarding the 4(f) and two-hearing process, because
we asked them for their comments and suggestions on this kind of
material.

Mr. Kuvezyxssr Mr. Schwengel

Mr. ScHWEXNGEL. Yes.

Mr. Krvczy~sgr (continuing). There is a very important rolleall
and I know that the Secretary and his associates will appear before we
wind up the hearing and you will be the No. 1 man.

Mr. ScuwexneeL. Thank you very much.

Mr. Kvvozyxser. Thank you.

The meeting is adjourned until May 28 at 10 o'clock.

(Whereupon, at 4:08 p.m., the subcommittee was recessed, to recon-
vene at 10 a.m., Tuesday, May 28, 1968.)

AMERICAN TRANSIT ASSOCIATION,
Washington, D.C., June 12, 1968.

Hon. GEorGE H. FALLOXN,

Chairman, Committee on Public Works,
Rayburn House Building,

Washington, D.C.

DEAR CoxGrESSMAN FALLoN : Enclosed please find a prepared statement by our
association regarding Section 14 of HL.R. 17134. As we mentioned in our state-
ment, it is our belief that this legislation constitutes an important step towards
relieving traffic congestion in our major cities.

We request that this statement be made a part of the printed record.

Yours very truly, .
ROBERT SroaAXN.

STATEMEXT OF THE AMERICAN TRANSIT ASSOCIATION

This statement is submitted on behalf of the American Transit Association, a
voluntary trade association of privately owned companies and publicly owned
systems engaged in transporting passengers by rapid transit cars, streetears, and
motor buses, in urban, suburban, and interurban service. The members of AT.A.
transport more than 809 of all local transit riders throughout the United States.

J
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In connection with the Subcommittee on Roads’ consideration of the Federal-
Aid Highway Act of 1968 the American Transit Association wishes to take this
opportunity to give its wholehearted support to Section 14 of H.R. 17134, the
section which proposes fringe parking facilities.

Section 14 of the bill would authorize Federal assistance for fringe parking
facilities in urban areas with a population of more than fifty thousand. The land
used for the facilities must be part of, or adjacent to, the right-of-way of a
Federal-Aid highway. The section further requires that the facility be integrated
with existing or planned mass transportation facilities. The section sets Federal
participation at 75%, such funds to be provided from the Highway Trust Fund.
Parking fees may be charged for the use of the facilities, however, the rate
cannot be in excess of that required for maintenance and operation.

Today our urban centers are confronted with many problems but none is more
serious than that of congestion—population congestion, hou~ing congestion, and
traffic congestion.

It is our belief that the fringe parking principle, as presented in H.R. 17134, if
enacted will significantly alleviate the traffic and parking congestion which is
now so commonplace in the central business districts of our nation’s major citiex.
In turn, congestion in population and housing will also be benefited by allowing
better utilization of limited available downtown space.

In its present form, H.R. 17134 would require that all fringe parking facilities
be integrated with existing or planned mass transportation facilities. Such a
requirement recognizes and helps implement the underlying philosophy behind
such an undertaking. Namely, that for such a program as this to be successful
the parking facilities must be located away from the downtown area. To do other-
wise would simply provide supplemental downtown parking and thereby cause
more, not less, congestion on the approaches leading to the downtown area.

It is, therefore, respectfully requested that this Subcommittee give favorable
consideration and approval to the Fringe Parking Section of H.R. 17134, which
we feel is an important step toward relieving a major concern facing our cities.

It would be appreciated if this statement would be made a part of the printed
record.
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TUESDAY, MAY 28, 1968

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON RoADs
oF THE CoMmMITTEE ON PUBLIc WORES,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:10 a.m., in room
2167, Rayburn Building, Hon. John C. Kluezynski (chairman of the
subcommittee) presiding.

Mr. Kuvezynsgi. The subcommittee will come to order. The Sub-
committee on Roads is continuing hearings today on various matters
concerning the Federal aid to highways program legislation, which
was introduced by myself and Mr. Fallon.

As T indicated in my opening statement the other day when testi-
mony was received from the Department of Transportation wit-
nesses, we intend to cover all phases of the highway program and all
matters related to it, directly and indirectly. Tierefore, I might advise
all those present today, as they have already been notified, they may
comment on any matter of interest concerning the bill and its effect
on the highway program.

I am delighted to have as our opening witnesses Mr. John O.
Morton, president of the American Association of State Highway
Officials, from the State of New Hampshire, and Mr. A. E , Johnson,
executive director.

Gentlemen, will you kindly take the witness stand ?

Mr., CreveLaxp. Mr. Chairman, I would just like to add a word of
personal greeting to the first witness, John Morton, who has been before
this committee so many times that he hardly needs any further in-
troduction. I think you will agree with me that he always has some-
thing worthwhile for our consideration.

Mr. Kuuczynsgr, Where is Mr. Morton from ?

Mr. Crevenanp. Mr. Kluezynski, this is a State that is beautiful
without Federal aid.

STATEMENT OF JOHN 0. MORTOXN, PRESIDENT (NEW HAMPSHIRE),
AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HIGHWAY OFFICIALS; AC-
COMPANIED BY A. E. JOHNSON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR; AND
ROSS . STAPP, CHAIRMAN, AASHO COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORT

My. Morrox. I thank you for your kind introduction. Our associa-
tion was requested to make some comment on vehicle sizes and weights
and therefore I would like to make just a brief statement.

Mr. Kruczynsgr. Do you have a prepared statement on this?

Mr. MorToN. Yes.

(251)
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, we know that time
is short and the subject of allowable vehicle sizes and weights is ex-
tremely important, so we will file two of our three statements with
the attached supporting material for the record and respectfully ask
that you review it carefully before taking any final action.

I refer specifically to my formal statement with the attached
AASHO recommended policy, and the statement of Mr. Ward Good-
man, director of highways of Arkansas, and chairman of the committee
on bridges and structures.

We would like to have Mr. Ross G. Stapp, chief administrative
officer of the Wyoming department, and chairman of our committee
on transport, read his statement, for it goes into many of the things
that we found out in the AASHO road test project in Illinois con-
cerning the effects of vehicle weights and frequency of loadings on
highways.

In general, the bill, as passed by the Senate, is generally accept-
able to us as it referes to the maximum allowable single- and tandem-
axle loadings, as well as the use of the bridge gross weight formula,
and its application not only to the extreme front and back axles of
a vehicle or combination vehicles, but also to the intermediate-axle
groupings. ,

From our work at the AASHO road test research project, we found
that the loads specified in the Senate version, which includes all tol-
erances, is at the upper limit that we can acecept.

We do call to your attention that the Senate version does not put
in limits on vehicle lengths and we must take issue with the so-called
grandfather clause in the Senate bill, because it would furnish a
means of further escalation of weights and sizes.

We recommend your consideration of the one included in the
AASHO recommended policy which would, by 1975, make all vehicles
conform with the maximum limits that would be included in federally
established ceilings on vehicle weights'and sizes.

If it is agreeable, Mr. Chairman, I would like to have our Mr. Stapp
read his statement.

Mr. Krvezyysgr. You may proceed.

Mr. Stapp. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the committee, the
AASHO transport committee, which has been the group that over
the years has developed recommended policies for vehicle weights and
sizes using the Nation’s highways, has the following official assign-
ment in our association: v

To investigate and evaluate the various transportation needs that should
be served by the highway system of the United States:; determine the degree
to which such needs are made by the highway system in its current state of
improvement under existing regulatory laws: and recommend such policies,
regulations, laws and practices as may contribute to improving the efficiency
of highway transportation with due regard for the conservation and cost of
the bighway plant.

The membership of this important committee is made up of four
chief administrative officers from each of the four AASHO regions,
and was first established in 1922. At that time, highway engineers
and administrators were learning of the interaction between highway
design, vehicle weights, and road life.
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This was also at a period when the first research along these lines
was initiated, such as test road projects in Virginia, California, and
the Bates road test in Illinois.

During that time, the AASHO committee worked in joint session
with representatives of the National Automobile Chamber of Com-
merce and the American Investment Bankers Association. The latter
had generally handled bonds for highway construction work, which
was the usual way of financing highway construction until the newly
created motor-fuel tax became the major source of highway funds.

In 1925, the AASHO committee extended its activities to include the
classification of highways on the basis of the traffic carried, the regu-
lation of bus and truck traffic, utilization of the highways with refer-
ence to measuring the capacity of the roads, recommendation of
uniform vehicle Iaws, and the principles that should govern the
determination of widths of right-of-way, provisions regulating extra-
heavy-load movements, seasonal load restrictions, and certain general
regulations including vehicle sizes using the highways. Our commit-
tee developed weight and size policy drafts in 1932, 1942, 1946, 1964,
and 1968 that were adopted by AASHO.

Early in the 1950’s, the AASHO transport committee developed
a project statement for an AASHO road test research project. This
very complete and detailed document spelled out the objectives of
the research, the general requirements of the project, and specifica-
tions as to its location.

The project was finally activated by AASHO on February 22, 1955,
and was located near Ottawa, Ill., because the annual rainfall, frost
penetration, and native fine-grained cohesive expansive clay soils
all satisfied the general site specifications for the project as being
fairly average of conditions found throughout the United States.

AASHO asked the Highway Research Board of the National Aca-
demy of Sciences to undertake the administration and conduct of this
very important project. The Highway Research Board then established
a National Advisory Committee made up of approximately 30 out-
standing experts from universities, industry, Federal agencies, and
State highway departments who could contribute to the success of
the project.

Basically, the motivation of AASHO in starting such a road test
was to get the best possible information for reviewing and measuring
the equity of vehicle weight and size regulations, as well as checking
on structural design techniques for payments, evaluate bridge design
procedures, and to get the best information available that could give
the optimum balance between the best use and best life of the highway.

In setting up the project, each of the five traffic loops were half
bituminous pavement and half portland cement concrete pavement.
The various sections of pavements making up the loops were statis-
tically designed as to randomization and overlap of design from one
loon to the other to make comparison and analysis possible and
accurate.

The controlled loading that traveled over these loops for a period
of 2 years were trucks utilizing five sets of so-called companion single-
and tandem-axJe loadings.

The project. was originally designed with four major loadings, but
because of the studies directed by sections 108 and 210 of the Fed-



254

eral-Aid Highway Act of 1956, the Bureau of Public Roads financed
a smaller loop to determine the requirements of the so-called basic
vehicle to help develop the incremental type of analysis pertaining
to contribution to highway costs.

For the four major loops, it was decided to have one set of loadings
at 18,000-pound single and 32,000-pound tandem, respectively, as per
the AASHO 1946 recommendation. Another set of loadings was
22,400 pounds single and 40,000 pounds tandem as the maximum range
that was actually allowed in any State.

We then established a set of loadings below and one above these in
order to give four points on any curve for a more exact analysis.

The loadings on this small fifth loop that was added by the Bureau
of Public Roads were 2,000 pounds and 6,000 pounds, respectively.

We will not attempt to go into all of the detail that came from this
$27 million research project, but the general conclusions and con-
sensus developed by the highway departments are outlined in the
AASHO statements being presented here today.

The section 210 requirement of the Federal-Aid Highway Act of
1956 directed the Secretary of Commerce, in cooperation with other
Federal offices and agencies, and the State highway departments, to
make a comprehensive study of : (1) the effects in design, construction,
and maintenance of Federal-aid highways from the use of vehicles of
different dimensions, weights, and other specifications, and the fre-
quency of the occurrences of such vehicles in the traffic stream; (2)
the proportionate share of design, construction, and maintenance
costs of Federal-aid highways attributable to each class of user on
such highways; and (3) any direct or indirect benefits occurring to
any class, in addition to the benefits from the actual use of highways,
which are attributable to highway expenditures.

In undertaking the study, four different approaches were used.
These were: (1) the incremental method, (2) the differential-benefit
method, (3) the cost-function method, and (4) the gross-ton-mile
method. There s still a fifth approach that could have been used
as a modifying factor, especially to the incremental method. We refer
to the highway geometric space requirement of the various size
vehicles in the traffic stream under varying conditions of traffic density,
geometric layouts, and terrain as related to grades and sight distances.

In other words, the equivalent space that a large vehicle actually re-
quires, as related to an equal number of ‘automobiles, because of their
weight-power ratios, and the grades and alinement of the highway.

On a leve! piece of highway, where the truck is able to travel at
highway speeds, it actually requires the equivalent space of two auto-
mobiles, but when sustained upgrades are involved, and when passing
is not possible, the truck may act as an impediment to the traffic and
cause the practical capacity of the highway to be reached because
of congestion queuing up behind the slow vehicles. In rolling or
mountainous terrain, one truck may actually require an equivalent
space of 18 to 20 automobiles under such an evaluation.

The incremental method is based on the concept that the cost of
providing a highway increase with the weights of the vehicles to be
accommodated, and with the frequency with which they appear in the
traffic stream.
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The cost of the highway adequate for the basic vehicle is allotted to
all of the vehicles on a uniform basis, and the successive additional
structural costs are assigned successively to those vehicle groups
that require the heavier construction increments, o

No cost allocation method actually gives a final and indisputable
answer for the problem has many ramifications, but the ineremental
method 1s so thoroughly grounded in results of highway engineering
research and logic, that its findings command respect and confidence.

Basically, the incremental method shows that the larger trucks, even
at their present sizes and weights, and not those that would be allowed
under S. 2658, do not pay their total share of the highway cost.

Woe also observe that the trucks count their Federal excise taxes as
part of their contribution to highway financing, and this is not the
case for the automobile component of highway traffic, although cars
too pay such excise taxes. ,

We do not raise this as a criticism, but point it out as a fact.

In all four methods that were probed by the Bureau of Public
Roads in the 210 study, two basic facts appeared: (1) that the heavier
trucks and truck combinations should be paying more in relation
to the payments made by the lighter trucks, and (2) that vehicles using
diesel fuel generally should be paying more than like vehicles using

asoline.
£ Tt was noted that the 210 study recommended that the findings of
the differential-benefit study should be used to supplement those of
the incremental study, but they should not replace the incremental
findings nor is there any reason for averaging the cost allocation in-
dications given by the two methods.

Permissible axle-load and gross-load limitations must, of economic
necessity, be retated to the capabilities of the pavements and the
bridge structures to carry such loads and survive for a reasonable life
expectancy.

Any contemplated revisions in such load limitations also must be
viewed from the effects that they will have, not only on new construc-
tion, but on existing facilities which must remain in service.

Some significant results were obtained from the AASHO road test
project regarding the reduction in pavement life that can occur from
an increase in axle loadings.

The work at the project developed a method whereby various loads
can be brought to a common denominator, such as equating any axle
load with relation to the “equivalent number of 18,000-pound, single-
axle load applications.” The results of such studies indicated that the
increase from the 18,000-pound to the 20,000-pound load can result in
an average loss of the remaining life of between 25 to 40 percent. To
increase it to 22,000 pounds can result in the loss of pavement life of
close to 60 percent. To increase it to a 24,000-pound, single-axle Joad-
ing can result in the loss of remaining life of about 70 percent.

In reviewing the effect of increased tandem-axle loadings, they
should be equated as against their “companion single-axle loadings,”
that was also developed from the road test project. ,

The most part of our main highway system was designed for a maxi-
mum 18,000-pound, single- and a 32,000-pound, tandem-axle loading.
In fact, this was the recommendation of our 1946 policy, and it is still
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the statutory limit in over 80 States at the present time. We might even”
gtatf that it is also the general basis for the design of the Interstate
ystem.

The AASHO road test also showed the frequency of allowable axle-
loads is also a matter that must be taken into consideration.

Work at the road test developed a method of converting any axle
loading into an “equivalent number of 18,000-pound, single axleload
applications” as a standard reference. |

It was demonstrated that the 20,000-pound, single-axle load is
equivalent to 1.60 applications of the 18,000-pound axle; the 22,000-
pound, single axleload is equivalent to 2.37 applications of the 18,000-
pound axle; and that the 24,000-pound single axle is equivalent to 8.45
applications of the 18,000-pound single axle.

The results of the increasing frequency of loadings can be seen
from the following table developed for rigid pavements which, in turn,
is measured by the number of applications required to bring about
fatigue failure in pavements of certain thicknesses. Flexible pave-
ments perform in a somewhat similar pattern, and it is readily apparent
that increasing loads seriously shorten the remaining life of the
pavements,

Our table on required pavement thickness in inches shows:

NUMBER OF SINGLE AXLE LOAD APPLICATIONS TO BRING PAVEMENT TO UNSATISFACTORY CONDITION

[fn inches}
Applied axle load (kips) 100,090 1,000,000 16,069,600
3.8 5.8 8.4
4.3 6.2 9.0
4.6 6.6 9.6
4.8 7.1 10.2

The foregoing common denominator techniques used in conjunction
with traffic forecasts are used in determining remaining life of high-
ways and in determining when funds will be needed for heavy mainte-
nance or strengthening operations or for replacement.

Recognizing the need to optimize the use of the extensive existing
highway plant, AASHO, through the transport committee, develoned
a draft policy of maximum weights and dimensions in 1964.

At the time of the balloting by AASHO, in 1964, the transport com-
mittee offered the State highway departments the option of voting on
either the 32,000- or 34,000-pound tandem axle, on the basis that the
optimum balance of the best use of the highway lay somewhere in that
range, and with the supposition that the Interstate System might be
completed before too long, which would make the highway funds then
available to rebuild and modernize the some 200,000 miles of mainline
primary highways in this country within a reasonable time.

At the present time, however, it appears that the completion of the
Interstate, and eventually being able to turn our efforts to beefing up
the primary system, seems to be moving further and further into the
future, and that much of our highway system may have to accom-
modate increasing traffic densities and weights longer than we had
hoped. ‘
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At the last annual meeting of the association in Salt Lake City, it
was the recommendation of the transport committee that the State
highway departments have another opportunity of voting on a 34,000-
pound, tandem axleload limitation.

This was the top figure that came out of our studies at the test road,
that would give more liberalized use of the highways in transporting
goods, but still get an acceptable remaining life of the highway
investment.

Tn this most recent balloting, more than half of the States approved
of the 34,000-pound figure, but it lacked a few votes getling the
necessary two-thirds approval to become an AASHO policy; there-
fore, our official position remains at the 32,000-pound, tandem-axle
figure.

hVery often you hear the statement that the structural capacity of a
highway can be beefed up relatively easy by adding some resurfacing
to an existing pavement. .

This is not. as simple as it might sound, for these additional layers of
resurfacing do not develop nearly the additional pavement strength
that they would have if they had been incorporated as a monolithic
part of the original pavement design and construction. )

Also, the effective and serviceable life of such resurfacing or over-
lays is hard to predict, but generally the history of their effectiveness1s
Jimited to about 10 years.

Using the information that we had learned from the test road. the
AASHO transport committee made a survey in 1962, in which 28
States participated, for evaluating the remaining life of representative
existing highways, and the effects of increasing load increments on
them. The survey resulted in a cost estimate of resurfacing the major
below-strength highways at a billion dollars, if tandem axleloads
were increased to 35.000 pounds. It was assumed that such an expendi-
ture would be spread over a 10-year period.

In other words, such a program would require at least two-tenths
of our present ABC authorizations. To increase the strength or beef up
the pavements by resurfacing to accommodate 22,000-pound, single-
and 38,000-pound, tandem axleloads would run the cost to about 2 bil-
lion, and could be expected to be a recurring cost every 10 years until
the road could be rebuilt.

In developing the bridge formula at the AASHO road test project,
it was assumed that because of the rather conservative allowable
stresses assiened to concrete and steel at the time that our H-15 design
bridges were built, which is the predominant bridge on the State high-
way systems, we could probably overstress these structures up to about
30 percent and still be safe, but with a sacrifice in remaining life of
the structure.

After 1942, bridees on major highways were designed for an H-20
loading and a modification of this, the HS-20 loading, has been used
in designing the bridges for the Interstate System. but the allowable
desion stresses are nearer the vield strengths and do not have the
built-in safety factor of the older H-15 structures. These loadings
assume a maximum axle loading of 82,000 pounds, so anything in
excess of this would, in effect, be overstressing these bridges. The H-15
bridge was designed for a maximum axle loading of 24,000 pounds.
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The bridge formula is not only important in developing a maximum
allowable gross weight for the vehicle, but also must be used to control
intermediate axle groupings under the vehicle because of the effect of
such group loadings on bridge floor design, and especially the effects
on negative moments on the large number of continuous bridges that
are in use. C

In a study undertaken by the AASHO Bridges and Structures
Committee in 1964, the following results were noted:

PERCENTAGE OF AREA OF BRIDGE DECKS DESIGNED FOR LOADINGS
{in percent]

System H-15 orless H-16 to H-20 HS-20 or
greater

4.4 8.9
4.0 2.7

roo

We want to point out that there is no easy or economical way to
upgrade an existing bridge structure for either increased axle or
gross loads.

Generally, such bridges of low structural capacity must be replaced
if the gross or axle weight allowances are substantially increased. Of
course, when a section of highway is rebuilt to modern standards, sub-
standard bridges that are either structurally or functionally obsolete
are replaced as part of the project.

The bridge investment in our highway system is indeed a large figure
running about 25 to 30 percent of the fotal highway investment.

There are two factors that appear in our new policy for the first time.
One has to do with maximum allowable tire inflation pressures. This
is ineluded because of some tire developments that could cause exten-
sive damage to certain types of pavements. The specified maximum
tire inflation pressure that appears in the AASHO recommended
policy does not affect any tires currently in operation.

The other factor has to do with weight-horsepower ratio of vehicles
to discourage the use of grossly underpowered vehicles that would
impede traffic. This part of our recommended policy was developed
from discussions with truck manufacturers and truck operators.

We wish to make one point very clear. Specified maximum axle and
gross weight limitations must be all inclusive for we have found too
many enforcement problems in attempting to allow tolerances in
addition to so-called maximum weights.

In reviewing S. 2658, as passed by the Senate, it is our opinion that
the 34,000-pound, tandem-axle weight is the maximum that we can
accept. We must, however, disagree with the so-called grandfather
clause provision which would establish January 1, 1968, in place of the
July 1, 1956, date originally specified in section 127 of United States
Code 23. This action, instead of encouraging uniformity in vehicle
sizes and weights, would add encouragement to further escalation.

We recommend the provision contained in our recommended policy
of 1968, which would require all vehicles in operation to conform with
the so-called maximum weights and sizes by July 1, 1975.
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We also note that S..2658, in its present form, is silent on the matter
of overall length of -vehicles. Inasmuch as the State highway depart-
ments do not agree with separate limitations on the interstate high-
ways and the rest of the State highway systems, a maximum overall
length of a combination vehicle was set at 65 feet by our balloting
procedure, : : ' : a

In some of the Western States, vehicles in excess of this are currently
being operated, especially on interstate and similar highways.

We certainly wantthe maximum use made of our modern highways
for hauling goods and people, but the Interstate System should not be
turned into freight-hauling arteries to the point that passenger traffic
is inconvenienced or crowded.

Multibottom truck operation has been tried in various parts of the
conntry and no serious problems have been encountered on divided
highways where the normal traffic is not heavy.

It may be that in the judgment of your committee you may wish
to specify an overall length of combination vehicle that might travel
interstate and similar highways, but the AASHO recommendation,
we believe, is logical for the balance of the State highway systems.

We still voice some concern about being able to have two separate
sets of stands: one for the Interstate, and one for the balance of th
system., : :

Regulations pertaining to vehicle dimensions usually specify that
tire bulge and approved safety devices can extend beyond the maxi-
mum specified width of the vehicle.

It is understood that in some of the recent experimentation with
multibottom operation that rear-view mirrors extend outside the
vehicle for a considerable distance, which could cause problems when
two such vehicles were using adjacent lanes. This matter deserves con-
sideration and approved safety devices, such as rear-view mirrors
should probably be limited to current practice.

In closing, we ask that you study the AASHO recommended policy
thoroughly before taking any final action in your committee.

We are certain that the trucking industry has developed facts and
figures on the operating costs, based on payload ton-mile unit, as the
size and gross weights of the vehicles are increased.

We would like, however, to refer you to Highway Research Board
Bulletin No. 301 entitled, “Line-Haul Trucking Costs in Relation to
Gross Vehicle Weight,” dated 1961.

This study indicates that beyond a certain point increases in the
maximum gross weights do not yield corresponding savings in operat-
ing costs on a payload basis. '

The bulletin indicates that the curves flatten out and show a de-
creasing’ or almost no additional benefit after the. maximum gross
weights are reached that are recommended in the current AASHO
policy. ,

In this statement we have attempted to give you some of the back-
ground of weight and size limitations; some of the interactions between
loads and facility life, the economies of highway transportation, and
the need for having weight and size regulations. )

Thank you.

Mr. Krvczywsgr, Thank you for your splendid statement.
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Do the members have any questions or any comments?

Mr. Craner. I think you have answered some of the questions that
T had in mind with your statement. However, I had a couple of matters
T would like to get your expert advice on;

The Senate bill, as passed, as you indicated, increased the weights of
vehicles permitted to operate from 18,000 to 22,000 pounds maximum
and from 32,000 to 34,000 pounds for tandem axle. It would change the
overall gross weight limit from 73,200 pounds to a weight determined
by formula based on the number of axles. As the bill is written, there
is no limit on overall gross weight that would be permitted to operate
on the Interstate System.

Do you think this presents a danger to the present structures?

Mr. Stapp. Yes, sir; I think there should be an overall weight and
an overall length. I would like to have Mr. Johnson elaborate a little
more on that. ;

Mr. Jomxsox. Gentlemen, at the time we developed the recom-
mended policy by AASHO, 1t was the feeling of the highway depart-
ments that we should not have separate weight and size limitations
between the Interstate and the rest of the highway system. They an-
ticipated serious enforcement problems in so doing.

But you will remember that the original section 27 was silent on
length, also. As a result of the balloting, the State highway depart-
ments suggested a maximum of 65 feet. We find quite a difference in
the eastern part of the country and the western part of the country
in thisregard. :

In the eastern part you have more serpentine alinement on your
highways. You have narrower roads, you have more of the roads
going through cities. ‘

] So ]t-here is a difference of attitude as to what should be the maximum
ength.

We do recommend that on the State highway systems it be 65 feet.

In Mr. Stapp’s State of Wyoming, and in some of the other States,
the triple bottom is currently in operation on an experimental basis.
That is 105 feet long. I think Mr. Stapp can tell you more about how it
is working out there than anyone else.

Mr. Stapp. Mr. Cramer, we have run tests on that this last winter,
and we will run more this summer on the three bottoms on the four
lane, 105 feet in length. I will have to admit that they track better than
some of the semis that are on our highways. I have recommended to
our commission that they be allowed on the four-lane divided, but not
on many of our narrow three-lane roads, because of the problem of
passing gets into a traffic hazard with 105 feet on some of the narrow
two-lane roads.

Mr. CraMEr. Do you think that setting a length limit, in effect,
would result in a maximum limit providing the pressures that would
then be exerted possibly against the State legislatures to go to that
maximum ?

Mr. Morron. Mr. Cramer, if T may make this comment, I think the
setting of length would have this tendency to regulate the weight and
control it along the lines that our association believes it should be
controlled.

Mr. Cramer. Whatever maximum limits we set, it appears that it
is an open invitation to go to that maximum on the part of the legis-
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latures. I think we have to consider that in determining whether a
maximum should be set in all respects; that is, the length, the overall
weight, and so forth.

Secondly, relating to the length, there is considerable mileage of
two-lane highways in the Interstate System. With the additional time
and distance required for passing by a 98-foot-long vehicle, do you
think that would cause any undue hazard?

Mr. Stape. Yes,sir; I do.

Mr. Morron. Yes.

Mr. Cramer. Of course, we have provided, as I recall it, that those
two-lane highways must become four lane; so we are looking in the
distant future, and it might not be a serious problem on the interstates.

Mr. Stape. That is right.

Mr. Cramzr. On this grandfather clause problem that you brought
up in your testimony, do you know how many States have increased
the limits on motor vehicle weights since 19562

Mr. Morron. I am advised that in the statement T am making we
have incorporated information to the effect as to what the States are
curflently using. We can develop that information and file it directly
with you.

Mr. Cramer. Can you provide us with that information?

Mr. Morron. Yes, we can.

Mr. Cramrer. The grandfather clause in the Senate bill would limit
the width of vehicles permitted to operate on public highways. You
have a copy before you.

On line 19 it says, “Using the public highway of such State under
the laws and regulations established.”

This grandfather clause is contained in the bill. Should it not refer
to weights and widths permitted by State law on the interstate rather
than on noninterstate highways? This applies to all highways. If you
will look on page 2, you will find it specifically refers fo public high-
ways rather than interstate, meaning all public highways.

Mr. Morron. Our recommendations really are to the effect that they
apply to all of the highways that are on the State highway system,
whether they are interstate or noninterstate.

Mr. Cramer. We are talking here about the grandfather clause,
where the States have increased these weights and widths on other
than the Interstate System, perhaps sometimes in excess of what is
permitted on the interstate.

Mr. MorroN. That is so.

Mr. Cramer. Would you give some further consideration to that
%uestion, relating to whether that should be limited to the Interstate

ystem ?

I have just one other question in view of our other witnesses and
our time.

If the State violates the weight and size limitations of State and
Federal law, whether it is inadvertent or otherwise, it can be penal-
ized 100 percent of Federal-aid highway funds. Although the weight
and dimension limitations apply only to the Interstate System, they
can be penalized on funds for all systems. Do you think any adjust-
ment to the penalty provision is justified ?

Mr. MorToN. Yes. Under the present regulation, that is the case.
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Mr. Cramer. In other words, do you think they should have penal-
ties on all systems? Do you think that is a sound policy position?

In other words, the State could lose 100 percent of their money,
ABC as: well as interstate, if they do not conform to. interstate
standards,

Mr. Mortown. I think my personal view is that our interstate is
built to the highest standards of any highway system that we have.
These encroachments that have gone toward increasing the weight on
other parts of our State highway system are not completely des1rable,
by any means.

Mr. Cramer. Because these are such technical questions, but we will
have to deal with them, I suggest, Mr, Chairman, that I ask the asso-
ciation to answer this series of questions for our purpoces ‘when we
get into further consideration of it. .

Mr. Morron. We will be most pleased to do so.

Mr. Craymer. Thank you.

Mr. Kroczynski. Mr, Harsha?

Mr. Harsma. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Would it not be bettel to let the States continue to handle the
problem of weight and size limitations rather than the Federal Gov-
ernment ?

Mr. Stape. We like to have the top ceiling in the States control that,
because, for example, it is the States in the East who do not like as
long a load as we do in the West; and I think it would be well to have
an upper limit and let the States follow through with their own
regulations.

Mr. Harsga. But that at least glves an incentive to the States to
go to the maximum limit.

Mr. Srape. If you do not have an upper limit, it gets to the place
where one State will go higher and then the pressure is put on to get
the other States to that top limit, until you have a ceiling on the
upper limit.

Mr. Harsma. Do you propose to have the same ceiling on interstate
and primary roads?

Mr. Stapp. It is my personal opinion that we should have less on
a two-lane highway. Of cour se, we still must have one svstem. It is
hard to control. According to the balloting of the AASHO repre-
sentatives, whom I am representing today, thev say 6:) feet qhould be
the maximum, so that is what we have to use. v

Mr. Harsaa. For both highways?

Mr. Starp. Yes, that is the maximum.

Mr. Harsua. Then if you limit the length to 65 feet for two lane,
(}iou do not employ the full maximum use > of the four-lane highway,

o you!?

1\%1‘ Starp. That could be, but I can only represent the majority of
AASHO, which is a two-thirds majority, and they voted for the 65
maximum length.

Mr. Harsaa. How many voted for the 65 maximum? i

Mr. Srarp. It was in excess of two-thirds. It had to be at least a
minimum of 86. I do not know exactly, but there were at least that
number.

Mr. Harsma, Thirty-six of the 50¢

Mr, Stapp. Yes, sir.
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Mr. Harsza. Back on page 5 of your testimony you said ‘that ballot-
ing on the 84,000-pound-weight figure lacked a few votes of getting
the necessary two-thirds. Therefore, your position was on the 32,000-
pound axle figure. "~ .. - - : o »

.How many voted on that particular issue? :

Mr. Srapp. It lacked two of getting the 36 votes. It was either 33
or 34 votes in favor of the 84,000 pounds. It was very close.

Mr. Harsma. Did all 50 States vote? iy .

Mr. Jorxson. All 52 member departments voted. .

Mr. Starp. The District of Columbia and Puerto Rico are also in-
cluded in AASHO. ... c .

Mr. CravusEn. On that very point, I do not know that I fully under-
stand exactly what you are trying to get at. You are trying to suggest
that your own position is to recognize a 34,000-pound figure as the
veal desire of AASHO, or what is your position ?

Mr. Stapp. That is the maximum, Mr. Claussen, that we could ap-
prove, due to the test road results; but we have to stand on the 32,000
because the 34,000 did not receive a two-thirds majority.

The maximum we could agree to under any circumstances would be
the 34,000. :

Mr. Crausoy. Additionally, you cannot recognize anything over 32,
but you have a personal desire to recognize 34; is that right ¢

Mr. Starpe. That is right.

Mr. Crausen. Is that not what is in the Senate version ?

Mzr. Starp. That is right.

Mr. Harsua. Mr. Stapp, you say there had to be 36 members voting
for the 65-foot length? :

Mr. Stape. Yes. , :

Mr. Harsma. Can you tell me whether it was 86 or 37 or what?

Mr. Stapr. We do not have the results here, but they can be obtained
and sent to you, if you would like.

Mr. Harsma. Was that also a close vote?

Mr. Starr. I do not believe so; but it can be sent to you, if you would
like, Mr. Harsha. :

Mr. Harsma. That is all T have, Mr. Chairman.

My, Kroozynsgt. Mr. Denny ¢

Mr. Cravsex. Mr. Chairman, I had one more question.

On page 2 you indicated that the site specifications for the project
lslad been fairly average of conditions found throughout the United

tates.

Out in California, particularly in the northern part of California,
we have rather extraordinary rain conditions. I would like to have
you give me an indication of something other than just the clay soils,
and also the amount of frost penetration that you consider to be
average. : . . C

Mr. Morrow. I believe we will have to take the position that in run-
ning a test we try to get some area where conditions basically represent
the average conditions in the country. Frost action and excessive mois-
ture could be influential in deteriorating the stability of the subsoil to
support these heavy loads. :

Then you would have to treat that particular locality by adding to

. your foundation under your pavement or with the thickness of your
" pavement. _ R . :

96-030—68——18
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My particular State is subject to extremely heavy frost action. The
results of the test road, where they form a good basis for evaluating
pavement thickness, basic thickness and so forth, again for your own
particular special conditions, we have to take this information and
then interpret it in the form of how much frost penetration do we
have, what is the type of soil, which actually requires us to go much
heavier in foundations than would come out from the test road, a rec-
ommendation from the test road.

Am I making myself reasonably clear?

Mr. Crausen. Partially, except for the fact that you did not answer
the question about the amount of precipitation.

Mr. Jorxsox. Mr. Clausen, at the time we started the test road, we
took an average of frost penetration in the ground, rainfall for the
United States, and we also specified that the site would have to be a
clay soil, a cohesive, expansive clay soil, because those are the soils that
give you some of your greatest design problems in highways.

We went to the various States with this specification and asked them
to submit a site for our consideration to carry on this big road test

roject.

P Illinois submitted a site in the vicinity of Ottawa, in the south, and it
did meet those specifications; so it was average frost penetration and
average rainfall.

I believe it was 20 inches of frost penetration and 40 inches of rain-
fall; but I am not certain as to those exact figures.

Mr. Cravsex. I will not prolong the question on this, but I think we
ere treading on rather thin ice in trying to arrive at average condi-
tions in one selected site for any form of testing. It seems to me that
the States themselves are going to have to be given maximum consider-
ation in their own recommendations on this.

Mr. Jouxson. Part of the test road project itself was satellite tests,
to relate the test road in Illinois to their own particular conditions.

Mr. McEweN. In your statement you referred to the problem of the
mirrors that sometimes extend way out. Does AASHO take a posttion
regarding the maximum width of the vehicle ?

Mzr. MorToN. Yes.

Mr. Stapp. Yes. :

Mr. McEwex~. Was that in your statement ?

Mr. Jorwnsox. No,sir; it is1n the policy.

Mr. McEwexn. That is in the testimony that was included in the
record ?

Mr. Morron. Yes,

Mr. McEwex. I will defer further questions for the time being.

Mr. Dexxey. Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kruczynski. The gentleman from Nebraska.

Mr. Dex~EY. Mr. Stapp, in your testimony you say :

Basically, the incremental method shows that the larger trucks, even at their
present sizes and weights, and not those that'would be allowed under $. 2638, do
not pay their total share of the highway cost.

You list four other methods up above. Did you try any other tests
with reference to this statement as to the larger trucks paying their
total share of the highway cost?

Mr, Starp. This was the 210 study made with the Bureau of Public
Roads, with material they requested and information they requested
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from the State highway departments. This was the result, and it
applied equally to all other categories.

Mr. Denxey. But that is the only test you did make; is that correct ?

Mr. Stapr. That is correct.

Mr. DexNEY. Then you said:

In all four methods that-were probed by the Bureau of Public Roads in the 210
Study, two basic facts appeared: (1) that the heavier trucks and truck com-
binations should be paying more in relation to the payments made by the lighter
trucks, and (2) that vehicles using diesel fuel generally should be paying more
than like vehicles using gasoline.

Is that based on the fact that they must use more gallons of gasoline ?

Mr. Stapp. That is right.

Mr. Denney. You recommend they should be paying more. How
would you recommend to this committee we should be determining how
much more they would pay, through license fees or what ?

Mr. Starp. We did not make a recommendation on this. That is for
the wisdom of you people.

Mr. Denney. You are not recommending any method of collecting
more. All you are saying is that they should be paying more; is that
right?

Mr. Starr. Yes, sir.

Mr. DennEey. Could that be covered under the weight limitations
that you have recommended in your statement ?

In other words, what I am trying to get at, what weight limitations
did you use, and what overall length Iimitations, in arriving at the
conclusion that under the incremental method they were not paying
their total share of the cost ?

Mr. Stapp. Mr. Johnson is closer to this 210 study.

My, Jounson. This 210 study actually made a study of the trucks
actually in use on the roads at that time. '

Mr. Denxey. There are some trucks that have a 98-foot length; is
that not correct ? C

Mr. Jounson. Yes, but this did not have any particular relation to
that length. There is a certain number of over-the-road trucks, the
heavy trucks, some propelled by gasoline and some propelled by diesel
fuel. This reference has to do with those that pay diesel fuel at the
same tax rate that they pay for a gallon of gasoline. They actually get
a little better mileage out of the diesel fuel. So, therefore, they are not
paying, really, as much into the trust fund as a like truck, a similar
weight truck, that uses gasoline.

r. Denney. You are not recommending to this committee that we
put in the regulations a law having to do with gasoline and diesel fuel,
are you?

l\iyr. Jornson. No, and I would imagine if there was anything to be
considered on the matter, it would be in another jurisdiction.

Mr. Denngv. I am trying to find out why such a statement was
made.

Mr. Jounson. We were asked to outline what we found out on the
test road before this committee.

Mur. DennEY. I see.

That is all, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kruczynski. Are there any other questions?

If not, thank you, Mr. Stapp.
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Mr. Morrox. Mr. Chairman, if you are agreeable, I will proceed to-
read my statement made in connection with H.R. 17134. L

Mr. Kroezyxser Mr. Morton; do you want to read the full state-
ment or do you want to cover the highlights? o

Mr. Morrox. I feel it would be more appropriate if I read the full
statement, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Krvozy~sir You may proceed.

Mr. Morron. Mr:. Chairman and members of the committee, I am
John O. Morton, commissioner of highways for the State of New
Hampshire, and president of the American Association of State High-
way officials. ’

The AASHO testimony today is based on the results of a survey
made of our member depariments after they had reviewed FL.R. 17134.
We will also comment on some related subjects.

A copy of the above-mentioned bill was sent to the States for their
review on April 25 and to date we have received replies from 47 of the
State highway departments. The following comments refer to the sec-
tionsof H.R. 17134.

Section 2: Interstate authorizations—Seventeen of the States felt
that this section was acceptable as written.

Eighteen wonder why the Interstate authorizations were set at $4
billion a year after the 1970 fiscal year, and whether or not it should
increase in line with expected trust fund income, so as to complete the
Interstate program asearly as possible. ‘

Some of the States were of the opinion that $4 billicn might he too
high, and that more of the money should probably be channeled into
mounting urban problems and updating our primary system which
are becoming extremely pressing needs. The interstate authorizations
for 1970 and 1971 are generally satisfactory.

Section 8: Approval of the 1968 Interstate cost estimate for appor-
tioning funds for the 1970 and 1971 fiscal years—Afirmative action
on this matter is required by your committee in order that the 1970
fiscal year interstate funds can be apportioned to the States during the
coming summer months and not delay the program. 3

Section }: Ewxtension of téme for the completion of the Interstate
program.—The specified date of June 30, 1974, is unrealistic and inac-
curate when one considers the latest interstate cost estimate for com-
pleting the Interstate System, the amount of money that will be avail-
able in the trust fund, and the continuing factors that increase the
cost of building highways. :

Based on the trust fund revenues and the 1965 interstate cost esti-
mate, and with $1 billion of the trust fund being assigned annually to
an ABC program, with the balance going to the Interstate System as
now designated would probably be late in the 1975 calendar year.

Considering the additional cost introduced by the 1968 cost estimate,
and making the same assumptions, the completion date will probably
be somewhere around 1978 or later.

Section §: ABC and other authorizations—Kighty percent of the
member departments feel that the section pertaining to the ABC pro-
gram is generally satisfactory, except some would not be disappointed
1f more moneys would be made available for the ABC categories. How-
ever, they realize this would extend the actual completion date of the
Interstate System further into the future.
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We recommend that if Congress gives consideration to the authori-
zations proposed in section 5(2) on the subject of traffic operation
projects in urban areas, that your action be for a biennial period only
i Jme with ABC program practice. - : L

Many of the States feel that the increase in funding included in this
subsection should not be limited to a TOPICS program alone, but
should also be available for-improvements on the ABC systems.

In fact some of the States are of the opinion that the cities involved
in the proposed TOPICS activity would not be able to furnish match-
ing money at the present time and, of course, the States are limited
to expending their own funds for matching purposes and for main-
taining and operating these roads that are included in their official
State highway systems.

The proposed program, as outlined in H.R. 17184, would include
many streets off the State highway systems. ‘

In regard to the proposal for providing authorizations for the traf-
fic operation program in urban areas, we would strongly suggest your
committee give consideration to make any additicnal funds available
for establishing and helping finance necessary improvements on a new
Federal-aid category which our After 75 Committee on a continuing
Federal-aid highway program calls a Federal-aid metropolitan arte-
rial street system.

Such a system would be developed in the 233 metropclitan areas
through the 3C planning process in accordance with section 134, title
23, United States Code: Highways, and would give to the cities the
same kind of participation in the Federal-aid highway program that
is now available to the counties in the secondary program.

AASHO, the National League of Cities, and the National Associa-
tion of Counties are all in accord that such a system is essential and
should be provided for as soon as possible in light of the expanding
transportation needs.

AASHO has agreed with the National League of Cities that a sep-
arate Federal trust fund, separate and apart from the highway trust
fund, would be a desirable thing to help provide money to the cities
for transportation purposes for which the highway trust fund is not
allowable.

The National League of Cities has been talking in the neighborhood
of a billion and a half dollars annually. We make no recommendations
as to how the money would be raised, but we agree that something of
this nature is desirable to cope with the ever-expanding transportation
needs of the cities and could be used for furnishing parking facilities,
subsidizing mass transit operations, and other things that are outside
the scope, purpose, and intent of the highway trust fund, but are
needed. We do not want such a new trust fund to be a part or special
account in the present highway trust fund or to be financed from
any of the present revenues assigned to the highway trust fund.

Since our after 75 committee will be talking to your committee on
June 3 on the subject of our after 75 recommendations, we will go
into more detail on this and other items mentioned later in this state-
ment at that time, which we understand will be before the time that
the record is closed on these current hearings.
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The State highway departments are generally in accord with the
recommended authorizations for roads and trails in the public land
highways coming from the highway trust fund.

The most conservative estimate of highway needs is so much greater
than available highway funds in sight that we must oppose anything
that might further dilute the highway trust fund.

Section 6: Authorization of the highiway safety programs—About
half of the States that responded felt that the proposal was generally
acceptable as written; however, seven were of the opinion that too
much was recommended for the second year. It is interesting to note
that 18 States made no comment at all on section 6.

It is unusual for the State highway departments to offer no com-
ment on legislative proposals, and in our responses relative to this bill
under consideration we had several such reactions.

Section 7: Authorization for highway safety research and develop-
ment programs.—We received the same reaction from the State high-
way departments on this section that we received on section 6. Some
of this attitude may be the result of a lack of adequate dialog at the
State level between those handling the State safety programs and
the State highway departments.

Section 8: Authorization for highway beauty—Twenty-six States
felt that the language as written was generally acceptable; however,
there was considerable feeling that the penalty clause in the present
beautification langnage should be eliminated.

Some suggested a slowdown of the program until it is determined
the general direction in which the highway beautification program is
to take and until it is better defined and stabilized.

Nine States made no comment on this section.

The State highway departments are for an effective beautification
program and they would like to stop the growing ugliness along our
highways, but we feel that something more definitive could be done
in defining the program to make certain that the funds expended do
not produce disappointing results in the long run.

Section 9: Advance acquisition of rights-of-way.—The State high-
way departments generally are in accord with the purpose of this
section, however, eight opposed it.

Some felt that the 7-yvear limitation should be lifted.

The AASHO After 75 Committee has been developing a proposal
along this same subject. In essence, it provides a $100 million revolving
fund to be financed from the highway trust fund, with no interest
being charged a State for using the revolving fund. It would be made
available to a State upon application, and could be used only if con-
struction were 5 years or more in the future, and it was desirable to ob-
tain the right-of-way in advance, and without the State using current
funds needed for construction.

The States supported the A ASHO-developed version by a 91-per-
cent vote. We will be explaining this in greater detail when our After
75 Committee appears before your committee.

Section 10: Definitions of forest roads and trails and forest develop-
ment roads and trails—Roads and trails under these categories do not
involve all of the highway departments, but only about half. As a
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result, we found that half ¢f the States felt the definitions-as written
are generally acceptable: The other half offered no comment.

Section 11: Amendment dealing with forest development roads and
trails pertaining to the size of project where bids would be solicited for
construction.—The comments received on this section from the State
highway departments were almost identical to those pertaining to sec-
tion 10.

Section 12: Urban area traffic operations improvement programs,
TOPIOS program.—In response to this section, we received the same
type of replies from the State highway departments that we got per-
taining to the authorizations for the same purpose.

Less than half the States felt this proposal as written was acceptable,
and an equal number felt that it should not be tied specifically to a
TOPICS program, but the legislation should make the money availa-
ble for improving the ABC systems.

Four felt the proposal was not spelled out in sufficient detail to
clearly understand the intent. Five States offered no comment. In
general, much can be accomplished through the TOPICS type of
program.

Section 13.—Whether or not this section is enacted would depend on
whether or not your committee saw fit to provide for an urban area
traffic operations improvement program.

Section 1} Fringe parking—Only five of the State highway depart-
ments felt that this proposal is acceptable as written.

Eleven States are completely opposed to it on the grounds that it
is further fragmenting or diluting the highway trust fund, which was
intended originally for constructing an Interstate System and to main-
tain a certain minimum level of development on the ABC systems dur-
ing the time the Interstate System was being built.

Thirteen States would accept such a program, if the financing were
not to come from the trust fund, or in case the parking facilities could
be self-financing and self-sustaining.

Eighteen States offered no comment whatsoever on section 14.

To have any chance of success, fringe parking must provide con-
venient, adequate, safe parking, and be served with convenient, ade-
quate, comfortable, and attractive commuter service at reasonable
costs,

This is the type of program that might be included in a separate
trust fund program, as proposed by the National League of Cities.

It has generally been the policy of the State highway departments
that parking facilities should be included in overall transportation
planning in urban areas, and that they are a necessary part of trans-
portation, but since conventional highway needs are so much in excess
of available highway funding, some other means must be found to
supply the facilities, especially since they are generally patronized by
repeat users and they are for the almost exclusive benefit of the local
community or urban area.

AASHO will make recommendations on this subject at the time that
our After 75 Committee reports to your committee.

During the time of the annual meeting of the Mississippi Valley
Conference of State Highway Departments, in March of this year,
that regional highway association adopted a resolution entitled
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“Proliferation of Activities and Memoranda,” in which it states that
the Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Adminis-
tration are delving into new areas in transportation and particularly
in highways, and it is becoming increasingly apparent that many
studies and investigations are being made in these new areas and each
new study and investigation results in time-consuming conferences on
the part of the State highway personne! and apparent expansion of
Federal staff, and that each of the aforementioned activities result in
greatly increased numbers of instructional memorandums, policy and
procedure memorandums, and circular memorandums, to the extent
that it is becoming increasingly burdensome on the administrative stafl
of the respective highway departments to read and analyze such
memorandums and respond thereto, and that many of the memoran-
dums are apparently written by individuals having limited experience
in the respective area covered, and that many of the new areas involved
matters which are within the authority and responsibility of the
respective States and their State highway departments.

A copy of this resolution was sent to the American Association of
State Highway Officials. As a result, the State highway departments
were polfed a5 to their attitude on this matter and, as a result, 46
States have responded and 46 States are of the opinion that Congress
must define the respective roles of the State highway departments and
the Federal Government in carrying out the Federal-aid highway
pro%ram if the partnership concept is to survive.

They are all concerned over new philosophies of nonhighway people
in authority that are being forced on the highway departments, the
fragmentation of authority to others having no official responsibilities
in the program, and the eroding of responsibilities assigned by the
States to their highway commissions. :

‘We ask your committee to direct the Federal Highway Administra-
tor, in cooperation with the State highway departments, to study this
matter thoroughly and to come to your committee with joint recom-
mendations as to the responsibilities prerogatives and actions that
will be assigned to the State highway departments and those of the
Federal Government.

In order to speed up the Interstate program, we would also recom-
mend that the Congress write some language in title 23, United States
Code: Highways, that the Secretary and the State highway depart-
ments shall reach agreement before December 31, 1969, on the ap-
proved location of all remaining segments of the Interstate System,
that are included in the 1968 cost estimate, House Document 199, 90th
Congress, second session, and in case such agreements vary from the
location actually used as a basis of estimating the cost in the 1968
estimate, the Secretary shall obtain the concurrence of the Public
Works Committees of Congress, before approving any funds herein
authorized to be expended on such revised locations.

In case approval of a location or segment of the Interstate System
upon which the above cost estimate was based has not been . reached
or a revision in the location has not been cleared, as provided above
by the date of December 31, 1969, the funds contained in the above-
mentioned cost estimate for financing such segments of the Interstate
System shall lapse, and shall not again be included in a subsequent
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cost estimate submitted to the Congress in compliance with section
104, title 23, United States Code : Highways.

‘We believe that we are far enough along in the interstate program
that our cost estimates should be based on logical locations, and when
your committee approves an estimate that you have the right to assume
that any portion of the estimate is based on a suitable or logical
location.

We believe that such action on your part would resolve some of
the controversy that now exists as to highway locations.

At the risk of being charged as insensitive to recreation conserva-
tion and historical sites, we believe there is an overemphasis and over-
enthusiasm in administering section 4(f) of the Transportation Act of
1966, to the point that needed highway improvements are being
delayed and complicated and that section 4(f) is being used to re-
open decisions previously made or to slow down the program.

We can assure the committee that as responsible State agencies, we
must answer to the public, and we are closer to the public, and we
are as interested in preserving esthetics and historical sites as any-
one else. We believe that the Congress wrote its intent regarding
the administration of section 5(f) in the legislative history, but now
we feel that that intent should be spelled out in legislation.

‘We are conscious of an involvement by nonhighway oriented attor-
neys and policy planners in the Department of Transportation in
writing minutia and details in instructional and procedural memo-
randums pertaining to section 4(f), and that much of this detail
definitely enroaches on the authority and responsibility vested by
the States in their highway commissions.

The same thing that applies to section 4(f) also applies to memo-
randa regarding public hearing procedures. The procedures go into
complete detail and would over-legalize every component of the pub-
lic hearing procedures.

Under the draft memorandum, any highway opponent could stop a
highway project for an almost indefinite period.

The public hearings required by the Congress were originally in-
tended for the public to have a highway proposal explained to it by
its highway department, and for the opportunity to comment on the
proposal and on a basis that it would not require witnesses to be ac-
companied by legal counsel.

The detail in the 20-8 memorandum on public hearings practically
strips the State highway commissions of any prerogatives in this
area, and fragments the control of a highway program to almost any
group that might wish to become involved.

Under the new philosophy in the Department of Transportation,
there is a failure to recognize the 50-year old Federal-aid highway
program 4as a joint partnership program with the States having the
right of initiation of projects and realizing that the States are putting
some sizable chips into the program themselves.

There seems to be an overriding philosophy that the highway pro-
gram is a Federal program, and that the States should be told what
to do and how to do it in detail.

In fact, the basic Federal-aid law prescribes that a State must have
a competent and adequate highway organization to participate in
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the program and we believe that this should still be the requirement
and that the State highway commission should be allowed to exer-
cise their basic responsibilities and be accountable to the public.
‘We are not suggesting that we should be allowed to operate without
any controls for such regulations are essential to protect the Federal
interest in the Nation’s highways, and to coordinate a joint venture
program.

We have not known too much about how the recent Reorganization
Plan No. 2, involving an agreement between the Departmetn of Trans-
portation and the Department of Housing and Urban Development,
might affect the urban transportation planning process, as contained
in section 134, title 23, United States Code : Highways.

We have studied such material as is available to us and, at the
present time, have a special committee in AASHO studying the mat-
ter now and in the coming weeks to help us develop a policy position
on the subject.

We did, however, find the letter from Mr. Cecil Mackey of the
Department of Transportation to Chairman Fallon, and Secretary
Boyd’s recent statements before your committee assuring, but in some
degree seemed to conflict with our understanding of some of the agree-
ments between the two Federal agencies.

We would hope that the role of HUD, which we agree has a part in
urban planning, would be only advisory to the Department of Trans-
portation as it might affect the approval of highway proposals.

The State highway departments and the Bureau of Public Roads
have been the pioneers in developing highway planning techniques and
procedures. ,

The State highway departments have insisted, over the past half
century, in dealing with one Federal agency only. If other Federal
agencies have an Interest in the project or the program, we depend
upon the Federal agency administering our program to deal with the
other Federal agencies at an interagency level, but that these other
agencies would have no direct veto authority over the States’ proposals.

Planning is the fundamental tool which the State highway commis-
sions must utilize to carry out their assignments of creating, building,
maintaining, and operatinga State highway system.

Recently, we sent to you a resolution adopted by our executive com-
mittee regarding some complications that we were having in regard
to the bidding procedures in the highway program in complying with
the equal employment opportunity program.

We believe that the objectives of the Federal equal employment
opportunity program can be accomplished without eroding the com-
petitive bidding process that has been used over the years in the
highway program, and without adding to the cost of the highway
program.

Highway bidding procedures developed over the past 50 years are
very precise, sophisticated, and competitive. They are definitely in the
public interest and we feel they must be protected.

In this regard, we believe that the matter has now been straightened
out due to the efforts of Congressman Cramer and others. Much of
the problem was brought about by attempting to apply the same type
of negotiation with low bidders used in supply-type Government con-
tracts tothe highway program type of bidding.
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There seems to be a current tendency to downgrade experienced
highway professionals in favor of people in other fields that are
relatively inexperienced in highways, thus failing to utilize fully the
vast resource and background already available to solving essential
highway transportation problems.

This is causing severe morale problems in the highway departments
and even in the engineering schools. It seems to be the “in” thing to
criticize the highway program and the highway engineer, even though
both are an essential part of the future of this country.

We are still looking at the “design concept team” approach, and
will be interested in the results that it might produce, and as to the
time and money that might be involved.

We are also concerned about the tendency to deal directly with
dissident groups by going around State highway departments mstead
of going through channels. The Federal role should be one of ap-
proving or denying a States’ proposal in whole or in part and not
making agreements directly with local people or officials.

We are also concerned over the philosophy that local lay people have
a more prominent role in highway location and design. Some of these
particnlar problems are in declining corridors where the new highway
1mprovement will surely reconstruct the entire corridor because a new
highway is a very real catalyst. We should not attempt to conform too
greatly to the existing community that is almost certain to change.

We are firm believers that local people should have a role through
the public hearing and have recourse through their appropriate elected
officials who, in turn, should and must participate fully in the planning
process at the project development stage. To allow local people to have
a greater voice in the highway location and design for which they are
not trained, would negate the expertise of trained highway
professionals.

Highway officials are unlikely to insist on a project that does not
have the approval of appropriate elected local officials. Highway
officials certainly will insist that their project not only serve the pri-
mary purpose of the facility, but that it will be an attractive and
good neighbor to the community traversed.

We would suggest that Congress also give consideration to strength-
ening the role of the Bureau of Public Roads by putting the highway
and traffic engineering portion of the safety program into that agency,
and lodging the remainder of the safety program dealing with vehicles
and other items in the relatively new National Highway Safety
Bureau.

We believe that the public works committees should give attention
to amending Title 23, U.S. Code, Highways, to require all levels of
government, including the Federal, to hold public hearings before
reserving lands for any purpose where such a reservation might create
physical barriers to future transportation needs, and that such a
proposal would have to receive the approval of the State highway
department involved, and the Secretary of Transportation.

At the present time, highway departments must hold hearings
regarding their programs and we believe that the same should hold
true for other agencies when their programs might affect present or
future highway transportation needs.
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At the present time, certain reservations, such as the establishment
of a primitive area, can be made unilaterally by an executive depart-
ment without a hearing and before congressional action might for-
malize it is a wilderness area reserve.

We believe that similar hearings and approvals should be required
where major changes in zoning are s involved that could obsolete existing:
facilities on a Federal-aid route or require extensive improv: ements
on that route, especially where such change in zoning was unantici-
pated and unknown at the time that the highway 1&0111t18b were
provided.

At the present time, highway departments must hold hearings
regarding their programs and we believe the same should hold true
for other agencies as their programs might affect present and highway

transp ortation needs.

At the time our “after 75 committee appeared before your com-
mittee last June 7, 1967, we called your attention to the numerous
planning reviews, con~ult‘1t10ns, coordinations, concurrences or
approvals, either required by statute, Executive order or other means,
affecting the conduct of the hldhwav program. It was contained on
pages 30 and 31 of the Prelnmnarv Report of AASHO on the Federal-
aid Highway Needs after 1972 '(90-6) 90th Congress, first session.
We would ask that you again review that tabulation.

This particular comment is not intended to reflect on the men holding
the posttions at this time, both of whom we hold in high esteem, but
looking to the future and considering some of the conteraporary phi-
losophies surrounding the highway program, we would snggest. that
yvour committee mlghb wish to spell out certain qualifications and duties
for the Federal Highway Administrator and the Director of Public
Roads, to make certain that they have the qualifications, interest, and
background for administering the highway program.

At the time we appeared before your committee on February 21 of
this year, we submitted some draft langnage that would stablhze the
financial aspects of the highway program, or at least minimize some
of the uncertainties of cutbacks and threatened cutbacks.

It would also specify a time that the States would receive their fiscal
yvear apportionments, and suggests hno'moe mtended to strengthen
the contractual obligation feature of the hlcrh\vav program which the
States consider essential if a Federal-aid highway partnership pro-
gram is to continue.

As we remember, at the time of the joint hearings on the suo,e"t of
the November 1966 cutback, the Department of T 1'ansp01tat10n intro-
duced an Attorney (General’s opinion which, in effect, stripped this
basic contractual obligation of some of its meaning. We recommend
that your committee study this submission we made on February 21
and take steps to strengthen the contractual obligation feature of our
program to the point that we have believed existed and upon which the
States made their financing and construction plans, as well as awarding
contracts.

We also recommend to you that you direct the Bureau of Public
Roads, in cooperation with the State highway departments, to make
a functional classification of the Federal-aid primary and secondary
systems, to treat the States equitably, and to be assured that the right
road is in the right system, and that after this is done that there be a
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highway needs study made on those revised systems on the basis of a
manual developed jointly by the Bureau of Public Roads and the State
highway departments. o o

A Detter cost estimate on total highway needs than now is available
is needed. Although the ones presently available do give us valuable
information as to the enormity of the problem, as compared to the
funds available, there has always been some variation in the estimatin
procedures used by the States in estimating needs on the Federal-ai
systems, other than the interstate.

There is quite a variation from State to State as to the percentage
of the public roads included in the Federal-aid secondary system which
hasbeen reflected in the respective estimates.

You have solicited comments from the several State highway depart-
ments regarding additions to the Interstate System. At the time our
“After 75”7 Committee appears before your committee, we will go into
this matter and give you the position on this important subject, and
the reasons behind that position as developed by our member depart-
ments. .

We have spent a great deal of time on the matter of a functional
reclassification and adding to the Interstate System, and we believe
that we will have something constructive to offer.

We believe the State highway departments would be content if your
committee were to decide to report out at this time a simple, uncluttered
authorization bill that would approve the 1968 interstate cost estimate
for apportioning purposes, and provide for the necessary biennial
aunthorizations to keep essential existing programs going and to con-
sider some of the other proposals that are before you at a later time.

Thank you for the opportunity of appearing before your committee
to express the views of our member State highway departments.

Mr. Krnuczynskr, Thank you, Mr. Morton.

It is always a pleasure to have AASHO before this committee. You
have been very helpful to this committee at all times.

Do the committee members have any questions?

Mr. Cramer. Mr. Morton, T have appreciated very much your state-
ment, particularly your references to the continuation of the partner-
ship contract and obvious problems we are getting into with new
programs and new moneys coming out of the trust fund and so forth.

My first question relates to some of those subjects. On page 1 of your
statement you referred to a million dollars annually for the ABC
system, with the balance going to the Interstate System.

Actually, the balance under this proposed bill and other proposals
being made, including the TOPICS program, transferring the forest
highways and public lands highways to come out of the trust fund,
means, in effect, does it not, that this actually ends up coming out of
the interstate money ?

In other words, ABC sticks to a million a year, and what is left goes
to everything else: When you start adding to those everything elses, in
addition to the Interstate System, then you automatically reduce what
goes to the interstate, do you not?

Mr, Morron. You extend the time it takes to complete the Inter-
state System. ;

Mr. Cramer. So, in effect, the Interstate System, by the operation
of the program, out of the trust fund, gets last priority?
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Mr. Morrox. That is right.

Mr. Cramer. Everything else comes before it, such as beautification
and safety, and so on.

The suggestion of the administration is that this Topics program,
$2.5 million a year for 5 years, for forest highways $33 million, and
over 5 years $166 million, and public lands $16 million a year or $80
million over a 5-year period, and whatever fringe parking costs, that
without fringe parking is about $1.5 billion. They have no hesitancy in
recommending that coming out of the trust fund, with the result that
it stretches out the Interstate System further.

What is your reaction to that? f

Mr. Morrox. I think I should speak personally. I think the import-
ant thing here wounld be to complete the Interstate System and make
this a usable system as quickly as we possibly can.

T recognize that we have the tremendous population trends toward
suburbia, and that there is more and more attention that must be
given to the highway problems in the cities, When you start to take
1t away from the trust fund, you will just dilute your ability to com-
plete the Interstate System.

I think a completed Interstate System will do a great deal for this
country. We are perhaps 63 or 68 percent complete at the present time.

Mr. CraxEer. Maybe if we set up a second priority for interstate,
they would not be so anxious to recommend new programs.

Mr. Johnson, would you care to comment on that ? Maybe that is the
way to solve this problem of constant new programs to take funds
out of the trust fund, is to give interstate a second priority. Maybe it
would also give more money to the trust fund.

Mr. Jounson. Mr. Cramer, I believe in the language of the 1956
act that was what was intended. It said the ABC authorizations would
come out first in the apportionment process, and the rest of it would
2o to the interstate. I think that was what we were talking about at
that time.

Mr. Crader. At that time we had only two major programs, the
ABC and interstate, so there wasn’t any problem.

It is now being interpreted in view of new programs being proposed
and enacted, that the interstate, in effect, has last priority. Perhaps
we could solve this whole problem by giving the interstate the priority
it was intended in the first place.

Mzr. Jorxsox. I think there is a great deal in favor of such a state-
ment.

Mr. Craxrer. And then provide the alternative that these other pro-
grams come out of whatever surplus is left in the trust fund, or out
-of the general fund. We could dream up programs here, and they have
for some time, as to how to spend this trust fund money at the expense
of the Interstate System,

It is my opinion that completion of the Interstate System is one of
the highest priority items, and was so established in 1956; but it is
losing its priority.

Mr. Mortown. I agree with your statement.

Mr. Cradrer. When we get cutbacks from the trust fund, a good por-
tion of that comes out of the interstate.

Mr. Morton. That is right.
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, *l\fi".ACI/L\ZMER.V»eru suggest that the funds for this TOPICS program

— should be made available for projects on ABC as well.

Is it your understanding that such funds would not be available
under the present wording of the bill ¢

Mr. Mortox. I believe that under my interpretation of the bill these
funds-would not be available for ABC sections of highway.

Mz, Cramer. Do you agree with that?

Mr. Jouxson. Mr. Cramer, I believe that under the present lan-
guage a TOPICS program can be carried on through the regular ABC

“authorizations under the Federal-aid system, and comes out of the
regular ABC. If they are going to have some additional authorizations,
another quarter of a billion, we have made some recommendations that
the use should be expanded to use on interstate and not on the Topics
alone.

One State called us and indicated that their cities could not match
this sort of program at the present time.

Mr. Craner. If these funds are expended on the TOPICS program,
as I understand they can be, on non-Federal-aid highways, do vou
think that expenditure should come out of the trust fund where they
are spending this money in non-Federal-aid highways?

Mr. JorunsoN. We are recommending that at some time there be -
another Federal-aid system program created in the cities which would
be off the Federal-aid system and give them the same deal the counties
have in the Federal-aid secondary. :

‘The way this is written here in the bill, it would apply to roads off
the Federal-aid system and off the State highway systems, which
would require matching on the part of the cities.

P Tl(lie States could not match it. It would be coming out of the Trust
und.

Mr. Cramer. The trust fund that otherwise is used for Federal-aid
highways?

Mr. Jomxson. That is right.

Mr. Cramrr. So it appears this trust fund has become quite 2
grab-bag. They keep dreaming up new programs to come out of the
trust fund, even though it means less highways being built.

Mr. Jornsow. I think any program in history, after so long a time,
has had all sorts of appendages and sophistications added to it, even
before you took care of the basic requirements of the program.

Mr. Cranmzrr. On page 4 you discussed advance acquisition of right-
of-way and indicated that eight States oppose the legislative proposal
before us of $100 million.

Can you indicate why, in your understanding, those States opposed
the setting up of $100 million for advance acquisition ?

Mr. JornsoN. These eight States-were-of the opinion this program
was not needed, or at least not in their States. We did not say that we
approved the language in the bill in that first sentence, but we said
that the States generally were in accord with the purpose of this
section. ‘ ’
- Mr. CraMER. As you know, I was the author of the 7-year advance

~ acquisition position, but it has not been taken advantage of by too

many States, because most of them would rather spend the money on
construction. That is understandable, because thére is not enough
money to do the construction anyway. .
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Mr. Jom~sox. The advance acquisition program could be helped ~ = °

along if we were able to get this right-of-way at an earlier period i
the project development. At the present time we almost havg to }t?.avn;
final construction plans before it can be used. : -

Mr. Craser. Do you not think in the long run it would end up saving
far more money than it actually costs by acquiring in advance? ™ g

Mr. Jornson. Yes, I think in California, for example, wheresthey
have a $30 million revolving fund, they have saved $600 or $700
million all told as a good estimate over the years. .

Mr. Craser. You have discussed a revolving fund. I am sure you ~
are familiar with the fact that the administraton bill does not pro-‘
vide for a revolving fund. ‘ o

Mr. Jounson. That isright.

Mr. Craner. I have introduced a bill, H.R. 16622, along with a
namber of other members of this committee, providing for a revolving
fund, carrying out the acquisition of right-of-way recommendations
with the study which this committee directed, the 100 million for a 3-
year period, giving us a total of 300 million to put into a revolving

What is your reaction to that proposal ? o

Mr. Jornsox. In talking this matter over with the State highway
departments, the State that has had the most experience in the re-
volving fund, California, recommended that we not get it above $100
million, and that would be a revolving fund, that is, used, that it be
brought back up to $100 million; and, as it is repaid, it will be repaid
into the Trust Fund.

They are of the opinion that if you get too large a total in the
revolving fund there is a tendency on the part of land developers
and others to come in and make certifications about their intentions
which are not entirely right in order to get some money to operate on.

Mr. Craner. As 1 see it, the basic_problem with regard to the
$100 million limitation is that if that is absorbed in the first couple
of years, which I would anticipate it would be, then you might have
a substantial waiting period before the moneys pald back in con-
struction occurred. ‘

Mr. Joansox. Thatisright.

Mr. Craner. So there is a question on that. I assume you support
the concept.

Mr. JornsoN. We do, and we do not think that the money ought to
be apportioned to the States. It ought to be used when a State needs it.
Tt ought to be used on application. :

Mr, CramEer. Relating to fringe parking on page 5, you say that only
five States favor the fringe parking proposal as written, Could you
indicate what those States are? ;

Mr. Jounsox. No. We can turnish that to the committee.

Mr. Craxer. That is another area where we do not know what the
cost is going to be, where it ends up as a Trast Fund expenditure: Is
that right? '

AMr. Jomnsox. Indirectly it is out of the Trust Fund, yes. It could be
used out of an authorization for any of the Federal-aid sysieums.

Mr. CradER. So it comes out of that money ¢
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Mr. JounwmoN. Yes. I believe the statement was 466,000 spaces at
about $1000 a space, was the estimate made by the Department of
Transportation.

Mr. Cramer. To the extent to which it relates to the Interstate Sys-
tem, it would thus increase the cost of that system and be further
stretching that out; is that correct.?

Mr. JounsoN. It would be estimated at about half a billion dollars.

Mr. Cramer. I can foresee in the Washington area, with this cir-
cumferential, where there are something like 86 major interchange
areas, where they could ask for such parking at all of these places.
You are talking about probably some very substantial funds out of
the Trust Fund.

My own reaction is that I do not think enough study and careful
preparation were given to that proposal.

Nobody suggested where the money ought to come from.

Mr. Jomxnson. Historically the highways departments have never
felt this sort of thing should come from the Trust Fund.

Mr. Cramzr. There is no definition relating to what fringe parking
is in the proposal, is there ¢

Mr. JorxnsoN. 1 think some of the States brought that up. I do not
know whether we mentioned it or not.

Mr. CramEer. You have referred to overemphasis in administering
section 4 (f) of the Department of Transportation, having to do with
park lands. This has been raised by a number of people and of course
4(f) reads, in the first sentence, “The -Secretary shall cooperate and
consult with the Secretaries of Interior, Housing, Urban Develop-
ment, Agriculture, and of the States developing transportation pro-
grams,” and so forth.

Then it goes on to a discussion of minimizing harm to such park and
recreation areas, and so forth.

This is interpreted as not permitting the use of these lands for
highway purposes, the comparative costs notwithstanding; is that
correct ¢

Mr. Jomnson. Thatis right.

Mr. Cramer. Could you explain to us what your overemphasis is,
what you mean by that?

Mr. Jounson. Well, we might cite the particular instance here in
‘Washington where the Virginia Department has an agreement about
the location of the Three Sisters Bridge. We might cite the situation
in San Antonio, Tex., where the city actually voted a bond issue to
get the right-of-way which involved getting a little section of a park
area, and they were asked to come bac%{ and consider a location taking
several hundred houses instead.

There is a situation south of San Francisco, which I am certain the
California people could talk on.

b'g‘-here are others around. That is the type of thing we are talking
about. :

‘We have got one down in Memphis, Tenn., dealing with a park.

Mr. Cramer. Do you know how much more it is going to cost the
State of Colorado, for instance, for I-70 if it cannot go across the
primitive area ?

96-030—68——19
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Mr, Joranson. No, but that was the major reason for which we
made this recommendation for hearings before primitive areas could
be set aside. ' o oo
- Mr. Craser. I understand it issubstantial, : .

. Is it your position that you feel tliat the comparative costs and
advantages and disadvantages should be considered rather than this
being administered as a prohibition, in effect ' . _

Mr. Jomwson. The States should take a look at every alternative
location. In this matter that we had down in San Antonio, where the
local people actually approved the location and ordered the bond issue
to buy the right-of-way, I do not think it should have been opened
up again. .

Mxy. Craxer. That was a city park, was it not, not a federally owned

ark? \

P Mr. Jorxsox. That was a city park. As. I understand it, there were
close to 500 houses that would have to be moved in the alternativ
location that was asked to be considered. :

Mr. Craxer. Do you have some language you suggest relating to
this section that would put it in proper focusin your opinion ¢

Mr. Jomnson. Congress wrote a pretty good legislative history on
that section. '

Mr. Cramer. It isbeing ignored, so I thought we might write some-
thing into law.

Mr. Jomnsox. I think if that legislative history were put into the
act, a condensation of it, it would do the job.

Mr. Cramer. I would like to ask you to consider perhaps embodying
that language in some manner in the legislation.

You have referred to the Equal Employment Opportunity program.
I presume you are aware of the fact that the Comptroller General has
recently provided that specific regulations must be adopted by the
Department of Labor. With specific criteria established as a condi-
tion precedent to the bid process, do you think that is satisfactory,
realizing that Equal Employment Opportunity is the law? It is an
approach to this problem, assuming that the Department of Labor
might be kind enough to consult with this committee and perhaps with
some of the States?

Mr. Morrox. Yes, I think this is real major step in the right di-
rection. I think your committee should meet with them and work out
some of the details. I think this is a long step toward being able to
specify in the contract exactly the terms that the contractor will be
confronted with when he is the low bidder and performs the work.

Mr. Cramer. We wrote on this subject again of preservation of
park lands, in the 1966 Highway Act, public volume 9574, language in
there, and this is what I wanted to call your attention to, Mr. Johnson.
It took into consideration park lands use.

‘We wrote in that any land from any Federal, State, or local gov-
ernment, park or historic site, the Secretary shall not approve any
program which requires the use of this unless such Program includes
all possible planning, including consideration of alternatives to the
use of such land to minimize any harm to such park or site resulting
from such use. :

Mr. Jouwnson. Thatlanguageis all right.
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Mr. Cramzr. We tried to balance off the merits of these proposals.
Then the Transportation Act came along, of course, the Reorganiza-
tion Act, which was publicized as really not making many, if any,
basic policy changes in basic law relating to highways. This is an
examplie where it did. They just sneaked a few things in here and
there, which, incidentally, they have done in a few other reorganiza-
tions, such as the Bureau of Public Roads, being downgraded.

I have just one other question because of the time problem. You
recommend that the State highway departments should make a func-
tional classification of Federal-aid primary and secondary systems.
Can you indicate a little more specifically what you have in mind
relating to functional classification ?

Mr. Morton. I would say that activity along that line is already
initiated. We would like to take a look at the total highway program
or the total highway system of this Nation, and we believe that through
proper study, roads can be assigned certain functional uses. Once we
get their functional uses defined, then, by a very careful need study
we can eventually develop a most realistic manner of apportioning
funds to the rehabilitation or operation of this total highway systen.

Mr. Cramer. This functional classification, what effect do you con-
template it would have on the apportionment procedures?

Mr. Morron. I cannot say at the present time.

Mr. Cramzr. You think this functional classification ought to be
written into the law as a requirement, or should a study precede it,
or how should it be approached ?

Mr. Morton. I think a study should be authorized.

I think you have got to find out just exactly what the study is
producing. We believe that it can produce results that will be highly
beneficial, but I would not dare to project just exactly what those
results would be at this time.

Mr. Cramzer. Do you have any comment on that, Mr. Johnson ?

Mr. Jouwnson. Yes, Mr. Cramer.

This study has actually already started. The Bureau of Public
Roads has started it. They have been over to meet with me a half-day.
What they are thinking of doing is to write up the functional classifi-
cation that a primary road should do, what its performance should
be, and the same thing for a secondary road.

As you know, when you get on 301 and go from here down to your
home, you travel over several sections of secondary Federal-aid high-
ways on Route 301. They were put there for the purpose of having
money available, or that was where the funds were available at the
time that the projects were actually built. So we do have roads that
are actually on the wrong system as far as classification is concerned.

We would like to get a 7-percent primary system that is a primary
system, the roads serving the primary function. What is a primary
system supposed to do?

The secondary system, then, would connect with and supplement
and feed to the primary system and do what a secondary road is
supposed to do. -

If we can get those done, get that reclassification done, and then get
it on a uniform basis, we can give a far better estimate than is currently
available in the highway program.
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We have, for instance, in one State, nearly every public road in the
State is on the Federal-aid secondary system, if it isnot on the primary.
In a couple of other States we have only 5 percent of the public
mileage in those States on the secondary system.

So 1t is logical that no State is going to get enough money, secondary
money, ever to do 90 percent of its mileage. An estimate involving that
State that has 90 percent of its mileage on the second system is not
going to be in line with the Federal-aid needs of another State that
has 5 percent. ,

Mr. Cramer. There has been some discussion by A ASHO and others
relating to reprograming what to do, on a long range, concerning
metropolitan areas and so forth. ‘

Do you think that such a classification should be first made before
questions of apportionment and other matters could be considered on
a long-range basis?

Mr. Jomnson. Yes, I do. That is the reason we are asking you
for this.

Mr. Cramzr. If we are going to get at classification, we ought to get
at it pretty soon. “

Mr. Jounson. We are asking that a cooperative study be made. We
think it would add a lot of prestige to it, and would help it along if
you would see fit to do so.

Mr. Kvouczynskr. Mr. Cramer asked a question that I wanted to
ask. Mr. Johnson stated that he would furnish the committee with the
five States who had voted to take the money out of the trust fund for
fringe parking. I am sure the committee will be happy to have that.

We all know the trust fund is for the construction of roads.

I think you gentlemen will agree with me that money will be going
and going from the trust fund. Money is coming in every day, and
there is temptation, I am afraid, where that money is going in, to let
them put their hands in that barrel and shake out the salt and divert
that to some other agency.

I want you to know as long as I am chairman of this subcommittee,
and with this fine committee we have, we are going to protect that trust
fund. We are not going to divert any of that money for anything but
construction for roads.

I have said that time and again, and I mean it. We are going to
continue to do the same thing.

I am sure the members of the committee will support the chairman
on this.

Are there any questions of the gentlemen here?

The gentleman from California, Mr. Clausen.

Mr. Crausen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I do want to compliment all the gentlemen present. I think they are
a very fine panel, and have presented an extremely fine statement.
Throughout this statement I detect that you feel as though your own
personal activities are inhibiting you, they seem to be preventing the
activities that you felt were established. You have certain opportuni-
ties to administer your program, based upon the 1956 act, and I detect
all through your statement that somehow you are being preempted
or postponed or in some way hindered in your normal activities. Is
this correct ?

Mr. MorTon. Yes. Ithink I could maybe define this.

Mr. Crausen. Isthisa general condition in all of the States?
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Mr. Morron. Yes, I think it is. I think we are reaching the stage
where through bureaucracy they try to spell out every particular de-
tail. Consider the climatic conditions and the gopulation and the
terrain in the States. They are individual problems. To me it is
impossible to write these directives so that they are going to fit the
situation in every specific State or every particular locality. We are
creating volumes and volumes and reams of paperwork that are not
meaningful as far as I can see. It is time consuming and it is taking a lot
of people to assemble this information.

I think after it is assembled there is very little valueto it.

Mr. Crausex. I note you are not offering any recommendations for
additional moneys, and that will come later; is that right?

Mr. Morron. That will be dealt with at some length, when we ap-
pear before you on June 3d.

Mr. Crausen. There seems to be a general attitude that you do not
seem to be coordinating within other transportation departments
within the confines of the States as far as developing a balance in
your transportation system.

I know in the State of California this is not true. Will you com-
ment on this briefly ¢

Mr. MorToN. Some people say that. I would like them to be specific
as to where we are not cooperating. v

Mr. Crausen. Throughout most of the States, is there not an in-
creasing tendency on the part of the State departments and agencies
to want to coordinate among themselves, to come forth with a recom-
mendation as far as a balanced transportation system is concerned?

Mr. Morron. Right. We consult with the Fish and Game Depart-
ment, Forestry and Recreation, Planning and Development. Many of
our hearings are before the public utilities commissions. We consult
with the power companies, the water pollution people.

In all of these things where we meet and discuss, our hearings
are open. People come in and testify. We feel that we are working
cooperatively, with an open mind. There are always going to be some
people who say the road as it is being laid out is not, in the right place.

Mr. Crausen. Then the final point. You made a comment about the
fact that the population is tending toward suburbia, and seems to
suggest that attention be given to those particular areas.

I am one of those who feels that the way we can resolve the problems
of the cities is to reverse this population trend. I think one of the ways
this can be accomplished is to improve our primary and secondary
roads.

I am of the opinion that the ABC program and its formula is
totally inadequate, but I realize we have a basic financial problem in
the overall picture.

Are you of the opinion that the primary and secondary road system
recommendation in the bill isadequate?

Mr. Morton. No. We recognize that it is the best we can do right
now with the funds available.

Mr. Cravsen. So under these circumstances you are really holding
back on recommending what you would really like to?

Mr. Morron. I think I have to go back. My first statement was
that I think the greatest contribution we can make is still to go ahead
and complete the Interstate System we have laid out. I think we see
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this tremendous need for modernizing our primary highways and ex-
panding our secondary roads.

~Our primary highways, I would say, that would connect between
centers of population, between cities where we do not have good
arterial connections at the present time, and the secondary system
that acts as feeders.

1 think as far as the statement is concerned about the development
of suburbia, all of our records show that the core of the city is not
growing particularly fast. There is very slight growth in the core
of the big city. S
" But in suburbia, where the population explosion is taking place,
there is greater growth. That i5 where we see a need for primary ‘and
secondary roads,to serve those areas.

Mr. CravuseNn. This committee generally feels that there is a direct
relationship between road construction that provides access into some
of the rural sections of this country and economic growth. In many
ways, this will do more to provide relief from the pressures that are
building up in the cities than any one thing I can think of.

Do you agree with this? ’ ’

Mr. MorTow. Yes. I think our Interstate System is doing a great
deal in that direction, toward fostering this economic growth back
into the areas that are not so heavily populated.

Mr. Kruczynskr. Mr. Morton, either you or Mr. Stapp testified
this morning that you were doing away with this 10 percent penalty.
Did T not hear somebody say something about doing away with that?

Mr. Morron. We are opposed to any penalty being associated with
the highway beautification program. »

Mr. Kruvczynser. We had 100-percent penalty, but in the amend-
ment we adopted a 10-percent penalty.

Mr. Craner. First it was no penalty, and we lost that.

Mr. Morrox. Some of us have thought that instead of a penalty
there might be a small bonus that would stimulate States to showing
good taste and judgment in executing at least a reasonable beautifi-
cation program.

Mr. Craxrer. Will the chairman yield?

Mr. Kroczywski. Yes.

Mr. Cranmer. In the State of Florida, for instance, with the encour-
agement. of Congress, and it was quite proper they went into a very
substantial safety program. It is going to cost a lot of money. Lo and
behold, when their first year’s appropriation came up, it was about
one-third of the authorization. This year it isno better.

There seems to be no great push, even to get more money into safety.
But there is-a terrible push to get that beauty money going.

I just cannot see how, logically, you can put beauty ahead of safety,
No. 1; and No. 2, we make all these promises of these big authoriza-
tions to the States. We insist on them acting, and if you do not act we
are going to give you a 10-percent penalty on all your highways.

They go ahead and act and then we do not provide the money for
it. That 1s not very fair treatment, is it ?

Mr. Morrow. No, it is not.

Mr. Craater. That is about what is happening, is it not?

Mr. MorToN. Yes.
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Mr. Cramer. We tell them they have to adopt legislation for this
beauty program and then we don’t put any money in it. I do not
think that is keeping faith with the States. '

I think it is basic. We are faced with a similar problem in all of
these new ideas, such as fringe parking, topics programs, and forest
highways and what have you, and adding them to the trust fund.

We are faced with the same problem of knowing full well that the
money is not going to be there. v

Mr. Morron. That is right. .

Mr. Cramer. So I think we have to view these very carefully and
not mislead the States and trap them into legislating on these pro-
grams and then ending up with no money and the States have to fi-
nance the entire program.
~ Mr. Jounson. Mr. Cramer, in some instances, that threat of a pen-
alty isan irritant to the legislatures. o .

Mr. Cramer. T used to be in a legislature. I can see that it is.

Mr. Kruuozynsgr. Mr. Denney ¢ :

Mr. Dexney. Mr. Chairman, I want to compliment the panel for
appearing before this committee.

ut in our State of Nebraska we have a great respect for AASHO.
I think you received a letter from the State engineer, addressed to
you, Mr. Chairman, asking unanimous consent that a co;lay of his letter
that was sent to me, addressed to you, be included in‘the record.

Mr. Kruczynsk1. Without objection, the letter will be included with
the other letters received from other State highway engineers in the
appendix to these hearings.

(See p. 808.)

Mr. Dex~ey. Mr. Johnson, I take it from the testimony that has
been given here today, No. 1, you are opposed to the 10-percent
penalty, and you recommend the bonus that Mr. Morton was talking
about; and, second, it seems to me the thrust of your testimony is that
we have too many chiefs around in the Federal Government, and you
have to hire lots of people to do the paperwork, and then you are not
quite sure of who you should see. Is that correct ? :

Mr. Morron. That is right.

. Mr. Dex~ey. And you would like to see this committee try to work
out some type of legislation so that the State highways departments
and your group would know who to turn to if they needed help, is
that corréct?’ o L . '

Mr. Morron. Yes. I think honestly, going back over the years, we
hear all-this grief about certain highway projects, but I think when
you truly evaluate what has been accomplished in the past 50 years
or the past 10 years, billions of dollars have been well spent and I
think some real solid aceomplishments have been made.

I hate to see the program deteriorated because a few people say it
just is not doing the things they ‘would like to see it do.

‘Mr. Den~Ey. In other words, we should have some nonproliferation
in Federal Government ; is that not about right ?

Mr. Morron. I would say so. :

Mr. Kruvozynskr. If there are no further questions, I want to thank
you, Mr. Morton and Mr. Johnson and Mr. Stapp, for your statements
before this committee. You have always been very helpful to us.

(Statement of Ward Goodman attached to statement of Mr. Morton
follows:) .
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STATEMENT OF WARD GOODMAN, DIRECTOR OF HIGHWAYS, ARKANSAS HIGHWAY
DEPARTMENT, CHAIRMAN, AASHO COMMITTEE ON BRIDGES AND STRUCTURES ;
HeaRrING S. 2658, RoADs SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE HoOUSE PUBLIC WORKS CoM-
MITTEE, MAY 28, 1968 .

Mr. Chairman, and Gentlemen of the Committee, I am Ward Goodman, Director
of Highways for the State of Arkansas and Chairman of the Bridges and
Structures Committee of the American Association of State Highway Officials.

I am pleased to have the opportunity of appearing before you and express our
views on 8. 2658, to amend Section 127 of Title 23, U.S. Code, relating to weight
and size limitations on the Interstate System which is a part of the Federal
Aid Primary System. For your convenience, my statements are listed first and
the discussion follows.

This statement pertains to the effect of the weight provisions of 8. 2658 on
bridges only. Discussions pertain to main carrying members. Overstress in
secondary members and floor system is just as critical but failure is not as
catastrophic.

The revised formula in 8. 2658 adds 4,000 pounds to every value listed in
Table I of AASHO “Policy of Maximum Dimensions and Weights of Motor
Vehicles to be operated over the highways of the United States.”

The proposed changes by S. 2658 will have little adverse effect on bridges
designed for HS 20-44 design load.

However, for all bridges in the United States, those designed for HS 20-44
represent a small percentage of all the bridges, which are presently confined to
the Interstate System.

Practically all bridges off the interstate system are designed for H 15-44 or
less.

The provisions of 8. 2658 will overstress bridges designed for H 15 or less
to a dangerous extent.

Fatigue stress loss will reduce the safe life of a majority of bridges.

In a recent ballot, 18 Chief Highway Administrators who are charged with
the operation and maintenance of bridges and highways voted against raising
the present allowable 32,000 1bs. on a tandem axle by AASHO policy to 34,000
1bs. allowable, and all but a couple of the bridge committee members opposed
going above the design loading of 32,000 1bs.

It is important that the gross weight bridge formula will not only apply to
the overall well base of the vehicle or combination vehicle, but also apply to
intermediate axle groupings of the vehicle or combination vehicle.

It is our hope that the final version of the bill will contain a table similar
to that contained in the AASHO recommended policy showing maximum per-
missible gross weights to guard against misinterpretations and to aid in
administration.

It hasn’t been too many years since the builders of bridges were building them
on the basis of intuition and experience. When the design of railroad pridges
became a scientific analysis based on assumed sequence of wheel loads spaced
very similar to an actual train, much progress had been made. The railroads
have been largely successful in keeping the applied loads today very.much in
line with those used to design railroad bridges even as early as those designed
prior to the nineteen hundreds. Equality of design and actual load on railroad
bridges remains so today because of the railroads’ strict enforcement on their
on their own, and peculiarities of track requirements. Highway people have not
been so fortunate because no one could foresee the future of traffic wanting to
use the highway bridges, either in profile of vehicles or application of load. Such
flexibility could not be predicted. When highway bridge bujlders first began to
design highway bridges, they borrowed from their friends the architects and
assumed a uniform dead load to represent the coming live loads. Later it will
be seen that our predecessors did a fine job in their assumptions. The application
of a uniform load over the entire structure to take care of live load simply does
not represent the actual condition of a live load moving across a bridge. Some
members are over designed, some are under designed and none are designed for
a reversal stress. Fatigue as a feature in design in the early years was practically
unheard of and not taken into the design of a bridge at all and there was prac-
tically no uniformity in the load to be assumed. Some designers were concerned
about impact, others were not.

Even until 1920 each state, city or other municipality developed its own specifi-
cation for live load for highway bridge structures in this manner. Some called
for impact, others did not.

Table I shows some typical uniform loadings for steel truss bridges (note year
1916). It is interesting to note that an analysis of these loadings give moments
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very close to the present H15-44 loading as specified in the AASHO Specifications.
Moment is the principal measure of force which stresses the bridge load carrying
members, and is the basis used for analysis in this statement.

About 1920 the use of concentrated loads gained in popularity.

The 1923 highway bridge specifications of the American Association of State
Highway Officials, the Jowa State Highway Commission, and the 1928 tentative
specifications of the American Society of Civil Engineers contain the following
specifications for floor loads for girders and trusses, and for floors, as given in
Table 1-a.

TABLE 1-a.—UNIFORM LIVE LOADS FOR GIRDERS AND TRUSSES

Live load in pounds per square feet, propor-
tionate values for intermediate lengths

1-to 15-ton  1-to 20-ton  2- t? 20-ton

Loaded length (feet)

truck truck, 2 to 15 ruck
ton truck
100 130 180
80 90 120
60 70 90

“The uniform load used shall correspond to the length of that portion of the
span which, when fully loaded, will produce maximum stress in the member
under consideration.

‘When the loaded length is less than 50 ft., girders and truss members shall be
designed for the floor live load. The trucks shall be placed so as to produce the
most severe stresses. Two trucks shall be considered as headed in the same
direction. Trucks in tandem need not be considered.

Floor Live Loads.—All parts of the floor system and all girders and truss mem-
bers when the loaded length is less than 50 ft. shall be designed for the following
loads: (1-15) ome 15-ton truck, or 100 lb. per sq. ft. of roadway ; (1-20) one 20-
ton truck, or 130 Ib. per sq. ft. of roadway; (2-15) two 15-ton trucks; (2-20)
two 20-ton trucks.

In bridges involving three or more lines of traffic, the floorbeams and floorbeam
hangers shall be designed for two trucks assumed to be located in the most
unfavorable position, together with a uniform live load of 100 1b. per sq. ft. on the
remaining lines of roadway not occupied by the trucks.”

1924 Requirements in Highway Bridge Loadings are clearly shown in the fol-
lowing excerpts from the Am. Soc. C.BE. 1924 Specifications. The Standard Speci-
fications of the A.A.8.H.O. for 1926 differ only slightly from these loading
requirements.

“Traffic Classification of Bridges. Bridges shall be classified, on the basis of
traffic, as follows:

Class A. City bridges or other bridges carrying a highway traffic of
exceptionally heavy load units.

Class B. Bridges on primary roads.

Class C. Bridges on secondary roads.

Class D.—Bridges carrying electric railway traffic in addition to highway
traffic.

Roadway Live Load—The live loads for roadway shall be represented by
typical truck loadings. Each typical truck loading shall be considered as occupy-
ing one lane of traffic 9 ft. wide. Typical truck loading shall be designated by the
Letter H, followed by a numeral indicating the weight in tons of the typical
truck loads.

Typical Truck Loadings.

For Floor System:
H20, 20-ton trucks
H15, 15-ton trucks, or one 20-ton truck
H13, 13-ton trucks, or one 15-ton truck

For Girders and Trusses:
H20, 600 1b. per lin.ft. and 28,000 1b. concentrated
H15, 450 1b. per lin.ft. and 21,000 1b. concentrated
H13, 390 1b. lin.ft. and 18,200 1b. concentrated
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The concentrated loads are to be placed 8o as to cause maximum effect.
Selection of Live Load. '

Class A Bridges, H20 loads

Class B Bridges, H15 loads

Class C Bridges, H13loads . . .”
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TYPICAL TRUCK

Figure 1.
Typical trucks shall have total loaded weights distributed as in figure 1.

This is the first reference to H15 Loading. It must be emphasized that when
we refer to the standard truck or H15 design truck that this is a design loading.
It is not a composite truck or typical truck of the present and it has never been
intended that it represent an actual truck. It is just a selected design truck for
application of live loadings for purposes of design. It is not to be confused with
the Type 2 or Type 3 or any other types listed in the AASHO “Policy on Maximum
Dimensions and Weights of Motor Vehicles to be Operated Over the Highways of
the United States”, or any trucks presently in operation on the highways. The
problem now and always has been is how to rationalize design load with safe load
carrying capacity.

The 1935 AASHO Specifications provided for trucks and truck trains and also
the equivalent lane loadings.

The present AASHO Specification states the system of lane loads was developed
in order to give a simpler method of calculating moments and shears than that
based on wheel loads of the trucks.

In 1944 the HS series of trucks were developed. These approximate the effect
of the corresponding 1935 truck preceded and followed by a train of trucks
weighing 3/ as much as the basic truck.

The traffic classification of bridges as shown for the 1926 AASHO Specifications
has been removed from the Specifications and for the past 30 years (approxi-
mately) the load classification has been a function of the State Highway Depart-
ment, the Bureau of Public Roads, and other agencies. Some states followed the
policy of using heavier design loads, say H20 for Primary and HI5, ete. for
Secondary, ete. Present AASHO Minimum Loading for trunk highways, or for
other highways which carry, or which may carry, heavy truck traffic, the mini-
mum live load shall be the HS15 designated therein. It is shown that the socalled
H15 has been the governing design load for approzimately all bridges built prior
to 1935 and has been the basic design load for all except major and interstate
bridges since 1935.

The use of a standard truck say H15 for purposes of design provide a con-
venient method for design, but leads to problems when comparing with the actual
traffic patterns and loadings.
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The problem of determining permissible loads for bridges is involved. This is
due to the fact that the critical stresses produced in bridges by heavy vehicle
loads are influenced by no less than seven variables. The seven important variables
which must be taken into account in the calculation of critical stresses for even
a simple span bridge are as follows :

. Span lengths
. Gross weight of vehicle
‘Wheel base length of vehicle
. Number of axles i
. Spacing of axles
. Distribution of gross weight among the axles
) . Repetition of load appliactions (fatigue)

If all of these variables are taken into account by use of conventional methods,
the only way in which the stress producing characteristics or effects of various
heavy vehicle types and loadings on a given bridge can be determined accurately
is by making a complete analysis of the stresses for that particular bridge,
produced by each individual vehicle under consideration. And though such an
analysis for any particular vehicle or loading on a given span is not too difficult,
it is, to say the least, tedious and time consuming, if all possible combinations are
investigated.

The percent of live load overload which can be tolerated is a function of the
type of structure and the length of span. As Figure 2 shows the ratio of dead to
live load varies with the length of span for any particular type of structure. The
lighter the structure is the most critical the overload becomes.

We see from Figure 2 that for a 60’ span the live and dead load moments using
a H15 loading are equal. With a 609 overload of the live load, the actual over-
stress in the structure would be 309,. Later, when we discuss fatigue loading we
will have more to say on this subject in regard to stress ranges.

The present formula and tables which show the loads on 32,000 lbs. tandem
axles which produces a 309, live load overstress are shown in Table II. The unit
stresses used in highway bridge design provide a factor of safety of approximately
1.8 applicable to the stresses from the assumed design loads. Recurring over-
stresses up to 309, of H15 bridges maintained in good condition are not con-
sidered by some to be extremely objectionable, This is a subject on which uniform
agreement among the bridge engineers and other highway officials of the states
is unobtainable. When the present formula and tables contained in “Policy on
Maximum Dimensions and Weights of Motor Vehicles to be Operated Over the
Highways of the United States” were adopted, major opposition was overcome
after a defeat of a first proposal, which included a table based on the formula

N-1
W=500(LN-+12N+36) modified. The general feeling seems to be that with a

N-1
small frequency of overloads some sacrifice can be made on the safety and life
of the structure. Therefore, a 2 majority of AASHO members has accepted the
809 overstress. (Constant in formula becomes +32.)

Along this line it should be noted that the 1965 AASHO Specifications contain
the following overload provision. “The following provision for overload shall
apply to all loadings except the H20 and HS20 loadings. Provision for infrequent
heavy loads shall be made by applying in any single lane an H or HS truck as
specified, increased 100 per cent, and without concurrent loading of any other
lanes. Combined dead, live and impact stresses resulting from such loading shall
not be greater than 150 percent of the allowable stresses prescribed herein. The
overload shall apply to all parts of the structure affected except floor slab.”

The question arises as to when the conditions of traffic change from an infre-
quent heavy load to a load which should be the design loading. This question can
only be answered by an analysis of the traffic at each bridge.

It would be worthwhile to explain here that although the design load has
remained relatively constant at H15 for the major percentage of the bridges, the
load carrying capacity on newer bridges has generally increased. This is due to
the increase in roadway width. For the typical I-Beam or R.C.D. Girder bridge
with four or more members the loads for an extremely heavy loading in one lane
are generally distributed more uniformly than our specifications provide.

The AASHO road test has provided basic information on the equivalent effects
of single- and tandem-axle weights on both rigid and flexible pavements for the
conditions of the road test. This information is a basic requirement in establish-

N O U N
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BSTIMATED PERCENT OF TOTAL DESIGN STRESSES REPRESENTED
BY LIVE LOAD PLUS IMPACT AND DEAD LOAD STRESSES FOR SIM-
PLE SPAN DECK GIRDER BRIDGES OF H-15 DESIGN
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TABLE I ) COMPUTED GROSS WEIGHT TABLE
For various spacings of axle groupings

BASED ON AASHO HIS [44) BRIDGES WITH OVERSTRESSES NOT TO EXCEED 30 PERCENT

LN 4 12N + 32
Weight Formula W = 500 (m + + )
Ditarce in .
fouf batvaan Maximum computed weight in pounds for any group of two o more consscutive axles (wheelbases)
of two ,?';;e. K
conseutine o 2 axles 3 axles 4 arles 5 axles 6 axles
4
5 3
6 =
7 £
8 32000 &
9 37000 40500 -5
10 38000 41500 z
1 39000 42000
12 40000 43000 48000
13 43500 48500
14 44500 49500
i5 45000 50000
16 48000 50500
17 46500 51500
18 47500 52000 -
v 48000 52500 °
20 49000 53500 E
24 49500 54000 &
22 50500 54500 -
23 51000 55500 2 -
24 52000 56000 +
25 52500 56500 E
26 53500 57500 &
27 54000 58000 s
28 55000 58500 z
29 55500 59500
30 56500 60000
31 57000 60500
32 58000 61500
33 58500 62000
34 59500 62500
35 40000 63500
36 44000
37 64500 Y
38 85500 69500
39 66000 70500
40 66500 71000
41 67000 71500
42 68000 72000
43 . 68500 73000
44 69500 73500
45 70000 74000
46 70500 74500
47 ‘71500 75500
48 72008 76000 “g1000
49 72500 76500 81500
50 73500 77000 82000
51 74000 78000 82500
52 74500 78500 83000
53 75500 79000 83500
54 76000 79502 84500
55 76500 80500 85000
56 77500 81000 85500
57 78000 81500 86000
£8 78500 82000 87060
59 79500 83000° 87500
40 80000 83500 88000
Note: The tosds are computed 1o fhe muarer) §33 Tht. .
The madification comiits In Iimiting the maslmum foad fo 20,00 1hr. and the feed ON eny twe exiar 1paced § 11, o fasn te 32000 the.

Tre

mors eqardiats of trpe end of whe, e not permitted.
ght formule glren abory thouid be epplied fe delarmine the parminible foeds of vaticier whenavar the foed on the {remt anle Iy comidarably fers than
e puminibie feedi. .
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TABLE I PERMISSIBLE GROSS LOAD TABLE
BASED ON AASHO Hi5{44) BRIDGES WITH OVERSTRESSES NOT TO EXCEED 30 PERCENT

FOR CERTAIN TYPICAL YEHICLES IN REGULAR OPERATION ILLUSTRATING WHEN TOTAL COMPUTED GROSS WEIGHT
OR THE AXLE LOADINGS CONTROL THE PERMISSIBLE GROSS LOAD OF THE VEHICLE,

\}V'ighi Formula W = 500 :;—-N‘* BN + 32

{A}—Permissible Gross Load of Vehicle Limited by Asles {8}—Computed Gross Load Controls

Maximum load in pounds catried on any group of two or more consecutive exles

w13 AN @ ATl T Aries A
[“1es: ~-v,...1—r"r... v,..-l:rﬂ—m.-nr—rv.’.:nr—i:r. L ks AT e
0 o T
£ E: £
— £ H 3
2000 & & & &
No / 40500 - < -
3 41500 z z 4
35080 42000
43000 /48000
43500 48500
44500 49500
45000 50000
46000 50500
46500 51500
47500 52000 3 3 3
o = 48000 52500 Z 5 g
< < 49000 53500 £ H s
8 o [ [ o
g g 49500 54000 - - -
S o [ 10500 54500 &= g 3 5 F3
~ (i 55500
54000
56500
57500
= 58000
58500
59500
$0000
50500
61500
62000
62500
< 63500
36 g £4000
37 S 84500 .
38 ] 45500 ( 59500
39 86000 70500
40 66500 < 71000
41 87000 8 g | 71500
42 58000 & b3 72060 72000 .
43 88500 2 < 73000 73000
44 73500 73500
45 74000 74000
o B 7
46 14 > 74500 —f Y450
e £ £ 75500 < Asgo ¥
48 £ £ 76000 S| 76800  ['Bi060
49 [ & | 76500 | 74500 81500
50 3 3 2 & 77000 ~¢ 77 82000
51 P~ 78000 82500
52 8 78500 83000
53 3 s 3 2 79000 3 .| 83500
54 z A z = < | 79500 z &| 84500
58 & E El & | 80500 E 85000
5 & 8 s 8§ S
b “ Z | w000 & 85500
57 k] 3 2 s _Nesoo 2 86000
58 z 0 87000
8300 87500
— Y 98000

4 H. or lass Metwaan !M conters of the ertrame sries of the group 1t 92.600
twmed 1o be lnn bt and B feeh I sublracted frem the marimum pl"!'nlmlu nmla mq'l 1o arive 2} the
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ing axle weight limits. The equivalence relationship for a range of single and tan-
dem axles on rigid and flexible pavements, based on the road test data, has beem
established. )

There are many formulas that would approximate the maxXimum desirable-
loads. One is the present simplified bridge formula which may be used to deter-
mine permissible gross weights and axle weights.

This formula in its present form as stated in “Policy on Maximum Dimen-
sions and Weights of Motor Vehicles to be Operated Over the Highways of the
United States” conforms with the results of the AASHO road test mentioned
earlier.

I wish to emphasize the present formula was not devised by the AASHO:
Bridge Committee, was developed m 1ts general form prior to the AASHO road
tests, and was never approved by a 24 vote of the AASHO Bridge Committee. It
was the opinion of those voting against, that the formula allowed gross loads.
that were too high.

The basic axle loads used for development of this formula are 18 OOO# for a
single axle and 32,000# for a tandem axle. The present AASHO Policy is modi--
fied to allow 20,000# on a single axle when spaced 8 feet or more apart

The change in the proposed formula from the present formula is a change:
from 32,000# to 36,000# for a tandem axle. This changes the permissible gross.
load of the vehicles, even though it may not be a vehicle with tandem axles.

Chart No. 1 shows graphically the comparison of the proposed loading S.B.
2658 and the three (3) common types of AASHO Standard Loadings (H15 H20:
and H820).

Chart No. 2 shows the percentage of the moments produced by the proposed
loading as a percent of the standard loadings.’

The maximum percentage for the H15 loadmg is 1769, which is for the 83"

span.

You will note that the effect of the new load on bridges with HS20 design.
loading is minor. Bridges designed for H20 loading have an overload of approxi-
mately 329, which will result in a maximum overstress of probably 15%.

The effects on H15 bridges is much more critical. With 769, overload for the-
live load moment an overstress of approximately 40% can be anticipated. While-
no definite statement can be made as to this overstress we feel that this is in
excess of what can be tolerated without exceeding the proper limits of safety-
and structural life.

Until recently, the AASHO Specifications considered that only loadings which:
produce a change in sign of the stress were critical in fatigue. The specifications
also assumed that the loads would be repeated at least 2 million times, and
therefore, allowable stresses were kept below the fatigue limit. Recent research:
and study indicated that these limits were not adequate. Therefore, in the 1965
Specifications a new set of criteria was published.

Table 2 shows the cycles of loadings for the different types of roads.

TABLE 2

Number of cycles of maximum stress to be
used when the length ! of load producing maxi-
Case Type of road mum stress is

0to 14 feet Overl4feetto Over 44 feet
inclusive (H 44 feetinclusive (fane loading)
loading)  (HS foading)

i 1. Freeways; 2. Exressways; 3. Major highway and streets____ 2,000, 000 500, 000 100, 000
IH Other highways and streets not included in Case 1.......cu._ §00, 000 100, 000 100, 000

1 Defined as: (1) the distance from first to last axle on the bridge; (2) the Iength of uniform live load.
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As is shown in Figures 3 and 4 a reduction in the basic allowable stress is
made for stress ranges which are always a -- for some conditions.

This takes us back to the previous discussion where we discussed the 60%
overload and 309% overstress. With a critical number of large loads or overloads,
the allowable stress should be reduced. Thus we see that the fatigue life of a
member may be reduced by a large number of stress cycles slightly in excess
of the fatigue limit or by a few cycles greatly in excess of the fatigue limit
(overstressing). While we cannot say specifically what a change in the allowable
loads will do to the actual number and size of heavy loads it is logical to assume
that the truckers will take advantage of this increase. Therefore, it would seem
that the fatigue life of the structures could be greatly reduced.

Just to give you an idea as to what must be considered in regard to fatigue
the following discussion probably will be of value.

FACTORS AFFECTING FATIGUE OR SERVICE LIFE

The prediction of fatigue resistance is complicated by the fact that citation
-of maximum stress alone does not define a unique service life. In general, the
stress spectrum to which a member or connection will be subjected, the nature
and condition of the part, and the environment in which it will function will
.all influence the service life.

The factors influencing the fatigue resistance of a structural part or laboratory
:specimen are:

A. Load Spectrum
1. Stress ratio R
2. Maximum stress
3. State of stress
4. Repetition of stress
a. Regular or random
b. Frequency
c. Rest periods
5. Understressing or overstressing
B. Nature and Condition of Member
1. Prior stress history
a. Residual stresses
b. Work-hardening
2. Size and shape of member
a. Size effect (simulation of a member by a small specimen)
b. Stress gradient
c. Presence of notches
3. Metallurgical structure
a. Microstructure, grain size, and chemical composition
b. Mechanical properties
4. Welding
a. Metallurgical
b. Mechanical
C. Environment
1. Temperature
2. Atmosphere

The stress range and the number of cycles of loading are the two (2) most
critical factors for fatigue. For example, it has been shown that for welded
girder bridges with partial length cover plates a stress range of 11,300 psi leads
to failure at approximately 2,000,000 cycles. If the stress range is increased to
around 15,000 psi, which is a 339 increase in stress, failure can be expected to
occur at approximately 1,000,000 cycles. Therefore, with a 339 overstress for
this particular type of structure a reduction of 509 in the life of the structure
can be anticipated. I might say that partial length welded cover plates are a
common type of structural member for highway bridges.

Although it may be concluded that if controlled similar to the 1964 AASHO
Policy the increased weight provisions occasioned by the 36,000 1b. tandem axle
or the revised formula provided by S. 2658 will not have too bad an effect on
those bridges designed for HS 2044, it is my opinion that the increase cannot
be tolerated for bridges designed for less than HS 20-44. Although the Bill
provides that the new allowance apply to the Interstate System only, it is my
judgment that it will be only a matter of time until pressures extend them to
other systems. The matter of containing trucks to the Interstate System is, in our
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opinion, an impossible one. Practically all have to enter and leave the Interstate
by some road, not a part of it. Enforcement would be a problem that could not
be handled by most states. Simply stated, these new heavier loads would be using
all highways.

For purposes of Defense there has been established a Principal Highway Net-
work consisting of 244,753 miles, or one-seventh of the total Highway Network.
These miles include the Interstate System and the cream of the other systems
including toll roads. These routes are highways which might be reasonably used
for important shipments or movement of troops. On this best of all of our high-
ways, there are approximately 95,750 bridges. Of these, at least 68,700 are
designed for less than HS-20, 30,073 for H-15 and less. When all roads in the
United States are considered, according to information furnished by the Bureau
of Public Roads, there are 518,226 highway bridges in use now that were built
prior to 1936. They are over thirty years old and practically none of them were
designed for loads over the H-15 design load, and many are for the equivalent
of H-12, H-10, and even less.

As you consider this proposed legislation, we will appreciate your giving our
testimony serious consideration.
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Mr. Kruczyxskr, Qur next witness will be Burton F. Miller of the
American Road Builders Association.

STATEMENT OF BURTON F. MILLER, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,
AMERICAN ROAD BUILDERS ASSOCIATION

Mr. MirLer. Mr. Chairman, with your permission and in view of the
circumstances, I would request that my paper be included in the record
in full, and I will try to just hit the highlights.

Mr. Kruczynsgr. Without objection, it is ordered that the state-
ment of the gentleman, Mr. Miller, will be made a part of the record
in its entirety.

(Prepared statement follows:)
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STATEMENT OF BURTON F. MILLER, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, AMERICAN ROAD
BUILDERS’ ASSOCIATION

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, my name is Burton F. Miller,
and I am the Executive Vice President of the American Road Builders’ Associa-
tion, with headquarters in Washington, D.C.

We are a national federation of highway interests, embracing all facets of
the vast national highway program. Our membership is a cross-section of the
industry and highway engineering profession, composed of highway officials at
all levels of government, highway contractors, manufacturers and distributors
of construction equipment, producers and suppliers of highway materials, engi-
neers, educators and students.

Mr. Chairman, we very much appreciate this opportunity to comment on the
legislation before this committee, both the Administration’s bill, H.R. 17134,
z;gg 94‘:the bill sponsored by Chairman Fallon and Chairman Kluczynski, H.R.

In studying the various proposals contained in this legislation, and having
heard the testimony of the Secretary of Transportation and the Federal Highway
Administrator before this Subcommittee last Thursday, we are impressed by
the fact that the legislation incorporates a number of innovations, almost all
of which would result in added costs to the Highway Trust Fund, and that, in
the absence of any real prospect that the revenue sources of the Highway Trust
Fund will be augmented in the near future, these added costs will, as a practical
matter, result in a decrease in the amount of money available for the Interstate
program,

It is evident, therefore, that this Committee is confronted with a question
of priorities.

‘Which of the innovations are of such importance and urgency that they should
now be adopted at the expense of Interstate construction? And which can
properly be deferred until such time as additional funds are placed in the
Highway Trust Fund to pay for them? :

We believe that an order of priorities should be determined, through ecareful
study, prior to the enactment of legislation which would place additional burdens
on the Highway Trust Fund. We realize that a study such as we are proposing
would delay the enactment of the legislation until 1969. .

But only a few sections of the bill are essential this year. Authorizations
should be made for the ABC program for the fiscal years 1970 and 1971, so that
the regular apportionments can be made this year.

The 1968 Interstate cost estimate should be accepted as the basis for the
Interstate apportionments for ‘the same two fiscal years. And authorizations
should be made to permit the continuation of the existing programs for the
improvement of roads in the Federal domain. i

Let me now turn to the specifics of the legislation before you.

‘With regard to the Interstate program, we share the general pessimism as
to the date of completion of the Interstate System. We can only hope that the
Vietnam War situation will be resolved in the not too distant future, and that we
will then be able to accelerate lagging domestic programs. With that hope in
mind, we disagree with the Administration’s view that the Interstate program
should be stretched out by adding authorizations for fiscal years 1973 and
1974. This would be tantamount to scheduling a new completion date of 1978.
‘We can’t afford this extravagance.

We suggest that the Interstate authorizations contained in existing law
remain unchanged, and that this Committee reschedule this matter for considera-
tion in the next session. :

As to the ABC program, the American Road Builders’ Association is on
record as favoring an increase of the annual authorizations to $1.5 billion
annually, an increase of $500 million. : :

These authorizations should be considered in relation to, and in conjunction
with, the proposed authorizations for TOPICS (Traffic Operations Program to
Increase Capacity and Safety).

It has been fairly obvious for some years that the ABC program is less than
adequate. The needs of the cities and suburban areas are acute. More Federal-aid
highway funds should be channeled to meet these needs. However, we also have
equally pressing rural needs, on the regular Federal-aid primary and secondary
routes. On many of these routes, little has been done to improve their capacity
and safety in the last 10 to 15 years.
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We have advocated that the ABC authorizations be increased in amounts at
least sufficient to reflect rising unit construction costs, and the added costs
which come about due to improved safety standards and greater emphasis on
environmental quality.

In the legislation before you, the Administration has asked that TOPICS be
funded at the level of $250 million per year. The TOPICS money, added to the
$250 million regularly allocated to urban construction under the ABC formula,
would double the Federal-aid funds available for the construction of non-
Interstate highways.

We believe that this increase in urban funds should be accompanied by an
increase in the funds authorized for the rural Federal-aid roads. We propose,
therefore, that the TOPICS authorization be accompanied by the authorization
of an additional $250 million for each of the two fiscal years 1970 and 1971 to
augment the apportionments for the Federal-aid primary and secondary systems.

The proposal would have this effect:

The authorization for the rural primary program would be increased from
$450 million to $600 million.

The authorization for the rural secondary program would be increased from
$300 million to $400 million. )

The authorization for the urban extensions thereto would be increased from
$250 million to $500 million.

As will be noted in the accompanying table, the percentage increase for urban
improvments would be 100 percent while the increase for other categories would
be 3314 percent.

ARBA PROPOSAL TO INCREASE ABC PROGRAM AUTHORIZATIONS

{In millions of dollars]

Present Proposed Percent
increase
F-A prima 450 600 3314
F-A gecont?a,ry 300 400 3314
F-A urban 250 500 100
Total o emm—eaeaa 1,000 1,500 50

It may seem inconsistent for us to come before this Committee recommending
an increase in the ABC program authorizations at a time when highway con-
struction levels are being limited administratively. As Secretary Boyd advised
the Committee last Thursday, another substantial cutback in the highway pro-
gram is under consideration in connection with the surtax legislation now pend-
ing in Congress.

We deplore these cutbacks. In the long run, we believe, they increase the costs
of highway construction by disrupting the programs of the highway departments
and the long-range planning of the industry. Program disruption, in our view,
is equivalent to economic waste. We shall continue to express this position, as
forcefully as we can.

Our proposed increase in the ABC program is within the capability of the
Highway Trust Fund. We believe it should be made in spite of the prospects of
continued cutbacks, with the hope that it will be possible to put the entire Federal-
aid highway authorization to work before the 1969 construction season begins.

The highway safety, highway safety research and highway beautification pro-
grams are presently funded from the general fund of the Treasury. The Highway
Trust Fund is not in a position to sustain them. While this is perhaps not the
appropriate time to discuss the logical source of funds for these programs, we
wish to take this opportunity to make a few general observations.

First, the highway beautification program suffers, we believe, from unfortunate
terminology. We are speaking, to a large extent, of a kind of work that was known
for many years as roadside development. A term now coming into vogue, some-
what pretentious, perhaps, but otherwise acceptable, is “environmental quality
improvement.”

Whatever it may be called, the program consists largely of efforts to improve
the quality of the driving environment and thus improve the efficiency of the
process of driving a vehicle. The provision of visual reference points, to enable
the driver to better judge distances; the elimination of distractions, the leveling
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of steep slopes just off the shoulder area ; the provision of rest areas—all these,
and other procedures, go well beyond esthetic considerations.

It would be well, we believe, to document the extent to which so-called beautifi-
cation procedures are, in actuality, procedures which enhance the efficiency of
the highway as a mode of transportation. Eventually, it would be logical to use
the Highway Trust Fund as the medium for channeling revenue into such im-
provements. On the other hand, those expenditures which have esthetic value
only, should be considered as such as should be funded in the same manner as
other Federal expenditures in the general area of esthetics, recreation and the
enjoyment of the outdoors. -

A similar analysis might well be made of the safety programs, to determine
which of the activities being carried out or proposed relate. directly to the
highway facility—the engineering part of the “three E’s”, engineering, education
and enforcement.

It seems reasonable to us that all highway safety and scenic enhancement
expenditures at the Federal level which are directly attributable to the highway
construction program could logically be charged to the Highway Trust Fund IF
the fund is augmented sufficiently to be able to support such expenditures.

By the same token, safety and beautification measures which are more directly
related to the vehicle and the driver should not be paid for from the Highway
Trust Fund.

We take the position, as we have in the past, that the construction of roads in
the Federal domain, including forest highways and public lands roads, should be
paid for from the general fund of the Treasury.

We support the position that a more liberal policy with respect to relocation
payments would be equitable and in the public interest. We are not altogether
convinced of the wisdom of the Administration’s position that relocation pro-
cedures for the Federal-aid highway program should be identical to a uniform
relocation assistance plan applicable to all Federal and Federally-assisted pro-
grams. The fact that the States have the primary responsibility for relocation
assistance, coupled with the fact that the individual State highway departments
have, in many cases, developed their own workable procedures, casts doubt on the
desirability of trying to make all conform to Federal requirements. We hope that
this Subcommittee will take up the matter of relocation assistance and make its
own judgments rather than accepting any proposed uniform plan which has not
been carefully correlated with the Federal-aid highway program.

‘While we have no doubt as to the general desirability of fringe parking as a
means of reducing traffic pressures in the central business district, we do not
believe that the proposition contained in H.R. 17134 can be justified as a proper
charge against the Highway Trust Fund at this time.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, ARBA again goes on record as being unalterably
opposed to the application of Davis-Bacon procedures to the Federal-aid highway
program, and particularly the extension of such procedures to the ABC program.

Mr. Chairman, I am grateful for the privilege of presenting the views of the
American Road Builders’ Association regarding the very significant legislation
before this committee.

Mr. Micrer. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the committee :

We sincerely appreciate this opportunity to comment on the legis-
lation before this committee, both the Administration’s bill, H.R.
171384, and the bill sponsored by Chairman Fallon and Chairman
Kluezynski, H.R. 16994.

In studying the various proposals contained in this legislation, and
having heard the testimony of the Secretary of Transportation and the
Federal Highway Administrator before this subcommittee last Thurs-
day, we are impressed by the fact that the legislation incorporates a
number of innovations, almost all of which would result in added costs
to the Highway Trust Fund, and that, in the absence of any real pros-
pect that the revenue sources of the Highway Trust Fund will be
augmented in the near future, these added costs will, as a practical
matter, result in a decrease in the amount of money available for the
Interstate program.
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It is evident, therefore, that this committee is confronted with a
question of priorities. ‘

Which of the innovations are of such importance and urgency that
they should now be adopted at the expense of Interstate construction ?
And which can properly be deferred until such time as additional
funds are placed in the Highway Trust Fund to pay for them?

We believe that an order of priorities should be determined, through
careful study, prior to the enactment of legislation which would place
additional burdens on the Highway Trust Fund, and hence retard
the progress of the Interstate System.

We realize, Mr. Chairman, that such a study as we are suggesting
would delay the enactment of many of the new proposals before this
committee until 1969. ;

But, in our opinion, only a few sections of the bill are essential
insofar as enactment is concerned this year. Authorizations should be
made for the ABC program for the fiscal years 1970 and 1971, so that
the regular apportionments can be made this year. This is a must.

The 1968 Interstate cost estimate should be accepted as the basis
for the Interstate apportionments for the same 2 fiscal years, and au-
thorizations should be made to permit the continuation of existing
programs for the improvement of local and Federal domain roads.

Now, Mr. Chairman, if T may turn to some of the specifics of the
legislation before the committee. ‘

Referring to the Interstate program, we share the general pessimism
as to the date of completion of the Interstate System. We can only hope
that the Vietnam war situation will be resolved in the not too distant
future, and that we will then be able to accelerate lagging domestic
programs. ' v

With that hope in mind, we disagree with the administration’s
view that the Interstate program should be stretched out by adding
authorizations for fiscal years 1973 and 1974.

Mr. Chairman, this would be tantamount to scheduling a new com-
pletion date of 1978. In the opinion of the American Road Builders
Association, we cannot afford any such extravagance.

We suggest, therefore, that the Interstate authorizations contained
in existing law remain unchanged, and that this committee reschedule
this matter for consideration in the next session of Congress, pre-
sumably under more deflnitive and favorable conditions.

As to.the ABC program, the American Road Builders Association
is on record as favoring an increase of the annual authorizations to
$1.5 billion annually, an increase of $500 million. '

This has previously been presented to your committee in the form
of a resolution from the 1968 convention of the American Road
Builders Association. L ' v

However, these authorizations should be considered in relation to
and in conjunction with the proposed authorizations for TOPICS.

It has been fairly obvious for some years that the ABC program is
less than adequate. The needs of the cities and suburban areas are
acute. More Federal-aid highway funds should be channeled to meet
these needs. However, we also have equally pressing rural needs, on
the regular Federal-aid primary and secondary routes. On many of
these routes, little has been done to improve their capacity and safety
in the last 10 to 15 years.
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It might be noted that there has been no increase in the ABC since
1964, and that the total of the ABC program since the inception of the
1956 program has been only $300 million, which is not enough to meet
increased costs and changes in standards, much less providing for an
acceleration of the program. ‘

That $300 million is indeed meager when you think of the adjust-

ments in the Interstate program ranging in round figures, Mr. Chair-
man, from $25 billion at the start to almost $50 billion today. So we
see the great deficiencies that are continuing to be created in the ABC
programs. . : _
. 'We have advocated that the ABC authorizations be increased in
amounts at least sufficient to reflect rising unit construction costs, and
the added costs which come about due to improved safety standards
and greater emphasis on environmental quality. ,

Many of the advanced standards-which we favor, applicable to the
Interstate System, find their influenice in the ABC program.

In the legislation before you, the administration has asked that
TOPICS be funded at the level of $250 million per year. The TOPICS
money, added to the $250 million regularly added to urban construc-
tion under the ABC formula, would double the Federal-aid funds
available for the construction of non-Interstate highways.

We believe that this increase in urban funds should be accompanied
by an increase in funds authorized for the rural Federal-aid roads.
Therefore, we propose that the TOPICS authorization be accom-
panied by the authorization of an additional $250 million for each of
the 2 fiscal years 1970 and 1971 to'augment the apportionments for the
Federal-aid primary and secondary systems. '

Then in the following text, Mr. Chairman, you can see the effect of
this recommendation. _ :

To sum up, without boring the committee with details on dollars
and cents, our recommendation would have a net result of providing
an increase of 3314 percent for Federal-aid primary money, 3314
percent for Federal-aid secondary, and 100 percent for Federal-aid
urban. It may seem inconsistent for us to come before this committee
recommending an increase in the ABC program authorizations at a
timels when highway construction levels are being limited administra-
tively. _ o . N
" As Secretary Boyd advised the committee last Thursday, another
substantial cutback in the highway program is under consideration
in connection with the surtax legislation now pending in Congress.

‘We deplore these cutbacks. In the long run, we believe, they increase
the costs of highway construction by disrupting the programs of the
highway departments and the long-range planning of the industury.
Program disruption, in our view, is equivalent to economic waste. We
shall continue to express this position as forcefully as we can.

It is our opinion, from the best information ‘we can obtain, that the
proposed increase in the ABC program of $500 million is within
the capability of the trust fund, providing these other cats and dogs
are not tacked onto it. S :

‘We believe it should be made in spite of the prospects of continued
cutbacks with the hope that it will be possible to put the entire Federal-
aid highway authorization to work before the 1969 construction sea-
son begins.
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Mr. Chairman, if this is contemplated, we must have some assurance
now to start planning. |

Mr. Chairman, you will notice the next sections dealing with high-
way safety and beautification I will pass over without making any
comment,

We will jump quickly to a very serious problem, and that is the
problem of relocation. This problem has virtually shut down the entire
highway program in the District of Columbia, in Baltimore and in
other metropolitan areas. An answer must be found.

‘We have no specific recommendations, Mr. Chairman, but I would
like to state that we were concerned and alarmed by the testimony
of Federal witnesses before your committee last Thursday indicating
that national uniform relocation procedures were being studied by
the other side, on the recommendation of the Bureau of the Budget.

Mr. Chairman, to be as brief as I possibly can, we would recom-
mend strongly that this distinguished committee assume jurisdiction
over such a vital problem, which, in our opinion, cannot be separated
from the highway program and dealt with separately, because our
problems are quite different from those generally in the field of public
works of the Federal Government.

On fringe parking, Mr. Chairman, I will merely say that we are
firmly opposed to that as set forth in this bill for the reasons hereto-
fore stated before your committee.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, the American Road Builders Asso-
ciation, before this committee in 1956, went on record as being opposed
to the incorporation of Davis-Bacon procedures in the act of 1956, and
certainly with that background we are opposed to any extension
thereof.

The provision in the administration’s draft to increase the amount
permitted for force account work by the Department of Agriculture,
Forest Roads and Trails, dollarwise is not much but it is a 50-percent
increase in the current amount permitted for force account work.

It would seem to us sound that this additional amount should
only be permitted if they are unable to get competitive bids.

Mr. Chairman, there has been much testimony this morning before
this distinguished committee regarding the role of the Federal Gov-
ernment in the administration of the Federal-aid highway program.
The State highway departments’ positions have been clearly and
forcefully presented to you. Speaking for industry, Mr. Chairman,
I say to you that we share their concern because in many instances the
red tape, the bureaucratic controls, filter down through the State High-
way departments to the men in industry who have to do this work.

1 point no finger at our very distinguished Secretary of Transpor-
tation or the Federal Highway Administrator. This goes beyond
one department.

‘We are shut down, literally, in the Philadelphia area and the Cleve-
land area today, involving something like $238 million worth of work,
because of bureaucratic egicts coming out of Washington. I refer now
to the Equal Employment matter which Mr. Cramer has done such
a wonderful job with, in helping to alleviate the problems, and he
was successful in getting a favorable opinion, if you please, from the
Comptroller General, but we still have to see how successful that is
in practice. )
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While involving Congress itself, undoubtedly this difficulty stems
from administrative direction.

Mr. Chairman, I received a call this morning from the director
of one of the largest States in the United States advising us that to-
morrow the highway program in the State would probably be shut
down and thousands and thousands of men put out of work.

Mr. Chairman, I refer to the legislation pending before this Con-
gress and the supplemental appropriation blll).le involving $400 million.
It is tied up in the Senate, and I am sure you know the reasons better
than I. But, suffice it to say, in one great State tomorrow the program
will be shut down, and that will be rapidly followed in other States, be-
cause the State highway departments have been advancing their own
funds now for several weeks. They have run out of money. They have
notified the industry there will be no more payments.

Sir, I can assure you that industry cannot afford to finance the
Federal-aid highway program.

Mr. Chairman, I am indeed grateful for this privilege of appearing
before you rcommittee. Qur problems today are many and serious.
The conditions existing throughout the Nation and throughout the
world and in the District of Columbia would lead us to believe that
in the wisdom of this distinguished committee it would be welcome to
us if you could find your way clear at this time to pass a simple bill
authorizing the continuation of the ABC program and making per-
missible the continuation of the Interstate program by accepting the
new cost estimates.

Again, Mr. Chairman, thank you most sincerely.

Mr. Kruczynskr. Thank you, Mr. Miller, for your very good
statement.

Chairman Fallon?

Mr. Favron. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Miller, you endorsed the recommendations of AASHO, al-
though AASHO has 11 pages of suggestions on what should be added
to or deleted from the basic laws, and they have an expression on a lot
of new things that may come. Even though they used 11 pages in out-
lining their position, in most cases they suggest the same thing that
you do, that we have a simple highway bill, an extension of the ABC
program, and allocate to it $1 biﬁion over the next 2 years.

Is that your recommendation ?

Mr. Mitier. Yes, Mr. Chairman, most strongly.

Mr. Fauron. Thank you, Mr. Miller. It is always nice to have
you up here before the committee. The committee has benefited from
your wealth of knowledge and experience over many years.

Mr. KruczynsgI. You spoke about the $400 million supplemental
appropriation. When Mr. Turner came to us in May he told us that
he would like to have a supplemental appropriation so the contractors,
those who have finished their work, could get their pay, and we im-
mediately got busy in the House and they passed it the following day.
‘We did our duty. You know that we passed it on the 18th of May, and
it is tied up over in the Senate.

Mr. Farron. Mr. Miller, T might say, adding to what the chair-
man said, that the House leadership made known to the Appropriations
Committee the importance of this $400 million being passed as quickly
as possible because of the problem it was causing in the future planning
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and the money owed to contractors so they could go on and bid on
other work.

Mr. Cramer talked to the Republican leadership and I talked to the
leadership on the Democratic side in the Senate, and we have been
assured they will do everything they can to get this out right away.
They all realize the condition, as we do.

Mr. Mmier. Mr. Chairman, we are most appreciative of the ex-
peditious manner in which the problem was handled in the House.
I think I have the authority to let the record show that the State I
was referring to, Mr. Chairman, was the State of Pennsylvania. Since
the Bureau of Public Roads has run out of funds, so to speak, the
State has managed to scrape up $47 million of its own money to try
to keep the program going. They have advised the contractors yester-
day that they are out of money, and the contractors are meeting today
to see what they can do.

My information is, sir, that they will have to shut down every
project in the State of Pennsylvania and throw thousands of people
out of work.

Mr. Kuuczynskr. Are there any further questions?

Mr. Crausen. I am certainly pleased to have you supporting some
of the comments that I have made about.the need to increase the ABC
formula. I.do not know whether I will fully agree with the way you
would distribute this, but if someone else does not do this, I am going
to offer an amendment. Whether it will go any place, I do not know.

I fully agree with what you said.

Mr. Micier. Thank you, Mr. Clausen.

Mr. Kruczynski. Mr. Cramer?

Mr. Cramer. On further discussion of the $400 million, as I under-
stand it the States were advised that there would be no more Federal
matching funds as of May 16.

Mr. Mrurer. That was about the date.

Mr. Craser. It was approximately that date.

If they went forward with the work, realizing they would not be
reimbursed this year unless there was a supplemental appropriation
passed for the balance of this fiscal year; is that correct?

Mr. Mruier. The work was actually underway. These are checks
that have been issued, and the Federal Government says now we cannot
cash them.

Mr. Cramer. These were projects on which contracts had already
been let and work was in progress?

Mr. Miceer. That is correct.

Mr. Cranmer. As I understand it, it has been known for some time
that there was going to be this $400 million deficit. They knew it last
year, as a matter of fact.

Mr. Mrrer. That is my understanding.

Mr. CraMER. And I understand the administration submitted a $400
million supplemental request and then withdrew it and then sub-
mitted it again and withdrew it. It was not until the notice went
out, and many of us tried to importune the Appropriations Committee
to come up with a supplemental, that a supplemental was approved
in the House. '

It seems to me—and of course we are confronted with the problems
of the other body, and everybody knows what they are—they do not
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want to take on a lot of other expenditures. It just seems to me this
is one heck of a way to run the highway construction program in this
country, with constant cutbacks, with short-range planning concern-
ing supplemental appropriations. L

1t is the type of program that can be conducted only if it is on a
long-range plan basis. Is that not correct ?

Mr. Mirrer. Nothing could be truer. It is so important to the high-
way departments and industry to redefine the role of the Federal
Government. L

To us the legislative history is clear, going back to the original
study of tthe joint committee in 1911, but it seems to me we have
gotten off the track.

Mr. Farron. If the gentleman will yield, I might say further that
I have suggested to the chairman of the Appropriations Committee
of the House that if possible he find some way to lift that particular
item out of the supplemental and pass that, and then go on and talk
about the additional expenditures which have no relationship to the
$400 million we are talking about.

I do not know whether he has been able to accomplish that or not;
but I certainly will ask him what he lras done about the suggestion I
made to him the other day. .

Mr. Mirier. That is most encouraging, Chairman Fallon. So far
as _we can ascertain, there is no controversy, per se, over the $400
million item.

Mr. Farron. That is what I understand, too.

Mr. Mirer. If we could pull that out from the supplemental bill
and put it through separately, it would be a great help to many, many

ersons.
P Mr. Cramer. Relating to your suggestion concerning the increased
$250 million in the urban areas, that increase, I assume, is for the
TOPICS program, is it not?

Mr. Morrer. Yes, sir.

Mzr. Cramer. Do you really feel that the TOPICS program, as a new
program, should get priority over the Interstate System ?

That would be the effect of increasing this $500 million in the ABC
system.

yMr. Mircer. Congressman Cramer, hopefully, some day soon, the
treatment of the Interstate System will be approached factually.

Unfortunately, up to the present time, as you have mentioned, there
has been stretchout after stretchout, and each time a new program is
proposed—and many of them are highly desirable—the net result is to
stretch out the interstate program.

I quite agree, Congressman Cramer, with your position that the
interstate program should be firmed up and financed properly. This
stretchout and stretchout is a costly thing.

Mr. Cramer. When you recommend a quarter of a billion a year
to go for TOPICS as an increase in their program, you are in effect,
recommending that we take it out of the interstate. I do not know
whether that is your intention or whether you think it is justified to
start this new program with that amount of money and take it out of
the present interstate funds.

Mr. Mirrer. Congressman Cramer, hopefully the Congress someday
will find a change in conditions and will face up to the responsibilities
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so clearly enunciated in the basic act of 1956. As these cost estimates
increase, additional funds will be forthcoming.

But the ABC program, sir, I can assure you, both in your urban
and rural areas, are sorely hurting for improvements.

The only thing we are recommending, Congressman Cramer, is what
your distinguished committee has reiterated time and again, and that
1s a balanced program. We have gotten way out of balance and we
might end up with a beautiful Interstate System and have no connect-
ing roads.

The problem, in itself, I am sure you are very conversant with.

Mr. Cramer. Have you had occasion to look at the relocation bills
introduced in the other body, to which you referred on page 9, that pro-
vide for @ relocation program on a national basis for all Federal
programs?

You have read that, and studied it, have you not? Do you think it
goes too far? Do you think it gives us some guidelines as to what we
might do in this legislation ?

Mr. Mmer. I think it goes entirely too far insofar as the Federal-
aid highway program is concerned. We must approach this carefully,
because many States have developed their own procedures that are
very adequate.

Mr. Cramer. Thank you very much.

Mr. Kruczynskr 1 want to thank you, Mr. Miller. You have been
very helpful to this committee.

Gentlemen, we are very fortunate. We have unanimous consent to
sit this afternoon. We will recess until 2:30 this afternoon, at' which
time the first witness will be Mr. L. P. Gilvin, of the Associated Gen-
eral Contractors of America, and Mr. Teer.

(Whereupon, at 12:50 p.m., the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene
at 2:30 p.m., the same day.)

AFTERNOON SESSION

Mr. Kuoczynser The committee will come to order. We will now
resume the hearing before the Subcommittee on Roads.

As T said before we recessed, the first witness this afternoon will be
Mr. L. P. Gilvin, vice president of the Associated General Contrac-
tors of America, of Amarillo, Tex. We will also hear from Mr. Nello
L. Teer, chairman of the Highway Contractors Division of the AGC.

You may proceed, Mr. Gilvin.

STATEMENT OF L. P. GILVIN, VICE PRESIDENT, ASSOCIATED GEN-
ERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA, AMARILLO, TEX., ACCOM-
PANIED BY NELLO L. TEER, CHAIRMAN, HIGHWAY CONTRACTORS
DIVISION, AND JAMES M. SPROUSE, ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE DI-
RECTOR, THE ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA

Mr. Gruvin. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name
is L. P. Gilvin. I am president of Gilvin-Terrill, a highway construc-
tion firm in Amarillo, Tex.

Currently, I serve as vice president of the Associated General Con-
tractors of America, a trade association. Over 8,400 of these are high-
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way contractors, and are the men who are building the road networks
this committee is considering.

I am accompanied by Mr. Nello L. Teer, Jr., who will present a sepa-
rate statement concerning the extension of Davis-Bacon law to the
ABC program. I am also accompanied by several members of the AGC
national staff, who will assist as needed. . )

My firm performs about $8 million worth of highway construction
a year. We work only in Texas.

AGC TRANSPORTATION POLICY

To set the tone for my testimony, and because it covers areas which
your committee is considering in these hearings, I should like to read
the official AGC policy statement on transportation.

The members of the Associated General Contractors recognize the
nation’s need for an overall, integrated transportation system, en-
compassing all proven modes of transportation, and designed and
constructed to serve, as nearly as possible all the transportation needs
of all the people.

We believe that within this concept, highways will continue to be
a dominant force and a major transportation mode for years to come.
The need for more and better highways grows. The planning of any
transportation system should reflect this need.

The need for rapid, efficient transportation from the suburbs to
the center city becomes more acute each day. We believe that the most
practical and economical way of filling this need is by the use of ex-
clusive bus lanes on the highways. While there may be specific locations
where other modes rail, subway, ete. might be more practical, we are
convinced that the exclusive bus lane offers a flexibility that other
modes donot have.

To the absolute maximum extent possible local transportation sys-
tems should be self-supporting—financed by those who use the systems,
and operated by local entities.

We repeat our long-standing position that moneys dedicated to the
Highway Trust Fund should be used only for the construction of
highways and for the administrative functions of the Bureau of
Public Roads. The funding of other forms of transportation should
come from those who use and benefit from those forms.

We recommend the development of limited access forms of trans-
portation as an integral part of the airport facility, serving only air-
port traflic, to international airports.

We support the joint development concept, which is designed to
make the maximum use of both space and funds in locating and
building urban freeways. This, we believe, makes the most efficient
use of both money and space. It also makes possible a rebirth of the
downtown area, with its consequent benefit to the city tax rolls.

We advocate and support the education of specialists in the eco-
nomics, engineering and planning of transportation systems, and
recommend that the AGC, nationally and locally, award scholarships
in that field.

The Associated General Contractors of America, at its 49th Annual
Convention, March 25-28, 1968 declares this to be its official policy
statement on transportation.

96-030—68 21
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This statement is the result of more than a year’s consideration by
the members of our association. I will refer back to it at appropriate
times during my testimony. :

INTERSTATE AND ABC AUTHORIZATIONS

We agree with and support the schedule of appropriations and au-
thorizations for the completion of the Interstate System, and for the:
continuation of the ABC program. We hope they will materialize, and
that some administrative actions which are delaying these projects
and increasing their cost will stop.

Completion of the Interstate, already at least two years behind
schedule, is a major importance to the economy and well-being of’
our country. While we have repeatedly urged that every effort be made
to complete the Interstate by 1972, we would be unrealistic if we did
not realize that it will not be completed by that time. There is, further-
more, considerable speculation as to whether it will be completed
by 1974 and at what ultimate cost. Certainly the longer its completion
is delayed, the more it will cost. Testifying to this point in April,
1966, Mr. W. Ray Rogers, a past president of our association, stated
that if wage rates trends of that time continued, the average wage
rate in the construction industry would be between $5 and $7 and hour
by 1969. This has proved to be true, and we now advise you that if
today’s trend continues, and if the outrageous demands of organized
labor are met, the increased labor costs will be more than double that
of 1956, when the Highway Act was passed.

Continuation of the ABC program is, we believe, even more impor-
tant. The continued improvement of this network of arterial roads
is vital to our nation’s security, and is urgently needed for the de-
velopment of cities, for the full utilization of our natural resources
and for the promotion of our industrial and agricultural growth.

AUTHORIZATIONS FOR THE TOPICS PROGRAM

We favor the authorization of $250 million for fiscal years 1970
through 1974 for the TOPICS program, but we come again, as we al-
ways do, as to what should be paid from the Highway Trust Fund.
The AGC would support proposals to finance all Federal and fed-
erally aided highway programs from the Highway Trust Fund, pro-
vided sufficient funds were dedicated to the trust fund, but this is

resently not the case. Although we would like to see the principles
of the TOPICS program applied to the A-B-C system, it is still our
position, as it has been since 1956, that expenditures from the Highway
Trust Fund should be limited to the purposes for which it was es-
tablished; the construction of highways and the administrative costs
of the Bureau of Public Roads. In this matter we are guided by our
official policy statement on transportation which I read to you in
the beginning.

We have exactly the same feelings regarding the transfer to the
Highway Trust Fund of expenditures for forest highways and public
lands highways. We have no objection to this, previded sufficient
funds for their construction are dedicated to the trust fund.
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HIGHWAY BEAUTIFICATION

We have stated in the past many times that members of the AGC
are as eager to preserve and enhance the beauty of this country as any
other group of citizens, but the financial crisis confronting the Nation
today raises serious questions as to the wisdom of spending millions of
dollars for beautification at this time.

ADVANCE ACQUISITION OF RIGHTS-OF-WAY

In 1955 and again in 1956 when this committee was considering the
legislation authorizing construction of the Interstate System, the AGC
recommended that adequate provision should be made for the purchase
of right-of-way well in advance of construction. This is still our posi-
tion today. We favor pursuing every means available to reduce the
cost of highways and consider the establishment of a revolving fund
for the acquisition of right-of-way a significant step. Experience oif
states which use such a revolving fund has proven that it will minimize
the cost of acquiring land by forestalling the development of land
which will ultimately be used for highway purposes and will prevent
a great deal of the land speculation involved. Additionally, such a fund
will facilitate the relocation of both families and businesses and will
go a long way toward averting many of the problems we are facing
1n our urban centers today.

FRINGE PARKING FACILITIES

‘We refer again to our policy statement, in which we state that we
believe that the most practical and economical way to have rapid, effi-
cient transportation from the suburbs to the center city is by the use of
exclusive bus lanes on the highways.

The AGC recognizes the need for the development of adequate park-
ing facilities on the outskirts of metropolitan areas, as well as in the
center city. We in no way object to the development of fringe parking
areas, and agree that they should complement the exclusive bus lanes.
Again, however, the cost of their development should not be paid by
the highway trust fund without additional money going into the trust
fund for this purpose.

Again in accordance with our policy statement, if parking facilities
are developed for use of other modes of transportation, such as mass
transit, rail or subway lines, we believe that the users of those modes
of transportation should pay their share of the cost of the parking
facilities.

COMMENTS ON THE AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

We note that at least 14 bills have been introduced, five by members
of this committee, which would prohibit the withholding of highway
funds by the executive branch of the Government.

We do not presume to attempt to advise the legislative that it should
place restrictions on the executive. We feel, however, that we should
point out to this committee that even as we are advocating the continua-
tion of the highway program on an orderly basis, we are suffering from
the effects of cutbacks, past and present, in that same program, and
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we certainly would be remiss if we did not bring to your attention the
serious consequences of those cutbacks and their effect on those who
depend on highway construction for their livelihood.

The great majority of firms participating in the construction of
Federal-aid highways are small organizations. They are not diversified,
and highway construction provides their only income. Many must ob-
tain contracts to enable them to meet payments on their plant and
equipment. These firms are always the first casualties of a cutback in
the Federal-aid highway program, since most lack the resources to
carry them over long periods of idleness. Even if they do survive, they
can hardly be expected to reinvest in a future program, with no assur-
ance of its continuity.

For all highway contractors, small or large, cutbacks create difficulty
in intelligently planning work, in bidding on contracts, in mobilizing
equipment, personnel, and resources and sources of supply. Contractors
have made long-term commitments for plant and equipment, relying
on the stated intent of Congress to maintain a balanced, orderly, prop-
erly financed highway program.

The design and construction of highways is a continuing and long-
reaching process. Projects must be scheduled far in advance of actual
construction, and that schedule is of necessity based on the predictable
availability of Federal funds. Short, intermittent, delayed, and un-
scheduled releases of these funds undermine the entire planning proc-
ess, and serve only to prevent orderly completion of highways and to
substantially increase their overall cost. Unless a basically stable letting
schedule can be carried on by the State highway departments, contrac-
tors cannot maintain efficient operational organizations; they lose the
construction momentum necessary for economical operations. All too
frequently they are forced out of business.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, we support the authorization contained in the bills you
are considering; we hope you will approve the 1968 cost estimate for
making those authorizations; and we most sincerely hope that you will
continue to protect and maintain the integrity of the trust fund which
you established in 1956.

Thank you.

Mr. Kruczyxskr. Does that complete your statement, Mr. Gilvin?

Mr. Gmvix. That concludes my statement, Mr. Chairman. I would
now like for the committee at this time to hear Mr. Teer’s statement.

Mr. Kruozynsgl. We have the questions after we have heard the
testimony of Mr. Teer.

Mr. Teer, you may proceed.

Mr. Teer. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name
is Nello L. Teer, Jr., I am president of the Nello L. Teer Construction
Co. of Durham, N.C. We are highway-heavy and building contractors
and operate as far north as Pennsylvania, as far south as Florida, and
as far west as Oklahoma. We also operate extensively overseas.

I currently serve as chairman of the Highway Contractors Division
of the AGC of America and a member of the executive committee. I
am here today to express the association’s opposition to the extension
of the Davis-Bacon law to the A-B-C program. We have many reasons
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for opposing this measure. I will explain them in the course of my
testimony.

First I would like to point out that the Associated General Con-
tractors, the Association of State Highway Officials, and the Bureau of
Public Roads opposed the extension of Davis-Bacon requirements to
the interstate highway program in 1956. It was made clear in testi-
mony and debate at that tune that the extension af Davis-Bacon to
that program, which was based largely on the argument that 90 percent
of the funds would be Federal, would not lead to a later extension of
Davis-Bacon requirements to the ABC highway system which, of
course, involves only 50 percent Federal funds. Now we see that we
were deluded by the observations that were made on that occasion
and we now face pressure from organized labor for the extension of
Davis-Bacon to the A-B-C system.

It should also be noted that the A-B-C system was initiated in 1916
and has provided a fine record of secondary road construction effi-
ciently over a 52-year period without any application of the Davis-
Bacon prevailing wage laws or the 8-hour overtime laws. I think you
will agree that it is somewhat curious that suddenly after this 52-year
record that the unions suddenly decide that it must have these laws
extended to the A-B—C program.

The Associated General Contractors has firm policy opposing fur-
ther extensions of the Davis-Bacon prevailing wage laws, based on
many years of experience and observations as to the undesirability of
such extensions. We feel the 52 years of productive A-B-C highway
construction without these Federal administrative handicaps is a suffi-
cient reason, in itself, to drop this proposal as unwarranted and unnec-

We have many reasons, however, for opposing the extension of
Davis-Bacon and the 8-hour laws to the A—B-C system. In the first.
place it is obvious to us and should be to the subcommittee that such a
proposal is grossly out of step with the needs of the times. The trends,
of course, are inflationary, with the inflationary heat rising rapidly.
Construction, of course, gets the full brunt of inflationary trends at the
bargaining table, by way of chronic labor shortages generally, increas-
ing strikes for higher wages, and tremendous pressure for more and
more increases.

Lest the subcommittee think we are exaggerating the trends of the
times I would like to submit several enlightening documents on this
point. These include a staff report to the AGC labor conference of
May 20 and 21 documenting the experiences at the bargaining table
at the present time which, of course, include a Bureau of Labor Sta-
tistics tabulation of construction wages compiled currently which
shows an overage hourly rate of $5.37 an hour, which, incidentally,
includes common laborers whose average is now $4.16 an hour. I would
also like to include a sheet from the monthly labor review of May
1968 reflecting a more comprehensive study than the $5.37 an hour
survey noted above. The monthly labor review sheet reports an average
hourly rate of $2.67 for all employment surveyed in 1967. The same
study includes an average hourly rate of $3.55 for highway and street
construction and $2.83 an hour for manufacturing employment: With
construction wages ranking among the top scales, even making allow-
ances for seasonality, and with construction labor making the greatest
gains each year in their wage levels, it certainly seems to us that these
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Tacts demonstrate beyond a doubt that the Davis-Bacon extension is
out of step with the needs of the times. It doesn’t seem that construc-
tion unions need any more protection than they now enjoy. It is the
public and the taxpayer who need the protection and adding Davis-
Bacon to the A-B-C system provides no protection for the public
whatsoever. '

DAVIS-BACON PREVENTS EMPLOYMENT OF HARD-CORE UNEMPLOYED

We also believe Davis-Bacon extension is not only out of step but
contrary to the needs of the times, which is to develop additional con-
struction manpower particularly from the hard-core unemployed. I
think this subcommittee should take an interest in the fact that the
Davis-Bacon Division is currently providing a serious roadblock to
the maximum employment of hard-core unemployed in the construc-
tion industry by refusing to allow contractors to begin hard-core em-
ployees as trainees at somewhat less than the normal scales for fully
trained construction workers. I would like to submit a Labor Depart-
ment letter to the subcommittee which documents this point and shows
that contractors are not permitted to employ trainees from the hard-
core unemployed except under generally impractical conditions,
namely that organized laber first approve such activity. As a result the
Davis-Bacon laws are manipulated 11 such a way as to give organized
construction labor a veto power on the maximum employment of hard-
core employees on Federal and Federal-aid construction. This
roadblock, of course, does not exist at the present time on the A-B-C
highway system but as soon as the Davis-Bacon and 8-hour require-
ments are extended to the A-B-C system this roadblock would, of
course, be instantly applied.

Since it is our observation that Davis-Bacon extension to the A~B-C
system is unnecessary we make further observation that such an ex-
tension would result in an unwarranted increase in labor costs, and
unwarranted increase in expensive administrative procedures, and an
unwarranted interference with normal collective bargaining proce-
dures and an unwarranted interference with the normal construction
wage patterns in local areas and with normal operations of state gov-
ernment procedures with respect to their own prevailing wage
requirements.

LABOR COSTS

Davis-Bacon extension would clearly increase labor costs beyond any
reasonable amounts based on our thorough experience with Davis-
Bacon administration in the past. This, of course, would mean fewer
farm-to-market roads for the farmer and the rural areas for given
amounts of State and Federal appropriations and, of course, it would
mean higher taxes upon the farmers without justification as well as
upon the general public. The higher labor costs would result almost
automatically from the new extension of the Work-Hours Act to the
A-B-C system which application is automatic whenever Davis-Bacon
requirements applies. The 8-hour law would require time and a half the
regular rate paid for work on the A~B-C system over 8 hours a day.
Now an 8-hour day is not feasible in the highway construction industry,
because of the necessity for constantly doing makeup work due to incle-
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ment weather. While the construction industry is well adjusted to
overtime over 40 hours a week under the Fair Labor Standards Act,
the new extension of overtime over 8 hours a day would immediately
add 50 percent to the normal labor costs for the ninth, tenth, eleventh,
.or more hours each day. And, gentlemen, that would be an amount of
unnecessary labor costs right there. .

Lest the subcommittee feel we are exaggerating the difficulties we
would foresee in Davis-Bacon extension to the A-B-C system I would
like to submit a few documented cases of Davis-Bacon maladminis-
tration for the committee’s enlightenment. I am not personally in-
volved in any of the 11 cases I would like to bring to the committee’s
attention, but they are completely documented and authentic. I would
like to submit five letters from the Comptroller General to the Congress
transmitting reports of Davis-Bacon maladministration dating from
1962 to 1966. The full text of these reports are no doubt available in
congressional files and I am merely submitting the cover letters and a
few excerpted pages from these reports.

The Comptroller General is the representative of the Congress to
check upon the propriety of all executive department expenditures
which, of course, involve Davis-Bacon administration which has to do
with the minimum labor rates on literally billions of dollars worth of
Federal and Federal-aid construction. However, the Comptroller has
no authority to interfere with erroneous or wasteful Davis-Bacon
wage determinations, because only the Secretary of Labor has supreme
authority in that field, by virtue of congressional authority. But the
Comptroller has the duty of reporting wasteful practices to the Con-
gress in the hope that eventually there will be some conscientious re-
sponse to the facts. Gentlemen, 1f there ever was an occasion for con-
scientious response to the facts of wasteful Davis-Bacon administra-
tion, it is today with the Congress struggling with the tax bill, the
budget and inflationary problems in general.

-In one of his reports on the Southeastern States, the Comptroller
says “We believe that the higher determined rates (for Federal-aid
housing) are unreasonable and detrimental to the government. When
applied to the federally financed projects reviewed by us having a
.contract value of about $20 million, the higher rates resulted in extra
labor costs estimated at $1.4 million.” In another report on Federal-
aid housing in Dallas and Fort Worth, the Comptroller says that “the
difference between the wage rates determined by the Department and
the rates we found to be prevailing in the project areas, when applied
to the federally financed housing projects reviewed by us having a
total contract value of about $74 million, amounted to about $1.1 mil-
Tion which we believe is largely extra labor costs.”

Another example relates to heavy construction which is of par-
ticular interest to the highway problem. In that report involving
Carter’s Dam in Georgia, the Comptroller says, “We estimate that as
a result of the Davis-Bacon wage rate increases, the contract value of
the principle phase of the Dam, about $15.4 million dollars included
about $1.7 million dollars in extra labor costs.” The extra labor costs
referred to in the Comptroller’s reports mean, of course, that the same
project would cost.the Government more because of Davis-Bacon re-
quirements than it would have cost private or State agencies to build
in the same areas. While some of these reports relate to Federal-aid
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housing they nevertheless illustrate the dangers of unnecessary added
labor costs for the A-B-C highway program if Davis-Bacon is ex-
tended to that program.

I also make reference to five decisions by the Wage Appeals Board
also pointing out certain maladministrations of the Davis-Bacon Divi-
sion. While the Secretary of Labor is the supreme authority on Davis-
Bacon wage determinations, he has created a Wage Appeals Board
to review the work of his Davis-Bacon Division and take any neces-
sary remedial action on his behalf. It is our observation that this Board
has done a commendable job and we are drawing the five decisions
to the subcommittee’s attention to indicate the necessity of having
such a Board continued indefinitely, by statutory authority if neces-
sary. It can, of course, under present arrangements be dismantled at
the Secretary’s pleasure.

But these cases demonstrate the kind of wasteful Davis-Bacon errors
that inevitably creep in, and our point is that while five errors were cor-
rected by the Wage Appeals Board in these particular cases, it stands
to reason that a great many other wasteful decisions necessarily go
uncorrected at the expense of the taxpayer. And if Davis-Bacon were
extended to the A-B-C system it would also be at the expense of the
farmers who need more and more farm-to-market roads.

I am attaching a checklist of these five cases for quick reference and
I would like to submit the text of these decisions to the subcommittee
for its full information. For example, in one case involving paving
at a helicopter plant in Saginaw, Tex., the Wage Appeals Board
reversed a Davis-Bacon decision that would have required building
rates on paving work contrary to area practice.

In another case, involving the Florida Barge Canal the Board re-
versed the Davis-Bacon decision that would have required building
rates on excavation for a spillway. The Board characterized the ruling
as “erroneous.” In another case involving Bexar County, Tex., the
Board reversed a Davis-Bacon ruling that would have precluded the
use of pipelayers to install a plastic and metallic conduit in accord-
ance with area practice in that area. In another decision involving a
hurricane-protection project in Galveston, the Board had to order the
Davis-Bacon division to take into account wages paid on similar high-
way construction in that area because the Davis-Bacon division in-
sisted upon the use of the much higher building scales for the huge
levee embankments involved.

These examples are not many, but they are well documented and as
far as we are concerned leave no doubt that similar errors would be
widespread in connection with the application of Davis-Bacon to the
A-B-C system.

I would like to give the subcommittee one additional illustration
showing an experience under the extension of Davis-Bacon to the in-
terstate highway system. In this case the Secretary of Labor decided
to require building construction rates to be paid on the Missouri
River Bridge at Bismarck, N. Dak., contrary to the fact that a good
many similar bridges were built in that general area with heavy
and highway rates which are normally lower. The added costs and the
disruption of the wage patterns by the Secretary’s actions were so
pronounced that the 38th Legislative Assembly of North Dakota
adopted a resolution on January 9th, 1963 “strongly urging the Davis-
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Bacon section to determine wage rates for such bridge construction
consistent with those currently prevailing in the state of North
Dakota as required by law.” But contrary to the petition of the State
legislature, . Member of Congress and the facts of the case the Secre-
tary of Labor persisted in his position and the higher building rates
had to be paid. ’

In addition to the increased labor costs noted above Davis-Bacon
extension to the A-B-C system would also entail large increases in
administrative procedures Tor the State governments, for the Federal
bureaus and in fact for the construction contractors and subcon-
tractors themselves, the latter costs having to be passed along in the
contractors bids. While no dollar value could possibly be placed on
these added administrative procedures, let me assure you that it would
run into the millions in a short time. These procedures would include
the work of the contractors and local and national trade association
personnel in collecting the necessary wage information for the use of
the Davis-Bacon section on A-B-C highway wage predeterminations.
Tt would include checking for noncompliance by local and Federal
officials, costly duplication of filing payrolls and endless processing and
appealing of Davis-Bacon errors and questionable enforcement actions
against the contractors and subcontractors. The expensive adminis-
trative procedures which Davis-Bacon extension would add to the
A-B-C system should be sufficient reason to appall the members of this
subcommittee. . - : :

" INTERFERENCE WITH NORMAL WAGE PATTERNS

T believe the Comptroller General’s cases and the Wage Appeals
Boards Cases demonstrate how Davis-Bacon administration interferes
with the normal wage patterns in local areas. Oftentimes the exces-
sive Davis-Bacon rates in a local area will cause all wages in that
area to rise accordingly to avoid pirating of employees of local em-
ployers. That trend can leave an inflationary impact long after the
Government project has been completed.

INTERFERENCE WITH STATE PROCEDURES

One of the most unfortunate aspects of Federal-aid projects is the
interference and undermining effect these programs have on State
government operations. Certainly the trend of the times should be
toward strengthening the responsibilities and authority of the State
governments in every way possible. In connection with the A-B-C
highway system some 70 percent of the States currently provide for
very adequate prevailing wage requirements as determined by state
agencies. These should by all means be preserved and strengthened by
Federal legislation rather than eroded. The subcommittee might well
be interested in an opinion of a distinguished Attorney General of
New Hampshire to the effect that the inclusion of Davis-Bacon
requirements on the interstate highway program preempted the State
prevailing wage law as far as State contracting under that program
15 concerned. We would strongly urge the subcommittee to give the
most serious consideration to the problem of State prevailing wage
laws and in that connection we believe this consideration is an added
reason for not extending Davis-Bacon to the A-B-C system.
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CONCLUSION

In summary, we believe extension of Davis-Bacon to the A~B-C sys-
tem is out of step with the need of the times and adds fuel to the
current inflationary trends. It would also constitute an unnecessary
handicap to the construction industry’s efforts to make maximum use
of the hard-core unemployed and disadvantaged as trainees. We be-
lieve Davis-Bacon extension to the A—-B-C system is unnecessary and
would constitute an unwarranted increase in labor costs and in ex-
Eensive administrative procedures and would interfere with collective

argaining and normal wage patterns in local areas, and would con-
stitute an unwarranted interference with the normal operations of
State governments’ prevailing wage procedures. For these reasons, we
would urge the defeat of all proposals to extend Davis-Bacon to the:
A-B-C system. , ‘

Thank you. : .

Mr. Kruczynskr. Thank you, Mr. Teer, for a very nice statement..

Now, Mr. Gilvin, in line with your comments on the cost, do you
consider these present estimated amounts adequate, or do you believe:
the actual cost to complete the Interstate System would be higher;
if so, how much higher?

Mr. Givin. Wehave an estimate on that and I will ask Mr. Sprouse:
to answer that.

Mr. Serouse. The present estimate is $56.5 billion.

Mr. Chairman, in April of 1966, Mr. W. A. Rogers testified before:
the committee and said that it was our considered opinion that the:
ultimate cost of the Interstate System would reach $53 billion.

I testified personally later in the Senate on that and we were not
ridiculed by some of our colleagues. We were told we had inflationary
ideas on our minds.

I will have to speak personally to this point. I do not think the esti-
mate is nearly enough. Mr. Gilvin may not agree with me.

Mr. Kroozynskr. Mr. Fallon, any comments or questions?

Mr. Favron. Mr. Kluczynski, T certainly have a comment on Mr..
Gilvin’s paper, and I do not think I can agree more with the text
of hisstatement than if Thad written it myself.

I would say that Mr. Gilvin has stated this afternoon what the
members of this committee have tried to do all along.

I'might say also that you have agreed with us in what we have been:
doing for so many years because you have been one of the greatest
supporters of this program and I certainly want to not only welcome-
you, but thank you for coming all the way from Amarillo, Tex., to-
Washington, D.C., I hope that you had good roads all the way.

Thank you again for coming here.

Mr. Serouse. He flew in from San Antonio, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. GiLviN. Mr. Chairman, I am having to guess on this, but it is
$56 billion now.

Mr. Krouczrxsgr. What did you say?

Mr. Gmuvin. If your estimate is $56 billion now, it would be a mini-
mum by 1974 of $18 billion more.

Mr. Serouse. We projected some of the wage increases we are faced
with this year on out to 1974, which is the date you are attempting to-
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establish for the Interstate System of the operating engineers in Dela-
ware who will be making $8.49 by that time. '

Mr. Favrown. That would be $3 billion a year increase.

Mr. Giuvin. If the present wage trend keeps going up in my area
where I live and our company’s records show that the average in all
of the highway work that -we do, the bridges, the dirtwork, and the
asphalt work and all of it, why about one-third of what we take in is
labor and if a third of $56 billion is what we are looking at and you
add the present trend to labor or onto that, you are pretty near going
to double it if it goes up like it has been.

For instance, in Missouri they are striking, as I said, for $5 and
something like an increase to $7.02 per hour. If you are going to get
that kind of increase, you are going to go to $18 billion.

Mr. Sprouse. We are talking in a few years of $100 per day for
mechanics on highway construction.

Mr. Kvuczynskl. It seems only a few years ago when we passed the
Interstate Highway System, the father of the system, Mr. Fallon, the
chairman of this committee, we all remember in those days talking
about spending $27 billion to complete the Interstate Highway System
in 16 years, which would be a completion date of 1972.

You went up to 1978 and 1974, and now we are talking about 1975,
and the trust fund dies in 1972, so we will have to have an extension and
whether we should extend it to 1975 when here we are up to $56 billion,
we are about 66 percent complete, and if we do not complete that Inter-
state Highway System, it will cost a lot more next year.

So as Mr. Cramer said when he started the hearings, this 1968 is
the year. We must do something with the highway system in the
country this year.

Mr. Sprouse. If T may, Mr. Chairman, I think the average wage on
the highway construction industry when you passed this in 1956 was
a little over $3 per hour and today it is up to $5 per hour.

Mr. Kvuczywskr. Mr. Cramer?

Mr. Cramer. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I thank the gentlemen for their very kind and unsolicited remarks.
I do appreciate it a great deal. That is kind of an introduction to my
question.

I will say at the outset that so far as I’'m concerned as one member
of the committee, it is not my intention to vote for anything that I
think is going to increase the cost of this program—period.

“We are in serious money troubles now and getting more serious. So
far as I'm concerned, if I am satisfied with the legislative extensions
if it is going to do that, I am happy. I do not plan to support it as one.
I understand some wires were sent to some of the State administrations
relating to your AGC chapter, relating to what they estimate the
increased cost would be if the AGC system had it applied to them.

I understand, for instance, that in the State of Florida on behalf
of the west coast AGC, they had indicated a result about 25- to 30-per-
cent increase is that correct ¢

Mr. Sprouse. Yes, sir. That was a spot check, Mr. Congressman,
and not all of these States were covered. ,

Mr. Cramrr. I understand also that in Louisville, Ky.. it is estimated
that it will increase about 20 percent. Is that correct ? '

Mr. Srrouse. Yes, sir.
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Mr. Cramer. Mr. C. J. Potier, president of that AGC and Preston
Ager, manager of the Louisiana heavy branch, estimated a 25-
to 30-percent increase; is that correct? They have a 10 percent in
Texas, 5- to 10-percent in Kansas, 20 percent in Louisville, Ky.,
area, and the Kentucky Highway Department estimates would add
approximately another 20 percent. Are those figures that you recall
seeing ?

Mr. Serouse. Yes; I point out, Mr. Cramer, that in the case of
Tampa, Fla., area, as I recall he said labor costs. That is a very
definite answer. In some of the replies they refer to the administrative
costs of applying the Davis-Bacon Act, so it is now not all labor
costs.

In Florida, Clay McCullers’ answer was labor. In some States we
advertise it would not affect the cost. They are alrcady heavily union-
ized and they pay wages above the Davis-Bacon.

Mr. Craser. Mr. Teer, you recall, I am sure, from the Davis-Bacon
Act, the interstate section, in 1956 and in section 116 we put some
restriction on how it should be administered. I recall that very vividly
because I helped to write in the restriction.

In the first instance, and I am reading from that section, they shall
be paid wages at rates no less than those prevailing for the same type
of work, No. 1, restriction on similar construction and No. 2, restric-
tion in the immediate locality, No. 8 restriction, and now as I gather
by your testimony and other information that has come to your atten-
tion these restrictions have not been properly divided in the inter-
state experience; has that been your experience?

Mr. Teer. Ithas; yes.

Mr. Cramer. I understand, for instance in some places in New
Jersey, Mr. Sprouse, that a high operating engineer’s wage rate has
been applied as the prevailing wage rate.

Mr. Serouse. That is correct.

Mr. Cranrer. For contract purposes; isthat correct ?

Mr. Serouse. That is correct.

Mr. Cramer. Well, that clearly violates the stated intent of Con-
gress relating to the same worth, does it not ?

Mr. Serouse. Yes, sir; you will also recall, Mr. Cramer, because
you were one of the leaders in this also that we had in 1956 a court
review. It was knocked out in the other body.

Mr. Cramer. I recall that, also. ‘

So, the experience we have had on Interstate System, as this has
been administered, certainly would not recommend extending even
that limited language to the AGC, let alone considering our cost
problem. :

Mr. Sprouse. No,sir.

Mr. CramEr. I gather, Mr. Gilvin and members of the panel, that
you are generally approaching this as similar to that expressed by
some members of this committee. That we are going to have these new
programs and they certainly should be financed at the expense of
present, ongoing interstate programs.

Mr. Grvin. That is correct, if we are going to have this new stuff,
we need new financing.

Mr. Crazer. Thank you very much.
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Mr. Kuuczy~ski. Any further questions?

Mr. CLaUuSEN. Any comments, anyone? Mr. Chairman, I will not
prolong this because we have other witnesses, but I would not want to
lose this opportunity to compliment you gentlemen for taking the time
to come as far as you have and in particular to focus attention on the
problem of the availability of funds. o

Those funds have been actually obligated and anticipated in the
trust fund and you have spelled out the overall effect to youi organiza-
tion that the personnel that you are trying to gather, to do the work,
and I am pleased to have this very fine statement put on the record
because I tell you not only are you affected by this as entrepreneurs and
contractors, but my own people from the State of California who are
involved in the public sector find themselves faced with the same prob-
lem, and I am pleased that you put this so well into focus in your
testimony.

1 than]}ir you for coming. )

Mr. Kruczynskr, Thank you. There are no further questions.

Mr. Serouse. Could the telegrams which the minority counsel has
received be made a part of the record?

Mr. CraMER. I sorequest.

Mr. Kruczynskr. Without objection, it is so ordered.

(Telegrams and other papers referred to follow:)

PIERRE, S. DAK.,
May 24, 1968.
J. M. SPROUSE,

Associated General Contractors of America,
Washington, D.C.:

Davis-Bacon rates or better currently paid on primary and urban. If extended
to secondary would increase cost of that program by about 114 million or 15 per-
cent to avoid added contract cost and disruption of scale paid their own em-
ployees, many counties would probably refuse Federal and and build by day
labor.

JaMes H. HUNT,
Manager, Associated General Contractors of South Dakota.

TorEKA, KANS.,
May 24, 1968.
J. M. SPROUSE,
Associated General Contractors,
Washington, D.C.:

In Kansas 80 to 90 percent of our work is open shop. Wage surveys made by
our highway department and by this association to assist the Davis-Bacon sec-
tion are obsolete at the time they are made. Shortage of workman and steady
increase in wage rates render wage rates determined on surveys of work during’
the past year of no value. To burden the ABC system with this procedure would
add 5 to 10 percent to ultimate costs to the State and Federal Governments and.
serve no useful purpose.

K. W. CoMFORT,
Manager, Kansas Contractors Association.

AUSTIN, TEX.,
May 24, 1968.
J. M. SPROUSE,
Associated General Contractors of America, Inc.,
Washington, D.C.:
Reurtel estimate extension of Davis-Bacon to ABC System would increase the
cost about 10 percent or about $12 million.
JAMES M. RICHARDS,
4ssociated General Contractors,
Tewas Highway Heavy Branch.
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LoOUISVILLE, KY.,
! May 24, 1968.
JAMES SPROUSE,
Associated General OContractors of America,
Washington, D.C.:

Rf_eference telegram George Long our Kentucky Highway Department estimates
Davis-Bacon rates applied ABC system would add approximately twenty percent
.‘_co costs ABC program this fiscal year approximately $40,000,000 bulk added costs
in material supplier and subcontractor inclusion remainder department admin-
istrative costs.

C. J. POTTER,
President, Ruby Construction Co., Inc.

BaTOoN ROUGE, LA,
May 24, 1968.
.J. M. SPROUSE,
_Associated General Contractors,
Washington, D.C.:
Estimate extension of Davis-Bacon rates to ABC system would cost Louisiana
25 to 30 percent. This chapter unalterably opposed to any such proposal.
PRESTON HGGERS, JT.,
-Managing Director, Louisiana Highiway and Heavy Branch.

MINNEAPOLIS, MINN.,
May 27, 1968.
J. M. SPROUSE, .
Associated General Contractors of America,
Washington, D.C.:

Accurate estimate of increase in cost to Minnesota due to extension of D-B
rates to ABC system not available now. We oppose extension because we feel it
would increase local rates where high union organizations not in existence.

L. R. ANDERSON,
Administrator, Highway Heavy Division,
Associated General Contractors of Minnesota, Inc.

Tanpa, Fra,,
May 24, 1968.
JIM SPROUSE,
Associated General Contractors of America,
Washington, D.C.:

Ref your telegram regarding Davis-Bacon rates to ABC road program would
estimate that applying Davis-Bacon prevailing wage would add 25 to 30 percent
to labor cost, this area of Florida.

CrAay McCuLLOH,
Executive Manager,
Florida West Coast Associated General Contractors.

DEs MOINES, Iowa,
May 23, 1968.
J. M. SPROUSE,
Associated General Contractors of America,
Washington, D.C.:

Re telegram May 23 Davis-Bacon rates now being required by highway com-
mission on all promary projects—cost increase if extended to secondary prob-
ably not very great—administration costs more serious factor

C. L. HOFFMAN,
Associated Genceral Contractors of Towa.
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RuBY CoNSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.,
" GENERAL CONTRACTORS,
) Louisville, Ky., May 24, 1968.
Re Davis Bacon Rates on ABC System.

.JAMES SPROUSE,
Associated General Contractors.of America,
Washington, D.C.

DEeAr JiM: In answering your wire to George Long régarding above reference,
I talked to our Highway Department. They advise that the basic rates on the
prime contract would not change. They estimate that local suppliers such as
ready mix, aggregate, and other material suppliers which are not presently bound
‘by the contract rates would become involved under Davis Bacon.

In addition to this, there would be added administrative costs to administer
this type of program over and above their present commitment under the Inter-
state and Appalachia Program. Their estimate on these additional costs would be
an approximation of twenty percent of the contract amount. Our ABC system in
Kentucky varies somewhat, but anticipate approximately forty million dollars
in Kentucky this year in this program.

‘Trust this information will be helpful in your fight with Congress.

Very truly yours,
Rupy ConstrUcTION CoO., INC.,
C. J. PoITER, President.

Mr. Kuouczynskr, Mr. Fallon? )

The Crarman. I would like to correct the record. I would like to
o back to Mr. Gilvin’s figure on increased cost of the future of the
program. .

. You used a $56 billion figure and you divided this by 8 as the addi-
tional cost which would be one-third.

Do you not think that you should have subtracted the money that
is already spent from the $56 billion and then divided it by 8%

Mr. Giuvin. That was a horseback estimate.

The Caamrman. That was just a suggestion.

Mr. Kuuozynsgi. Thank you, gentlemen. . .

The next witness will be Mr. Burton W. Marsh, executive director,
The Institute of Traffic Engineers.

Mr. Marsh, you may be seated, and proceed.

STATEMENT OF BURTON W. MARSH, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, THE
INSTITUTE OF TRAFFIC ENGINEERS

Mr. Marsa. The 1958 National Highway Needs Report transmitted
by the Secretary of the Department of Transportation to the Con-
gress earlier this year points up and need to begin promptly the
planning for future highway programs to assure an orderly transi-
tion from the present program. Now is the time to determine highway
transportation policies that will best serve the Nation in the years
.ahead.

The Institute of Traffic Engineers has a fundamental interest in
mational highway transportation policies and programs. Its over 3,000
members are largely employed in street and highway transportation,
with the common objectives of the safe, efficient and convenient move-
ment of persons and goods.

This statement of the Institute of Traffic Engineers is authorized by
- resolution adopted by the membership in its annual meeting in St.
TLouis, September 1967. The board of direction has approved the state-
ment under authority granted by the resolution and the constitution
:and bylaws of the institute.
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PAST PROGRESS: FUTURE PLANNING

Past progress in highway transportation in the United States has
been noteworthy—and the Congress deserves great credit for the
legislative leadership which it has given over the years through pro-
gressive Federal highway acts. ) : L

Looking ahead, indications are that highway travel will nearly
double in the next 20 years—with much faster growth in our bur-
geoning metropolitan areas. Meeting such needs presents a huge
challenge. .

Planning for such a future demands a sound foundation and pro-
cedure. Fortunately the technology of planning has advanced greatly,
particularly for urban areas. Much credit should be given to the
requirement of urban transportation planning contained in the Federal
Aid Highway Act of 1962. ;

Fullest benefits from the planning process can result only from a
coordinated and genuinely cooperative participation of appropriate
agencies of all levels of government. Full involvement of overall
planning agencies of local governments is essential to securing desired
results—though it has often not been achieved.

Institute policy “supports the integration of transportation plan-
ning, freeway development, and the comprehensive planning process
with the goal of making our cities better, healthier, happier, safer,
more convenient and more attractive places in which tolive . . .” “The
Institute recognizes that the planning and development of urban free-
ways should not only fit the local environment but also contribute
to raising urban standards and to enhancing the aggregate of com-
munity values. Safety. convenience and economy are significant among
these values and should not be relegated to secondary importance.”

The Institute urges that the Congress include in appropriate legisla-
tion the provision that in local communities of over 10,000 population
future street and highway developments involving any form of Fed-
eral assistance shall be based on planning and design consistent with
standards approved by the Department of Transportation and devel-
oped or approved by municipal or metropolitan authorities having
street and highway responsibilities.

LEGISLATION FOR NATIONWIDE XNEEDS STUDY

The Inmstitute of Traffic Engineers urges the Congress to enact
legislation calling for the Federal Highway Administration in coop-
eration with the States and local governments to make a comprehen-
sive nationwide study of future street and highway transportation
needs, both physical and financial, and to report to the Congress the
resulting findings and recommendations by an appropriate date. A
study period of 3 years is suggested. The legislation should also provide
that the needs studies be on a continuing basis.

Many matters must be included in such a needs study, including
tax sources and rates. economic factors, estimates of population and
motor vehicle growth, urbanization trends, metropolitan development,
trends in work and travel patterns, shifts in urban development, and
the needsand desires of people. ,

As to the street and highway aspects of such a study—including
financing, four bases should be used :
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1. Fuictional classification of all highways and streets: All streets
and highways should be classified as to their pritnary function. This is
the cornerstone of the study, and should be the first step taken. Local
communities should be involved in the classification of their streets and
highways. The term “functional classification” as used here means
dividing all roads and streets into classes providing similar services
to traffic and land use—each class ranked by its importance to the eco-
nomic and social welfare of the State, region or urban area, to the
driver, and to land use. ,

Such classification will provide a sound basis for recommending
highway systems or subsystems and for assigning governmental re-
sponsibilities for each. It will provide a guide for standards of improve-
ment suitable for the services afforded by each functional class. It will
grogide a major basis for equitable allocation of available highway

unds. '

2. Cost analyses for needed improvements: Costs of warranted im-
provements—operational as well as physical—should be developed on
a long-range basis for each system. Upgrading improvements should
receive equal consideration with new construction. The status of each
road should be compared with standards of service applicable to each
functional class. Such standards should be agreed upon by the govern-
mental agencies involved and should be applied on a nationally
uniform basis. Review of data assembled at State and local levels as
to accuracy, uniformity, and agreement with principles and standards,
can most logically be correlated by the U.S. Bureau of Public Roads.

3. Determination of methods of financing : Means of financing total
needed improvements should be so established as to equitably relate
cost requirements to benefits with due consideration of financial re-
sources of those benefited. Current financing methods should be re-
appraised. ) ‘

4. Allocation of funds for improvements: Formulas for future allo-
cations of funds for Federal-aid highway systems should be based on,
and closely related to, the costs of all improvements required to pro-
vide the accepted level of service for each functional class involved.
This principle should apply to allocation of Federal aid to the States
and in turn by States to local governments.

FUTURE FEDERAL-AID SYSTEMS

‘While final decisions should await the proposed report on the above-
mentioned study of future highway transportation needs, there appear
to be clear indications of need to review and redefine Federal-aid
highway systems. The institute urges that the Congress consider the
following: _

1. Interstate System: The Institute of Traflic Engineers supports
the concept that the Interstate System should retain its identiy and
mileage limitation. The future program should provide for design
changes and reconstruction to increase capacity and safety where
needed and feasible.

2. Primary system: The Federal-aid primary system should be
appropriately adjusted to future needs as developed by the above-
mentioned nationwide study. In most States, there seems little doubt
that this means a large shift of emphasis to urban needs.

96-030—06S
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Moreover, needs studies already made in several States and other
informed judgment indicate the likely desirability of a new “inter-
mediate” subsystem made up of highways only somewhat less impor-
tant that those in the Interstate System providing nearly the same
level of service, but still part of the primary system. '

3. Secondary system: The secondary system should be limited in
all States by congressional action to only the most important secondary
routes. .

4. New Federal-aid metropolitan system: The Institute of Traffic
Engineers strongly supports designation of a new Federal-aid metro-
politan system. About half of all U.S. vehicle-miles of highway travel
are in urban areas, although 14 percent of our total street and highway
mileage is in urban areas and 6 percent of the present Federal-aid
mileage is urban. The trend toward urbanization continues. Urban
highway travel is growing at roughly twice the rate of urban popula-
tion growth. Urban road costs are much higher than rural. Urban
travel patterns are changing with fast-growing needs for crosstown,
belt, and intersuburban routes—in addition to large needs for more
capacity and safety on existing urban arterials. Moreover, recent
comprehensive urban studies show that even with improved public
transportation, rubber and rail, the predominant means of urban
transport will continue to be by automobile and truck. Most trips can
only be served by motor vehicles.

Unquestionably, urban areas are where the major highway trans-
portation problems of the decades ahead will be. Far too little progress
has been made on street and highway needs in urban areas in recent
years. Hence a separate, new Federal-aid metropolitan system is clearly
needed, to include most if not all urban arterial streefs so important
to urban transportation.

The term “metropolitan system” is proposed because there are
usually a number of municipalities in most urban complexes, and in
those cases such a system should be planned on a metropolitan basis.

FEDERAL ATD FOR HIGHWAY TRANSPORTATION—NEW EMPHASES

The role of highway Federal aid is really not to build highways—
or it should not be. The role now and for the future should be to pro-
vide for safe, efficient, and convenient movement of persons and
goods—for the provision of transportation service. The goal should
be to serve people, and while building highways is a very important
part of such a broad goal, it should not be the total goal of Federal
aid for highway transportation. Some other parts of this broadened
goal which now call for inclusion or increased emphasis in Federal
aid follow.

TRAFFIC OPERATIONS

Until recently, the Federal-aid highway program has been directed wholly to
major construction improvements, with traffic engineering features included
only as incidental elements of construction projects.

So states the U.S. Department of Transportation in “1968 National
Highway Needs Report.”

In 1967, the report continues, the Bureau of Public Roads initiated
the TOPICS program whereby “for the first time, the use of available
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Federal-aid highway funds was authorized—and encouraged—for
projects to improve the capacity and safety of existing urban arterials
without major construction, but rather by the systematic and compre-
hensive application of traffic operations and minor construction im-
provements in combination. These include intersection channelization,
trafic control and lighting installations, judicious street widening
at bottlenecks and intersection approaches, and a variety of other
proven engineering techniques * * *.” ’

The Institute of Traffic Engineers strongly concurs, as it does also
-with this further important point in the same report:

To be fully helpful, the TOPICS program will need additional Federal-aid
funds, available for use on all urban arterial streets and highways. Making such
.additional funds available should be considered in the formulation of a future
Federal-aid highway program.

The institute urges the Congress to position the traffic operations
concept strongly in “Federal Aid for Highway Transportation,” be-
cause of its often-demonstrated capacity, efficiency and safety benefits
to highway transportation usually at relatively low costs.

URBAN TFREEWAY OPERATIONS

The operation of freeways within sizable municipalities poses a
dilemma. Freeways by their nature serve through traffic. Their values
are enhanced by consistency of design, signing and other traffic control
devices, police patrolling and enforcement, and emergency service
programs. Nonuniformity in the matter of acceleration and decelera-
tion lanes and of on- and off-ramp location can be very troublesome,
for instance.

Yet local authorities are rightfully concerned about freeway traffic
in its relationship to local streets and terminals. Local streets are
directly affected by onramp metering and other onramp traffic opera-
tions, and by the traffic loads which must be absorbed from offramps.
In the planning of interchanges in municipalities, therefore, local
traffic operational specialists should have an active role because of the
very great effects of such interchanges on urban traffic conditions.

Hence, the institute urges that Federal highway legislation provide
that on freeways on which there is any form of Federal assistance,
and which will affect traffic in municipalities of 10,000 population
or more, concurrence of local authorities shall be obtained in all loca-
tion, design and operational decisions—subject to arbitration by the
Department of Transportation in case of disagreement which State
and local authorities cannot resolve.

SAFETY

The public wants more attention to highway safety. Fortunately,
through the Highway Safety Act of 1966 and its companion act on
vehicle safety, the Congress gave new stature to highway safety, calling
for safety programs in all States meeting national standards and pro-
viding for Federal funds to aid in various aspects of highway safety.
The institute commends those congressional actions and urges that
all necessary measures be taken, including Federal grants, to assure
that the momentum achieved and the effectiveness of the National
Highway Safety Bureau will be continued and even increased.
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TERMINALS

Movement is what is ordinarily thought of when transportation is -
mentioned. But all trips have beginnings and endings, and for many
trips terminals are essential—for example, freight terminals, bus term-
inals, parking terminals. Such terminals are important elements of
highway transportation just as roads and streets are.

As pressures mount for attaining maximum capacity of urban arte-
rials, it will often be realized that if there were adequate offstreet park-
ing spaces available, parking could be eliminated on such arterials with
significant increases in safety and mobility of traffic. Parking terminals
tied to freeways have important values, as'do fringe parking facilities
for coordinating automobile transportation with public transit. Thus
offstreet parking is an essential element of the urban transportation
system. Many similar benefits could be cited for other types of urban
terminals.

It is therefore urged that the Congress consider terminals for
inclusion as part of the proposed program of Federal aid for highway
transportation. Study or demonstration projects might be a wise
way to start.

FUNDING AND MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

The institute recognizes that in addition to deciding what should
be done, the Congress must determine how needed improvements are
to be financed and managed—generally a difficult, thankless task.

The institute makes the following points as to funding and manage-
ment of highway transportation improvements:

1. Funds derived from taxes levied on lighway users and highway
transportation products should be continued and should continue to
be placed in the highway trust fund to be used solely for highway
improvement. :

2. Federal aid funds for the Interstate, primary and secondary
systems are needed for those traditional purposes—as to interstate
funds until the Interstate System is completed. Additional funds
should be provided in the meantime for a metropolitan system, for the
topics and other traffic operational program elements, for safety, and
for warranted parking programs. It seems reasonable that the pro-
posed intermediate subsystem as a distinet part of the primary system
be started upon completion of the Interstate System, utilizing then
newly available highway trust funds but at a lower Federal match-
ing percentage than the present 90 percent for the Interstate System.

3. In future highway legislation, the Congress should specify that
in all street and highway transportation projects to which any form
of Federal assistance is to be applied in municipalities of over 10,000
population, local authorities having street and highway responsibil-
ities, shall participate in all decisions.

4. Further, as to management responsibilities, the institute strongly
favors continuation of the U.S. Bureau of Public Roads as the agency
to administer the Federal share of all Federal-aid highway transporta-
tion funds.

For most Federal-aid allocations to and within States, the State
highway department should continue to have general management
responsibilities. '




331

However, as to the proposed new Federal aid metropolitan system,
the involved local government(s) should be given the opportunity of
full partnership with the State highway department in selecting and
initiating projects and in other decisionmaking—provided that a suit-
able mechanism exists and appropriate procedures are used to assure
reasonable rates of progress.

There may not be a legal metropolitan government agency, but
other effective mechanisms for metropolitan planning and decision-
making such as councils of governments may exist or can be created.
Where legal metropolitan government authority exists, it should have
the main 1f not the sole responsibility for initiating projects in such
metropolitan areas. Where no mechanism exists, consideration should
be given to requiring that it be created. The increasing importance of
the urban problem demands that greater participation by urban
government be provided toward solutions.

URBAN-METROPOLITAN NEEDS

Prior to 1944 only quite small percentages of Federal-aid or State
highway funds were used on urban projects. In 1944, Federal highway
law earmarked 25 percent of Federal aid funds for use in urban areas.
From 1944 to 1956 less than a third of Federal-aid highway funds
were used in urban areas of 5,000 or more population. Furthermore,
for many years urban governments have been able to allocate only very
inadequate funds to their street improvement needs.

Yet from 1920 until now, about half of all vehicle-miles of travel
have been in urban areas. And the per mile costs of urban road
improvements have always been much higher than for rural areas.

In recent years, fast increasing urbanization of population has pro-
duced new attention to urban problems and has importantly shifted
political power in legislatures.

There i1s now much more extensive realization of the importance of
highway transportation to the life and economic well-being of urban
communities. And there is increased acceptance of the appropriateness
of much greater emphasis on, and Federal and State financial aid for,
urban road needs.

In a number of cities there is also realization of the importance and
value of transportation planning and attention to traffic operations—
though in relatively few cities 1s traffic engineering given the status,
support, professional manpower, and budget warranted.

The institute urges the Congress to legislate not only a new Federal
aid metropolitan system but also to provide new funds solely for the
TOPICS program and to make such funds available on all urban
arterial streets and highways. It is urged that the amount of such
funds be not less than 20 percent of Federal aid grants for highways,
exclusive of interstate funds.. o

The institute also urges the Congress to include in such legislation
the provisions which the Bureau of Public Roads included in its
administrative “Guidelines for the Traffic Operations Program To
Increase Capacity and Safety (TOPICS): as follows:

1. Before a TOPICS program can be approved “it must be sup-
ported by a comprehensive areawide plan for traffic operation improve-
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ments, including a program for implementing a significant portion of
the plan within 5 years.”

2. State highway departments must “reach agreement in writing
with local units of government having jurisdiction to the effect that
local governments will establish and maintain a traffic engineering
unit or will make other arrangements which will guarantee the proper
maintenance and operation of the traffic operation improvements
installed.” “* * * if the local government fails to fulfill its agreements
in this regard, such failure will disqualify that municipality from
future Federal-aid participation on projects for which the munici-
pality has maintenance responsibility until such time as a traffic engi-
neering staff satisfactory to the State is properly established and
functioning, and the traffic operation improvements are brought to a
satisfactory condition of maintenance.”

It is recognized that under a sufficiently broad definition of the
proposed new Federal aid metropolitan system to meet the proposed
highway transportation concept, the TOPICS program could be an
integrated part thereof. Indeed, certain advantages could result includ-
ing greater flexibility of action in achieving optimum results and best
benefit-cost ratios. Such integration from the start merits consideration
of the Congress.

MANPOWER AND TRAINING

The Institute of Traffic Engineers again urges the Congress to
legislate provisions for Federal help in developing and maintaining
adequate qualified professionals in all phases of highway transporta-
tion including traffic engineering wherein present professional per-
sonnel deficiencies are large and growing. A nationwide deficiency of
1400 traffic engineers was indicated by a study made a few years ago.

Specific authorization is urged for use of Federal funds for uni-
versity-level undergraduate and graduate education in traffic engineer-
ing, for upgrading courses, and for training of subprofessional
specialists. ’

PLANNING, RESEARCH, AND DEVELOPMENT

The institute believes that it is important that the Congress continue
to make available an adequate percentage of Federal aid funds for
planning, research, and -development.

Such funds have aided urban transportation planning studies and
in development of ways of improving the efficiency and safety of
trafic operations. '

The growing problems of urban areas, increasing highway travel,
freeway operational needs, changing conditions, and other factors call
for much further planning, research, and development for such pur-
poses as to improve capacity and general operations; to reduce hazards;
to develop communications, surveillance and control systems; effec-
tively to interrelate various modes of transportation; to develop
optimum use of rights-of-way by different transportation media; and
to most beneficially relate urban transportation to broad objectives
of community life and development.

The Institute of Traffic Engineers urges the Congress to: 7

1. Require a cooperative comprehensive study of highway
needs, including functional classification of streets and high-
ways.
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2. Continue the present Interstate System, adjust as necessary
the primary system, limit the secondary system, and create a new
metropolitan system, providing funds for each from the highway
trust fund. : e

3. Emphasize the concept of improved operation of the Fed-
eral aid systems by providing new funding for the TOPICS pro-
gram in an amount not less than 20 percent of all non-Interstate
Federal aid money.

4. Consider terminals as a necessary part of the total highway
program. '

5. Involve urban governments more deeply in the planning and
administration of highway projects in urban areas. »

6. Provide funds for education and training of traffic
specialists. , ,

7. Continue its interest in and support for safety, for planning
and for research and development in this field.

The institute appreciates greatly this opportunity to present its
views and recommendations. Thank you.

Mr. Krvuozynsgi. Thank you, Mr. Marsh. This is absolutely a fine
detailed statement. It must have taken you a long time and it would
have taken me months and months to prepare a statement like this.

We are very happy to have you appear before us and this committee.
Your testimony is most helpful. _ ;

I drove a truck in 1912 when there were no roads, so you can imagine
with the hard tires and the chain drive what it was like.

Mr. Marsu. Iremember that.

Mr. KuuczyNsgr I very much appreciate your testimony and it will
be very helpful when we sit down in executive session to write the bill.

Mr. Cramer, any comments or questions?

Mr. Cramer. I want to congratulate you on the statement. It was
obviously a tremendous amount of work that was put into this and
number one, you suggested this needs a study and should be a continu-
ing type of thing. ;

Of course, we wrote into the 1965 act that such a report shall be
made every 2 years so it will be continuing.

* Mr. Marsu. That is fine. '

Mr. Cramer. Are you suggesting in your No. 2 on page 18, sum-
mary recommendations, create a new metropolitan system, as well as
doing these other things, providing funds for these from the highway
trust fund.

Now, of course, you realize that the fund is limited and presently
there is not enough there to take care of this.

Where do you suggest this new metropolitan system money come
from outside of the TOPICS program ?

Mr. MarsH. I would hope, sir, the trust fund would increase very
substantially in the years ahead, according to the indications of traffic
growth, which up to now we have almost always been on the low side
and it would seem to suggest that there ought to be considerable in-
creases in money, which I would hope would exceed the amount that
would be necessary for the expanding program or other parts of the
expanding program. » .

Mr. Cramer. Our best estimates that anticipated revenue means at
best a stretch out of the Interstate System to 1975 at least, and maybe
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to 1978, and that being the case, where does the money for the new
metropolitan system come from ?

Mr. MarsH. We are not, as an organization, in a position to state
anything very significant on that, I am sure. We recognize it as a
serious problem. That we only are emphasizing the plea that because
the urban metropolitan needs are so great and are going to grow, that
there be readjustment in thinking and finally, I must state personally,
I believe this is inevitable. I think it is inevitable within 10 years that
f%here will be marked changes in concepts of what the program calls

or.

Mr. Cramer. Well, I do not disagree with that kind of statement
of yours. However, I do not foresee 1n the next few years at least, of
getting a substantial additional fund from the trust fund, with which
we can go forward with this long range planning of new systems such
as the new metropolitan system and I gather your recommendation
was that we consider the matter in this year.

Mr. Marsa. We would like to see 1t considered right now because
we think it is so urgent, but we recognize the very real problems which
you gentlemen face and I would hate to be facing them myself, but I
think what we are really trying to say is that there just needs to be a
modification in the concept of what we are trying to do and this modi-
fication, if it comes about and I am positive it will, in my own mind,
may help to do something to help in this part of it.

: 1Aside from that fund, it has got to come from taxation and that is
all.

Mr. Kruczynskl. Mr. Clausen?

Mr. Crausen. Mr. Chairman, first I want to pay special commenda-
tion to Mr. Marsh for his testimony before the committee and to bring
to the attention of my colleagues the extraordinary performance,

_the overall effectiveness, of Mr. Marsh when he appeared with the U.S.
delegation before the 10th Pan-American Highway Congress.

I went down to that Congress, representing the committee, Mr.
Chairman, and Mr. Marsh was the most diligent man T have ever seen
performing with our own delegation and I want to welcome him be-
fore the committee as a very efficient delegate.

Mr. Marsh, in your statement, you say that the secondary system
should be limited to only the most important secondary routes.

Now, you know under existing laws, section 103 (c), title 23, of the
United States Code, the secondary system, may include farm and
market roads, county and local rural roads, and so forth.

Now, the question I would like to ask you is, would you define what
you mean by the most important secondary roads and secondly, would
you suggest a chan§e in the definition of the secondary system? )

Mr. Marsa. Well, T think this gets to one basic point. In the first
place, let me be very quick to say that I am sure that no one in the
institute is anything but having a desire to see all of the necessary
roads built in this country.

I think that what is involved here gets to the question of the problem
ahead as far as Federal aid is concerned and the sense of where the
obligation or the responsibility begins and ends.

T think that our thought is that, and know our thought is that as
far as the secondary road, there should be a fairly sharp cutoff with the
idea that other roads still need to be built, but that this is not the
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greatest call for Federal aid, but Federal aid, by the nature of it,
should be for the more important roads.

Now, sir, I am sure that I would be one of the poorest of persons
to attempt to redefine Federal aid. I am a city person. I would not
wish to be in that role at all. :

T would doubt if the institute or any of its officers would want to be
specific in any redefinition though I understand your point perfectly.

I think it is important to bring out this basic point that this sen-
tence is in here and I must say that personally I think it becomes a
very important point if one can stand off and look at the problem in the
overall, and say where are the greatest needs, where can the best serv-
ice be performed for the people of America. ‘

1 think if one does this it 1s doing something about the consideration
of where Federal aid responsibility lies as to the left, sir, of the
secondary roads, be they urban and/or rural.

Mr. Crausen. Actually, Mr. Marsh, I think the fact that you indi-
cated that you are more city oriented probably attempts to explain
why you establish that kind of a priority in your mind where a number
of the people, of course, that come from rural areas would tend to
reflect that point of view, and with this in mind, when Governor
Rockefeller from the State of New York was here before the commit-
tee, we were discussing the method of allocation for sewage treatment
and discussing the method of allocation for sewage treatment plants
and that sort of thing and at that time, I brought up the fact that sta-
tistically we find that the 70 percent of the people in this country are
living on 1 percent of the land, and I think that this is a little on the
ridiculous side.

I believe with a change in our revenue allocations and some of our
formulas for financing public facilities, including sewage treatment
plants and/or roads that we might be able to conceivably provide quite
a bit of pressure relief in these major cities by actually improving the
opportunity for rural America to absorb a portion of this population
that is now seeking opportunities and adding to the burdens of the
problems in the urban areas.

While I will not prolong it, I did want to at least convey to you what
some of us are very much concerned about, because we have this prob-
lem in California. , ,

‘We have many people going into the Los Angeles Basin and being a
native myself, I try to relate the entire State of California to that with
which I am familiar. If you were to distribute your population in an
airplane on the same pro rata basis as we have in California, it would
not fly. We need to balance out the population patterns of the people
in this country and the economy and relieve some of the pressures on
the cities.

Mr. Magsa. This sentence does not represent my thought. It is the
representation of a composite group of a number who are rural
oriented and which I am not. I am city oriented. ,

I understand your point, sir, and I have great sympathy for it and
I would like to say again with utter sincerity that I have the greatest
symﬁabhy for the needs of the people in rural areas.

This is just a question of how you come to the hard business of where
the basic and major responsibilities are and, even if we do not think
that some people should be in urban areas, that is where they are. They
seem to be growing.
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Mr. Crausen. I do not think they necessarily have to stay there.
There are a great many values out in rural America.

Mr. MarsH. I agree.

Mr. CLauseN. Some of these people need a little access.

Mr. MarsH. I agree.

Mr. Crausen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. KroczyNsgI. Any further questions? ’

Thank you, Mr. Marsh. You have done a wonderful job.

The next witness will be Mr. Emerson Rhyner, deputy chief counsel,
California Division of Highways, accompanied by Mr. Sam Helwer,
California deputy State highway engineer.

Mr. Crausen. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I might be recognized just
briefly to extend my personal welcome to these gentlemen for taking
their time and my appreciation for their appearance before this
committee.

I want you to know, Mr. Chairman, that you now have before you
what I think are the most qualified men in roadbuilding in America
today. I am not at all prejudiced. ; ’

Mr. Kruczynskr Nice to have you, Mr. Rhyner and Mr. Helwer.

STATEMENT OF EMERSON RHYNER, DEPUTY CHIEF COUNSEL,
CALIFORNIA DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS, ACCOMPANIED BY MR.

SAM HELWER, CALIFORNIA DEPUTY STATE HIGHWAY ENGI-
NEER

Mr. Rey~er. We want to thank you for the opportunity to testify
before your committee. There are four subjects which we would like
to discuss briefly. They are:

1. Cost estimates for the Interstate System ;

2. Additionsto the Interstate System ;

3. The TOPICS program;

4. Relocation assistance.

COST ESTIMATES FOR THE INTERSTATE SYSTEM

One of our major concerns is that the apportionment factors used
for the Interstate System in the draft legislation prepared by the
Department of Transportation for the Federal-Aid %ighway Act of
1968 do not include the cost of the Century Freeway which has been
added to the Interstate System in San Francisco in 1965. It is our
understanding that appropriate adjustments will be made in the
apportionment factors to reflect the inclusion of the Century Freeway
in the Interstate System in California. The reason we bring this to
your attention at this time is that if for some reason the appropriate
adjustments in the apportionment factors were not made, it would
seriously impair our ability to complete the Interstate System on a
timely basis, particularly so in view of the recent addition of the
Century Freeway.

INTERSTATE ADDITIONS

With respect to additions to the Interstate System, our basic posi-
tion is that there should be no additions to the presently authorized
41,000 miles except as already provided by existing law.
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As in the past, we continue to strongly support the present inter-
state program. It is a vital element in the Nation’s transportation
system. We urge that every effort be made to achieve its completion
as expeditiously as possible.

We also recognize that to insure the proper functioning of the
presently designated system, it may be necessary to make certain
adjustments or minor additions to the system. We would be hopeful,
however, that these adjustments or minor additions could be made
within the present 41,000 mile limitation as modified by the provisions
of Public Law 90-238. With the completion of the presently desig-
nated Interstate System we will have established a backbone network
of highways which will provide the base upon which to build or im-
prove the remaining intra-State routes which are so vital to the eco-
nomic welfare of the individual States, and which also provide the
necessary feeders to the Interstate System.

‘While we are in full agreement with the method used to accomplish
completion of the presently designated Interstate System, which
method established a fixed System, assured financing, and a set com-
pletion date—we are concerned about the effect that a continuation
of this inflexible approach would have on other vitally important
highway routes.

The fixed system with its mandatory completion date has had an
adverse effect on eliminating highway deficiencies on other important
State routes in California, many of which have higher priority than
certain portions of the Interstate System. In many instances we have
found it necessary to construct certain portions of the Interstate
System far in advance of need when compared to other State high-
Wa%ys which are presently deficient in terms of both congestion and
safety. )

Before expanded interstate or other Federal-aid systems are con-
sidered, we strongly urge that a comprehensive study be made. We
believe a uniformly administered functional classification and needs
study is necessary to develop a sound, continuing Federal-aid high-
way program. This should include determination of the extent of the
Federal-aid system, or systems. This study should include all high-
ways, roads and streets, not just the present Federal-aid systems. It is
our opinion that only after such studies are completed can a proper
assessment be made of the relative extent of responsibilities of Fed-
eral, State, and local jurisdictions. ,

If there is to be a substantial expansion of the Interstate System at
this time, without benefit of a functional classification and needs
study, we would of course have to make a complete reassessment of
our needs. The mileage amount of such an expansion would be of
prime importance. We have vitally important routes such as U.S. 50,
U.S. 101, and U.S. 895, among others, that might be included in such
an expanded system. We would reiterate, however, that we strongly
urge a comprehensive study before any major modifications in the
Interstate program are made.

TOPICS PROGRAM

First, we are in complete agreement with the éoncepts and ob-
jectives of the TOPICS program. In California we have encouraged
local jurisdictions to give even greater attention to maximizing the



338

capacity and safety of their road and street systems by application of
the principles envisioned in the TOPICS program.

Encouragement alone is not enough, of course. The Legislature in
California has taken a positive role in providing the necessary fund-
ing for local road and street improvements. A substantial portion of
revenues from highway users is now allocated to California cities.
and these allocations are controlled by the State legislature. The stat-
utory programs which have been developed in California for allocat-
ing highway user revenues to the various highway, road and street
systems are based on exhaustive studies of the total transportation.
needs of the State. For this reason we believe that the TOPICS pro-
gram should be made permissive rather than mandatory so that each
State can continue to allocate its total resources to the various high-
Way(ri, road and street systems in accordance with their individual
needas.

Because of the massive transportation needs in our urban areas
we strongly urge that the funds proposed for the TOPICS program
be required to be used in urban areas but on a permissive basis with
respect to the specific type of improvements envisioned in the
TOPICS program. In this way other types of improvements essential
to the proper functioning of the total urban transportation network
would be provided for.

Our recommendation for your consideration is that the $250 million
annual apportionment proposed for use exclusively in the Topics pro-
gram be instead added to the urban portion of the present ABC pro-
gram. This would insure their availability not only for the Topics
program but also for other needed urban transportation improve-
ments. Only in this way do we believe that a truly functional and
balanced urban highway transportation system can be achieved.

RELOCATION ASSISTANCE

The last subject which we would like to comment on is relocation
assistance. v

In some areas in California, freeway locations require the acquisi-
tion of large volumes of low-cost housing in economically depressed
areas. For example, in Watts we will displace 2,600 families. Many of
those displaced are in owner-oceupied, single-family dwelling units.
Comparable low-cost housing is not available to meet the needs of this
volume of displaced families.

The concept of market value alone will not provide equity in this
situation. In Watts, there is no real active market. The withdrawal
of normal economic forces since the riots has made loans for the
purchase and sale of homes almost unavailable. Hence, where sales
do not occur, market value cannot be determined by ordinary pro-
cedures; if a sale does occur, the distressed economic conditions that
exist depress values.

In these cases, where the public agency is seeking to achieve equity
for the property owner, the criteria should be to provide adequate
~ replacement housing. The Department of Public Works has been con-
cerned with and has been actively studying this very real urban prob-
lem for quite some time.
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Legislation has been introduced in California, AB 1072 (Ralph).
This bill provides that the Department of Public Works may acquire
property outside of the freeway right-of-way, and it may contract
with public and private organizations for the development of replace-
ment housing. For example, one of the replacement procedures we are
considering in Watts is moving houses. We are acquiring many single
family homes for the freeways we are building in Los Angeles. We
propose to purchase a large vacant parcel and move on sound single
family residences to provide some of the replacement housing needs
for those displaced in Watts.

We believe that in such circumstances, since Government is respon-
sible for the displacement of families, Government should also be
responsible to insure that adequate replacement housing is available.
Replacement housing, and not the direct payment of money, should be
the objective of any such program.

For this reason, we do not feel that a bonus payment would in and
of itself provide adequate replacement housing. In our opinion, pay-
ment of a bonus would result in general inflation in the real estate
market and would not necessarily provide the needed replacement
housing. On the other hand, replacement housing can be provided
without inflation, both by the public and private sector, through pro-
grams which would develop replacement housing.

This entire principle, of course, does not apply to persons who do
not have low income and who do not live in economically depressed
areas. For all other property owners, the payment of market value
is normally adequate and, together with adequate reimbursement for
moving costs, is sufficient to enable them to relocate in comparable
residences.

As we have indicated, we have been concerned with this problem for
some time. During the time that applications were made by the State
of California to place the Century Freeway on the Interstate System,
we proposed that this concept be used in the Watts area to take care
of the homeowners who lived there. When the Department of Trans-
portation approved the State’s application, it directed that the urban
design plan for the project include, where desirable, relocation hous-
ing. For this reason, together with the fact that we believe that thesa
principles are very worth while and desirable, clear authorization
should be given to the Department of Transportation to reimburse the
State for the Federal share of the cost of this activity.

Mr. Kruczynskr. That has been a very fine statement. It was brief
and to the point.

Like you said, and for this reason, we believe that the Topics pro-
gram should be made permissive rather than mandatory.

Now, we try to do something for both the people who are moved
because of the Federal bulldozers going into the community and the
construction of roads. We would pay the family $200, is that right?

Mr. REYNER. Yes, sir.

Mr. Kroozynsgr. And we would pay $3,000 for a business.

Mr. Rav~Eer. Yes, sir.

Mr. Kruczynsgr That is not nearly enough. We are trying to do
something.

The gentleman from Florida.

Mr. Cramzr. I yield to my colleague from California, Mr. Clausen.
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Mr. Kvuczynskr. Mr. Clausen from California.

Mcr. CrauseN. Thank you again, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Rhyner, you say we also recognize to insure the proper func-
tioning of the designated system, it may be necessary to make certain
adjustments or minor revisions to the system. We would be hopeful
that these adjustments could be made within the 41,000.

I want to make sure the record shows that we who benefit by public
law 90-238 are not going to foreclose the opportunity on some of the
other States just because we, in effect, have had our problems resolved
and because there are certain areas where there is a need for modifica-
tion and/or adjustment and I know that some of the members of the:
committee themselves have personal problems.

As I understand it, you certainly have by no means attempted to-
foreclose on any other provisions or adjustments.

Mr. ReY~ER. No, sir. ‘

Mr. Cr.ausex. Because I know that there are certain adjustments we
think have to be made much in the same way we found ourselves
frankly trapped in some of these areas and we simply had to come up
with some additional mileage to solve the problem.

Mr. Ravyner. Mr. Clausen, California’s most appreciative and I
want to underline the word most, the most appreciative to this com-
mittee and to the Congress for saving our necks practically on the
lost San Francisco mileage and enabling us, through legislation to get
the century instead. It would be inexcusable if we, having obtained
that, foreclosed other States with similar problems.

Mr. Crausex. Iam sure this is exactly what you meant and I wanted
to be certain, however, that you had an opportunity to clearly state this
on the record. ,

Then finally, Mr. Chairman, I just have one thing that I would like
to ask unanimous consent to have added to the record, following their
testimony, and that is an item that was sent to me by Mr. Gordon
Lewis, the Secretary of Transportation for the State of California,
and it is a resolution passed by the Western Governor’s Conference
following their 1968 annual meeting and it contains certain basic rec-
ommendations relating to the Federal highway trust fund. I would
like to have that put in the record at this point.

Mr. Kroczysskr. Without objection, it is so ordered.

(The resolution referred te follows:)

XIV. FEDERAL HIGHWAY TRUST FUND

Whereas upon completion of the federal interstate highway program there
will be highway needs to be met in each state; and

Whereas an overly large federal program restricts flexibility of the individual
states to meet their own problems; and

Whereas administrative costs in Washington, D.C., have reduced the amount
of funds available for highways in each state; and

Whereas the recent highway cutback damaged proper highway planning,
caused higher right of way and construction costs, and had an adverse effect on
the economy of some states: now, therefore, be it

Resolved, That the 1968 Annual Meeting of the Western Governor's Confer-
ence in Honolulu, Hawaii, vigorously opposes reductions in highway funds; and
be it further

Resolved, That Congress be asked to prevent future deferrals from hindering
state highway programs; and be it further.

Resolved, That after completion of the interstate system, federal participation
be continued in the form of block grants to allow states to meet their individual
transportation needs; and be it further
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Resolved, That highway funds should not be diverted to other transportation
needs without approval of the states; and be it further

Resolved, That copies of this resolution be distributed to the President of the
United States, the Secretary of Transportation, the House Ways and Means
Committee, the Senate Finance Committee, the Public Works Committees of
both Houses of Congress, and the Governors of all States.

Mr. Kruozynskr. Gentlemen, I want you to know you have two out-
standing Members of Congress on this committee, Mr. Johnson and
Mzr. Clausen, one a Democrat and one a Republican. This committee
is not Democratic or Republican. This is an all-American committee. I
am sure your testimony will be very beneficial to all members of the
committee.

Mz. Dorn, do you have any questions or comments?

Mr. Dorn. No questions, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Krvozynski. Mr. Cramer ?

Mr. Cramer. Following up on the question of the gentleman from
California, I have, of course, been one of the supporters of the mile-
age adjustment legislation under the public law, fully realizing what
the effect would be in many States, in Florida, California, and many
other States, moneywise and for other reasons.

I thought it was an equitable adjustment and I am glad to see it
was made.

You suggested there are certain other adjustments, perhaps, that
would in effect make the system more serviceable and according to your
letter of May 20, I gather you have a similar view as it relates to some-
what limited mileage, such as extension of Interstate 605 from the
present terminus of interstate, northerly to Interstate 210, 5.5 miles;
second, the connection between extension Interstate 580 and 680 in
Alameda County, Calif., 14.8 miles.

I gather those are the type of adjustments that you feel would be
justified in this committee giving consideration to, before the terminal
date, of the interstate, which looks like now it may be as late as 1978.
Is that correct?

Mr. Ruy~er. Yes; that was sent in answer to a telegram from the
chairman, Mr. Cramer, and in asking for a minimum amount of miles
and we have picked those out as two minor adjustments which would
be deisrable to the State.

Mr. Cramer. So if adjustments are made to needs, you do not have
any objection to those being considered ?

Mr. Ruay~er. No, sir.

Mr. Cramer. I am very interested in your suggestion with regard
to this TOPICS program on page 4 being permissive rather than
mandatory, so that if the State wanted to use some of its apportioned
money for this purpose, rather than construction purposes or presently
'3uth0rized programs, they could do so, but they could not be forced to

0 so.

Mr. Ray~er. That is the intent of our statement; yes.

Mr. CramEr. You suggested $250 million annual apportionment of
the TOPICS program to be added to the urban pertion of the present
ABC system. That money, of course, the additional $250 million would
have to come from some place.

Where do you suggest that it come from ?

Mr. Ruayner. First of all, Mr. Cramer, that was the amount set
forth in the Department of Transportation bill and we just took it out.
of that. It really isn’t our suggestion.
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Mr. CraMer. Whatever the amount is. :

Mr. ReyNER. It isn’t our suggestion as to the amount. Let me say
that we think that the TOPICS program is a good worthwhile
program. , '

It would obviously have to come out of the interstate money and in
weighing priorities, I would think that you would have to give priority
to the interstate and the ABC program, even though I think TOPICS
is very desirable.

Mr. Cramer. In other words, to make sure I understand your recom-
mendation, it is that if there is no added money made available
for TOPICS, that your position would be to go ahead and make
TOPICS a permissible to those States that want to spend some of
their allocation for that purpose and those States that do not, would
not have to expend that apportionment for that $250 million program
if they didn’t want to. :

Mr. Rey~er. Yes,sir.

Mr. Craner. Now on relocation assistance, we are all looking for
guidance relating to this and certainly you have had this experience
and it is most helpful.

Tt is a very interesting concept of providing for replacement housing
and for possibly moving some of these structures themselves.

Does that include State programing, public housing of some sort
in addition for relocation purposes on this property acquired for
relocation?

Mr. Rey~Eer. Let me say first, Mr, Cramer, that we are in the forma-
tive stages of a new program and I cannot be too definite today, as
definite as I would like to be.

I think, however, that I can say with reasonable certainty it is our
intention to contract with other governmental agencies, the redevelop-
ment agencies, the city and county of Los Angeles, and so forth, and
have them construct these redevelopment places and maintain them
and operate them with the State contributing toward the cost and also
contracting with the private sector to have the private sector do it
again with some contribution from the State.

Mr. Cravsex. If the gentleman would yield, is this not basically the
objective of the administration and the recommendation in AD 1072¢

Mr. Rey~er. Yes. We want to get the private sector in, Mr. Clausen,
as well as local governmental agencies.

Mr. CLauseN. So you contract with them.

Mr. Rex~Er. Yes,sir.

Mr. CranEer. I am sympathetic toward that approach obviously. Let
me ask you a couple of questions relating to that. :

Is it your understanding that the present law permits—that is,
the Federal law, permits the Federal Government to pay a portion of
the cost of the acquisition of property for the purpose of moving these
relocated houses?

Mr. Rey~er. 1 doubt it, Mr. Cramer, although I would not want
to foreclose myself from raising the point later on.

The Federal Government, as I understand, the Federal Highway
Act, reimburses the State for the cost of the right-of-way. If that was
put in the Federal act many years ago and at that time 1 do not think
the definition of right-of-way contemplated this activity.

Now, definitions have changed over the course of the years and
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the courts have changed them somewhat radically from time to time,
so I cannot say with certainty.

Mr. Cramzr. Have you gotten any clearances or explored with the
Bureau of Public Roads the concept which you have explained here
with the Federal Government paying an equal share to what the
cost of acquiring a house would be, the fair market value for the pur-
pose of investing in the property on which it is to be relocated ?

Mr. Ruyner. No, we have not, Mr. Cramer.

Mr. Crazxigr. You do not know whether that is permissible under
the present law?

Mr. Ruvner. We have not gotten it and I would not anticipate
that we would get it until we have a firmer plan.

Mr. Cramer. As I understand the bill involved, and I think it is
quite interesting, the reason that I am taking this time, I compliment
California, but section 135.5 of it says, the Department may acquire
either in fee or in any lessor any unimproved or unoccupied real prop-
erty or real property not for residential use to provide replacement
houses for economically displaced areas, and so forth, displaced be-
cause of Federal highway construction and what have you.

That authorization took the Department to acquire the land, there
has been no advance clearance of any sort with the Bureau of Public
Roads, the Department of Transportation, that that acquisition cost
could be reimbursed in any portion by the Federal Government as a
relocation cost.

Mr. Rey~zr. There has not been a clearance. We have been dis-
cussing this in working with them, but as far as getting a clearance,
we do not have it, Mr. Cramer.

Mr. CramErR. Now, how about what happens under this program
to those who do not want to have their houses moved to a replace-
ment area ? What option do they have ?

Mr. Ruy~er. That is one of the first questions that I asked,
Mr. Cramer, and it is a good question.

The only think I can say is number one, we would try to make the
end result attractive enough so that most of the people would want
to do it. If they do not, we cannot force them.

The only thing that we can do is to pay them what we or a court
determines is the fair market value of the existing dwelling and I do
not know where else you would go.

Mr. Cramer. Actually, so far as those persons are concerned who
may not be happy with the house they are in, they would not care to
have it moved someplace else and would get no relief under this pro-
posed program.

Mr. Ruy~er. Unless we can come up with something, they would
not.

Mzr. Cranzer. Does this permit you to negotiate or your plan to
negotiate with owners of present houses as to whether they might be
interested in occupying some other house that you have purchased as
an alternative and are willing to move to this relocation area?

Mr. Ruy~er. Yes, it does.

Mr. CraMEeR. I just have one other question and I think this opens
up some pretty interesting ideas.

Relocation obviously is a serious problem that we have to deal with.

A proposal has been made for advance acquisition of the right-of-

96-030—68——23
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way. California has made more advance use of that concept or as
much as any State that I know of.

Will you describe what you consider to be the advantages of having
advanced acquisition ?

Mr. Rhyner. As was indicated this morning, Mr. Cramer, California
has approximately $30 million in a revolving fund and it has had it for
a good number of years.

Right-of-way is acquired under that fund for two basic purposes,
the first is a hardship case where a freeway is not going to be built
for several years and for one reason or another, the owner has not
moved.

The other reason is a matter of stopping. It is very extensive im-
provements which are going to be placed on the property and in those
Instances, the State confidently says it has saved at least $100 million.
I am confident of that figure. It is just amazing, and I think that a
revolving fund in this respect is most important because it keeps
replenishing itself.

We have $30 million and I note that the Department of Transporta-
tion bill has $100 million in it, so you can compare the two and Cali-
fornia can be compared against the 50 States. '

Mr. Cramer. By that you think the $100 million is inadequate ?

Mr. Ruay~er. It may be if it is going to accomplish the entire
purpose.

Mr. Craxer. The bill T proposed contained $100 million at 3 years
and at the end of 3 years it would be $1 million in a revolving fund.

Mr. Herwer. I would say $300 million for 50 States would probably
not be too much.

Mr. Crayer. Do you limit the expenditures under your program
to the two categories you described, hardship and preventing improve-
ments so that it would cost more later ¢

Mr. Ruy~er. No, this is the matter of the policy of the California
Highway Commission.

There is a provision in State law that we cannot acquire property
for any other purpose, other than those two purposes without having
a freeway agreement from the local people.

Once we have a freeway agreement, then it is a matter of policy
of the California Highway Commission and they have passed a resolu-
tion. ‘

Mr. Craxer. By freeway agreement, do you have an approved loca-
tion as determined by the procedures or what ?

Mr. RayNER. A freeway agreement is entered into under California
law between the State and the local governmental agency involved
whereby the local agency agrees that we may close certain streets and
until that is done, as I say, we only acquire for these two purposes
under State law, and actually as a practical matter, those are the
only two purposes that it is used for.

Mr. CradEer. You have any limitation on how long after the loan
has been paid and in effect from the revolving fund a highway must
be constructed or a limitation on when it may be constructed, first when
it has to be constructed within a certain number of years or cannot be
constructed within a certain number of years?

Mr. Herwer. If construction is imminent, and by that I mean within
5 years, we do not use this fund.
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Mr. CramEr. You use 5 instead of 77

Mr. HeLwer. That is right, but as to a limit as to when the freeway
must be ultimately constructed, I do not know of any.

Mr. Cramer. The bill I propose has that it cannot be constructed
in less than 2 years and obviously not permit the money to be spent
for immediate and contemplated construction which means present
construction, of course, or present allocation.

Mr. Herwer. Two years is probably too short. You should be
acquiring normal right-of-way 2 years ahead of construction or you
will not have the right-of-way clearance.

b Mr. Cramer. Well, thank you very much. You have been very
elpful.

Mr. Krvuozynskr Thank you, gentlemen, as you know we have 34
members on this committee. Every State in the Union we would like
to have represented on this, which is one of the most important
committees.

In California you are very fortunate to have three members on this
committee.

Your presence here today, you did a wonderful job and you were
very helpful.

Mr. Cramer. We might ask one more question, Mr. Chairman.

What is your reaction to this fringe parking program or proposal?

Mr. Rey~NEr. In our answer to Ashville we stated that we would
not oppose it so long as it was permissive, that as long as it was left
up to the State what to do on that, we would not oppose it.

However, if it were made mandatory we would oppose it very
strongly.

We felt as long as it was within the discretion of the State we would
go along with it.

I might add this is a serious constitutional problem as far as Cali-
fornia 1s concerned on the matching money.

Article 26 of our constitution says that gas tax money can only be
used for the construction and the acquisition of rights-of-way for high-
ways, and that does not include parking.

As far as California is concerned, there is a constitutional question
which undoubtedly precludes it.

Mr. Cramer. If California would not exercise the discretion that
you are suggesting, it might be given to other States.

Mr. Ruy~NER. Not unless the people amended their constitutions.

Mr. Cramer. Thank you.

Mr. Kruczynskr. The last witness today will be Mr. William D.
Hagenstein, representing the Industrial Forestry Association of Port-
land, Oreg.

Mr. Hagenstein, we are very happy to have you before the committee.
You may proceed as you wish.

STATEMENT OF W. D. HAGENSTEIN, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT,
INDUSTRIAL FORESTRY ASSOCIATION, PORTLAND, OREG.

Mr. HagensteIn. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my
name is W. D. Hagenstein and I reside in Portland, Oreg. I am a
professional forester and a registered professional engineer in the
States of Washington and Oregon. I am executive vice president
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of the Industrial Forestry Association which has been working for a
permanent timber supply for the forest industry of the douglas fir
region in western Washington and western Oregon for 34 years.

Industrial Forestry Association consists of 105 companies and in-
dividuals in the business of growing and harvesting timber and manu-
facturing lumber, pulp and paper, plywood and veneer, shingles and
shakes, hard and soft boards, poles and piling, doors, furniture, and
other forest products. Qur members operate more than 400 wood-using
plants, conduct more than 200 different logging operations and employ
more than 80,000 people. The annual payroll of their employees ex-
ceeds $500 miilion.

Industrial Forestry Association first urged Congress to authorize
an adequate system of timber access roads in the national forests in
1947. It supported increased authorizations for forest development
roads and trails before your committee and the comparable committee
in the Senate in 1952, 1954, 1957, 1958, 1960, 1962, 1964, and 1966.

This has been our consistent position since we knew that without
timber access roads the national forests cannot contribute their right-
ful share to the Nation’s economy as envisioned by Congress in the
act of June 4, 1897 (30 Stat. 35, 16 U.S.C. 475) when it decreed that
one of the two principal objectives of the national forests was “to
furnish a continuous supply of timber for the use and necessities of
the people of the United States.”

In the last 5 years our members have purchased one-third of the
national forest timber sold in our region and they buy a significant
amount of logs produced by independent loggers from national forests.
We have extensive knowledge of the necessity for timber access roads
because our industry builds, as part of its timber sale contracts, more
than $30 million worth of roads for the Government in our region
annually.

Only a few pertinent data are necessary to make the case for an
adequate system of timber access roads in the national forests of
Washington and Oregon. What we set forth for our own two States
applies to all other States where national forests contain an important
part of America’s timber supply.

‘Washington and Oregon have three out of every eight trees in
the Nation’s timber supply. From them we produce about one-fourth
of all the forest products consumed by the American people annually.
The annual value of our forest crop is $2.6 billion. It furnishes an
annual payroll of more than $1 billion to more than 155,000 people.
This is our largest individual payroll, unsubsidized in every respect,
and backstops 50 percent of our region’s basic economy.

Because of the renewability of timber through forestry, we can
continue to live off our trees, providing the principal forest ownership,
the national forests, does its part. And this means continued capital
investment in timber access roads until every national forest is de-
lv;elqped for the growing and harvesting of trees on a permanent

asis.

Washington’s national forests have close to half of the State’s total
timber supply (table 1?); in Oregon considerably more than half
(table 2). The national forests were the last major forest ownership
to be placed under constructive forest management, largely due to
their relative inaccessibility until slightly more than a decade ago.

1See p. 349,

L
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As timber access roads have been built, however, the contribution of
the national forests to our annual timber harvest has been improving
steadily as the record of the last decade reveals.

In Washington the national forests have in the last decade
doubled their contribution to the annual timber harvest in some years
and overall are playing a significantly greater role in the State’s
economy (table 3 2).

In Oregon the national forests doubled their contribution to the
annual timber harvest from 1957 to 1966 and overall are also playing
a very significant role in the State’s economy (table 4 ).

The full allowable cut was attained on the national forests of
Washington for the first time in 1963. The full allowable cut was at-
tained on the national forests of Oregon for the first time in 1959.
Never before had the Forest Service been able to achieve its sustained
yield goal of forest management. Primary reason for previous failure
to meet this desirable objective for our economy was lack of timber
access roads.

Table 5 * shows the rising trend of both alloeations of appropriated
road money and the 10 percent road and trail fund which have greatly
increased the potential of the national forests in our region to harvest
their full allowable cut and thus make a maximum contribution to
employment.

But table 6 5 shows the major share of the roads have been built by
purchasers as part of their national forest timber sale contracts in
the last decade.

To put the making of our Federal forests accessible for management
in proper perspective let me say that the forest industry is the coun-
try’s fourth largest. We employ more than 1.5 million people, pay
wages of $714 billion annually and add more than $30 billion to the
GNP. About one-fourth of our raw material comes from Federal
lands, so Government forests directly provide more than one-third of
amillion jobs. And the key isroads.

Testimony before your committee has been that more timber access
roads in Federal forests are still needed to allow the agencies to do a
better job of forestry and increase the annual timber harvest. Your
committee has often stated the Nation should realize full value from
its Federal forests. We ask that the Forest Service and the Bureau of
Land Management channel the funds authorized by the pending bill
and their road construction efforts to making the maximum amount of
commercial timber accessible for harvest and use.

These agencies should be reminded that it is the declared policy of
Congress that Federal timber offered for sale should not bear any more
of the road costs on multiple-use roads than is properly attributable to
timber harvest and haul. This means that in many instances it will be
necessary to use appropriated funds to supplement the construction of
roads installed by timber purchasers.

In these times of national fiscal crises this Congress cannot in good
conscience be asked to authorize appropriations of this magnitude by
this committee without insisting that priority be given to financing
roads that will return their costs to the Treasury. Timber access road
authorization is cne of the few cases where the (Government is operat-
ing a huge commercial business. The citizens of our country are the
proprietors of Federal commercial forest lands totaling 113 million

2 See p. 349.
3 See p. 350.
4 See p. 350.
5 See p. 351.
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acres. The management of this huge area, larger than the State of
California and which now’ grosses about $200 million annually from
the sale of timber, depends on timber access roads. With proper road
development the income from these lands to the Government can be
Increased substantially.

It would be poor business not to insist that these properties be man-
aged to produce to their fullest capacity consistent with sound forest
management principles. Therefore, it is imperative that funds author-
ized by this bill be used for construction of roads which will produce
the maximum returns to the economy and the Treasury.

We also recommend that forest road construction plans be carefully
examined to seek reductions in costs per mile to the lowest practical
level. Many roads can be built to workmanlike standards for timber
harvest now and be upgraded later to handle anticipated future traffic
and uses.

Your committee has recognized over the years the exceptionally
long-term type of considerations that are necessary for forest manage-
ment. The same principles apply to forest road planning. We suggest
that the agencies give full consideration to interest rates, that is the
cost of money, when considering construction standards, that are based
on a quantity and kind of road use anticipated in the future. Even
if total outlay might be greater for stage construction by taking into
account the elapsed time between outlays and the consequent applica-
tion of the discount principal, true cash outlay for stage construction
may be the lesser total cost. This principle is particularly important
now when interest rates are at an all-time high and when the need for
economy in Government spending is so imperative.

Industrial Forestry Association supports enactment of an authori-
zation for forest development roads and trails for the fiscal years
ending June 30, 1970, and June 80, 1971, at the same level of $170
million per year as per the bill enacted 2 years ago. We believe this
essential if the national forests are to be continually developed for
sale and harvest of their full allowable timber cut and any increased
allowable cuts resulting from new inventories which reflect improved
technology of the wood-using industry.

As in 1958, 1960, 1962, 1964, and 1966, we would again seek the
committee’s serious consideration of our recommendation that the au-
thorization for forest development roads and trails be segregated into
two items; namely, («) construction and (&) maintenance. This is
essential to assure the authorization of adequate funds to maintain
the ever increasing mileage of the permanent timber access and other
roads on the national forests. Segregation of the two main items in
our opinion would assist the Appropriations Committees in their
analysis and justification of the Forest Service budget request for
road funds.

We again appreciate the opportunity of supporting reenactment of
the biennial authorization of funds for timber access roads and would
be glad to provide the committee with any further information desired
on this subject from our operating region in Oregon and Washington.

(Charts referred to in Mr. Hagenstein’s statement follow:)
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TABLE 1.—OWNERSHIP OF LIVE SAWTIMBER ON COMMERCIAL FOREST LANDS IN WASHINGTON,
JAN. 1, 1963

[In billion board feet, log scale]

Volume 1 Percentage
Public:
National forest. ... .o e 166.0 44.5
Other PUbC 2o oo oo oo e 65.8 17.6
1 231.8 62.1
4 1371 141.3 37.9
Grand total o eeaaen 373.1 100.0

1Source: Timber Trends in the United States. U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Resource Report No. 17. 1965.
2 Includes public domain, Indian, State, County, and municipal lands.

TABLE 2.—OWNERSHIP OF LIVE SAWTIMBER ON COMMERCIAL FOREST LANDS IN OREGON, JAN. 1, 1963

[in billion board feet, log scale]

Volume ? Percentage
Public:
National forest. i 298.9 55.7
Other public 2. - e 96.7 18.1
R 395.6 73.8
PrIVaYe  « o e 140.7 26.2
Grand total e 536.3 00.0

1 Source: Timber Trends in the United States. U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Resource Report No. 17. 1965.
2 Includes 0. & C., public domain, Indian, State, county, and municipal lands.

TABLE 3.—TIMBER HARVESTED BY OWNERSHIPS IN WASHINGTON, 1957-66
[In thousand board feet, log scale]

. National ~ Public domain
Calendar year Private forests and na;ional Indian State Total
parks
................... 2,530,700 900, 100 19,900 194,700 404, 700 4,050, 100
Percent total_ . 5) . 2) (0.5 4.8 gm. 0) (100.
58 - 2,291, 300 1, 026, 700 17,500 238, 400 305, 200 3,879,100
Percent total . ., (26. §‘4 (6.1) 7.9 (100
959 ... 2,817,500 1,437,400 20,500 304, 200 289, 200 4,868, 800
Percent total_ (57.9) (29.5) (.4) (6.3) X (100.0)
........ 3,000, 100 1,181,000 17,800 255,900 272,000 4,726, 800
Percent total. . 5) 3 (.4 (5.4) G.7) (100. 0)
1961 2,335, 000 891, 700 3,900 122,200 285, 400 3,638, 200
Percent total §64. 2) (24.5) (.1 (3.4) (7.8) §100. 0)
........ 2,644,900 1,096, 100 4,300 121,900 292, 500 4,159,700
Percent total_ (63.6 (26.4 (.1 2.9) (7.0) (100, 0)
........ 2,934, 600 1, 583, 300 1,800 338, 600 1569, 400 5,427,700
Percent total_ 4. 0) . 2) (.1 (6.2) (10. 5) (100.
........ 3,503, 600 1, 845, 000 13,900 424,200 1574, 800 6,361, 500
Percent total_ (55.1 29.0) (.2 ®6.7) 9.0) (100, 0)
eeem 3,590, 923 1,720, 030 25,159 459,740 1725, 863 6,521,775
Percent total 355. 1 (26.4) (.4 (7.0) ;11. 1 100. 0)
3,459, 617 1,572, 825 24,566 430,930 1587, 456 6,075,394
(56.9) (25.9) 4) a1 o.7 (100. 0)
ti 29,108,240 13,254,215 149, 325 2,890,770 4,306,519 49,709, 069
Average for period 2,910, 824 1,325,421 ,932 289,077 430, 652 4,970, 907
Percent.._.._. (58.6) (26.7) 3 (8.6) (100. 0)

1 Includes volume cut from county and municipal lands.

Note: Data furnished by Washington Department of Natural Resources, Olympia, Wash., and Pacific Northwest Forest
and Range Experiment Station, Portland, Oreg.
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TABLE 4.—TIMBER HARVESTED BY OWNERSHIPS IN OREGON, 1957-€6

[in thousand board feet, log scale}

Calendar year Private 1 National forest 0. & C. and 2 Indian State and Total
public domain county 3
1957 1,658,200 594, €00 52,300 175, 000 7,563, 160
Percent total_ 2.9 {7.9) (0.7) (2 3) 160.0)
751,900 98,300 150, 000 7,709, 200
Percent total_ (9.8 (1.3) (100.0)
9€8, 800 75,700 187, 800 8,940, 600
Percent total_ (10.8 9 (2. 1) (100. 0y
50 £63, 000 75,500 204,500 8,385, 400
Purcnntt (10.3) 9 (2.4) (100.0)
51 €95, 300 40, 009 181,600 7,414, 500
Peruent total_ (12.1) .4 (100.0)
1,104,000 53, OﬂO 168, CUJ 8,509, 100
Percent otal. (i3.0) (.8 (100. 0y
1,385,600 71,169 214, GCP 8,675, 500
Percsnt tota (15.8 (.8) (2 5) (100.0)
1964.__ 1,637,700 50, 5C0 244, 50u 9,418, 000
Percent tota (17.8) (1.0 8) (1¢0. 0)
1965 __ X . 784, 3 1,238,700 73,300 282, .)0" 9,379, 800
Percent t (£2.9) (£0.3) (13.2) (.8 (2.8) (100.0)
1966 3,269,300 41,249,244 60,241 219,246 8,898, 012
Percent - (6. 35.7) (14.0) 7 (2.5) (100.0)
Grand total_ 43,211,681 28,303,600 10,668,244 692, 141 2,003,546 84,834,212
Average for period 4,321,158 2,330, 360 1, 08, 824 69,214 200, €35 8,488, £21
Percent.______.___ (50.9) (33.3) (12.6) 8 2.%) (100.0)

1 Private volume 1957 to 1959 determined by subtracting total public from total for year.
20. & C. data for 1957-65 from BLM.

3 Estimated for 1557 and 1558.

4 Includes 5,730,000 board feet from U.S. Army Corps of Engineers land.

Note: Data from Pacific Northwest Forest and Range Experiment Station, Portland, Oreg., and Oregon State Forestry
Department, Saiem, Oreg.

TABLE 5.—ROAD MONEYS ALLOCATED TO REGION 6, U.S. FOREST SERVICE, 1959-68

Forest develop- Road and’trail,
ment road and 10-percent? fund
trail appropriations

Fiscal year:
195 $2,164,153 $4,613,246
3,327,638 6,564,761
4,174,228 7,580, 300
6,034,017 6, 536, 483
6,013,973 7,214,148
12,510, 220 7, 580, 280
119,799, 428 8,448,972
23, 608, 962 8,448 972
18, 087, 536 10, 269, 468
19,704, 072 10,432,003

1 Includes $4,850,000 for December 1964 flood damage repair.
Source: Division of Fiscal Control, U.S. Forest Service, Portland, Oreg.
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TABLE 6.—TIMBER ACCESS ROAD CONSTRUCTION REGION 6, U.S. FOREST SERVICE, 1958-67

Fiscal year and construction source Miles Cost
1958—Purchaser constructed. . ..o o o eeeiiecmm e eeeaes 1,393.1  $23,488,485.03
33.4 51, 525. 39

Government constructed 1. .

1959—Purchaser constructed. .
Government constructed 1__

L 5,417,769.71

1960—Purchaser constructed._ ... - 1,641.4  31,372,209.25
Government constructed 1. _ - 66.6 3,285,469, 52.
1961—Purchaser constructed. . - 1,707.8 34,472,578, 08
Governmentconstructed - 74.8 5,283,597.17
1962—Purchaser constructed._ . - 1,844.4  35,038,662.00
Government constructed - 74.6 5,572, 866. 00
1963—Purchaser constructed. - - 1,938.1 36,545, 800. 00
Government constructed 1. - 130.3 8,033,777.00
1964—Purchaser constructed. ... . 1,553.0  32,396,854.00
Government constructed 1. - 238.9  11,278,938.00
1965—Purchaser constructed. ... - 2,178.6  36,297,300.00
3152  12,273,504.00

Government constructed 1.._ -
1966—Purchaser constructed.. .-
Government constructed 1.
1967—Purchaser constructed. - o oooooccicoiaaiaanas

1,987.9 29,200, 506. 00
Government constructed 1. ... 255.2

18, 688, 219, 00

1 Forest development roads.
Source: Division of Engineering, U.S. Forest Service, Portland, Oreg.

Mr. KruczyNskl. Fine, thank you.

Mr. Cramer, any comments?

Mr. Cramer. Do you know what the reason is or have you been ad-
vised of the reason why the recommendations of the administration
was cut from 170 in fiscal 1968 to 125 in 1970 and 1971 ¢

Mr. HacensTEIN. No,sir; T donot, Mr. Cramer.

Mr. Cramer. Do you know what has been appropriated under 1968
and 1969, per year?

Mr. Hacexsteix. For the 1968 fiscal year the amount was approxi-
mately $120 million.

Then, of course, with the fiscal situation there was a cutback on
that and I believe they cut out of the current fiscal year, I believe it is
back to $15.7 million.

Mr. Craner. A little over $100 million actually ended up being ap-
propriated with the cutback.

Mr. HacenstEN. Yes, sir, with the cutback.

Mr. Craner. Thank you, very much, sir.

Mr. Kruczynskr. Mr. Clausen ? :

Mr. Crausex. Thank you again for taking the time to appear before
our committee as you have each year.

Mr. Hagenstein, do you agree with what I am going to say in that
I think one of the principal reasons for wanting to reinstate this to
the initial $170 million authorized last year should be that of the fiscal
situation changes to the point where appropriations can be increased,
I certainly would want to have the authorization established by this
committee.

Mr. Hacexsterx. That is very important because you need that fac-
tor of safety in the event the fiscal situation would change and we
would not be shortchanged to continue this fine timber-access road
program.

Mr. CLausex. And then, in fact, with an improvement in the overall
forest roads and trails program, certainly we can anticipate more yield

.

of the timber resources. This will make a contribution to jobs and to
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the economy and in effect, permit the forest service themselves to more
adequately manage the forest. :

Mr. HaeexsteIN. I would think that without the roads you cannot
manage the forests.

Mr. Crausex. It also puts more money in the Treasury to assist in
the deficit.

Mr. HaeeNsTEIN. Yes, it returns far more than the Government
invests.

Mr. CrausEx. It seems to me the recommendation of the administra-
tion is pennywise and pound foolish.

Mr. Haeexsrex. I would not want to comment on that inasmuch as
this is a nonpartisan committee as Mr. Kluczynski commented, but I am
afraid that I would be constrained to agree with you.

Mr. Crausex. This particular committee happens to be the one friend
that you people have.

The chairman certainly is nonpartisan, but he, too, also took the
time to go out to the Northwest and observe these things firsthand.

Mr. Hacexsterw. I had the privilege of testifying before him in
November of 1965 in California.

Mr. Crausex. Thank you.

Mr. Kroczy~skr. Thank you, Mr. Hagenstein. We were happy to
have you with us.

The committee will adjourn until Tuesday, June 4, 1968, at 10 a.m.

(Whereupon, at 4:45 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-
vene at 10 a.m., on Tuesday, June 4, 1968.)




FEDERAL-AID HIGHWAY ACT—1968

TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 1968

House or REPRESENTATIVES,
SuBcoMMITTEE ON RoADS
oF TaE CoMMITTEE ON PuBLic WORKS,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:10 a.m., in room
2167, Rayburn Building, the Honorable John C. Kluczynski (sub-
committee chairman) presiding.

Mr. Kruczyxskl, The hearing will come to order.

The Subcommittee on Roads will continue hearings today on overall
Federal aid-to-highway legislation, including two bills which were in-
troduced by myself and the chairman of the full committee, Mr. Fallon,
H.R. 16994 and H.R. 17134, by request.

Last year, when hearings were held and debate was heard on the
floor of the House on legislation reported by the committee, I advised
the membership at that time that I would give full consideration to any
and all requests for an increase in the interstate mileage.

This is one of the purposes of these hearings and particularly at
this time when we have our colleagues here who wish to testify on this
matter,

We will, of course, hear from all who wish to testify at any time on
all points.

At this time as our first witness it is my pleasure to introduce the
fine gentleman from Florida, Congressman Fascell.

STATEMENT OF HON. DANTE FASCELL, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Mr. Fascerr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members of the com-
mittee.

I have a prepared statement, Mr. Chairman, which I would like to
submit for the record in toto at this point and then I will summarize
the statement and make some extemporaneous remarks.

Mr. Kruuczynskr. Without objection, it is so ordered.

(The prepared statement of Mr. Fascell follows :)

STATEMENT OF CONGRESSMAN DANTE B. FASCELL

Mr. Chairman, I greatly appreciate having the opportunity to testify before
you this morning. I commend the Subcommittee on its diligence in meeting
the pressing highway needs of this country. Today’s hearing is yet another indi-
cation of your continuing interest in insuring safe and adequate highways to
carry the ever-increasing volume of interstate motor vehicle traffic.

I wish to address my remarks today specifically to the extension of the
interstate system. All of us are aware that after 1972 expansion in the amount
of mileage authorized will be a clear necessity.

(353)
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The needs of my own area indicate that future allocations to the interstate
system must pay increasing attention to the problem of adequate roads in
our urban areas. Our rapidly growing cities serve both as the source and desti-
nation for the overwhelming majority of the volume of interstate commerce
which flows over our highways. Congestion in the cities, if it goes unchecked,
can seriously hamper the objectives which Congress sought when it orignally
authorized the interstate highway system. I, therefore, urge the Committee to
begin now to give serious consideration to providing far greater emphasis on
providing adequate highways for the major urban areas linked by the interstate
systen,

I am certain that abundant evidence will be presented by other witnesses
on the overall need for additions to the interstate system after 1972 as well
as on the need for increased emphasis on the urban areas.

Mr. Chairman, there are, however, areas in my own state, and I am sure in
several other states, where we cannot afford to delay another four years in
providing needed additional interstate mileage.

Cne of the most serious gaps in the interstate system in the entire nation
exists in my own state of Florida. Despite the fact that it is one of the heaviest
traveled routes in the state, there is no interstate highway from Tampa to Miami,
the state’s two largest cities. Interstate 75 terminates in Tampa on the West
coast of Florida while Miami is served by Interstate 95, which runs along the
East Coast of Florida and terminates in Miami. There is an immediate over-
whelming need of I-75 to be extended as rapidly as possible to Miami. This
extension is needed because the present road is inadequate for the substantial
commerce between the two cities. The urgency of the need is underlined because
the present road is not only inadequate in size but far less safe than interstate
highways have proved to be throughout the country.

The present road, U.S. 41, is a narrow two lane road for more than 3, of its
distance. It is bordered for much of this length by canals which have, on far
too many occasions, served as death traps for motorists who meet with acei-
dents along the way. Not only is this road unsafe, but it is the only direct land
route Detween these two metropolitan areas, each with a population of more
than one million.

Clearly. Mr. Chairman, this gap in the interstate system must be closed at
the earliest possible date.

Florida also contains many examples of the pressing needs of our urban areas
for an increase in their share of interstate highway mileage. Miami’s need is
particularly great. Because of its location almost at the southern tip of the
peninsula the Bureau of Public Roads has made it particularly difficult for
Miami to gain any interstate assistance in providing for its urban highway
needs. It was only affer considerable urging by the state that the Bureau of
Public Roads did agree to extend I-95 to downtown Miami and I-195 was
constructed to link Miami with the city of Miami Beach which, in almost any-
one’s mind. except that perhaps of a bureaucrat, is one of the major destinations
of American travelers.

Miami, howerver, is not at the tip of the Florida peninsula. The city of Home-
stead, which iz 28 miles south of Miami, is the center of one of this country’s
most productive agricultural areas. Almost all of its produce is carried by
truck to Miami, from where it is shipped by highway and rail to the rest of the
country to provide most of this couniry’s tropical fruits and vegetables as well
as a significant portion of the fresh vegetables enjoyed by many of us throughout
winter months in the north. Clearly I-95 must at some point be extended to
Homestead solely on the basis of its agricultural role in interstate commerce.

This section of highway, however, is needed now because in the last 10
years much of this area has become highly urbanized. The Miami urban area,
bound as it is on the west by the Everglades, has only one direction to grow
and that is southward along the relatively high coastal plain between the
ocean and the Everglades. It is estimated that in only a few years more than
509 of the population of the metropolitan area will be living south of the
present terminus of I-95. These half-million American citizens certainly de-
serve the ready and convenient access to the interstate system which is enjoyed by
residents of other major metropolitan areas.

More importantly, failure to immediately begin southward extension of I-95
to Homestead from Miami could seriously hamper the orderly development
of this area and create myriad problems. Proper action now could, however,
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make South Dade County become an outstanding example of how an urban
area can and should grow. L.

For an additional allocation of 28 miles, the distance from Miami to Home-
stead, this Committee now could do much to insure the orderly a.nd proper
growth of what is fast becoming one of this nation’s largest metropolitan areas,
while at the same time providing important access to interstate commerce to a
major agricultural area now served by only one federal highway, U.S. 1, and
one state highway, State Road 27.

In addition to the pressing needs for the extension of I-75 from Tampa to
Miami and I-95 from Miami to Homestead on the basis of the need of motor
vehicle traffic, there is also a pressing need for these highways in order to provide
more adequately for our national defense.

One only has to look back to 1962 and the Cuban Missile Crisis to realize
the inadequacies of the interstate highway system in expediting a major mili-
tary buildup in southern Florida.

In the only case within memory when major American military forces have
been necessarily concentrated in one area of our own country, only one interstate
highway was available to serve the needs of these forces: I-95. The extension
of I-75 to Miami would double the capacity for moving large volumes of military
equipment rapidly and safely to south Florida should Cuba again become a
base for possible aggression against the United States. Extension of I-95 from
Miami to Homestead would bring these forces 30 miles south of Miami and to the
vicinity where the majority of forces in the 1962 crisis were deployed. These
combined roads would provide needed highway transportation to the major
tactical air command facility located at Homestead Air Force Base and speed
highway traffic bound for the Key West Naval Base and the Key West Naval
Air Station, which is the primary response base for any air threat from Cuba.

The State of Florida is on record in supporting an additional allocation te
Florida of interstate mileage sufficient to extend I-75 from Tampa to Miami,
a distance of 268 miles, and I-95 from Miami to Homestead, a distance of 28
miles. .

I fully support this request but I urge the Chairman and the Committee not
to wait until after 1972 to approve these additions. They are needed now.

Thank you.

Mr. Fasorur. I appreciate having this opportunity, Mr. Chairman,
to acknowledge publicly that you are a man of your word, thank
goodness, because the rest of us in Congress and the country and at
largs would be in very serious trouble 1f this subcommittee had not
undertaken these very important and vital hearings.

I do not doubt that there is any question at all that you will have
ample testimony from everybody about the tremendous needs for
additions to the Interstate System after 1972,

I would venture a guess that you would have as much or more
than you have in the present system by way of need because by far
and large all of us know from firsthand experience that the concept
has worked out magnificently well and has provided for every aspect
of the country.

As we have learned by experience now we welcome the opportunity
therefore for this interim problem of adjustments and I know that
there are many of them which ought to be seriously considered.

I take this opportunity today to call attention of this subcommittee
to two high-priority gaps in my own State which the distinguished
ranking minority Member from Florida has also very strongly ad-
vocated and worked on, and I would hope that this committee in
consideration of the high-priority adjustments which it will make and
recommend for a prior to 1972 will give very serious consideration
to the gaps that exist in Florida, and I know that you will.

The one principally that we point out is the link from Tampa to
Miami where you have two communities of over 1 million people
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and far more than that if you go outside of those immediate areas
who are now linked by a very highly inadequate road system and it
just does not do the job.

You look at the map and you recognize the geography of Florida,
you see what it does to the commerce and transportation in the State,
and it is almost an automatic first high priority adjustment gap in
the State of Florida. There is no question about it.

Our State Road Board feels about the same way I do and will o
testify. I want to take the opportunity of commending my colleague
from Florida by saying that the Florida State Highway Department
is up here to testify on the bill. This is a very important matter. T was
very disappointed when the announcement came out and they were
not thinking of testifying.

We recognize that this is a vital thing to the State of Florida and
I am sure our State highway department will corroborate everything
that we as members of the delegation will say to this committee.

The other gap, Mr. Chairman, is a 28-mile gap running from the
city of Miami to the city of Homestead, Fla., which is outside and
south of Miami. For three reasons this is a very, very obvious gap in
the Interstate System.

First of all, Homestead is the center of one of the most productive
agricultural areas in the country for winter truck farming. It is a
big operation.

Our present main highway system out of that area is just not able
to do the job and therefore it is reflected in prices and in deliveries
all over the country.

Secondly, we in that south part, south of Miami are in one of the
fastest growing population areas in the country. We have an urban
crisis and it is just not fair to those one-half million or 600,000 people
who live in that area not to be able to get on the Interstate System
and go anywhere in the country which they are able to do from
Miami.

This brings up a very important point, Mr. Chairman, and that
is the obvious increased emphasis which is going to be necessary
either on emergency gap filling on or after 1972 on the urban needs
in this country.

. We just are, as we all know, not able to keep pace with them, but
if we do not make an extra special effort either in the consideration
of the high priority adjustment gap filling on or after 1972 in the
urban needs of this country, we will, in effect, have wasted all the
money we have put into this system. -

‘We might have some obvious connectors that might have to be
filled in, but it seems to me the great need, the great emphasis in
the emergency part and also the after 1972 is going to be on the urban
needs. «

While we have other obvious needs in Florida, Mr. Chairman, and
members, these are two which I would recommend for your consider-
ation for such action as you intend to take with respect to filling the
gaps on the high-priority basis.

We respectfully submit that the technical testimony will be such
as to meet whatever criteria you want to lay down, or the Department
wants to lay down, to put these projeets in and we will take our chances
on the after 1972 program along with everybody else.
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Whatever you have in Florida, if you double it, it will not be
enough.

Mr. Kruczynski. How much mileage are you talking about? You
are talking about 28 miles from Miami to Homestead ?

Mr. Fascerr. That is 28 miles and Tampa to Miami is 268 miles.

Mr. Kvuczynski. The gentleman from Florida, Mr. Cramer.

Mr. Cramer. I join in welcoming the gentleman from Florida to
the committee and congratulate him on his testimony.

I also join the gentleman in his stated concern about the prospect
that the State roads department might not present the case in support
of this missing link principally and in discussing it with the Governor’s
office and the road board secretary’s office, they have agreed it was
not of such significance to justify an appearance on that subject in
particular.

Now, we have a very able man in Mr. Charles Hopkins, who is the
interstate engineer and has been with the program since 1956 here, and
I am sure he will justify it.

I want to congratulate the gentleman on his testimony and his
support for this because this connection would link the two major
population metropolitan areas in the State of Florida and probably
the only two major ones in the Nation not now connected by the
Interstate System.

Mr. Fascerr. The gentleman is absolutely right and I say it is such
an obvious gap that 1t needs to be filled.

Mr. CraMER. You have about 1.2 million in the west of Florida and
about 1.5 million on the lower east coast of Florida. That gives us
two of the major metropolitan areas in the country not connected by
the system. »

Mr. Fasceun. The gentleman has raised a very important one, the
additional need is a defense need and between Homestead and Tampa.
We saw this in the Cuban missile crisis when we had to move a tre--
mendous amount of materiel over inadequate highways and one of
the areas affected was the Tampa to Miami link.

Mr. Cramer. I think it is correct also to say that the Florida dele-
gation is unanimously in support of this missing link, in closing this
missing link.

Mr. Fascern. Ibelieve that is right. I do not think we all have bills.
ﬁknow you have 2 bill and I have a bill and I think everybody else

oes.

Mr. Cramer. I thank the gentleman,

Mr. KruczyNsgI. Any questions?

The gentleman from South Carolina, Mr. Dorn.

Mzr. Dorw. I want to commend my distinguished and able colleague
for his testimony and I am in complete agreement with the gentleman.

Mr. Fascerr. I thank you. I cannot think of a finer thing to do
than to link Florida with South Carolina.

Mr. Dorn. I might say to my friend that down Highway 75 it is
possible, and I have done so, to get up when there is ice in Greenwood,
S.C., and go swimming in Miami that night. That used to be a 2-day
trip. I think this is one of the connecting up of all the roads. It is
obvious to me that Tampa and Miami should be directly connected
with superhighways and perhaps even west of Miami to the southern
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tip of Florida through the Everglades. That is pretty bad roads
there sometimes when traffic is heavy.

Mr. Fascewr. That is right. This is the road that we are talking
about, the existing two-way highway, U.S. 41.

Mr. Kroczyxskl. Any further questions?

The gentleman from California, Mr. Clausen.

Mr. Cravsen. You havemade a very excellent presentation.

Mr. FasceLr. Mr. Chairman, thank you very much.

Mr. Kroozynskl, It is always a pleasure to have you before the

committee. o . )
The chairman of the House Appropriations Committee will be here

very shortly. I see my very, very good friend, the gentleman from
Texas, Mr. Pickle. Will you kindly take the witness chair.

STATEMENT OF HON. J. J. PICKLE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. Picere. Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, I have
a statement which I will ask to be distributed to each member. The
statement takes I would assume about 8 minutes to give. May I read it
or what is my time limitation here? o

Mr. Xvoczynsgr. Well, if you want to make your statement you
may read it or you may submit it for the record and hit the high points.

Mr. Pickre. Well, Mr. Chairman, if I may ask consent to submit my
statement in its entirety for the record and then if T may, I will hit
some of the high points in the testimony.

Mr. Kruozyxsgi. Without objection, it is so ordered.

(The prepared statement and additional material follow:)

STATEMENT OF Howm. J. J. PICKLE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE
STATE oF TEXAS

Mr. Chairman, I appreciate very much the opportunity to appear before you
this morring in connection with the Interstate Highway System. Before starting,
I would like to say that in a State as large and expansive as Texas, the Interstate
Highway System is much more than a remote benefit to the transportation system.
It is something virtually every citizen has the need to utilize extensively, and its
convenience and benefits are above question.

Since the time there were indications that this subcommittee was to consider
possible extensions to the Interstate Highway System, a great deal of enthusiasm
has been generated in my congressional district.

A noticeable gap in the highway coverage in Central Texas has been apparent in
the system from the start, and better coverage is needed for East-West trafiic.
The Interstate Highway System in Texas, in bridging the distance from Houston
westward to El Paso, now runs through San Antonio rather than through Austin.
While Austin is the more direct route, San Antonio is admittedly the larger of
the two metropolitan areas, and when the system was first established in the
mid-1950's, San Antonio was the logical choice.

Now, however, in light of the considerable shift of economic emphasis in
Cenitral Texas, I feel this subcommittee should have the benefit of some of the
latest changes, and specifically, would like to recommend for your consideration
an extension of Interstate Highway 10, to'be known as YH-10 North.

This proposal would create a spur 200 miles on the Fast-West transcontinental
roadway in Texas to run on a line roughly from Columbus, La Grange, Smithrville,
Bastrop, Austin, Dripping Springs, Johnson City and tieing back into the existing
Interstate Highway 10, southeast of Junction. I feel this spur is the natural
compliment to the existing roadway for reasons of safety, public convenience and
necessity and efficient highway engineering to prevent a bottleneck mid-way from
Houston to E1 Paso.
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The growth experienced in Austin over the past 5 years is phenomenal. There is
simply no other way to describe it, and I will support this statement in the
Hearing Record with charts and tables.

The “adequate” service of yesterday is simply not good enough today, and the
surging economic growth of the area demands new service. Attached at the end
of my statement are seven of the econmomic indicators often used to measure a
city’s economic growth. They demonstrate dramatic progress. The Austin area
leads the national averages on six of the seven scales. The significant economic
indicator of effective buying income in Central Texas has increased more than
50% in the period from 1962 to 1966, while in the U.N. generally, the increase
was only 16%.

These economic increases are due to a number of contributing factors :

The University of Texas continues to grow and already stands as an outstand-
ing educational and research center. The University has increased 25% in
both its enrollment and employment in the last five years, and the combined
total now reaches 39,000. The University registrar estimates that today’s enroll-
ment of 29,841 will reach 35,000 in 1975. Let me repeat that figure—35,000
transient students on one university campus.

The State government, based in Austin, continues to grow and expand in
influence. Already, it has a building complex covering a large area, and the need
to connect Houston and El Paso with the seat of government is pressing.

Commerecial enterprises are on the up-swing. Such companies as Tracor, Inc,
Glastron Boats, and International Business Machines, to mention a few, all have
plants in Austin. Tracor, an electronics manufacturer, established a plant in
1963, and now has an employment of over 1,500. IBM employs over 700 in an
operation emphasizing skilled office machine workers. .

Federal activities includes the Internal Revenue Service Center for the South-
west District, the regional headquanters for the Office of Economic Opportunity
for an eight-state region, the Hconomic Development Administration regional
office and the Veterans’ Administration Automatic Data Processing Center, to
mention a few,

Bergstrom AFB was recently designated as the headquarters for the 12th Air
Force, and its military complement is now 7,000.

Although the Interstate Highway System was last reviewed comprehensively
in the mid-50%s, let’s take a look at other developments just in the recent years.
To begin with, the population in Austin has increased 19.4 percent since 1960,
and the rate is comparable in surrounding counties; and this is in light of popula-
tion slow-down on a State-wide scale. The natiomal average increase is 8.7
percent.

Ancther economic index, effective buying income, demonstrates the same
acceleration of growth in the Central Texas area. Also, in the 1960-1963 period
the growth was 17.3 percent but this increased to 20.9 percent in the 1963 to
1966 period.

These figures are merely indicative of the growth witnessed over the past few
years. With dramatic increases in government, the military, and education, the
needs of the area are not only increasing in their own right, but are also becoming
much more important to the entire State.

Mr. Chairman, to this point, most of my comments have not detailed the support
and need of this proposal in the areas outlying Austin itself. I would like to
point out that the surrounding towns are also much in need of improved traffic
service. .

Already, virtually every town to be affected by this proposal has met to consider
the impact of an approved Interstate Highway—10N, and I am pleased to report
to you that the response is overwhelmingly favorable. I would like to insert for
the record copies of the petitions and resolutions to show the ground-swell support
this idea has marshaled in the areas to be affected. In short, I can say, that the
ground work is laid.

These resolutions show that there is solid agreement among residents of the
eight counties the road would pass through that the loop would be a great asset
to travel to the state capital and east and west through Texas.

Groups, under the direction of their respective county governments and cham-
bers of commerce, are meeting regularly to- discuss the northern loop and are
working actively to turn this idea into reality.

A steering committee has been set up through the Austin Chamber of Com-
merce to help provide leadership in the vital area of planning on this project.

96-030—68——24
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I might add that this loop is not proposed to replace or attempt to replace
the designation of Interstate Highway 10 as its course now runs through San
Antonio, but merely offered as the most logical plan for utilization of the Inter-
state System.

The northern loop would tie nearly 800,000 potential highway users into the
Florida to California route in Central Texas alone. Figures are not available at
this time to show the total benefit to highway users using transcontinental Inter-
state Highway 10, but I imagine it would be substantial.

Along these lines, I would add that The Texas Highway Department has al-
ready indicated its favorable consideration of the plan, and it is very well
received.

In faet, I am informed by Texas District Highway Engineer, Tom Wood, that a
survey is currently underway along the existing roadway from Austin to Colum-
bus at the intersection of Interstate Highway 10. The Texas Highway Depart-
ment feels that the traffic situation along this route warrants the updating of the
exising roadway—perhaps not to Interstate standards—but at least to the stand-
ards of a major route.

Finally, I would like to say a few words about the difficulties I know this
subcommittee faces. Certainly, every proposal must be weighed in terms of
others, and there must be consideration to the merits of other proposals. I
understand the pressures which are doubtlessly brought to bear, and the fact
that spending cuts loom as distinet discouragement. Still, I ask that you look
at this proposal closely, both for today, and for the coming years. In the event it
is not practical to give 100% endorsement this year, I ask that you at least
give some indication of the nature of your feelings on it. Thank you for your at-
tention and consideration.

AUSTIN'S SOLID RECORD OF ECONOMIC GROWTH,

1960-66
Economic indicator 1860 1961 1962 1963
Population (th ds)._-. : 216.2 221.1 221.3 234.4
Employment (th ds). ectmcctmomeeam———— 79.0 81.0 85.6 910
Effective buying income (th ds). . $383,266 $420,599  $447,854 $468,119
Retail sales (th LD R, .- . $238,783 $242,806 $269,356  $285,629
Bank deposits (th ds)______.. o oo $240,924.3 (... .__ $306,255.3 ...
Employment per 1,000 population. _._..___._.._..____.__ - 365 366 377 388
Per capita effective buying income_._._____._ .. _________________. $1,773 81,902 $1,970 $1,997

Percent increase
60

Economic indicator 1964 1985 1966 ———————

Austin  United

States
Population (thousands) .. ..o ocomeeeo oo 239.5 244.9 258.2  19.4 8.7
Employment (the ds) cececcccceaean e 96.3 99.2 107.2  35.7 10.8
Effective buying i . e $500,386 $547,461 $577,728  50.7 40.1
Retail sales (thousands)..... ... . ... . ... $280,540 $315,944 $344, 161 44,1 37.2
Bank deposits (th ds)o_ ... 354,760.9 ... $430,758 ° 78.9 56.4
Employment per 1,000 population. . ... 402 405 415 13.7 1.9
Per capita effective buying income ... $2,089  $2,235 $2,238  26.2 28.8

Source: “‘Sales Management,"” *Survey of Buying Power,"” May 1961, June 1962-1966, July 1967; Department of
G ce, ‘“‘County B Patterns,” 1st quarter, 1962, 1964, 1965, and 1966; Bureau of the Census, ‘‘Statistical
Abstract of the United States,”” 1967; Federal Reserve Board, ‘‘Distribution of Bank Deposits by Counties and Standard
Metropolitan Areas,” December 1960, 1962, and February 1965; Texas Employment Commission.
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AUSTIN CITY TABLE 2.—SOME LARGE AUSTIN EMPLOYERS

Employment
Firm/organization Products/function _Percent
1967 increase,
1967/1962
Bergstrom Air Force Base 12th Air Force Headquarters......... 7,000 100
Economy furniture/Serta mattres: . Furniture/mattresses. oo oo cccmvemmacannnoen 500 40
Glastron Boat Co, Fiberglass boats. .. ocovceocaccccmaccamennan 550 50
Office hi - - 1700 oo
--. Petrochemical r 1 I - 250 25
o PENINg . e c e caaccccccmeismeraanae 650 40
Texas Nuclear _ Nuclear research; instrument manufacturing.. 250 200
Tracor, In¢ Electronic manufacturing; contract R. & D_._. 1,500 1,000
Yniversity of Texas. Higher education:
Faculty, staff. o oo it 9, 300 25
StudentS. o ueam oo acceecaees 29, 841 25
1 New Plant.
Source: Austin Chamber of Commerce.
[Austin City Table 3] N
Austin’s mail and telephone volume to the West
MAIL ‘
Weekly
L . . volume
-Origin/destination : (pounds)
California 1,531
Arizona 30
El Paso 2
Subtotal 1,633
_
Total out-of-State. 11, 505
e g
Above destinations as percent of total 14.19
=t
TELEPHONE CALLS'
California 14, 617
Arizona 1, 852
Subtotal 16, 469
=
Total out-of-state 94, 000
Above destinations as percent of total 17. 52

1 5-day week.

Source : U.S. Post Office, Austin, Tex., November 1967 ; Southwestern Bell Telephone Co.,

‘December 1966.
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[Austin City Table 4]

AvusTin’s COMMUNITY OF INTEREST WITH THE WEST

ATUSTIN FIRM/ORGANIZATION

American Polystyrene Corp.
Chatleff Controls

Glastron Boat Co.
Infotronies Corp.

IBM, Office Products Division

Jefferson Chemical Company
Minnesota Mining & Manufacturing

Tracor, Inec.

Texas Instruments

Texas Nuclear Corp.

University of Texas, Balcones
Research Center:
Military Physics Research
Div., Defense Research
Laboratory
Defense Research Laboratory
Drug-Plastic & Toxicology
Electrical Engineering Research
Engineering Mechanics Research
Structural Mechanics
Civil Engineering Structures
Environmental Health Engineering
Esxperimental Aerodynamics Div.,
Defense Research Laboratory
University of Texas

Widelite Corp.
Source : Austin Chamber of Commerce

INTEREST WITH THE WEST

1 Berkley plant

California sales office

California sales offices

San Mateo sales office

Plants at San Jose and Campbell
Calif. Extensive Calif.-Ariz. sales
and service offices

Stock point at Los Angeles

Sales offices at San Maring & Palo Alto

4 California plants; 3 California
branch sales offices

Research, manufacturing and sales fa-
‘cilities in Los Angeles, La Habra,
San Diego and Sherman Qaks

8 California sales offices; 1 Phoenix
sales office

Los Angeles sales and service office
San Francisco sales and service
office

Coordination of technieal and scientific
programs with industry representa-
tives in Los Angeles, San Diego, Cul-

~ver City and Port Hueneme,
. California

Out-of-state students, 200 from Cali-
fornia and Arizona, 100 from Hawaii
and the Far East and approximately
400 students from the El Paso area

California sales offices

AUSTIN CITY TABLE 5.—SINCE 1963 AUSTIN'S RATE OF ECONOMIC GROWTH HAS ACCELERATED

Economic indicator

Percent increase

1963/1960 1966/1963

Population. .. iciaiaaos 8.4 10,2
EmplOYmIent e eee e em e emm e me— 19,3 214,5
Employment per 1,000 popuiation - 13,7 26,1
Effective buying income___________ - 22.1 23.4
Per capita effective buying income___...._.. - 12.6 12.1
Retail sales. - . 19.6 20.5
Bank ePOSitS. o e eaeeee 327.1 221.4

11964/1962,

21966/1964.

$1962/1960.

Source: Austin City Table 1.
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AUSTIN CITY TABLE 6.—SINCE 1963 POPULATION GROWTH IN AUSTIN'S SERVICE AF-QEA HAS EXGEEDED THE
STATE AVERAGE

Population Percent increase
County
1960 1963 1966 1963/1960 1966/1963
Bastrop. 16,700 16, 000 17,200 (4.2) 1.5
Blanco 3,600 3,500 , 600 (2.8) 2.9
Burnet 9, 200 8,800 9, 600 (4.3) 9.1
Caldw! 17,000 16, 300 16, 400 “4.1) .6
Hays.. 20, 100 20, 400 21,600 1.5 5.9
Lee.__ 8,900 8,400 8,700 (5.6) 3.6
Travis_. . 216,200 234, 400 258, 200 8.4 10.2
Williamson_ .o iliieeonen 34,800 35,600 35,700 2.3 .3
Service ared. . . .oee oo oo e ememaan 326, 500 343, 400 371,000 6.2 8.0
State of Texas..... oo oo 9,706,600 10,342,700 10,895,700 6.6 5.3

Source: “‘Sales Management,” "‘Survey of Buying Power,'” May 1961, June 1964, and June 1967.
Note: Figures in parentheses indicates decrease.

AUSTIN CITY TABLE 7.—SINCE 1363 EFFECTIVE BUYING INCOME IN AUSTIN'S SERVICE AREA HAS INCREASED
BY MORE THAN 20 PERCENT

Count Effective buying income Percent increase
ounty

1960 1963 1966 1963/1960 1966/1963
Bastrop. ... ccoim e accceecaeaaan $19,165,000  $19,149,000  $19, 910, 000 (0.1) 4.0
Blanco... - ,729, , 391, 000 , 265, 000 35.1 (2.0)
Burnet_. . 12,492,000 12,479,000 13,350,000 1) 7.0
Caldwell_ . 21,451,000 20,371,000 20,352,000 (5.0) [@))
Hays___.: . 26,765,000 30,712,000 33,061,000 14.7 7.6
Lee. _ . --. 9,437,000 9,223,000 11,533,000 gz. 3) 25.0
Travis. ... ... 383,266,000 468,119,000 577,729,000 2.1 23.4
Williamson. _.......__ - 44,853,000 46,114,000 58,085,000 2.8 26.0
SerViCe ared. .o coiceiiereecaaas 522,158,000 612,558,000 740,285, GOO 17.3 20.9

Source: ‘‘Sales Management,” ‘‘Survey of Buying Power,” May 1961, June 1964, and June 1967.
Note: Figures in parentheses indicates decrease.

RESOLUTION
Resolution Requesting Designation of Interstate 10 North Route

Whereas, It is anticipated that the present Federal Interstate Highway pro-
gram will be extended or renewed at some future date, and

Whereas, Inclusion of a new alternate Interstate Highway route from Co-
lumbus, Texas, to Austin, Texas (generally following present State Highway
71), and from Austin, Texas, to Junction, Texas, (generally following present
U.S. Highway 290) is urgently needed to best serve the public interest, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide a shorter, more direct trans-conti-
nental route from the Gulf States to the West Coast, and

Whereas, Such new route would directly connect two of Texas’ largest cities,
Houston and El Paso, with their state capital, Austin, via a full interstate-
quality highway, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide faster ground linkage of Bergstrom
Air Force Base and 12th Air Force Headquarters with N.A.S.A., Houston, Fort
Bliss, and other military installations, and would therefore better serve the
national security, and

Whereas, Such route would therefore serve important business, tourist, and
military needs;

Now, therefore, This body does hereby resolve and request the Federal High-
way Administrator and other empowered officials to authorize an Interstate 10
North designation for the within described route, and to include its construction
in any future Federal Interstate Highway Program for which funds may be
appropriated by the Congress.

Unanimously adopted this 23rd day of May, A.D. 1968.

Adopted : May 23, 1968.

Attest: ELsIE WoosLEY, City Clerk.
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RESOLUTION

Whereas, The original Interstate Highway Program has proved of great value
to the nation’s transportation needs, to the national defense, and to the national
and local economy, and .

Whereas, That program is now nearing completion, and

Whereas, The Austin Chamber of Commerce recognizes the need for 2 con-
tinued Interstate Highway Program thereafter, and

Whereas, The American Association of State Highway Officials, after exten-
sive study prepared and presented a recommended plan for such a continued
program to the Committee on Public Works, House of Representatives, Ninetieth
Congress, on June 7, 1967, and

Whereas, The recommended plan reflects the knowledge and ability of our
dedicated highway administrators. and is designed to effectively service the
public need and benefit : Now, therefore be it

Resolved, That the Austin Chamber of Commerce respectfully urges the Con-
gress to enact into legislation the highway program as recommended by the
American Association of State Highway Officials, in order to provide the neces-
sary guidelines for future highway planning, construction and maintenance, and
for the supplementation of the pational system of interstate and defense high-
ways beyond the currently authorized program to meet the needs of the nation,
these expenditures to be made at such a time as to not in any way place in
jeopardy the fiscal stability of the nation; be it further

Resolved, That copies of this resolution be submitted to the President of the
United States, to Senators Yarborough and Tower; to our congressman, J. J.
Pickle; to the Secretary of the Department of Transportation, Alan S. Boyd;
to the Federal Highway Administrator, Lowell K. Bridwell; and to the Texas
Highway Commission, Hal Weodward, Chairman.

TUnanimously adopted by the Board of Directors of the Austin Chamber of
Commerce, the 2nd day of May, 1968.

Lreox StOowE, President.

Attest: Vic MaArHIAS, Manager.

RESOLUTION
Resolution Requesting Designation of Interstate 10 North Route

Whereas, It is anticipated that the present Federal Interstate Highway Pro-
gram will be extended or renewed at some future date, and

Whereas, Inclusion of a new alternate Interstate Highway route from Co-
lumbus, Texas, to Austin, Texas (generally following present State Highway 71),
and from Austin, Texas, to Junction, Texas, (generally following present U.S.
Highway 290) is urgently needed to best serve the public interest, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide a shorter, more direct trans-conti-
nental route from the Gulf States to the West Coast, and

Whereas, Such new route would directly connect two of Texas’ largest cities,
Houston and El Paso, with their state capital, Austin, via a full interstate-
quality highway, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide faster ground linkage of Bergstrom
Air Force Base and 12th Air Force Headquarters with N.A.S.A., Houston, Fort
Bliss, and other military installations, and would therefore better serve the
national security, and

Whereas, Such route would therefore serve important business, tourist, and
military needs,

Now, therefore, This body does hereby resolve and request the Federal High-
way Administration and other empowered officials to authorize an Intersiate 10
North designation for the within described route, and to include its construction
in any future Federal Interstate Highway Program for which funds may be
appropriated by the Congress.

TUnanimously adopied this 21st day of May, A.D. 1968.

Hus BECHTOL,
President, Austin Board of Realtors.
Attest: J. H. WINDSOR,
Ez-Vice President.
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RESOLUTION
Resolution Requesting Designation of Interstate 10 North Route

Whereas, It is anticipated that the present Federal Interstate Highway Pro-
gram will be extended or renewed at some future date, and

Whereas, Inclusion of a new alternate Interstate Highway route from Co-
lumbus, Texas, to Austin, Texas (generally following present State Highway
71), and from Austin, Texas, to Junction, Texas, (generally following present
U.S. Highway 290) is urgently needed to best serve the public interest, and

‘Whereas, Such new route would provide a shorter, more direct transconti-
nental route from the Gulf States to the West Coast, and

Whereas, Such new route would directly connect two of Texas’ largest cities,
Houston and El Paso, with their state capital, Austin, via a full interstate-
quality highway, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide faster ground linkage of Bergstrom
Air Force Base and 12th Air Force Headquarters with N.A.S.A., Houston, Fort
Bliss, and other military installations, and would therefore better serve the
national security, and

Whereas, Such route would therefore serve important business, tourist, and
military needs.

Now, therefore, This body does hereby resolve and request the Federal High-
way Administrator and other empowered officials to authorize an Interstate 10
North designation for the within described route, and to include its construction
in any future Federal Interstate Highway Program for which funds may be
appropriated by the Congress. :

Unanimously adopted this 28rd day of May, A.D. 1968.

JAMES P. SHARP,
President, Bastrop Chamber of Commerce.
Attest : MARGARET PFEIFER,
Secretary-Manager.

RESOLUTION

Resolution Requesting Designation of Interstate 10 North Route

Whereas, It is anticipated that the present Federal Interstate Highway Pro-
gram will be extended or renewed at some future date, and

‘Whereas, Inclusion of a new alternate Interstate Highway route from Colum-
bus, Texas, to Austin, Texas (generally following present State Highway 71),
and from Austin, Texas, to Junction, Texas, (generally following present U.S.
Highway 290) is urgently needed to best serve the public interest, and

‘Whereas, Such new route would provide a shorter, more direct transcontin-
ental route from the Gulf States to the West Coast, and

Whereas, Such new route would directly connect two of Texas’ largest cities,
Houston and El Paso, with their state capital, Austin, via a full interstate-quality
highway, and

‘Whereas, Such new route would provide faster ground linkage of Bergstrom
Air Force Base and 12th Air Force Headquarters with N.A.S.A., Houston, Fort
Bliss, and other military installations, and would therefore better serve the
national security, and

Whereas, Such route would therefore serve important business, tourist, and
military needs,

Now, therefore, This body does hereby resolve and request the Federal High-
way Administrator and other empowered officials to authorize an Interstate 10
North designation for the within described route, and to include its eonstruction
in any future Federal Interstate Highway Program for which funds may be
appropriated by the Congress.

Unanimously adopted this 21 day of May, A.D. 1968,

SioNEY M. HOOKE,
Mayor, City of Fredericksburg, Tes.
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RESOLUTION
Resolution Requesting Designation of Interstate 10 North Route

Whereas, It is anticipated that the present Federal Interstate Highway Pro-
gram will be extended or renewed at some future date, and

Whereas, Inclusion of a new alternate Interstate Highway route from Colum-
bus, Texas, to Austin, Texas (generally following present State Highway 71),
and from Austin, Texas, to Junction, Texas, (generally following present U.S.
Highway 290) is urgently needed to best serve the public interest, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide a shorter, more direct transcontin-
ental route from the Gulf States to the West Coast, and

Whereas, Such new route would directly connect two of Texas’ largest cities,
Houston and El Paso, with their state capital, Austin, via a full interstate-quality
highway, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide faster ground linkage of Bergstrom
Air Force Base and 12th Air Force Headquarters with N.A.8.A., Houston, Fort
Bliss, and other military installations, and would therefore better serve the
national security, and

Whereas, Such route would therefore serve important business, tourist, and
military needs,

Now, therefore, This body does hereby resolve and request the Federal High-
way Administrator and other empowered officials to authorize an Interstate 10
North designation for the within described route, and to include its construction
in any future Federal Interstate Highway Program for which funds may be
appropriated by the Congress.

Unanimously adopted this 15 day of May, A.D. 1968.

CoxyIssToNERs' CoURT, KiMBLE CoUNTY, TEX.
WALTER W. LEAMANS,
~ County Judge, Kimble County, Tex.
Attest: MAxXINE W. BOONE,
County Clerk, Kimble County, Tex.

RESOLUTION
Resoluticn Requesting Designation of Interstate 10 North Route

Whereas, It is anticipated that the present Federal Interstate Highway Pro-
gram will be extended or renewed at some future date, and

Whereas, Inclusion of a new alternate Interstate Highway route from Colum-
bus, Texas, to Austin, Texas (generally: following present State Highway 71),
and from Austin, Texas, to Junction, Texas (generally following present U.S.
Highway 290) is urgently needed to best serve the public interest, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide a shorter, more direct transcontin-
ental route from the Gulf States to the West Coast, and

Whereas, Such new route would directly connect two of Texas’ largest cities,
Houston and Bl Paso, with their state capital, Austin, via a full interstate-quality
highway, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide faster ground linkage of Bergstrom
Air Force Base and 12th Air Force Headgquarters with N.A.S.A., Houston, Fort
Bliss, and other military installations, and would therefore better serve the
national security, and :

Whereas, Such route would therefore serve important business, tourist, and
military needs, ;

Now, therefore, This body does hereby resolve and request the Federal Highway
Administrator and other empowered officials to authorize an Inferstate 10
North designation for the within deseribed route, and to include its construction
in any future Federal Interstate Highway Program for which funds may be
appropriated by the Congress.

TUnanimously adopted this 22 day of May, A.D. 1968.

City CounciL, LA GraNGE, TEX.

MiLtoN M. MUIDER,

Mayor, City of La Grange.
Attest: ELvirA SaAXoN, Secretary.
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C1tY oF LA GRANGE,
La Grange, Tex., May 23, 1968.
AvusTIN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE,
Austin, Tex.

GENTLEMEN : Enclosed is a resolution passed by the city council in special
session held in council chamber, May 22, 1968.
Yours very truly,
(Mrs.) Ervira Saxon, City Secretary.

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION of the Smithville Chamber of Commerce urging prompt action by the Con-
gress of the United States to provide for the continuation of planning and construction of
a federal interstate system of highways beyond 1972

Whereas, the existing Interstate Highway Program was originally scheduled
for completion in 1972 ; and

Whereas, the need exists for a continuing highway program beyond that
program ; and

Whereas, the planning and development of a supplemental program will require
several years for implementation ; and

Whereas, the American Association of State Highway Officials, following an
extlensive study, devised a recommended plan for a highway program after 1972;
an

Whereas, the American Association of State Highway Officials presented this
recommendation to the Congress at a hearing before the Committee on Public
Works, House of Representatives, Ninetieth Congress, on June 7, 1967 ; and

Whereas, the Smithville Chamber of Commerce respects the knowledge and
ability of our dedicated highway administrators and commissioners; and

Whereas, the Smithville Chamber of Commerce recognizes the value of a good
highway system and is aware of the need for action regarding the continuation
gf a well planned and promptly-executed highway program: Now, therefore,

e it

Resolved, That the Smithville Chamber of Commerce respectfully urges the
Congress to enact into legislation the recommended highway program of the
American Association of State Highway Officials as presented to the Congress at
a hearing before the Committee on Public ‘Works, House of Representatives,
Ninetieth Congress, June 7, 1967, in order to provide the necessary guidelines for
future highway planning, construction and maintenance and for the supple-
mentation of the national system of interstate and defense highways beyond the
currently authorized program to meet the needs of the nation; and, be it further

Resolved, That copies of this resolution be submitted to the President of the
United States, to our Congressman, J. J. Pickle, Washington, D.C.; to the Secre-
tary of the Department of Transportation, Alan 8. Boyd, Washington, D.C.; the
Federal Highway Administrator, Lowell K. Bridwell, Washington, D.C.; and
to the Texas Highway Commission, Hal Woodward, Chairman, Austin, Texas.

Adopted unanimously by the Board of Directors of the Smithville Chamber
of Commerce in Smithville, Texas, the 21st day of February, 1968, A.D.

Joun J. SHIPROOKY, President.
FrANCES E. DEAVERS, Secretary.
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RESOLUTION
RESOLUTION Requesting designation of Interstate 10 North Route

Whereas, It is anticipated that the present Federal Interstate Highway Pro-
gram will be extended or renewed at some future date, and

‘Whereas, Inclusion of a new alternate Interstate Highway route from Colum-
bus, Texas, to Austin, Texas (generally following present State Highway 71),
and from Austin, Texas, to Junction, Texas, (generally following present U.S.
Highway 290) is urgently needed to best serve the public interest, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide a shorter, more direct transcontin-
ental route from the Gulf States to the West Coast, and

‘Whereas, Such new route would directly connect two of Texas’ largest cities,
Houston and El Paso, with their state capital, Austin, via a full interstate-quality
highway, and

Whereas, Such new route would provide faster ground linkage of Bergstrom
Air Force Base and 12th Air Force Heaadquarters with N.A.8.A,, Houston, Fort
Bliss, and other military installations, and would therefore better serve the
national security, and

Whereas, Such route would therefore serve important business, tourist, and
military needs,

Now, therefore, This body does hereby resolve and request the Federal High-
‘way Administrator and other empowered officials to authorize an Interstate 10
North designation for the within described route, and to include its construction
in any future Federal Interstate Highway Program for which funds may be
appropriated by the Congress. !

Unanimously adopted this 22 day of May, A.D. 1968.
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Mr. Pregre. I do appreciate the opportunity to appear before your
committee,

What I wish to submit to the committee this morning is a proposal
for an alternative route of the Interstate 10 road that will go through
Austin, Tex.

You will notice in the map over here it runs currently now from
Houston to San Antonio and out to E]1 Paso.

The route I am proposing which would constitute some 200 miles or
a little less would go from Houston to Austin and then on out to a
point near a junction of the western part of the State.

The division point would be where the red and the black lines meet.
That is at the point called Columbus, Tex.

The route proposed, shown in red, the alternate route, would be in
effect about 20 to 25 miles less than the present route which is the
present Interstate 10 system.

The road would run from a line roughly from Columbus through
the towns of La Grange, Smithville, Austin, Dripping Spring, John-
son City, and tie in back to a place called Junction. This would be a
spur or a loop.

What I would like to submit to the committee now is some informa-
tion about Austin and why we think this should be seriously considered
by the committee.

The adequate road service of yesterday is simply not good enough
for today and the surge of the economic growth of the area demands
new service.

Each of you will find in the little kit T have distributed a copy of my
statement analyzing seven of the economic indicators which are often
used to measure a city’s economic growth.

I think you will Jook at them and see that they demonstrate
dramatic progress.

The significant economic indicator of effective buying income in
central Texas has increased more than 50 percent in the period from
1952 to 1966, while in the United States generally the increase was
only 16 percent.

The University of Texas continues to grow. The university itself
has had a 25-percent increase in both its enrollment and employment
in the last 5 years and the combined total now reaches over $9,000.

The university registrar estimates that our enrollment at the college
itself is 29,841 and will grow to some 35,000 in 1975,

The State government is based in Austin. It continues to grow and
expand. Already it has a building complex covering a large area and
there is a very definite need to connect Houston and El Paso with the
seat of government which is in Austin.

It is only natural that the traffic wonld flow from Houston to Austin
and thence to El Paso.

We have a great deal of increase in commercial enterprises and you
will see listed many prominent firms that are now locating in Austin
with large enrollment. . )

There is a great deal of Federal activity there in the city of Austin.
You have the Internal Revenue Service center for the Southwest, the
regional office of the OEO, the Economic Development Administra-
tion, and now the Veterans’ Administration has an automatic data
processing center.




371

Bergstrom Air Force Base is growing and it has a total complement
now of almost 7,000.

Now the Interstate System which was set up in the early 1950’s was
a logical approach by routing it from Houston to San Antonio and
out to El Paso. But, since that time the population in Austin has in-
creased nearly 20 percent. This is an indication that the area is grow-
ing, the city is growing, and the surrounding areas are growing.

Now almost every town affected by this proposal has met to consider
the impact of an improved Interstate Highway No. 10. They met about
2 or 3 weeks ago again and formed an official body.

Attached to my testimony—and I do not know whether it is in yours,
but there is a statement showing a resolution by each of the counties
and/or cities by which this alternate or spur would pass. There is com-
plete agreement and a great deal of enthusiasm for this particular
loop.

Now let me mention one other point. The Texas Highway Depart-
ment—and I make reference now to Tom Wood, the district engineer
for the State highway department—told me that a survey is already
underway now to make a total and an accurate estimate of the traffic
through this particular area.

The State of Texas is planning to build a four-lane road now from
this point of Columbus, Tex, to Austin. That is at the point again
where you see the two black and red lines converging, this point here.

They are going to build a four-lane road into here, into Austin,
simply because the volume of traffic now is so heavy from Houston
into Austin that this is where the traffic is flowing and they planned
to build in a four-lane system. It will not be fully up to interstate
standards but they are planning it with the view in mind that it could
be converted or made into an interstate system which would mean
then that the participation of the Federal Government in cost would
almost be halved at some point later. But we are trying to provide for
this eventuality.

It would not detract from the traffic from Houston to San Antonio
and El Paso. It is already so heavy that there is great congestion. You
are going from an area of Houston which is 1.5 million into a city of
San Antonio of 1 million, and the difficulty is considerable getting in
and around at times particularly with the increased volume of traffic.

We need an alternate route just like, Mr. Chairman, we already have
in Texas. You have this Highway 35 coming up, going into Dallas
and Fort Worth. We have an alternate route and this is a proposal for
an alternate route that would be a complement to this system.

There is a very definite need for it and I wish each member would
look at the economic factors in my testimony now or later and see how
very sharp the increase of growth is for Austin and the central Texas
area.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I will be glad to answer any questions or re-
spond in any way I might if the members of the committee have any
questions.

I appreciate this chance to appear before your committee.

Mr. Kruczynskr Mr. Pickle, how much additional mileage are
you asking for?

Mr. Prorre. It will be a little less than 200 miles.
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Mr. Kuoczexysgi. About 200 miles?

Mr. Picrie. Yes.

Mr. Kruczyxskr. We thank you for your statement, Mr. Pickle.

The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Texas, Mr. Wright.

Mr. WricaT. I would like to say, Mr. Chairman, that our distin-
guished colleague from Texas, Mr. Pickle, has always dealt with this
case adequately and well. He has done his homework. I am certain it
will attest to the need for this additional mileage to serve this great
and growing center of Austin and to facilitate the flow of traffic on
this great east-west thoroughfare from El Paso to Houston, two of
the fastest growing cities in the entire Southwest.

(:E want to compliment the gentleman on his splendid presentation
today.

Mg Prorce. Ithank my colleague very much.

Mr. Kruozynskr, Mr. Pickle, 1s it possible for the committee to have
that chart?

Mr. Pickre. Yes, Mr. Chairman, I will leave the chart for the
committee.

Mr. Kruczy~skr. Without objection, the chart will be made a part
of the files.

I recognize the gentleman from Florida, Mr. Cramer.

Mr. Cramzr. Mr. Pickle, I appreciate your testimony and your in-
terest obviously in this connecting link.

Just as an additional matter, do I understand that the Texas High-
way Department has submitted a letter signed by J. C. Dingwall,
State highway engineer, on May 16 of this year, in which he indicated,.
and I quote, in answer to the chairman’s request for information con-
cerning additional mileage, he says:

I have polled my commission and our collective judgment is that the minimum.
additional needs for the Interstate System in Texas is approximately 1,500 miles:
at this time, :

How much mileage is involved in this ?

Mr. PriceLe. 200 miles or a little less than 200.

Mr. CraMER. You know if that was included in the submission by
Mr. Dingwall?

Mr. Picrre. No, sir, I do not, Mr. Cramer. Mr. Dingwall is here
and he will testify today.

Mr. Cramzr. I will ask him, then. ,

Mr. Prcrre. I did not know it is included because I have not re-
ceived an official vote by the State highway commission for his partic-
ular project concerned. o

I have reached a complete agreement with all of the counties through
which it might pass.

Mr. Cramer. Thank you very much.

Mr. Kuuczy~sgr. Any other comments or questions?

Mr. Dorn, the gentleman from South Carolina.

Mr. Dor~. Mr. Pickle, of course we welcome you to the subcommittee
and are pleased with this thorough statement that you have gone into.
There is no objection on the part of the people around San Antonio
on this into Austin, isit?

Mr. PrcrrEe. I have had no objection to San Antonio. Mr. Dingwall
may have some expression on that.
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Naturally, some of the towns that would be in the present existing
route wondered if this would cut into their traffic and this would be
a legitimate question that could be raised.

The increased flow of traffic is such that we need to create another
alternate route to eliminate the bottlenecks, so there has been no real
objection in any quarters that I know of.

Mr. Dorn. What is the approximate population of Austin, about a
half million?

Mr. Pickre. No; Austin now is about 258,000. It is shown on one
of our charts I have in the folder.

Mr. Dorn. This route does go how close to Johnson City ?

Mr. Prcere. It goes directly from Austin to Johnson City to
Fredericksburg and just beyond that it ties in with the present route.

Mr. Dorxn. Thank you.

Mr. PicLe. It serves an area of around 800,000 to 1 million people,
this particular alternate route.

Mr. Kruczynsgi. The gentleman from California, Mr. Don H.
Clausen.

Mr. Cravsen. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

As usual, the gentleman from Texas makes a very effective presen-
tation when he appears before any committee of the Congress.

Now, Mr. Pickle, I am assuming that when the routing was orig-
inally selected to go from Houston down to San Antonio and westerly
out toward E] Paso, one of the fine reasons for this was it was con-
sidered to be a necessary link because of the defense establishment
in and around San Antonio.

If T read your testimony properly I read it to the effect that you
feel this would be a very significant alternate route and sincerely be-
lieve it to be in the defense interest of the country to have an alternate
route through that area. Do I read you correctly ?

Mr. Picre. Yes. I think defense was a factor in the question of
establishing the original Interstate route, plus population, because
it is only logical that 15 years ago we connect Houston to San Antonio
and El Paso which were the biggest cities in the whole Southwest
area. Austin has grown so fast and the military establishment has in-
creased and together with a great deal of research at the University
of Texas, both on and off campus justifies this.

Mr. CrauseN. You actually combine this with the recommendation
to relieve congestion that has been caused by the traffic going in and
out of San Antonio?

Mr. Pickre. Yes.

Mr. Crausen. Well, I think that you make an excellent point when
you consider the fact that you have the university and the research
going on there.

Thank you very much.

Mr. PicrLE. And also my State capital.

Mr. Kruczynski. The gentleman from Ohio, Mr. Harsha.

Mr. Harsua. Mr. Pickle, have you discussed this proposal of yours
with the Texas State Highway Department ?

Mr. Pickre. I quoted Mr. Woods, the State highway engineer be-
cause he was one who told me that the commission had authorized
him to make this study and to start the plan out for a four-lane system
from Columbus into Austin.
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I have not asked the State highway commission for an official vote
of endorsement for the problem.

Mr. Harsma, Well, without reflecting upon the merits of your pro-
posal in any way, I am a little bit concerned about the Committee
getting Into the position of ordering specific extensions of specific
highways.

I think the committee probably can extend the total mileage on the
Interstate System and then apportion it to have the Department of
Transportation report under their formula to the State, but I think
it is better for the States to determine where that additional appor-
tionment should go.

My, Prexre. Well, Mr. Harsha, I will obtain a statement from the
highway officials for this committee as to their recommendation or
their priority.

Now, it is 8 matter they have discussed for some time and whether
they have ever taken an official vote on it I do not know. They know
there is the need, but whether they will put it at the top of their list
I am not certain.

T will get a written statement from the commission for you and the
committee.

Mr. Hansma., Well, to my knowledge with one exception the Com-
mittee has been in the position of where it has specifically authorized
an extension of a certain route. I think this is left up to the States to
do that apportionment or location of highways.

If we get into that field you can see where we are going to have 435
Members asking to estend their specific routes. We are going to get
into a can of worms.

Mr. PrcxrE. I certainly agree and the State highway engineer will
testify to this point in a few minutes.

Mr. Harsma, Thank you.

I have no further questions.

Mr. Kroczyyski, Any further questions?

Myr. Edmondson, the gentleman from Oklahoma.

My, Epyoxpsox. I want to compliment the gentleman on a very
fine statement. I have not had an opportunity to read all of it but I
know he always makes a very persuasive case.

There is just one part I want to take issue on with him in a gentle-
manly and friendly way. I cannot understand why anybody would
want to drive across Florida to Cadlifornia and really see the beautiful
country would go that far south when he had Interstate 40 that would
take him right across the heartland of America, across Oklahoma and
not have to eat quite as much dust as they would in that part of the
country.

My, Prcxre. The gentleman makes a good point. If he had been here
a little earlier, I made reference to the fact that our Interstate 35 Sys-
tem has a loop going from Dallas, to Denver, towards Oklahoma, only
a few miles away from your promised land.

Mr, Kuoczynsir, Mr. Pickle, it has been a pleasure fo have you be-
fore the committee. We thank you for the statement you have given
the committee and I am sure every member of it will go over your full
statement.

Mr, Pickre. I thank you, Mr. Chairman, and all the members.
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Mr. Kruuczynskri. 1 notice we have another gentleman from Texas
who was supposed to be our first witness today, the chairman of the
Appropriations Committee. We all know how busy the chairman is
and I am sure when we ask for legislation for additional miles, the
subcommittee and the full committee will get this first and then we
have another hurdle and that will be the Appropriations Committee.

Mr. chairman, in my opening remarks I said last year when hear-
ings were held and debate was heard on the flcor of the House on
legislation reported by the committee, you remember that this was the
additional 200 miles that we had passed the latter part of the last
session, I advised the membership at that time that I would give full
consideration to any and all requests for an increase in the interstate
mileage. Now, this is one of the purposes of these hearings today in
particular, and at this time when we have our colleagues here who
wish to testify on the matter. We will of course hear from all who wish
to testify at any time and on all points.

At this time we will hear from my good friend and great American,
the chairman of the Committee on Appropriations, the Honorable
George H. Mahon of Texas.

Mr. Mahon, the witness chair is yours and you may testify as you
wish.

STATEMENT OF HON. GEORGE H. MAHON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. Mamon. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kruczynskr. We are glad to have you with us. We need you.

Mr. Manon. Thank you very much for this glowing introduction.

I am pleased to have this opportunity to appear before the com-
mittee and T want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the aggressive
position which you have taken with respect to the road system of our
country.

I realize that all of the requests presented to you cannot be met.
Legislation is a matter of compromise and we can only take one step
ab a time.

Now, I think we must extend the Interstate System. There are those
who think we should not. But there are certain areas that have been
omitted from the system.

Perhaps the decisions made in the past were then fully justified,
but we come to the time when at least a minimum number of additional
metropolitan areas just must be added to the Interstate System.

There is a certain imagery involved in the term “interstate.” Even
cities and metropolitan areas with good road systems, if not designated
on the highway map and otherwise recognized as being on the inter-
state, are at some disadvantage with areas that are on the interstate.

I do not speak of certain cities, certain metropolitan areas which
the interstate has bypassed by a relatively few miles. It is understand-
able that the interstate cannot pass directly through each city. But my
hometown of Lubbock, Tex., is the best illustration I can give of
areas to which I refer. Lubbock ranks very near the top of the list of
the metropolitan areas that are not included in the interstate. It is
more than 100 miles from an interstate in any direction.

96-030—68. 25
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T just feel that Congress needs to provide at least a minimum exten-
sion of the Interstate System to take care of the most pressing cases
that exist today.

Let’s go as far as we think we can under the circumstances. I come
here with a special plea and with a very vital personal interest in my
own area. I am sure all members will fully understand as you have
problems of somewhat similar nature in legislative matters.

From my hometown of Lubbock, Mr. Arch Lamb will appear who
represents the National Association of Counties and also representing
our area. Also, Mr. J. C. Dingwall, the highway engineer of the State
of Texas, will appear.

I do not want to take the time of the committee beyond saying what
I have already said. I hope that you will find a way to extend the
Interstate System sufficiently to meet the most pressing cases that
are before you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. f

Mr. Krivczynser, Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and if there is any
additional testimony you are always welcome to putitin. -

My, Manoxw. Thank you very much.

" Mr. Xroozynser. The Chair recognizes the gentleman from Texas,
Mr. Wright.
Mr. WrieaT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I want to compliment my
distinguished colleague, the chairman of the Appropriations Commit-
- tee on his testimony. I do know something about Lubbock and its needs
aqnd its roads. Certainly it should be connected with the Interstate
System. '
“Luubbock is one of those towns that falls into the category of those
that we initially set out to link together in the Interstate System.

I think the rule of thumb was that we were going to try to link
together in one connection all the cities of 100,000 or more population.
Lubbock certainly has grown to the point where it amply qualifies to
be counted in that role and I want to second the suggestion made
by my distinguished colleague.

Mr. Mason. Thank you.

Mr. Kruozynsgl. Mr. Cramer?

Mr, Craxzr. I yield to Mr. Cleveland.

Mr. Creveraxp. I have a question for the gentleman from Texas.

There has been some concern expressed before this committee by
members of the committee over the request made by you and Mr.
Pickle to extend the interstate, but at the present time, at least some
illlembers of the committee are concerned about holding on to what we

ave got.

I would like to ask you because of your special position as Chairman
of the Appropriations Committee 1f you have any knowledge as to
whether or not included in the proposed $6 billion expenditure cut
will be the highway trust fund.

Now, the committee has taken the position that these trust funds
should not be cut by administrative action.

We feel that these funds are in a trust fund much as the social secu-
rity funds are, but it is my understanding that the conferees are going
to bring back to the floor the House language, although it will specif-
ically exempt social security trust funds, it is not going to exempt the
highway trust fund.
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This raises a question and we would appreciate very much if you
can shed some light on it, whether you have any knowledge as to
whether any highway trust funds are going to be used to make up
this $6 billion expenditure cut that the President is now admitted or
acknowledged that he will go along with.

Mr. Manoxn. Well, let me first make reference to a collateral matter
and come squarely to grips with the question which you have raised,
Mr. Cleveland. )

As I see it, in extending the Interstate System it is important that
we act as soon as we reasonably can in including the extension. It is
net vital that the actual construction proceed immedistely for these
additional mileages.

When designation is made, map makers begin to so indicate on the
maps. The maps show that the Interstate will be there sometime in the
future. It is true that there are a lot of things we cannot do toward
additional interstate at this time. ,

Now, with respect to your question I do not know where the $6 bil-
lion reduction in expenditure is going to be taken. I think it has to
come from many places. I think this cut is going to be very difiicult to
achieve.

I think Congress itself ought to make the determination of where
the cuts will be made and Congress will, up to a certain point. We al-
ready have cut this year appropriations by $5 billion below the Presi-
dent’s budget.

We will go to $6 or $7 or maybe $10 billion below the President’s
budget in reductions in appropriation. We hope we will make cuts to
the extent which will reflect savings of not less than $4 billion in ex-
penditures for the forthcoming fiscal year. :

Then it is going to be necessary to decide how the additional cuts
will be made. Under the present proposed legislation the additional
cuts, if not made by Congress, would have to be made by the Executive.

Mr. CurveLaxp, The other thing I think that confuses some mem-
bers of the committee is, is it truly a cut, is it truly an expenditure
reduction if we are taking money that is coming into a trust fund and
just slowing down that expenditure. I mean is it really a budget cut?

Mr. Mamon. If this is done it will be reducing expenditures for the
fiscal year 1969. That is the objective. It is not necessarily a savings. It
may be a loss from the standpoint of actual savings because the cost
may be greater later on.

Those who argue for tax action based on inflation and the economy
take the position that by spending less during a particular period,
the inflationary pressures will be less and even though the cost may be
greater in the long run, the Nation’s interest is served.

Now, I just believe we ought to pay our own way insofar as we
reasonably can. If we do not want to pay for a program, we ought
to be willing to suspend the program. Of course I assume a dollar
unexpended 1n a highway trust fund is no different from the stand-
point of the impact on the economy from a dollar not expended in
gther programs which are funded directly and not through the trust

unds. :

Mr. CLeveraxp. There is a difference, Mr. Chairman, because if that
dollar in the highway trust fund is unexpended this year, it cannot be
expended for anything but highways in later years. .
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Mr. CreveLaxp. A dollar that is unexpended for foreign aid this
year or unexpended for one of the other programs this year, unlike the
trust fund situation, that dollar is saved to the budget, saved to the
taxpayers.

Mr. Manmox. Unlessitisa deferral.

Mr. Crevenaxp. Well, I appreciate your candor and thank you very
much.

Mr. Kuoczynsgr, The gentleman from Florida, Mr. Cramer.

Mr. Cranmer. I have a couple of questions I wanted to asked the
gentleman and I did want to yield to the gentleman from New
Hampshire.

On this question of money, of course the money that is deferred and
not spent out of the trust fund is going to be spent sometime later
on in all probability, is it not, if the so-called inflationary pressures
should ease up ?

Now, the fact of the matter is we have practically in existence the
$600 million cut in the expenditures in the highway trust fund by
Presidential order.

1 contempalte that when we have done our work that the President
may contact the Congress and outline a program which the legislative
branch and the executive branch might jointly undertake in order to
achieve the $6 billion reduction.

As we all know the President has taken the position that the $6
billion cut is too deep.

To some extent we followed a similar course last year in House
Joint Resolution 888.

Now, coming more specifically to the question. If you are going to
cut $6 billion in expenditures, you have to make some cuts in highway
expenditures, in my opinion, and I think some cuts will be made there.
Nobody has told me that, but I do not think you need a crystal ball to
figure out that if we have a $6 billion cut in spending, some of that cut
is going to be in the highways and that would be most regrettable.
But I think that is the way we are moving.

Mr. Creveraxp. I appreciate the candor of the gentleman from
Texas and I still am at a loss and I think some members of this com-
mittee are at a loss as to how the Executive can cut these highway ex-
penditures when the money is in a trust fund. T have never heard it
even contemplated that social security trust funds would be cut back
and I just cannot get it through my head how they can turn these high-
way trust funds on and off like a faucet.

Mr. Manon. Those who administer a program of this type can slow
down expenditures. This can be done through the apportionment
process, authority for which is contained in the Antideficiency Act.
The road program could be slowed down more conveniently than could
a social security program in which case payments must be made to
individuals by formula under the law. There is a little difference in
the matter but I agree thisis a very serious problem.

In addition to that, as of May:18, as I am sure the distinguished
chairman knows full well, because he helped to try to solve the problem
in the House, at least, of $400 million short as of May 18, so that as of
that date there is no more Federal-aid money available for highway
expenditures until July 1 of next year, unless there is a supplemental
appropriation passed.
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That means, in effect, a $1 billion cut already. Now, is it contem-
plated that you will be $1 billion above that, meaning $2 billion out
of the trust fund? We are only spending $4.2 billion out of the trust
fund.

Mr. Mazon. If I may respond, we passed a supplemental appropri-
ation measure through the House as you gentlemen know.

I had an understanding, I thought, with the Senate appropriations
committee that it would act on it promptly. But, the other body, in
its fervor and zeal for more social expenditures and summer programs,
and so forth, has not been able to come to an agreement on bringing
this bill up unencumbered by other programs. The problem is not with
the Appropriations Committee of the Senate but with individual
Members of that body.

The leadership in the Senate has been unable to bring this matter
to a vote. I assume it will come up soon and I assume that there is
no doubt that the additional funds will be approved.

Mr. Cramer. I have been advised for instance that the State of
Pennsylvania as of last week is out of money. They cannot borrow
any money. They have put all of the State matching money they have
available into the system and loaned it to the Federal Government,
in effect, to try to get over the hump and their programs are stopped.

There are a number of other States that are in or getting in exactly
that same situation. Of course I am sure you realize a stop and a go
in a highway program results in extreme high costs when we get
started again.

Mr. Maumon. That is the reason we passed through the House the
supplemental. :

Mr. Cramer. I appreciate the chairman’s quick action to get the
Senate to act on the $400 million passed.

Mr. Marox. I would like to say to the chairman, Mz, Kluczynski,
that he had a major part in helping pave the way for early action by
the House in this matter. He has pressed for action and was very
helpful. So was George Fallon, the chairman of your full committee.

Mr. Cramer. Have you had any recent indication as to what the
Senate might do ?

Mr. Manon. We had a conference yesterday with the Senate on the
urgent supplemental which has been lingering near the peint of death
for many weeks and the other body wants to add to that more money
for Headstart, more money for job programs, and so forth.

The House conferees have refused to yield to the Senate’s demands
because they are over the budget. We are providing 40 percent more
summer jobs this year than we did last year and the House conferees
have refused thus far to go above the President’s budget. This is the
thing that is holding us up in this conference and this conference on
the urgent supplemental is having its impact on the highway supple-
mental. ’

Mr. Cramer. It doesn’t make any sense to me to put people out of
work by withholding money and then paying that money out on a
summer job program.

I would like to leave this thought with you. On the highway trust
fund I was one in 1956 who introduced the bill and have worked on
it and have since. It was my very clear intention that the highway
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trust fund should be inviolate from cutbacks for use of that fund for
other purposes than Federal highway construction, and I thought we
had written into the law pretty clearly that it was the sole use of
the money.

We were rather surprised I might add when a year and a half ago
the President suggested the first cutback of $1.2 billion, I believe.
So far as this member of the committee is concerned it was our inten-
tion, I felf, to make that trust fund inviolate as would be the social
security trust fund that I understand was a Presidential cutback.

Thank you very much.

Mr. Krvezyxser The gentleman from Qklahoma, Mr. Edmondson.

Mr. Epdyoxpsox. No questions.

Mr. Kruoczyysgi. Any questions or comments to my left?

The gentleman from California, Mi. Clausen.

Mr. Crstsex. Mr. Chairman, T am wondering if you could, for the
benefit of the committee, point out on this particular map the exact
location of Lubbock so we can get a general idea of what area you are
talking about as far as routing is concerned.

Mr. Manox. I see on this map some relatively unimportant towns,
Houston, San Antonio, Dallas, and E1 Paso.

The more important location here is Lubbock, Tex., right here, the
metropolitan area of more than 165,000 people and there is an inter-
state highway running east-west through Amarillo over 100 miles to
the north and one running more-or-less east-west over 100 miles to the
south, but we are left isolated here at Lubbock. We feel we are at
an economic disadvantage by reason of this. We have good highways
but we suffer from not being on the interstate map. _

We want some sort of adequate connection here. We have many
desires. We would like to have an interstate system running from
Oklahoma City down to Wichita Falls down to Lubbock and out to
E1 Paso. That 1s our dream, but this is not, I think, attainable probably
at this time, but we would like to have that matter considered.

More realistically, we would want some sort of link on the interstate
that would give us a place in the sun, so to speak, roadwise.

Mr. Cravsex. How many miles are you talking about in the routing
yvou are suggesting ?

Mr. Mamox. I have not tried to:caleulate the actual mileage. This
would be up to the highway department, I think, but from going each
way to the present interstate, you would have to go more than 100 miles.

If you link Interstate 20 with Interstate 40, you would have some-
thing in the neighborhood of 200 miles through there.

My, Cracsen. Has the State of Texas adopted this routing as one
of their recommendations?

Mr. Mamox. The State of Texas in my opinion places high priority
upon the requirement at Lubbock and the area and, of course, if it does
not continue to hold this position. we are sunk because the State of
Texas must take the major responsibility in working with the Federal
Government as to highway designations.

T believe that is the rule that is followed and properly so.

Mr. Cravsen. Well, thank you very much.

Our problem here is to get the kind of priority that is acceptable
budgetarily to the entire Congress.
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As the gentleman from Florida has pointed out, it was generally
considered in 1956 when they established the program that the trust
fund would be above anything in the way of a possible cutback because
again weare dealing, you know, with safety ; we are dealing with lives,
and one of the reasons they advanced the program is the fact that they
felt they could save, I believe, something like 8,000 lives a year.

In addition to cost, we are talking about the saving of lives and
this is one of the reasons for the advancement of the program.

If we cannot continue the program financing as initially outlined
in the trust fund, your recommendation that you are asking for here
this morning is going to be postponed and deferred.

Mr. Manon. But if we can get, Mr. Clausen, the designation and
get on the map we will be happy with that sort of situation during
the existence of the war and the fiscal stringencies which confront us
today. That is our general attitude.

Mr. Crausen. I see. The major point then is that you feel you want
to see the authorization this year and then set the stage for taking your
chances for later appropriations.

Mr. Mamon. That isright; yes.

Mr. Dexxey. Will the gentleman yield ?

Mr. Crausen. I yield.

Mr. Denney. Mr. Chairman, you made the statement we want to
see the designations.

Now, you are not recommending to this committee that we designate
certain routes. You are recommending that we authorize an extension
of the mileage, leaving it up to the Bureau of Federal Roads and the
States to work out the routes, isn’t that correct ?

Mr. Manon. This has to be done by or through the authorization
process and through the States.

Mr. Denney. Not asking this committee to designate it?

Mr. Mamon. That is right.

Mr. DennEey. Otherwise when we get to the floor we will have 435
members that will give us a problem,

Mr. Mamon. Yes, we would have that problem.

Mr. Dex~ey. Thank you.

Mr. Kruczynskr. The gentleman from Oklahoma, Mr. Edmondson.

Mr. Epmonpson. I merely wanted to tell the able chairman of the
Appropriations Committee that I agree with him wholeheartedly that
the Congress should take the responsibility in determining where these
cuts should occur and it is in a very real sense an abdication of our
responsibility to pass the problem to the White house and you decide
where we are going to have the $6 billion in cuts.

Mr. Mazon. We must avoid the erosion of the power of the legis-
lative branch.

Mr. Kruczynskr. The gentleman from South Carolina, Mr. Dorn.

Mr. Dory. Mr. Chairman, I did want, of course, to welcome my
beloved colleague to the committee and say that Congress should
assume its responsibility and our prerogatives should be preserved.

I want to commend him also for his valiant efforts to give us a sound
dollar because you cannot build roads, you cannot do anything if your
money becomes worthless.

I commend the distinguished and able chairman of the Appropria-
tions Committee.
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Mr, Mamox, Thank you, so very much.

Mr. Kivezyxsgr Any further questions?

Mr. McEwen of New York,

Mr. McEwex. This was interesting to me and T am sure to others
that your community of Lubbock you said is 165,000 population, Mr.
Chairman.

Mr. MasoN. Yes.

Mr. McEwex. What was the population of let us say the metro-
politan area?

Mr. Masox. I am talking about the metropolitan area. The city is
something over 150,000.

Mr. McEwsex. What was the population of that metropolitan area
10 or 20 years ago?

Mr. Mamox. Well, it has grown very rapidly during my period of
service as a Representqtlve Tt was nothing approaching that in 1935.
I can supply it for the record if you like.

Mr. McEwEen. Lubbock was something in the order of maybe 50,000
going back to the 1940°s?

Mr. Manon. Yes.

(The following population figures were supplied for the record:)

Lubbock City of

County Lubbock
1940 e et ccmccmeemeee 51,782 31,853
B L R 101, 048 71,747
R OO AN 156, 271 128,691

Mr. McEwex. What, Mr. Chairman, lies west of there or east if
you were to have an east-west connection ¢

Mr. Mamox. West, of course, if you go west you go more or less
toward Albuquerque, N Mex. ,and on out.

Mr. MoEwey. And Roswell, N. Mex. ?

Mr. Mamox. Roswell, N. Mex., more or less on the line.

Mr. McEwex. South and west of Lubbock ?

Mr. Mamox. Yes. Of course, the highway that way would parallel
to some considerable extent Interstate Route 20 to the south and the
highway through Amarillo to the north which is Interstate 40. But it
would be an Importfmt link and serve a very blg area,

Mr. McEweN. It is now you say approximately 100 miles either
north or south ¢

Mr. Manmox. Yes.

Mr. McEwex. Thank you.

Mr. Mamon. Thank vou very much.

Mr. Kruuczysskr It has been a pleasure to have you before this
committee.

Mr. Manox. Ihave not had thisopportunity recently.

Mr. Kruuczynskr, You are always welcome because we need you.

Mr. Mamow. Thank you.

Mr. KruczyNsir I now recognize another Congressman from New
York, Mr, Jonathan B. Bingham.

Do’ you have a prepared statement ¢
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STATEMENT OF HON, JONATHAN B. BINGHAM, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Mr. Brveran. I do have a prepared statement. I would be glad to
just summarize it for you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kruczynskr, Without objection your entire statement will be
placed into the record at this point.

(The prepared statement of Mr. Bingham follows::)

STATEMENT BY CONGRESSMAN JONATHAN B. BINGHAM BEFORE THE SUBCOMMITTEE
oN Roaps, PusrLic WorksS COMMITTEE, HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES, JUNE 4,
1968

This nation currently faces serious transportation problems, and a disturbing
array of new problems continues to arise out of our current, disordered approach
to transportation policy.

One of the major questions facing this Committee and this Congress is whether
to expand the Interstate Highway System beyond its currently authorized 41,000~
mile limit. I focus initially on this particular question not only because it is an
important one in itself, but also because it illustrates rather dramatically the
imbalance in our total Federal investment in transportation. :

In the three years 1964-67, federal aid for highways was 30 times as great as
for mass transit ($12-billion for the former, $360-million for the latter). The
Interstate Highway System alone has accounted for about three-fourths of all
funds invested in highways in recent years. Estimates of the total cost of the
currently authorized 41,000 miles are constantly rising—the most recent being
$536-billion—and estimates of the completion date have been pushed up from
1972 to 1976 or even 1980. In most of our major cities, hundreds of millions of
dollars are being spent to carve six and eight-lane Interstate Highways across
the urban landseape, while relatively little attention is paid to mass transpor-
tation.

Any significant extension of the Interstate Highway System at this time would
aggravate the already indefensible imbalance in our transportation facilities,
and will commit us to untold billions of dollars more of Federal expenditures
for highways into the 1980’s before we have given adequate attention to other
transportation needs—all at a time when our fiscal capabilities are stretched
nearly to the limit and we are likely to have to cut back on many more vital
programs.

I fully support the coneclusion of the Secretary of Transportation in his 1968
report to the Congress on Highway needs that “additional broad transportation as
well as highway policy considerations need to be weighed in making a final
decision” on the question of expanding the Interstate System.

The current imbalance in our transportation investment is due in part to the
financial machinery we established in 1956 for highway funding. The Highway
Trust Fund has produced an annual account that gets larger every year and that
must be spent for highways without any consideration of the priority of highway
construction and improvement in relation to other national needs. The more
highways we build, and the better they become, the more gasoline, tires and other
items are consumed, and taxed, and the more funds accrued annually to the Trust
Fund. No other public works program has received such automatic and unques-
tioned funding, practically insulated from Congressional review.

T have long advocated greater attention by the Federal government to the press-
ing need for more and better urban mass transportation facilities. The need is
undeniable. Predictions are that there will be 120 million automobiles in this
country by 1980—one car for every two people. Transportation engineers now
estimate that the cost for new roadway and parking facilities needed to permit
each additional automobile to travel to the city during peak traffic hours comes
to about $25,000 in most of our largest cities. Costs of building new highways in
urban areas range from $10-million to as much as $100-million a mile. One
Chicago planner has estimated it takes 5-million square feet of off-street parking
space to handle additional auto traffic brought by a single new expressway lane.

Cost estimates usually do not account for the fact that land occupied by high-
ways yields no local taxes, and many cities suffer major tax losses as highways
displace tax-paying establishments. As transportation expert Winifred Owen
indicated in his book Cities in the Motor Age:
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“Even if we were to try to solve urban transportation problems by highways
alone with an urban highway program averaging $10-million to $20-million a
mile in high density areas, there is every possibility that the remedy would only
succeed in killing the patient—by replacing valuable tax ratable property with
non-taxable concrete and asphalt.” )

There are social costs attached to urban highwars as well. Neighborhoods are
divided and destroyed, famiiies and businesses uprooted, historical landmarks
fall, and public recreational areas are invaded. Highway construction with inade-
quate ragard for social factors has been one of the major grievances voiced by
minority groups in cities that have experienced civil disorders, .

Scientific studies suggest that as much as 65 to 70 percent of city air pollutants
may come from motor vehicles operating on urban highways.

The ideal urban transportation system would, in my view, consist of a modern,
efficient mass transportation faeility supplemented by a network of urban
highways.

Mass transportation facilities serving as basie passenger carriers in high-
population-density areas would relieve many of the problems posed by our pres-
ent highway-oriented urban transportation systems. Mass transit facilities can
transport passengers more cheaply, more rapidly, and more conveniently than
traffic clogged highways. San Francisco’s Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) will
have a peak capacity of 80,000 seated passengers in each direction, and will cost
$13-million a mile. A comparable $13-million-a-mile eight lane expressway would
have a peak capacity of only 10,060 to 12,000 passengers before congestion began
to slow travel down. And the rapid transit line, of course, requires less right-of-
way and no costly downtown parking facilities. The average rush hour journey
in an urban area by transit bus requires only from one-sixth to one-fiftieth as
much space per person as by automobile, and rail mass transit requires only from
one-tenth to one-one-hundredth as much ;space as automobiles. One study con-
cluded that passenger costs for rail transit are about half those of commuting by
autombile. .

Most existing mass transportation systems, howerver. are currently in no con-
dition to take over the passenger loads being borne by urban streets and highways.
Discomfort, inconvenience, low average speed and obsolescence of equipment
plague users of existing systems. Passenger volume at rush hour in many cities
exceeds the seating capacities of trains and buses by as much as 200 per cent. A
survey of average rates of speed for rush-hour travel in 25 cities showed the
overall average to be 13 miles an hour for mass transit systems as compared with
20 miles per hour for automobiles.

As a result, patronage of existing mass transportation facilities lags in many
cities. People will, however, patronize improved facilities. In recent years, im-
provements in the New York subway system have brought about an increase of 20
million passengers. Modernization of Philadelphia’s commuter system has re-
sulted in a 44 per cent increase in riders over the past several vears. A change in
Boston’s Highland Branch from a commuter railroad to a high-speed transit in
1958 resulted in a 1000 per cent increase in passengers.

Considerably more funds than Congress has so far been willing to appropriate
will be needed to upgrade and expand mass transportation systems and to bring
them up to their rightful place as the core of our urban passenger moving systems.
Where this money will come from and how it will be administered is a major
problem. To solve it will require all of our political and administrative skill. But
solve it we must.

While the needs of the cities for mass transportation are immediate and great,
the need for more roads and highwars is considerably less pressing. With new
road construction projects being undertaken, proposed, and contemplated every
day, and little such development of other transportation modes, there is steady
movement toward ever greater transportation imbalance. In light of these facts,
and in view of the current need to cut back on all non-essential spending, it would
seem that less spending on highway construction and upgrading would both
help our total financial situation and help restore a proper balance between high-
ways and other modes of transportation.

There are, it seems to me, two major alternatives—two directions in which we
might move—to meet the essential and immediate need for urban mass transporta-
tion development, and to permit a possible cutback in highway development. One
alternative would be to do away entirely with the Highway Trust Fund. This
would require the Congress periodically to determine proper spending levels and
commit Federal funds for both highways and urban mass transportation through
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the regular appropriations process. This alternative would provide the advantage
of more frequent Congressional examination of transportation priorities and
greater flexibility in controlling spending levels for transportation programs.
But mass transportaton has depended upon the regular appropriations process
for some time, and has not been adequately funded. In addition, powerful political
forces support the continuance of the Highway Trust Fund—political forces that
would constitute a formidable obstacle to any plan to scrap the Fund.

The second alternative would be to expand the scope and resources of the Trust
Fund in such a way that it becomes more than only a highway trust fund. Only
a part of the several manufacturers, retailers, and users taxes relating to trans-
portation currently accrue to the Highway Trust Fund, and those funds can be
employed only for roads and highways. The Trust Fund, however, might grad-
ually be expanded to receive all Federal transportation-related taxes. Such an
expanded trust fund would provide funds for the development of all modes of
transportation. This second alternative, it seems to me, is a more viable one.
It is politically more feasible. Furthermore, it would insure a continuing source
of {ransportation funds.

I have previously (in 1965) proposed and supported legislation that would
permit the States to elect to use some of the funds they receive from the High-
way Trust Fund for mass transportation development rather than roads and
highways. But under that legislation, any funds used for mass transportation
by the States would mean that much less funds for roads and highways—a reduc-
tion which the States have been unwilling, if not unable to incur.

While the greater need for improved mass transportation and the lesser need
for further highway development demands that some cutback of highway spend-
ing be effected, it is unlikely that it would be feasible to cut back highway spend-
ing by ihe full amount that will have to be invested in mass transportation
facilities. The magnitude of the mass transportation need and the projected costs
are too great.

What is needed is a trust fund with greater resources, that will provide
a continuing sources of funds for mass transportation considerably greater than
in the past, and that will also allow cutbacks in road and highway spending.

With this in mind, I am introducing new legislation that would:

(1) Change the name of the Highway Trust Fund to the Transporation
Trust Fund, and

(2) Increase the resources of the Fund by adding the revenues from the
manufacturer’s excise tax on automobiles now allocated to the general fund.

These additional funds—amounting to about $1.5 billion a year—along with
funds released by any future cutbacks in highway programs, would be available
to states and metropolitan areas for construction and upgrading of mass trans-
portation facilities. This legislation, if enacted, would be a major step not only
toward putting mass transportation in its proper place in our transportation
priorities, but also toward the establishment of a broader financial framework—
a Transportation Trust Fund—that should eventually consist of all transporta-
tion-related taxes and support all of our transportation needs in a more rational
and balanced manner.

Mr, Bingmam. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the oppor-
tunity to appear before this distinguished subcommittee and I am
afraid that my position as I outline it here is not going to be a very
immediately popular position to this subcommittee.

Basically, what I am suggesting here is that first of all I think that
the distribution of Federal funds as between the highways and the
mass transportation networks of our country is way out of proportion.

During the period of, for example 3 years from 1964 to 1967 the
Federal Government spent 30 times as much in the highway program
as it did for mass transit.

I realize, of course, that this committee is not responsible for the
funds or the authorization for mass transit purposes. My view is that
we should be in a position, we in the Congress should be in a position
to make judgments and the community should be in a position to make
judgments as to where it is more important to spend our transportation
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dollars, whether on extending the Interstate Highway System or
whether on improving our mass transportation facilities.

My district is a typical one of many city districts. It is composed
very largely of people who have to use mass transportation facilities
every day, whether they go to work or whether they go to school or for
whatever purpose.

Most of these people are not in a position to use cars. Most of these
people are not in position to get out on the interstate highway network
very often,

The transportation system in my area is antiquated. We have, for
example, stations for the use of people, elderly people that have to
climb 50 or 100 steps and this is absurd in this day and age that they
should not have escalators. And, the crowding in the subways at the
rush hours is something that hasto be seen to be believed.

Basically, the New York City transportation system has not really
been improved in many decades. I am suggesting that these are pri-
orities that are out of wack and that we should be doing more for the
millions who live in the cities and have to rely on mass transportation
even if it has to come out of the funds that were allocated originally
for highways under the highway trust fund system.

Now, T have previously introduced both in the last Congress and in
this Congress legislation that would authorize the States to make
use of some of the funds coming under the highway trust fund for
purposes of mass transportation.

I realize that this 1s a legislative proposal that in the practical
aspects of things probably is not going to be immediately adopted.

I hope that in time the public pressure will be such that something
like this will be done.

There are other alternatives to correcting this imbalance that I seek,
Mr. Chairman, and one of these would be to eliminate the special ear-
marking that is charatceristic of the highway trust fund. I don’t
believe myself that this is sound government.

I think that taxes should be put into the general revenues and that
the allocations for expenditures should be made by the Congress and
the executive branch in terms of their real need. I don’t think it is
right that particular taxes should be used for these particular purposes
any more than we use liquor taxes to improve the bars.

I realize, too, that thisis politically a very difficult and probably in
many areas an unpopular suggestion.

I have made here, and this is a new suggestion as far as I am con-
cerned, a different type of proposal which I think would move in the
right direction and at the same time might be more practical. That is
that the highway trust fund not be eliminated but rather that it be
expanded to encompass the principle of a transportation trust fund and
that it include the automobile excise taxes which are not now part of it
so as to give it more resources rather than fewer resources and also to
make clear that it is for purposes of transportation or would be for
purposes of transportation generally rather than just for improvement,
of highways.

I think that this might be a practical approach that would add as I
understand it, about $1.5 billion a year to the resources available and
this would make it possible I think both to make the necessary cutbacks
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and I think cutbacks are going to be necessary, or delays at least in the
highway construction and make it possible to undertake some of the
much more urgent and much more critically needed upgrading of mass
transportation facilities,

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kruczynskr Thank you.

I notice in your statement you are introducing new legislation that
would change the name of the highway trust fund to the transportation
trust fund and to increase the resources of the fund by adding the
revenue of the manufacturers’ tax on automobiles,

I am not opposed to the mass transportation. I do not think any
member of this subcommittee is opposed to mass transportation.

I do not favor changing the highway trust fund to the transporta-
tion trust fund.

The gentleman from Oklahoma.

Mr. Epmonpson. I would like to ask the gentleman why it is in his
proposal to move to mass transit as a program to be funded from this
transportation fund, why he has elected to put additional burdens
insofar as the program is concerned upon the automobile user and not
return to an excise on the mass transit ticket or charge since you are
electing to benefit the mass transit user directly by the program, why
would you suggest in your bill that you have proposed that the auto-
mobile users’ money be used for this purpose and apparently over-
looking any kind of an excise upon the mass transit user to contribute
to the benefit of the mass transit program.

Mr. Bineram. Well, I think Mr. Edmondson, this gets to the essence
of the question as to whether this type of tax in general should be
earmarked for highway purposes.

My view is that it should not.

Now, partly that is a matter of straight economics that the people
who generally speaking use automobiles and use trucks and are taxed
for this purpose are in a position to pay these taxes.

The millions of people who have to use the mass transit facilities
are not in a position to pay additionally for them.

As a matter of fact, they are already in most cities operating in a
very dificult situation. I think the same question would apply fo the
addition of a new, of additional tax as does the original. I would
prefer, if it were feasible, as I have indicated to eliminate the idea of
the earmarking altogether and make all of these taxes subject to the
allocation by the Congress and in the normal way.

Ihave suggested this as possibly a measure that might make it some-
what more palatable, more easy to move in the right direction here by
adding to the resources available so that the cutbacks in the highway
program would not be as large as they might otherwise have to be.

I would like to add to that one other thought if I may, Mr. Chairman,
and that is that many of those who do use automobiles and who do pay
taxes do not get to use the Interstate System very much. This is par-
ticularly true in New York. They are operating on city streets and so
they are not getting much benefit out of the Interstate System.

Mr. Epmonpson. In the first place with the increasing diversion of
interstate revenue as to expressways for the cities which is a recent
pattern we have been seeing a lot of, you do not find many people who
are not getting the benefit of the interstate highway money.
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Secondly, I think you would add some equity to your proposal if you
at least provided a nominal excise tax upon the mass transit user which
I know you see on your subways in New York a lot of people who are
of limited means just as you meet a lot of people on the highways who
are of limited means whether they are riding in automobiles or in
buses, but you also see some people well able to contribute to the cost
of Federal contributions to mass transit on your subway trains I think
and certainly on your trains that run north and west of New York City.
You see a lot of people who are fairly well able to participate in this
operation. :

I think you vwill find more sympathy in some quarters at least for
your proposal if you included in your proposition that the mass transit
user, a Federal excise tax would also contribute to this transporta-
tion fund that you are proposing to tap for mass transit.

Mr. Bixguad. Those who use the commuter railroads and those
who use the railroads are generally in a higher income category and
they do pay a tax. But I don’t know how you could distinguish.

The gentleman is familiar with New York City’s subway system
I am sure, and I do not know how you can distinguish between those
few who ride the subway system who can afford to pay a tax and the
great multitude who cannot.

The economics are not there. The people are hard pressed now.

The point that is well taken about the expressways being built in
the cities I have included in my statement here some comments which
I am sure the committee is familiar with, the enormous problems cre-
ated by these expressways in the cities and the fact that they never
catch up with the problem. The more expressways you add in the cities
the more cars you attract and you develop what we have for instance
on our Long Island Expressway which has been described as the long-
est parking lot in the world.

You are just going to make the problem worse by adding this type
of facility whereas you would relieve the problem and make it pleas-
anter for those who do use the highway and in every way improve
the situation if you would put the same emphasis on the improvement
of mass transportation facilities so as to make it attractive, to get more
people to use it and get more people off the highways instead of adding
more people. :

Mr. Eparoxpsox. I thank the chairman.

Mr. Kurvezywser The gentleman from Florida, Mr. Cramer.

Mr. Craxzr. Just very briefly because I join the Chairman, and
not wanting a further effort to raise trust funds, we have all kinds of
suggestions and I think you are the champion as to how much money
we take out of the trust fund for other purposes.

We are over $8 billion short now on income to finish the Interstate
System in a reasonable period of time.

Do you not think it is important to the country to finish that System
within a reasonable period of time as relates to providing jobs, pro-
viding transportation for everyone, meaning Florida produce travels
over that highway to New York, Florida orange juice travels over the
highways to New York, and without the highways it would cost more;
economic well-being to the community, and so forth, providing trans-
portation for industries, and what have you.
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Do you not really think it is important to finish the System within a
reasonable period of time without lengthening it out further with a
grab by mass transit for money?

Mr. Binemam. Mr. Cramer, it is a matter of priorities.

I think it would be fine to keep on schedule and finish that in time,
but in this day and age when the demands from the conflict in Vietnam
are so great I do not think we can do everything we would like to do.

I just think the needs of the cities are more urgent and that is all.

Mr. Cramer. Well, of course you take page 5 of your statement
you say take the automobile excise tax out of the general fund and
put it in the trust fund. You are going to take money out of the
Teacher Corps, the rent supplement, the housing program, and what
have you. It has to come from someplace.

Mr. Bineaanm. I think we have to do more in those other programs.

Mr. CraMer. What are you going to take it out of, then?

Mr. Bineuranm. I think again it is a question of priorities.

Mr. Cramer. Where are you going to take the money from if you
are going to take $1.5 billion out of the general fund and put it into
mass transit? What program are you going to cut back out of the
general fund?

Mr. Bineram. I am not in a position to say exactly what programs
I would cut back.

Mzr. Cramer. Foreign aid?

Mr. Binemam. But in a general way we would have to defer some
. of the space activities. I think we have to defer the work on the
supersonic plane, that type of thing.

I think we could cut back on the expenses of maintaining forces in
Western Furope. It seems to me these are some of the areas. Our
priorities again are out of whack.

Mr. Cramzr. Thatisall T have.

Mr. Krovozy~Nski. Any further questions?

The gentleman from California, Mr. Clausen.

Mr. %LAUSEN. Mzr. Bingham, I think you have made a contribution
to the hearings here. I think we have similar objectives but maybe
different approaches.

I would like to ask you a very pointed question. Do you believe that
we should tax the commuters to build highways?

Mr. Bixemam. I think we should use whatever taxes we have
available for whatever purposes are most important.

The way you put the question makes it sound very harsh, but in
principle all of our Federal taxes should go to the general fund and
then should be allocated in the scale of priorities that the Congress
determines the most urgent.

Mr. Crausen. The reason I say that is because we are skating on
thin ice when we ask the people in your area who really need as you
say to improve the mass transit capabilities to ask them to pay for
shall we say highways in another section of the country.

Now, conversely it is questionable in my mind whether we should
reverse this and ask for the people who need highways desperately in
other sections of the country to pay for your rapid transit system.

I would suggest that you build on this concept you are talking about
and ask for a mass transit trust fund and take a page out of the book
of the very successful Highway Trust Fund. Everyone would be
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very, very happy and you would get your rapid transit system and on
a per capita basis your people are better able to pay for a program of
this nature in your area than the five or six counties I have in the
depressed category.

Mr, Bineaam. I do not know your district very well and I do not
imagine that you know my district very well.

I do not think the people of my district are for the most part capable
of paying additionally for the transportation.

Mr. Kruczynsgi. Mr, Cleveland ¢

Mr. Creveranp. Mr. Bingham, you have raised some points here
that have been raised by others. I think you should know and I will
not take the time to go into detail, but yesterday when the AASHO
people testified before this committee—

Mr. BineaaM. What people?

Mr. CLeveranp. That is the AASHO people, the American Associ-
ation of State Highway Officials.

For your information they anticipated precisely some of the re-
marks you have made today and they had a very detailed study of
public attitudes prepared and presented to this committee and I just
wanted to inform you that based on those studies, and they are set
out here as to the sources, these scientific samples of over 5,000 people,
you are not marching in tune with the vast majority of people in this
country, and I think you will find that some of these people who were
questioned are some of your own constituents.

T suggest to you that you obtain from the committee a copy of that
study, because as I say it anticipates almost precisely the evidence you
have given usin support of your proposal.

Mr. Bincmanm. May I just say a word on that if T may, Mr.
Cleveland ?

I would be glad to look at that and I welcome the opportunity. I
might say, though, that I have last year sent out a questionnaire to all
of my constituents and it included a question on this very subject,
whether the communities and States should have the opportunity to
use some of the Highway Trust Funds for mass transit purposes and
the answer from my constituents was overwhelmingly in the
affirmative.

Mr. Crevenanp. I think if the question said even if this means they
cannot finish the Interstate System and improve the secondary and
primary roads, you might have had a different answer.

There is one other point you made that I think should be met. You
said you do not believe we are earmarking funds. We just recently
passed, and I know you have long supported land and water conserva-
tion. The principle there is that the people who use the parks, the
national parks, pay a fee and that fee will go to a fund so land could
be acquired for additional parks and improvements of parks we have.

Nor, if you are going to come down here and lower the boom on the
highway trust fund, I think to be consistent you would have to object
to the concept of the land and water conservation fund. And, as T
recall, you were one of the strong supporters of that legislation, that is,
the Land and Water Conservation Act.

Mr. Bixgmay. I think there is a difference in the sense that one
case involved the fee and would be ‘more comparable, let us say, to the
use of the fee paid to the toll road; and the other involves a tax.




